
 

 

 

7 North Dixie Highway 

Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

561.586.1600 

  
AGENDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 
TUESDAY, APRIL 04, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

ROLL CALL: 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering: 

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

A. Micro-Communal Housing Units (MCHUs): Truly Affordable Housing for People Making Less 
Than $35,000 a Year presented by Taniel Koushakjian of Jetta Investment Company brought 
forward by Commissioner Diaz 

B. Proclamation declaring April 2023 as Florida Water Professionals Month 

C. Proclamation declaring April 2023 as Water Conservation Month 

D. Proclamation declaring April 15-22, 2023 as National Dark Night Sky Week 

DESIGNATION OF APPOINTMENTS: 

A. Appointment of Vice Mayor and Vice Mayor Pro Tem 

B. Appointment of commissioners to various organizations: 

1. Transportation Planning Authority plus alternates 

2. Palm Beach County League of Cities 

3. Community Redevelopment Agency 

4. Neighborhood Association Presidents’ Council 

5. Education Task Force 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

A. Regular Meeting - March 21, 2023 

B. Pre-Agenda Work Session - March 22, 2023 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 



A. Ordinance 2022-17 – Second Reading - Consideration of a Residential Urban Planned 
Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Sustainable Bonus 
Incentive Program (SBIP) requests for the project commonly referred to as 
“Residences at Lake Worth,” to construct three (3) mid-rise residential structures that 
are 5-stories in height with a total of 195 dwelling units. The sustainable bonus request 
is for an additional 3-stories in height.   

B. Ordinance 2023-02 - Second Reading - Amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 
Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-39 
“Affordable/Workforce Housing Program” to provide clarification on the combination of 
incentives, qualifications for affordability, participation in other entity programs, and providing 
additional affordability buy down provisions 

C. Ordinance 2023-03 & 2023-04 - Second Reading - A City-initiated small-scale Future Land 
Use Map (FLUM) amendment (Ordinance 2023-03) and a Zoning Map amendment 
(Ordinance 2023-04) on behalf of For The Children Inc (Lessee) located on City owned 
property at 1718 South Douglas Street 

NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Geotechnical Category   

B. Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc for Comprehensive Sustainability Analysis 
for the City for the FY 2024 Budget 

C. Resolution No. 08-2023 - FDOT Local Agency Program Agreement – ADA Improvements 

D. Construction Agreement with M&M Asphalt Maintenance, Inc. for the Harold Grimes Memorial 
Park Improvement Project Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 

E. Ordinance No. 05-2023 – First Reading – Adopting a Single-Member Election 
Redistricting Map; Repealing Article II “Territorial Boundaries; Election Precincts,” 
Section 2 “Election Districts” of the Charter and Adopting a new Article II “Territorial 
Boundaries; Election Precincts,” Section 2 “Single-Member Election Districts” to 
reflect the Redistricting Map and its Boundaries 

F. Discussion of City Manager’s Annual Evaluation 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT: 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

April 12 Pre-Agenda Work Session @ 9 am 
April 13 Work Session @ 6 pm 
April 17 Work Session @ 5 pm 
April 18 Regular Meeting @ 6 PM 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 
The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 81-
2022). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted 



online at:  https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s 
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated. 

 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any 
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that, 
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which 
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105) 



Truly Affordable Housing for 

People Making Less than 

$35,000 a Year

Presented by Taniel Koushakjian 



• > $35,000 Annual Income

• $500-$600 Monthly Rent

• Seniors on Fixed Income

• Students/Workforce 

• Homeless/Transition

• No AirBnBs

• Close Proximity to Grocery, Public Transportation, 

Laundromat.



• 120 square feet room.

• Shared Full Restroom per 4 tenants (inside locking)

• Shared Dual-Use Kitchen per 16 tenants (2 sinks, 2 stoves, 2 

microwaves, 2 refrigerators)

• 16 Units Minimum (36 maximum)

• Density: Only 0.2 acres needed

• Parking Requirement: Ration 1 Unit to 0.5 space.

• Community Living Space

• Elevator

• No Tax Incentive Required!



• Technology & Quality of Life Upgrades:

⚬ Cable/TV

⚬ Internet/WiFi

⚬ FOB Key-Door Entry System for Building, Room, and 

Restroom.

⚬ New/Central HVAC/Air Conditioning

⚬ Good Quality Finishing and Materials 

⚬ Redesigned Landscaping and Public Green Space

⚬ Solar Panels



• Stability Plan: In order to reduce instability we propose:

⚬ Annual licensing and inspections. 

⚬ Pre-Approved Property Management Companies with Standardized 

Vetting for Applicants.

⚬ On-Site 24/7 Management/Property Manager Representative / Security 

Guard.

⚬ Limited Density (max. of 24 Units per 0.2 acres) with distance 

requirements between complexes. 

⚬ Investment in Tech-Enabled Security: Access FOBs, Cameras, Motion 

Detectors, LED Lighting.



Proof of Concept in Delray Beach, FL

• Proven solution since 1960. 

• Limited parking requirements (<0.5 

spaces per unit)

• Limited Land Footprint

• Affordable for People Making > $20,000 

Per Year

• Enhanced Quality of Life Features:  

⚬ Dual-Capacity Kitchens

⚬ TV/Cable Provided

⚬ Wireless Internet Provided 

⚬ Elevators 

⚬ Enhanced Security

⚬ Communal Space (interrior or 

exterior)

• Viable Areas:

⚬ Close to Grocery Store + Public Transportation

⚬ Close to Laundromat or Washer/Dryers onsite 

⚬ City/County Sewage: (No septic)



• Palm Beach County Homeless Coalition

• Community Partners

• Delray Housing Group, Inc.

• Delray Beach Chamber of Commerce

• The Spady Museum 

• Veterans & Homefront Voices



1730 South Federal Highway

Box #349

Delray Beach, FL 33483

(561) 366-2407

jettainvestments@outlook.com  



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

TITLE: 

Appointment of Vice Mayor and Vice Mayor Pro Tem 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Item provides for the appointment of a Vice Mayor and Vice Mayor Pro Tem in accordance 
with City Charter Article III, Section 3. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

In accordance with the City’s Charter, the Commission shall annually elect from among its 
members a Vice Mayor and Vice Mayor Pro Tem at the first regular City Commission meeting 
following the general election.   

This is the first year without an election as the terms were changed from two to three years 
effective 2018.  A resolution clarifying that the appointments should be done annually at the first 
meeting in April whether or not there would be an election was approved at the March 21, 2023 
Commission meeting. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to appoint ________ as Vice Mayor. 

Move to appoint ________ as Vice Mayor Pro Tem. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

TITLE: 

Appointment of commissioners to various organizations: 

1. Transportation Planning Authority plus alternates 

2. Palm Beach County League of Cities 

3. Community Redevelopment Agency 

4. Neighborhood Association Presidents’ Council 

5. Education Task Force 

 
SUMMARY: 

The item provides for the appointment of City liaisons from the City Commission members to 
various organizations and boards. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On April 5, 2022, the City Commission made the following appointments: 
 

1. Transportation Planning Authority (TPA) – Commissioner Diaz; Vice Mayor McVoy 
alternate 

The TPA provides a cooperative, comprehensive, and continuing transportation planning and 
decision-making process which encompasses all modes and covers both short-range and 
long-range transportation planning.   

2. Palm Beach County League of Cities (PBCLC) – Mayor Resch 

The PBCLC’s purpose is to promote and advance the collective interest(s) of the 
municipalities of the County to study municipal issues and seek desired results through 
cooperative effort, to respect the principles of Home Rule, to encourage and enhance the 
quality of life of the citizens of the County, and/or to engage in any other lawful purpose not 
for profit. 

3.  Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) – Commissioner Malega 

The CRA is responsible for formulating and implementing projects that are consistent with 
the Lake Worth Beach Redevelopment Plan to assist in revitalizing and redeveloping portions 
of the City. 

 

4. Neighborhood Association Presidents’ Council (NAPC) – Commissioner Malega 



 

The Council supports and promotes their members’ neighborhood associations and serves 
as an umbrella organization with no opinion on how each association chooses to decide 
matters for its own association. 

5. Education Task Force – Commissioner Stokes 

The Voices for LWB Schools (Education Task Force) serves to strengthen the relationship 
between the city and its schools, to study issues affecting the schools and report the findings 
and to assess the strengths and challenges that city schools are facing in an effort to 
determine how the city could assist.  

 
MOTION: 

Move to appoint ________ to serve as liaison to the Transportation Planning Authority with 
_____________ and ______________ serving as alternate(s). 

Move to appoint ________ to serve as liaison to the Palm Beach County League of Cities. 

Move to appoint ________ to serve as liaison to the Community Redevelopment Agency. 

Move to appoint ________ to serve as liaison to the Neighborhood Association Presidents’ 
Council. 

Move to appoint ________ to serve as liaison to the Education Task Force. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 



 

 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

TUESDAY, MARCH 21, 2023 – 6:00 PM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 6:05 PM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:29) Present were Mayor Betty Resch, Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy, 

Commissioners Kimberly Stokes and Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were City Manager Carmen 

Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne.  Commissioner Sarah 

Malega was absent. 

 

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: (1:06) was led by Mayor Betty Resch. 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (1:42) was led by Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz. 

 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/REORDERING: (2:02) 

New Business I, Resolution No. 09-2023 opposing House Bill 1011 (HB1011) that only 

specified flags may be flown by local governments was added to the agenda. 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

agenda as amended. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

PRESENTATIONS: (2:36) (there is no public comment on Presentation items) 

 

A. Historic Preservation Board Update by Board Chair Stephen Pickett (2:45) 

 

B. Planning & Zoning Board Update by Board Member Alexander Cull (12:30) 

 

C. Proclamation declaring March 31, 2023 as The Lord's Place SleepOut to End 

Homelessness Awareness Day (21:26) 

 

D. Proclamation declaring March 2023 as National Ethics Awareness Month (23:58) 

 

E. Proclamation declaring March 2023 as Florida Bicycle Month (25:37) 

 

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS: (28:23) 

 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT: (45:39) 

 

City Manager Davis provided the following report: 

 



Pg. 2, Regular Meeting, March 21, 2023 

 

 attended Conversations with the Deputy where the PBSO bodycams were shown to the 

residents 

 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT 

AGENDA: (47:44) 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: (53:10) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

following minutes: 

 

A. Regular Meeting - March 7, 2023 

B. Pre-Agenda Work Session - March 8, 2023 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

 

There were no items on the Consent Agenda. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: (53:29) 

 

A. Ordinance 2023-02 - First Reading - Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 

“Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” 

Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce Housing Program” to provide clarification on the 

combination of incentives, qualifications for affordability, participation in other entity 

programs, and providing additional affordability buy downs provisions. (53:30) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinance by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE 2023-02 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 SECTION 23.2-39 

“AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE HOUSING PROGRAM,” PROVIDING FOR 

CLARIFICATION ON COMBINATION OF INCENTIVES, QUALIFICATIONS FOR 

AFFORDABILITY AND PARTICIPATION IN OTHER ENTITY PROGRAMS AND 

PROVIDING FOR ADDITIONAL AFFORDABILITY BUY DOWN PROVISIONS; 

AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Ordinance 2023-02 on first reading, setting the second reading and public hearing for April 4, 

2023. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

B. Ordinance Nos. 2023-03 & 2023-04 - First Reading - A City-initiated small-scale Future 

Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment (Ordinance 2023-03) and a Zoning Map amendment 



Pg. 3, Regular Meeting, March 21, 2023 

 

(Ordinance 2023-04) on behalf of For The Children Inc (Lessee) located on City owned 

property at 1718 South Douglas Street (1:02:09) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia read the ordinances by title only. 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-03 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

THROUGH A SMALL SCALE MAP AMENDMENT FROM THE FUTURE LAND 

USE (FLU) DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE (PROS) 

TO THE PUBLIC (P) FLU DESIGNATION ON THE PROPERTY GENERALLY 

LOCATED AT THE EAST SIDE OF SOUTH DOUGLAS STREET, WEST OF THE 

FEC RAILWAY, SOUTH OF LATONA AVENUE, AND NORTH HILLBRATH DRIVE 

AT 1718 SOUTH DOUGLAS STREET, AND AS MORE PARTICULARLY 

DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; PROVIDING THAT CONFLICTING ORDINANCES 

ARE REPEALED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-04 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING THE CITY’S OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FROM THE ZONING DISTRICT 

OF PUBLIC RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE (PROS) TO PUBLIC (P) ON THE 

PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE EAST SIDE OF SOUTH DOUGLAS 

STREET, WEST OF THE FEC RAILWAY, SOUTH OF LATONA AVENUE, AND 

NORTH HILLBRATH DRIVE AT 1718 SOUTH DOUGLAS STREET, AND AS MORE 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; PROVIDING THAT CONFLICTING 

ORDINANCES ARE REPEALED; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 

PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve 

Ordinance 2023-03 on first reading, setting the second reading and public hearing for April 4, 

2023. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve 

Ordinance 2023-04 on first reading, setting the second reading and public hearing for April 4, 

2023. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: (1:08:03) 

 

A. Discussion on Solicitation for L & M Streets Property Development (1:08:08) 

 
Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

supporting the issuance of a Request for Proposal (RFP) for the L and M Property Development 

achieved through a joint meeting with the CRA in May, as a two-phase solicitation, with Phase 

I being the qualification process and Phase II being the final selection, incorporating as many 



Pg. 4, Regular Meeting, March 21, 2023 

 

of the design criteria discussed as possible, with the evaluation criteria brought back to the City 

Commission for approval. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega.. 

 

B. Resolution No. 07-2023 – Approving the Amendment to the Fees & Charges for Mobile 

Home Park Solid Waste & Recycling (2:39:16) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 07-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING THE FEES AND CHARGES SCHEDULE FOR MOBILE HOME PARK 

SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLING FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023; PROVIDING FOR 

CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Resolution 07-2023 – approving the amendment to the Fees & Charges for Mobile Home Park 

Solid Waste & Recycling. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: (2:40:20) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to move New 

Business I to New Business A and then address the rest of the New Business items. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

A. (moved from New Business I) Resolution No. 09-2023 opposing House Bill 1011 

(HB1011) that only specified flags may be flown by local governments (2:40:32) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 09-2023 -- A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, URGING ALL MEMBERS OF 

THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE TO OPPOSE HOUSE BILL 1011 ("HB 1011") 

DISPLAY OF FLAGS BY GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES; DIRECTING THE CITY 

CLERK TO TRANSMIT A COPY OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR 

CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve 

Resolution No. 09-2023 and accept the changes that the Mayor works on with the City 

Attorney. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 



Pg. 5, Regular Meeting, March 21, 2023 

 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

B. (previously A) Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Civil Engineering - 

Water category (2:53:35) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Agreements for Continuing Contracts for professional services for Civil Engineering – Water 

with Mock, Roos & Associates, Inc, Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., Holtz Consulting 

Engineers, Inc. and Chen Moore and Associates, Inc.  

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

C. (previously B) Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Civil Engineering - 

Transportation Category (2:56:01) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

Agreements for Continuing Contracts for professional services for Civil Engineering – 

Transportation with WGI, Inc, Mock, Roos & Associates, Inc, Kimley-Horn and Associates, 

Inc. and Stantec, Inc. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

D. (previously C) Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Hydrogeological 

Category (3:56:24) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

Agreements for Continuing Contracts for professional services for Hydrogeological 

Engineering with JLA Geosciences, Inc. and Stantec, Inc 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

E. (previously D) Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Architecture Category 

(3:11:42) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Diaz and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to approve the 

Agreements for Continuing Contracts for professional services for Architecture with CPZ 

Architects, Inc., ACAI Architects, Inc. Song + Associates, Inc. and WGI, Inc. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

F. (previously E) Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Surveying Category 

(2:57:17) 

 



Pg. 6, Regular Meeting, March 21, 2023 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

Agreements for Continuing Contracts for professional services for Surveying with WGI, Inc., 

Dennis J. Leavy & Associates, Engenuity Group, Inc and Avirom & Associates. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

G. (previously F) Agreement with Advanced Data Solutions to provide digitizing of property 

files (2:57:55) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy to approve the 

professional services agreement with Advanced Data Solutions, Inc. 

  

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

H. (previously G) Agreement with AndCo Consulting LLC for Investment Consulting 

Services (3:00:38) 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve the 

agreement with AndCo Consulting LLC investment consulting services, not to exceed $30,000 

annually. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None. ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

I. (previously H) Resolution No. 06-2023 – Clarifying Article III, Section 3 of the City 

Charter so that the designation of appointments be done annually at the first meeting in 

April (3:02:17) 

 

City Attorney Torcivia did not read the resolution. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 06-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 

AMENDING ARTICLE III, SECTION 3 OF THE CITY CHARTER TO CLARIFY 

THAT DESIGNATION OF APPOINTMENTS BE HELD ON AN ANNUAL BASIS; 

AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

Action: Motion made by Commissioner Stokes and seconded by Commissioner Diaz to approve 

Resolution No. 06-2023 – Clarifying Article III, Section 3 of the City Charter so that the 

designation of appointments be done annually at the first meeting in April. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

(moved to New Business A from New Business I) Resolution No. 09-2023 opposing House 

Bill 1011 (HB1011) that only specified flags may be flown by local governments 

 

  



Pg. 7, Regular Meeting, March 21, 2023 

 

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:  
 

City Attorney Torcivia did not provide a report. 

 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS: 

 

March 22 - Pre-agenda Work Session @ 9 am 

March 28 - Utility @ 6 pm 

April 4 - Regular @ 6 pm 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (3:02:54) 

 

Action: Motion made by Vice Mayor McVoy and seconded by Commissioner Stokes to adjourn the 

meeting at 9:09 PM. 

 

Vote: Voice vote showed: AYES: Mayor Resch, Vice Mayor McVoy, and Commissioners Stokes 

and Diaz. NAYS: None.  ABSENT: Commissioner Malega. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes approved April 4, 2023.  

 

Item time stamps correspond to the video recording of the meeting on YouTube.  



 

MINUTES 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

CITY COMMISSION PRE-AGENDA WORK SESSION 

CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 22, 2023 - 9:00 AM 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 9:06 AM in the City 

Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach, 

Florida. 

 

ROLL CALL: (0:40) Present were Mayor Betty Resch (arrived at 9:10 AM); Vice Mayor 

Christopher McVoy and Commissioners Sarah Malega and, Reinaldo Diaz. Also present were 

City Manager Carmen Davis, City Attorney Glen Torcivia and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne.  

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes was absent. 

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION / DIRECTION: 

Action: Consensus to revisit public comment policy at a future meeting. (25:57) 

Action: Consensus to add a discussion item regarding the pre-agenda work session schedule to the 

April 21, 2023 commission meeting. (32:15) 

 

ADJOURNMENT: (59:39)  

 

The meeting adjourned at 10:05 AM. 

 

 

____________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 

 

Minutes Approved: April 4, 2023 

 

 

Item time stamps correspond to the recording of the meeting on YouTube. 



EXECUTIVE BRIEF 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2022-17 – Second Reading - Consideration of a Residential Urban Planned 
Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit (CUP), and Sustainable Bonus Incentive 
Program (SBIP) requests for the project commonly referred to as “Residences at Lake Worth,” 
to construct three (3) mid-rise residential structures that are 5-stories in height with a total of 195 
dwelling units. The sustainable bonus request is for an additional 3-stories in height.   

 
SUMMARY: 

The applicant, Brian Terry of Insite Studio, Inc, is requesting approval of the following for the 
project commonly referred to as “Residences at Lake Worth”: 

• A planned development, development of significant impact, and major site plan requests 
to construct a 195-unit multi-family development with three (3) mid-rise residential multi-
family buildings and one (1) amenity building/clubhouse.  Each of the multi-family buildings 
will have 65 residential units. The proposed units will be divided between 105 one-
bedroom units, 85 two-bedroom units, and 5 three-bedroom units.  The 5 three-bedroom 
units were added based on City Commission direction at the February 7, 2023.  The three-
bedroom units would be located in the rear multi-family building. 

• A conditional use permit request to develop a multi-family residential development with a 
total of 195 multi-family units, of which 14 one-bedroom room units and 16 two-bedroom 
units will be income restricted as workforce housing through the PBC Workforce Housing 
Program. One (1) three-bedroom income restricted workforce unit was added subsequent 
to the February 7, 2023 City Commission meeting as a SBIP qualifying improvement and 
based on City Commission direction. 

• A Sustainable Bonus request for an additional 3-stories of bonus height.   

The Applicant is proposing a multi-family development on a 7.40-acre vacant lot with the 
purpose of providing attainable apartments with income restricted units, and amenities, including 
a pedestrian path around the lake. Per the applicant’s justification statement, “residents will have 
access to multiple amenities on the property including a +/- 4,980 square foot clubhouse with a 
management office, club room, fitness facility, yoga room and mail center.  These amenities are 
located in the center of the property and will be the focal point entering into the community. 
Exterior to the clubhouse is a covered terrace and expansive pool deck with a central bar and 
grill area covered by an architectural pergola structure. Other site amenities include a fully 
connected sidewalk system that extends completely around the retention pond on the north and 
provides access to a fenced dog park on the west side of the property.” 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 
On November 1, 2022, the applicant held a meeting with neighborhood residents at Mathews 
Brewing Company. Notices were mailed to all property owners within 400 ft of the project on 
October 15, 2022, and signs were placed on the property on October 17, 2022.  There were two 



attendees that signed in at the meeting and no concerns were identified per the meeting 
minutes.  The applicant also has a project webpage: 

https://www.insitestudio.com/residencesatlakeworth 

The Planning and Zoning Board (PZB) at their November 16, 2022 meeting, recommended 
approval of the project with conditions.  The motion included one modification to staff’s 
recommended conditions of approval regarding the wording of the workforce/affordable housing 
condition as proposed by the City Attorney.  Board discussion included questions to the 
applicant and staff related to the location and breakdown of the workforce housing units, 
clarification on which program the applicant would utilize to restrict the income requirements for 
the units, lack of motorcycle parking, the architectural style, the stormwater retention 
requirements due to the project’s location in a C-51 sub-basin, and a flood zone discussion.   

As outlined in the staff report, the proposed planned development meets all standards and 
requirements as outlined in the City’s Land Development Regulations (LDRs) and 
Comprehensive Plan.  

The Applicant is asking for bonus height that is less than the maximum allowance permitted via 
the SBIP in a planned development in the MU-W zoning district.  The square footage of the 
bonus area above the second floor (3rd, 4th, and 5th floors) is +/-12,691 square feet per floor 
for two buildings, and is +/-14,102 per floor for the third building above the second floor (3rd, 
4th, and 5th floors). The SBIP incentive value for all three buildings was revised to reflect the 
additional square footage added to accommodate the 5 three-bedroom units. The updated SBIP 
incentive value is $888,390, which was calculated as follows:  $888,390 = $571,095 (12,691 sf 
X 3 Floors X 2 Buildings X $7.50 per sf) plus $317,295 (14,102 sf X 3 Floors X $7.50). Fifty 
percent (50%) of the incentive award value is $444,195, which the applicant is required to pay 
to the City. For the remaining 50% of the incentive award value ($444,195), the applicant revised 
their qualifying improvement list based on City Commission direction at the February 7, 2023 
meeting, and as consistent with Resolution 23-2021, LDR Section 23.2-33.  The applicant’s 
revised qualifying improvements include: Florida Green Building Silver Certification 
($222,097.50), 6 EV Charging Stations ($50,000), one (1) three-bedroom income restricted unit 
per City’s Workforce / Affordable Housing program ($112,875), and littoral and wetland habitat 
plantings around the lake ($64,000). The total estimated value of the applicant’s proposed 
qualifying improvements is $448,972.50.  The total payment by the applicant to the City for the 
additional height is the 50% required to be paid to the City ($444,195). The remaining 50% of 
the SBIP value is addressed through the proposed qualifying improvements. 

At the February 7, 2023 meeting, the City Commission voted to approve Ordinance 2022-17 on 
first reading. The City Commission requested that each building have two (2) elevators, and that 
the dog park be relocated away from the canal if feasible.  At a minimum, it was requested that 
the applicant add plantings around the dog park to minimize runoff into the E-4 Canal if it was 
not possible to relocate the dog park. The City Commission also directed the applicant to revise 
their SBIP qualifying improvement list to include at least 1 three-bedroom income restricted unit, 
and littoral plantings and wetland habitat in the drainage lake.  The City Commission also 
requested that the applicant add market rate three-bedroom units to the project (5 units). 

Additional background, history and justification can be found in the attached documentation, 
including the advisory board staff report.  Subsequent to the February 7, 2023 City Commission 
meeting, the applicant provided an updated justification statement, and revised site plan, 

https://www.insitestudio.com/residencesatlakeworth


 

landscape plans, and impermeable area exhibit on March 13, 2023 to address City Commission 
direction and concerns.  Staff has added a condition of approval that these revised plans will be 
reviewed for technical compliance with the City’s requirements. Staff also added a condition of 
approval that each building will require two elevators. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 2022-17 on Second Reading / Adoption. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2022-17 
Revised Plans Submitted on 3-13-2023 
Supporting Plans and Documents 
PZB Staff Report 
 



 

2022-17 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-17 – AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 3 

COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, 4 
AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP BY APPROVING THE 5 
CREATION OF A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, 6 
LOCATED AT THE NE CORNER OF 2ND AVE NORTH AND THE LWDD 7 
E-4 CANAL TO CONSTRUCT AN APPROXIMATELY 5-STORY, 195-8 

UNIT RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT AS MORE 9 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A, LOCATED WITHIN THE 10 
MIXED USE – WEST (MU-W) ZONING DISTRICT WITH A FUTURE LAND 11 
USE DESIGNATION OF MIXED USE – WEST (MU-W) SUBJECT TO 12 

SPECIFIC DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT B 13 
AND CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL SET FORTH IN EXHIBIT C; 14 
APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT OF SIGNIFCANT IMPACT; 15 

APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT; APPROVING A HEIGHT 16 

BONUS INCENTIVE THROUGH THE CITY’S SUSTAINABLE BONUS 17 
INCENTIVE PROGRAM; APPROVING A MAJOR SITE PLAN FOR THE 18 
DEVELOPMENT OF A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT; 19 

PROVIDED FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE 20 
DATE 21 

 22 
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, 23 

pursuant to the authority granted in Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes, and the Land 24 

Development Regulations, as adopted by the City of Lake Worth Beach, is authorized 25 
and empowered to consider petitions relating to zoning and land development orders; 26 

and 27 
 28 

WHEREAS, Chapter 23, Article 3, Division 6. – Planned Development of City of 29 
Lake Worth Beach’s Land Development Regulations allows for the creation of planned 30 
development districts to incentivize innovative development through the utilization of 31 

incentive programs and flexible dimensional and use requirements that are defined within 32 
and occur in conformity with an approved master development plan; and  33 

 34 
WHEREAS, Brian Terry, Insite Studio, Inc, (the applicant) has petitioned the City 35 

of Lake Worth Beach (the City) on behalf of the property owner Richman Lake Worth 36 

Apartments, LLC for creation of a Residential Planned Development District to allow for 37 

the construction of an approximately 5-story, 195-unit multi-family development (on a site 38 
located at the NE corner of the E-4 Canal and 2nd Avenue N (PCNs 38-43-44-20-01-097-39 
0020, 38-43-44-20-01-097-0010, and 38-43-44-20-01-096-0020) as further described in 40 

Exhibit A (the Property) within the MU-W Zoning District and the MU-W Future Land Use 41 
designation, which, if approved, shall constitute an amendment to the City’s official zoning 42 

map; and 43 

WHEREAS, the applicant requests use of the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive 44 
Program to allow for additional height to be considered in conjunction with the applicant’s 45 
request for approval for a major site plan for the construction of a residential development 46 



 
Pg. 2, Ord. 2022-17 
 

currently known as “Residences of Lake Worth” and containing 195 residential units to be 47 
constructed on this site; 48 

 49 
WHEREAS, on November 16, 2022, the Lake Worth Beach Planning and Zoning 50 

Board (PZB) considered the subject application for a Residential Planned Development 51 

District, Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and 52 
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program and recommended that the City Commission 53 
approve the creation of this residential planned development subject to specific district 54 
development standards and certain enumerated conditions; and 55 

 56 

WHEREAS, on February 7, 2023, the City Commission voted to approve on first 57 
reading the subject application for a Residential Planned Development District, 58 

Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and 59 
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program subject to specific district development standards 60 
and enumerated conditions herein; and 61 

 62 
WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and evidence 63 

and has determined that the Residential Planned Development District, Development of 64 
Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use Permit, and Sustainable Bonus 65 

Incentive Program including the development regulations and conditions, meets the 66 
requirements of the Land Development Regulations, Section 23.3-25. 67 
 68 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 69 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 70 

 71 
Section 1.   Recitals.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are hereby 72 

affirmed and ratified. 73 
 74 

Section 2.   The Mixed Use Urban Planned Development District located within the MU-75 
W Zoning District with a future land use designation of MU-W, as described more 76 
particularly in Exhibit A, is hereby approved. This approval includes the approval of the 77 

following elements to be known as the Master Development Plan: (a) Residential Planned 78 
Development; (b) Major Site Plan; (c) Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program; (d) 79 
Conditional Use Permit; (e) district development standards (Exhibit B); (f) conditions of 80 

approval (Exhibit C); (g) required plans including the site plan, landscape plan, and civil 81 
& drainage plans; (h) supplemental supporting documents, as well as all agreements, 82 
provisions and/or covenants which shall govern the use, maintenance, and continued 83 

protection of the residential planned development and any of its common areas or 84 
facilities. The applicant is bound to all elements and requirements of the Master 85 
Development Plan.  86 
 87 

Section 3.   The City’s zoning maps shall be updated to reflect the changes to the 88 
property described in Exhibit A. 89 
 90 
Section 4.   Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict 91 
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 92 
 93 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2022-17 

 
 

Section 5.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is 94 
held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect other 95 
provisions of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 96 

application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable. 97 
 98 
Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after 99 
its final passage. 100 
 101 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner 102 
Malega, seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as 103 
follows: 104 

 105 

Mayor Betty Resch AYE 106 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 107 
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE 108 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 109 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 110 

 111 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 112 

7th day of February, 2023. 113 

 114 
The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 115 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 116 
the vote was as follows: 117 

 118 

Mayor Betty Resch 119 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  120 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 121 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 122 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 123 
 124 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 125 

_____________________, 2023. 126 
 127 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 128 
 129 

 130 
By: __________________________ 131 

Betty Resch, Mayor 132 
ATTEST: 133 
 134 

 135 
_______________________________ 136 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 137 
 138 



 

Exhibit A 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY  

PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION & LOCATION MAP  

 

Address: 2559, 2441, 2431 2nd Ave N 139 

PCNs:  38-43-44-20-01-097-0020 140 
 38-43-44-20-01-097-0010 141 
 38-43-44-20-01-096-0020 142 
 143 
Size: 7.40 acres 144 

General Location: North of 2nd Ave N, and just east of the LWDD E-4 Canal.  145 

Legal Description: See boundary survey in the Master Development Plan supporting documentation 146 

 147 



 

Exhibit B 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 

 PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS  

 

Development Standard 

Base Zoning District 

Mixed Used – West 

(MU-W) 

Residential Planned 

Development in MU-W 

with SBIP 

Provided  

Lot Size (min) 

In square feet (sf) 

13,000 sf 0.5 acres 7.3985 acres 

(322,278.64 sf) 

Lot Width (min) 100’ 100’ 401.62’ 

Setbacks 

Front (min 

build-to line) 

 

20’ 
20’ 20’ 

Rear (min) 10’ 10’ 178’ 

Street Side 

(min) 

20’ 20’ N/A 

Side (min) 
20’ 20’ 20’ – west side 

41’ – east side 

Impermeable Surface 

Coverage (maximum) 

65% 65% 49% (157,900 SF) 

Structure Coverage (max) 

50% 50% 13.4% (43,293 SF) – 

Buildings 

1.15% (3,722 SF) – 

Communication Tower 

Density (max) 
30 du/acre 

(221 units) 

37.5 du/acre 

(277 units) 

26.36 du/acre 

(195 units) 

Building Height (max) 

30’ (max. 2 stories) 65’ 

(Max. 6 stories) 

59’-4” – top of parapet 

(5 stories) 

 

Maximum Wall Height at 

Side Setback 

30’ 65’ +/- 59’ 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 

(max) 

1.3 3.75 .6 

148 



 

Living Area 

(minimum) 

Studio 400 sf 400 sf N/A 

One-

bedroom 

units 

600 sf 600 sf +/-716 sf- 729 sf 

Two-

bedroom 

units 

750 sf 750 s +/- 1013 sf 

Three-

bedroom 

units 

900 sf 900 sf N/A 

Parking  

See page 5 for detailed 

analysis. 

 

Parking Calculated 

per unit, room, and 

non-residential 

square footage. 

 

 

 

237 spaces* 
w/ 30 workforce housing units 

 
Max alternate spaces = 59 

spaces 

 

279 spaces 
w/ 12 alternate (compact) spaces 

 

Additional parking that exceeds 

parking requirements: 

42 compact parking spaces & 39 

bicycle spaces = 9 parking spaces 

Workforce/Affordable 

Housing 

15% of Total Project 30 Income Restricted 

Units 

31 Income Restricted 

Units 

30 required units (14 one-bedroom 

units and 16 two-bedroom units) 

1 three-bedroom unit for SBIP 

credit 

 

*Applicant is choosing to opt-in to the recently adopted workforce housing program ordinance 

(Ordinance 2022-12), which allows for a 25% parking requirement reduction. 

 

 149 



 

-Exhibit C 150 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 

PLANNING, ZONING AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION DIVISION 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL  

 

Planning & Zoning 151 

1. Fifty percent of the sustainable bonus fee ($444,195) shall be paid to the City within two years 152 
of approval, or prior to the issuance of the building permit, whichever comes first.  153 

2. The applicant shall provide qualifying sustainable bonus features equal to $444,195, or shall 154 
be required to pay the remaining portion of the 50% of the incentive value ($444,195) prior 155 
to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy. These qualifying improvements shall include at 156 
a minimum one (1) additional three-bedroom income restricted unit per the City’s program, 157 
and littoral and wetland habitat plantings in the drainage lake. 158 

3. Thirty (30) units shall be restricted for workforce housing in accordance with the City’s 159 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 160 
for the buildings 161 

4. A unity of title shall be required to applied for and shall be recorded prior to the issuance of 162 
a building permit. 163 

5. An address application shall be required to be submitted prior to application for building 164 
permit. 165 

6. A video security system shall be required for the property.  166 
7. Exterior lighting shall be required to comply dark sky lighting guidelines, including using fully 167 

shielded fixtures and led lighting that has a color temperature of no more than 3000 Kelvins. 168 
www.darksky.org  Specifically, the lighting fixtures shall be reviewed at building permit for 169 
consistency with the dark sky guidelines and the architecture of the buildings. 170 

8. A designated delivery and/or ride share space with signage shall be provided outside of the 171 
front gate. 172 

9. Dumpster enclosure material shall be reviewed for architectural consistency and for 173 
compliance with all applicable City requirements at building permit. 174 

10. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a minor site plan amendment shall be submitted 175 
and approved to update all applicable plans and supporting documents to reflect changes as 176 
directed by the City Commission, including the additional three-bedroom units, and littoral 177 
and wildlife habitat plantings in the drainage lake. 178 

11. Each building shall be required to have two (2) elevators. 179 
12. Additional shrubs or native grasses shall be installed around the fence at the dog park to 180 

further minimize runoff into the E-4 canal. 181 
 182 

Utilities (Water, Sewer & Stormwater) 183 
1. There are several locations where proposed storm chamber overlaps with the water/storm 184 

utility easements. The easement shall be free of obstructions.  185 
2. Provide inlet protection on the storm collection structures in 2nd Avenue North and show the 186 

erosion control and sedimentation plan.  187 
3. Capacity fees are due prior to building permit issuance.  188 
4. The title block of all plans shall be updated to say Lake Worth Beach instead of Lake Worth. 189 
 190 

Public Works 191 

1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code 192 
and all other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of 193 
Transportation (FDOT), Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake 194 

http://www.darksky.org/


 
Pg. 8, Ord. 2022-17 
 

Worth Public Services Construction Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual. No 195 
Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all conditions of approval have been satisfied 196 
under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Services.   197 

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage 198 
(LWDD) District’s Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, 199 
and furnish to the City. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact 200 
the South Florida Water Management District’s (SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain 201 
any required permit(s), if necessary.   202 

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall contact and meet with a 203 
representative from the Public Works Solid Waste and Recycling Division to confirm dumpster 204 
enclosure location, accessibility and demand on property and that it is compatible with the 205 
requirements of the Department of Public Works. Solid Waste Division contact number is 561-206 
533-7344.   207 

4. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire 208 
surrounding offsite infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater 209 
system piping and structures, valve boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other 210 
improvements are in the same condition as prior to construction.   211 

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan 212 
and indicate the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices. 213 

6. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall fine grade and sod all 214 
disturbed areas with bahia sod.   215 

7. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall broom sweep all areas 216 
of the affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris collected as a result of 217 
construction activity.   218 

8. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance 219 
of a “Right of Way/Utility Permit” application. 220 
 221 

Electric Utility 222 

1. Before or at the time of application for a Building Permit, Developer must provide the Load 223 
Calculation, Voltage requirements and Riser diagram. We will need to know the location of 224 
the Pad-Mount Transformers for the building. The Transformer locations must be accessible 225 
to our vehicles, and must have 8-ft minimum clearance in front of them and 3-ft clearance to 226 
the side or rear, including landscaping (None trees, plants, shrubs or vegetations are allowed 227 
within the clearance). The Transformers also must not be under or inside any structure.  228 

2. Before the issuance of a Building permit, we will need a 10-ft wide utility easement for the 229 
underground electric, transformers and other equipment that will need to be installed to 230 
provide power to this project. 231 

3. The customer will be responsible for installing All Schedule 40 PVC Conduit that will be needed 232 
by Lake Worth Beach for this project for the primary cable. This conduit must be installed at 233 
a 24” minimum depth. Pad specs will be given to the customer to show the proper orientation 234 
of conduit at the pad mount transformers. 235 

4. Before the issuance of a Building permit, we will need to know if any other services will be 236 
needed for the project such as irrigation, lift station, lighting, gates, etc., and where these 237 
services will be. 238 

5. Developer to show the location of the meter center on the site plan. 239 
6. Developer will be responsible for installing their own lightning for the parking areas. 240 
7. Developer will be responsible for the cost of Lake Worth Beach’s materials and labor for this 241 

project. 242 



Pg. 9, Ord. 2022-17 

 
 

8. Before the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the utility easement must be recorded. 243 
9. Before the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) a final electrical inspection must be 244 

done. 245 
 246 

Building Division 247 

1. Pedestrian connections to the club house will require enhanced striping. 248 



































(13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
EL. = 9' - 8" T.O.S.

THIRD LEVEL
EL. = 19' - 4" T.O.S.

FOURTH LEVEL
EL. = 29' - 0" T.O.S.

FIFTH LEVEL
EL. = 38' - 8" T.O.S.

ROOF LEVEL
EL. = 49' - 4" T.O.S.

TOP OF PARAPET
EL. =59' - 4" T.O.P.

5'
-3

"

6'
-0

"8'
-0

"

5'
-3

"

2
A-5.1

(72.33' N.A.V.D.)

2'
-0

"

TOP OF PARAPET
EL. +59'-4" TOS

10
'-0

"

TOP OF ROOF
EL. +49'-4" TOS

3'
-3

"

5'
-3

" 6'
-0

"

9"

AIR CONDITIONER
UNITS (TYP).

PARAPET  WALL TO EXCEED
THE HEIGHT OF THE AIR
CONDITIONER UNITS.

(72.33' N.A.V.D.)

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'

 RESIDENTIAL BUILDING SECTION1 A-5.1

SECTION
- RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

SCALE: 1/2" = 1'

ENLARGED SECTION2



(13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
EL. = 9' - 8" T.O.S.

THIRD LEVEL
EL. = 19' - 4" T.O.S.

FOURTH LEVEL
EL. = 29' - 0" T.O.S.

FIFTH LEVEL
EL. = 38' - 8" T.O.S.

ROOF LEVEL
EL. = 49' - 4" T.O.S.

TOP OF PARAPET
EL. = 59' - 4" T.O.P.

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

10
'-8
"

49
'-4
"

10
'-0
"

(72.33' N.A.V.D.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH GLAZING
SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT GRAY TINTED
IMPACT RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY (TYP.)

ROUGH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SCORE
LINES (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED

FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

STUCCO SCORE
LINE (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT
SCREEN (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH GLAZING
SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT GRAY TINTED
IMPACT RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE

PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE

PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE

PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT

SCREEN (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED

FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
AWNING
(TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

10
'-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

10
'-0
"

49
'-4
"

(13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
EL. = 9' - 8" T.O.S.

THIRD LEVEL
EL. = 19' - 4" T.O.S.

FOURTH LEVEL
EL. = 29' - 0" T.O.S.

FIFTH LEVEL
EL. = 38' - 8" T.O.S.

ROOF LEVEL
EL. = 49' - 4" T.O.S.

TOP OF PARAPET
EL. = 59' - 4" T.O.P.
(72.33' N.A.V.D.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED

FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH
GLAZING SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT

GRAY TINTED IMPACT
RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED

FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED

FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH
RAILING W/
ALUM.
ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT

SCREEN (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT
SCREEN (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE

PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

 ©
 2
02
2 
BE

H
AR

 F
O
N
T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,
 P
.A
. T
H
E 
D
ES

IG
N
 A
N
D
 D
R
AW

IN
G
S 
FO

R
 T
H
IS
 P
R
O
JE
C
T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 
TH

IS
 A
R
C
H
IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A
R
E 
PR

O
TE

C
TE

D
 U
N
D
ER

 T
H
E 
C
O
PY

R
IG
H
T 
PR

O
TE

C
TI
O
N
 A
C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O
PO

SE
D
 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 D
EV

EL
O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O
R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID
A

 2
N
D
 A
VE

N
U
E 
N
O
R
TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 
LA

KE
 W

O
R
TH

A-2.0

ELEVATIONS
- RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

FRONT ELEVATION  (INTERIOR PARKING AREA)1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

SIDE ELEVATION 2



10
'-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

10
'-0
"

49
'-4
"

(13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
EL. = 9' - 8" T.O.S.

THIRD LEVEL
EL. = 19' - 4" T.O.S.

FOURTH LEVEL
EL. = 29' - 0" T.O.S.

FIFTH LEVEL
EL. = 38' - 8" T.O.S.

ROOF LEVEL
EL. = 49' - 4" T.O.S.

TOP OF PARAPET
EL. = 59' - 4" T.O.P.
(72.33' N.A.V.D.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH GLAZING
SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT GRAY TINTED
IMPACT RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH GLAZING
SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT GRAY TINTED
IMPACT RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
AWNING
(TYP.)

SCORE
LINES (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

STUCCO SCORING
@ 8" SPACING

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT
SCREEN (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT
SCREEN (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH GLAZING
SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT GRAY TINTED
IMPACT RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE
PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE
PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE
PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT

SCREEN (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

10
'-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

9'
-8
"

10
'-0
"

49
'-4
"

(13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0' - 0"

SECOND LEVEL
EL. = 9' - 8" T.O.S.

THIRD LEVEL
EL. = 19' - 4" T.O.S.

FOURTH LEVEL
EL. = 29' - 0" T.O.S.

FIFTH LEVEL
EL. = 38' - 8" T.O.S.

ROOF LEVEL
EL. = 49' - 4" T.O.S.

TOP OF PARAPET
EL. = 59' - 4" T.O.P.
(72.33' N.A.V.D.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH
GLAZING SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT
GRAY TINTED IMPACT
RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED
FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

44" HIGH RAILING W/
ALUM. ANODIZED

FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT
SCREEN (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL SLAT

SCREEN (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH
GLAZING SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT

GRAY TINTED IMPACT
RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

PRODEMA FINISH
ALUMINUM DECORATIVE
PARAPET CAP (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

 ©
 2
02
2 
BE

H
AR

 F
O
N
T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,
 P
.A
. T
H
E 
D
ES

IG
N
 A
N
D
 D
R
AW

IN
G
S 
FO

R
 T
H
IS
 P
R
O
JE
C
T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 
TH

IS
 A
R
C
H
IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A
R
E 
PR

O
TE

C
TE

D
 U
N
D
ER

 T
H
E 
C
O
PY

R
IG
H
T 
PR

O
TE

C
TI
O
N
 A
C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O
PO

SE
D
 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 D
EV

EL
O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O
R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID
A

 2
N
D
 A
VE

N
U
E 
N
O
R
TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 
LA

KE
 W

O
R
TH

A-2.1

ELEVATIONS
- RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"

REAR ELEVATION (2ND AVE. & REAR PROPERTY LINE)1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

SIDE ELEVATION 2



1

1

10 12 15 18 21

213.1 6.1 8.1 10.1 11.1 13.1 15.1 18.1

CC

DD

GG

EE

FF

AA

BB

2

2

20

204.1 5.1 7.1 9.1 12.1 14.1 16.1 17.1

19171614139853

UNIT TYPE A3

U01

UNIT TYPE B1

U02

UNIT TYPE B1

U03

UNIT TYPE A1

U04

UNIT TYPE B1

U05

UNIT TYPE A1

U06

UNIT TYPE A1

U08

UNIT TYPE B1

U09

UNIT TYPE A1

U10

UNIT TYPE B1

U11

UNIT TYPE B1

U12

UNIT TYPE A3

U13

TELCO / LOW-VOLT.

X05

ELEVATOR
LOBBY

X01

CORRIDOR

X02

ELEV1

ELEV2

STAIR 1

ST1

STAIR 2

ST2

CORRIDOR

X02

4 6 7 11

4'
-9

"
23

'-1
0"

5'
-1

0"
17

'-2
"

6'
-8

"
4'

-9
"

63
'-0

"

4'
-9

"
23

'-1
0"

5'
-1

0"
17

'-2
"

6'
-8

"
4'

-9
"

63
'-0

"

7'-1" 5'-9" 12'-0" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 12'-0" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 12'-0" 5'-9" 7'-1"
220'-6"

7'-1" 8'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 12'-0" 12'-10" 12'-10" 12'-0" 16'-3" 12'-0" 12'-10" 12'-10" 12'-0" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 8'-10" 7'-1"

220'-6"

UNIT TYPE A2

U07

X04 X06

FIRE PUMP
ROOM

(GROUND LVL.)

X03

DOMESTIC PUMP
ROOM

(2ND LEVEL)
ROOM

(3RD LEVEL)

RADIO ENHANCE.
[BDA] ROOM
(4TH LEVEL)

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

A-1.1

TYPICAL LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
- RESIDENTIAL BLDG.

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

TYPICAL LEVEL FLOOR PLAN - RESIDENTAIL BLDG.



WWWW

BEDROOM LIVING
ROOM

LINENCLOSET

AC/ WH

W/D
CLOSET

FOYER

BATH
KITCHEN

DINING AREA

TUB

WC
LAV. REF.

RANGE.

SINK
PA

N
TR

Y

BALCONY

LINEN

6'-
6"

8"

5"
5'-

8"
5"

2'-
2"

5"
11

'-1
"

10
"

26
'-1

1"

11'-3" 9" 12'-1"
24'-1"

10'-8" 5" 4'-2" 5" 8'-6"

8"

9'-
5"

7"
17

'-5
"

10
"

27
'-1

0"

4"

11'-1" X 11'-3" 12'-1" X 17'-5"

8'-10" X 11'-1"

10'-8" X 6'-6"

4"

11
'-1

"

WWWW

MASTER
BEDROOM

LIVING
ROOM BEDROOM

CLOSETLINEN

AC / WH

W/D
CLOSET

BATH 2FOYER

KITCHEN

DINING
AREA

WALK-IN
CLOSET

LINENMASTER
BATH

TUB

WC

LAV.

REF.

RANGE.

SINK

TUB

WC
LAV.

BALCONY

PA
N

TR
Y

SHELVES

LINEN

W

TUB

SINK

LAV.WC
REF.

PAN
TR

Y

RANGE

BEDROOM LIVING
ROOM

DINING AREA

LINEN

AC/ WH

CLOSET

W/D
CLOSET

BATH FOYER KITCHEN

6'-
6"

8"

5"
5'-

8"
5"

2'-
2"

5"
11

'-1
1"

10
"

27
'-1

0"

11'-11" X 11'-3"
12'-1" X 17'-5"

8'-10" X 11'-1"

10'-8" X 6'-6"

4"

10'-8" 5" 4'-2" 5" 8'-6"

8"

9'-
5"

7"
17

'-5
"

10
"

27
'-1

0"

4"

11'-3" 9" 12'-1"

24'-1"

11
'-1

"

BALCONY

W

TUB

SINK

LAV.WC
REF.

PAN
TR

Y

RANGE

BEDROOM LIVING
ROOM

DINING AREA

LINEN

AC/ WH

CLOSET

W/D
CLOSET

BATH FOYER KITCHEN

6'-
6"

8"

5"
5'-

8"
5"

2'-
2"

5"
11

'-1
1"

10
"

27
'-1

0"

11'-11" X 11'-3"
12'-1" X 17'-5"

8'-10" X 11'-1"

10'-8" X 6'-6"

4"

10'-8" 5" 4'-2" 5" 8'-6"

8"

9'-
5"

7"
17

'-5
"

10
"

27
'-1

0"

4"

11'-3" 9" 12'-1"

24'-1"

11
'-1

"

BALCONY

LINEN

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

A-4.1

UNIT TYPES

 FLOOR PLAN - UNIT TYPE A1 (1BD/1BA)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" LEASE-ABLE AREA: 716 SF

NET AREA: 649 SF

 FLOOR PLAN - UNIT TYPE B1 (2BD/2BA)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" LEASE-ABLE AREA: 1013 SF

NET AREA: 923 SF

 FLOOR PLAN - UNIT TYPE A2 (1BD/1BA)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" LEASE-ABLE AREA: 729 SF

NET AREA: 662 SF

 FLOOR PLAN - UNIT TYPE A3 (1BD/1BA)
SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0" LEASE-ABLE AREA: 729 SF

NET AREA: 662 SF



(+13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0'-0"

TOP OF SLAB
EL.=17' - 2"

TOP OF PARAPET
EL.=22' - 0"
(+35.00' N.A.V.D.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH
GLAZING SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT

GRAY TINTED IMPACT
RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY
(TYP.)

AWNING
(TYP.)

SCORE LINES
(TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

(+13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0'-0"

TOP OF SLAB
EL.=17' - 2"

TOP OF PARAPET
EL.=22' - 0"
(+35.00' N.A.V.D.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH
GLAZING SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT

GRAY TINTED IMPACT
RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

SCORE LINES
(TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY  (TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

(+13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0'-0"

TOP OF SLAB
EL.=17' - 2"

TOP OF PARAPET
EL.=22' - 0"
(+35.00' N.A.V.D.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH
GLAZING SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT
GRAY TINTED IMPACT
RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

SCORE
LINES
(TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY

(TYP.)

(+13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0'-0"

TOP OF SLAB
EL.=17' - 2"

TOP OF PARAPET
EL.=22' - 0"
(+35.00' N.A.V.D.)

ALUMINUM ANODIZED FINISH
GLAZING SYSTEM  W/ LIGHT

GRAY TINTED IMPACT
RESISTANT GLASS (TYP.)

SCORE LINES
(TYP.)

AWNING
(TYP.)

CONCRETE
CANOPY

(TYP.)

ROUGH STUCCO
FINISH (TYP.)

SMOOTH
STUCCO

FINISH (TYP.)

SCORE
LINES
(TYP.)

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

A-2.2

ELEVATIONS
- CLUBHOUSE

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

SIDE (RIGHT) ELEVATION 2

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

SIDE (LEFT) ELEVATION 4

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

FRONT ELEVATION 1

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

REAR ELEVATION 3



(13.00' N.A.V.D.)

GROUND LEVEL
EL. = 0' - 0"

TOP OF SLAB
17' - 2"

TOP OF PARAPET
22' - 0"

4'
-1

0"
17

'-3
"

22
'-1

"

CONFERENCE
ROOM

CORRIDOR

CLUB ROOM
CLUB ROOM

1'
-6

"
3'

-3
"

1"

4'
-9

"

AIR CONDITIONER
UNITS (TYP).

PARAPET  WALL TO EXCEED
THE HEIGHT OF THE AIR

CONDITIONER UNITS.

PARAPET  WALL TO EXCEED
THE HEIGHT OF THE AIR
CONDITIONER UNITS.

(35.00 N.A.V.D.)

1

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'

 CLUBHOUSE SECTION1

A-5.2

SECTION - CLUBHOUSE



1 2 3 4 5 6

C

B

A

E

F

G

SINK

REF.

WC WC

LAV.

LAV.

MOP
SINK

ISLAND

D

CLUBROOM

MANAGEMENT
OFFICE

R/RR/R

OFFICE CONF.
ROOM FOYER

YOGA

PACKAGE
ROOM

FITNESS

MAINT.
ROOM

COVERED
TERRACE

21'-2"21'-2"

6'
-4
"

58
'-8
"

5'
-0
"

6'
-4
"

5'
-0
"

21'-2"3'-0"12'-0"3'-0"21'-2"

5'
-0
"

15
'-1
0"

27
'-0
"

15
'-1
0"

5'
-0
"

6'
-4
"

37'-8"9'-8"

21'-1"5"13'-9"5"11'-8"5"13'-9"11'-5"5"9'-3"10"

14'-9"14'-10"8'-0"

40
'-5
"

10
"

10
'-3
"

9'
-1
1"

7"
11
'-4
"

7"
6'
-4
"

5"
8'
-3
"

30
'-4
"

14
'-2
"

27
'-1
1"

5"
8'
-1
0"

14
'-2
"

11
'-8
"

SEATING

SEATING

7" 6'-11" 5" 6'-10" 7" 20'-4"

10
"

18
'-7
"

8"

2'
-0
"

12
'-7
"

5'
-2
"

9'-2" 3'-0" 9'-2" 3'-0"

3'-0"
3'-1"

3'-0"12'-0"3'-0"9'-2"3'-0"

5"

10"
10"

10"

10
"

10
"

8"

10
"

10
"

14'-10"

MAIL
ROOM

PLAZA

6"
5"

3'-0" 3'-1"
9'-2"

8" 13'-10" 8" 7'-3" 8" 8'-7"
8"

CORRIDOR

OFFICE

8"
3'-4"

8"
5'
-0
"

5"
5'
-2
"

 ©
 2
02
2 
BE

H
AR

 F
O
N
T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,
 P
.A
. T
H
E 
D
ES

IG
N
 A
N
D
 D
R
AW

IN
G
S 
FO

R
 T
H
IS
 P
R
O
JE
C
T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 
TH

IS
 A
R
C
H
IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A
R
E 
PR

O
TE

C
TE

D
 U
N
D
ER

 T
H
E 
C
O
PY

R
IG
H
T 
PR

O
TE

C
TI
O
N
 A
C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O
PO

SE
D
 R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

 D
EV

EL
O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O
R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID
A

 2
N
D
 A
VE

N
U
E 
N
O
R
TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 
LA

KE
 W

O
R
TH

A-1.3

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
- CLUBHOUSE

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'

GROUND FLOOR PLAN - CLUBHOUSE



1

MEN'S
POOL
R/R

WOMEN'S
POOL
R/R

OFFICE

POOL
[BY OTHERS]

(UNDER A SEPARATE PERMIT)
COVERED
TERRACE

21'-2"

77'-2"

21'-2"69'-4"22'-8" 14'-4"

5'
-0

"
15

'-1
0"

27
'-0

"
15

'-1
0"

5'
-0

"
6'

-4
"

9'-8"

11'-5"5"9'-3"10"

14
'-2

"
27

'-1
1"

5"
8'

-1
0"

14
'-2

"

16'-8"42'-0"10'-8"10'-6"3'-10"

18
'-4

"
22

'-0
"

18
'-4

"

5'
-2

"

10"

10
"

10
"

POOL DECK

PUMP /
 POOL EQUIP.

 ROOM

6"

14
'-9

"

8'
-0

"

OFFICE

PAVERS (TYP.)PAVERS (TYP.)

POOL
FURNITURE
(TYP.)

POOL
FURNITURE

(TYP.)

BBQ
GRILLS  TABLE

TABLE W/
UMBRELLAS
(TYP.4)

LANDSCAPED
AREA

LANDSCAPED
AREA

LANDSCAPED
AREA

9'-6" 6'-8" 46'-9" 6'-8" 7'-7"

18
'-0

"
41

'-1
1"

27
'-2

"

6'
-4

"
5"

6'
-4

"
10

"
10

"

10" 12'-8" 10" 6' ALUMINUM HORIZONTAL
SLAT FENCE (TYP.)

6' ALUMINUM HORIZONTAL
SLAT FENCE (TYP.)

6' ALUMINUM
HORIZONTAL
SLAT FENCE
(TYP.)

PEDESTRIAN
GATE (TYP.)

PEDESTRIAN
GATE (TYP.)

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

A-1.4

POOL DECK PLAN
- CLUBHOUSE

SCALE: 3/16" = 1'

POOL DECK PLAN - CLUBHOUSE



1

1

10 12 15 18 21

213.1 6.1 8.1 10.1 11.1 13.1 15.1 18.1

CC

DD

GG

EE

FF

AA

BB

2

2

20

204.1 5.1 7.1 9.1 12.1 14.1 16.1 17.1

19171614139853 4 6 7

STAIR 1

ST1

ROOF

R01

11

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12" 1/4" / 12"

1/2" / 12"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12" 1/2" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"
1/

4"
 / 

12
"

1/2" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/2" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"
1/

4"
 / 

12
"

1/2" / 12"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12" 1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

T.O.S.
EL. 49' - 9"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12" 1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12" 1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/
4"

 / 
12

"

1/4" / 12"

4'
-9

"
23

'-1
0"

5'
-1

0"
17

'-2
"

6'
-8

"
4'

-9
"

63
'-0

"

4'
-9

"
23

'-1
0"

5'
-1

0"
17

'-2
"

6'
-8

"
4'

-9
"

63
'-0

"

7'-1" 5'-9" 12'-0" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 12'-0" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 12'-0" 5'-9" 7'-1"
220'-6"

7'-1" 8'-10" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 12'-0" 12'-10" 12'-10" 12'-0" 16'-3" 12'-0" 12'-10" 12'-10" 12'-0" 11'-10" 12'-10" 11'-10" 8'-10" 7'-1"

220'-6"

CONDENSING UNITS CONDENSING UNITS

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

A-1.2

ROOF PLAN
- RESIDENTIAL BUILDING

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'

ROOF PLAN - RESIDENTIAL BUILDING



 ©
 2
02
0 
BE

H
AR

 F
O
N
T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,
 P
.A
. T

H
E 
D
ES

IG
N
 A
N
D
 D
R
AW

IN
G
S 
FO

R
 T
H
IS
 P
R
O
JE

C
T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 
TH

IS
 A
R
C
H
IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A
R
E 
PR

O
TE

C
TE

D
 U
N
D
ER

 T
H
E 
C
O
PY

R
IG
H
T 
PR

O
TE

C
TI
O
N
 A
C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O
PO

SE
D
 M
IX
ED

-U
SE

 D
EV

EL
O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O
R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID
A

 2
N
D
 A
VE

N
U
E 
N
O
R
TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
01-31-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

VI
LL
AG

E 
O
F 
VA

LO
R
 L
AK

E 
W
O
R
TH

A-4.0

CLUBHOUSE SITE
PLAN

EL. +9'-4" TOS
SECOND FLOOR 

EL. +37'-4" TOS
FIFTH FLOOR 

EL 0'-0"  TOS
GROUND FLOOR 

7'
-0

"

46
'-8

"

EL. +18'-8" TOS
THIRD FLOOR 

EL. +28'-0" TOS
FOURTH FLOOR 

TOP OF ROOF
EL. +46'-8" TOS

9'
-4

"
9'

-4
"

9'
-4

"
9'

-4
"

9'
-4

"

ANNODIZED ALUMINUM 
SLIDING GLASS DOOR W/ 
LIGHT GREY TINT

1 ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM WINDOW 
W/ LIGHT GREY TINT

2 PERFORATED METAL
MESH RAILING3

3/4" DARK GREY STUCCO
SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 706763/4" LIGHT GREY STUCCO

SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 706553/4" WHITE 
SHERWIN WILLIAMS SW 70634

1 3

rpadin
Polygonal Line

rpadin
Polygonal Line

rpadin
Polygonal Line

rpadin
Polygonal Line

rpadin
Polygonal Line

rpadin
Polygonal Line

rpadin
Polygonal Line



5'10
'

TRACT 97

L.
W
.D

.D
. 
C
A
N
A
L 

E
-4

(K
E
LL

E
R
 C

A
N
A
L)

AREA
322278.64

SQUARE FEET
OR

7.3985 ACRES

S
 1
°2

8'
3
5
" 
W

 6
16

.5
4
'

N 88°04'35" W 643.94'

S 88°05'13" E 401.62'

N
 2

2°
59

'4
0"

 E
 6

6
0.

6
2'

TRACT 81

4TH AVE N.

T
R
A
C
T
 9

8

MODEL LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION
PLAT BOOK 5 PAGE 79

PL
A
T
 B

O
O
K
 5

 P
A
G
E
 7

9

PARCEL 1

PARCEL 2 PARCEL 3

LESS THE SOUTH 25' PER UNITY OF TITLE O.R.B. 7554PG.1413 AND RIGHT OF WAY DEED  O.R.B. 6431PG.1748

ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACHCOUNTY  PARCEL 13 TEMPORARYCONSTRUCTION EASEMENT  O.R.B.12863 PG. 1606

ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACHCOUNTY  PARCEL 12 EMBANKMENTEASEMENT O.R.B. 12863 PG. 1606

ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH COUNTY PARCEL 3 O.R.B. 12863 PG. 1606 MISCELLANEOUS
BOOK 29 PG.193

OWNER: VILLAGE OF VALOR LTD
PARCEL#38434420010960010
ZONING= IL/SE 

OWNER: VILLAGE OF VALOR LTD
PARCEL#38434420010810010
ZONING= MU-W 

PARCEL#38434420010960030

OWNER:
VILLAGE OF
VALOR LTD

OWNER:
VILLAGE OF
VALOR LTD

OWNER: VILLAGE OF VALOR LTD

OWNER:
LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DIST
PARCEL#00434420000001010
ZONING= MU-W

PARCEL#38434420010970020
ZONING= MU-W

PARCEL#38434420010970010
ZONING= MU-W

PARCEL#38434420010960020
ZONING= mu-w

TRACT 96

2ND AVE N.

40
'

40
'

80' RIGHT OF WAY

MODEL LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION
PLAT BOOK 5 PAGE 79

15
'

15
'

117.68'
139.05'

387.20' C.

268.46' C. 266.00' (P.B.5, PG.79)

514.71'C.  513.00' (P.B.5, PG.79)

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTIONEASEMENT  O.R.B. 12282 PG. 10

EMBANKMENT EASEMENT O.R.B.12282 PG. 14

20
' 
R
E
Q
U
IR

E
D
 L

W
D
D
 R

/W

65' REQUIRED
LWDD R/W

L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
E
 A

R
C
H
IT

E
C
T
U
R
E
 -

 S
U
R
V
E
Y
IN

G

C
A
U
L
F
IE

L
D
 &

 W
H
E
E
L
E
R
, 
IN

C
.

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G
IN

E
E
R
IN

G
 -

 L
A
N
D
 P

L
A
N
N
IN

G
 

P
H
O
N
E
 (
5
6
1)
-3

9
2
-1
9
9
1 
/ 

F
A
X
 (
5
6
1)
-7

5
0
-1
4
5
2

7
3
0
1A

 W
. 
P
A
L
M
E
T
T
O
 P

A
R
K
 R

O
A
D
 -

 S
U
IT

E
 1
0
0
A

B
O
C
A
 R

A
T
O
N
, 
F
L
O
R
ID

A
 3

3
4
3
3
  

CA
NA

L 

2ND AVE N.2ND AVE N.

4TH AVE N.

LAGO
LUCERNE

PLAT BOOK
40, PAGE 181

2571 LAKE WORTH
RD

LAKE WORTH, FL
33461

SITE

2480 2ND
AVE N
LAKE

WORTH, FL
33461

LAKE WORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1313

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1321

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' L.W.D.D. EASEMENT  O.R.B.7804, PG.863 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. O.R.B. 12773, PG. 1382

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. O.R.B. 566, PG. 196

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. O.R.B. 12773, PG. 1382

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. O.R.B. 566, PG. 193

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. D.B. 566, PG. 205

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D. D.B. 7855, PG. 1317

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 117.68' OF TRACT 97 DEED BOOK 556, PAGE 194

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 2 ACRES OF TRACT 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 97 PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' ACCESSES AND UTILITY EASEMENT O.R.B. 10659 PG. 1697 AND O.R.B.12273 PG 1143

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE OF TRACT 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' PLATTED RIGHT OF WAY ABANDONMENT RESOLUTION NO. R-93-866 (SHADED) O.R.B. 7824 PG.1807

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT CITY OF LAKE WORTH O.R.B.10653 PG 781

AutoCAD SHX Text
APEX CORNER OF MARY E. CHRISPIN'S TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEASE O.R.B. 10659 PG. 1697 AND O.R.B. 12273 PG.1143 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEASE AS TO NORTH PARCEL WITH DEPICTION OF SOUTH PARCEL O.R.B. 8091 PG.91 AND O.R.B. 10338 PG.1808 O.R.B. 22901 PG. 999

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KELLER CANAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 96 PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND ADAIR & BRADY IRON ROD & CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND ADAIR & BRADY IRON ROD & CAP (0.70' SOUTH) (0.18' WEST)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET  IRON ROD & CAP LB#3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET  IRON ROD & CAP LB#3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2  (NORTH PARCEL) O.R.B. 10338, PG. 1808

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1  (SOUTH PARCEL) O.R.B. 10338, PG. 1808

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 15' OF PLATTED 30' ROAD  SUBJECT TO L.W.D.D. CANAL EASEMENT PER O.R.B.7855, PG. 1321

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1308

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET  IRON ROD & CAP LB#3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET  IRON ROD & CAP LB#3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND  IRON ROD  (1.0' SOUTH)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
N22°59'40"E  660.62'

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LEASE PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LEASE PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' INGRESS EGRESS ESMT O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING ESMT O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT L.W.D.D.  D.B. 7855, PG. 1317

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF     SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT.NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.B./ PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
6744-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6744-2 SUR SHEETS 1-3 - 1-12-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.B. 3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR NO. 5005

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID P. LINDLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF FLORIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SAN. - SANITARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC - SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQ. FT. - SQUARE FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
   - DELTA (CENTRAL ANGLE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUM- ALUMINUM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET 5/8" IR/CAP LB 3591 UNLESS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O.B. - TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWP. - TOWNSHIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.E. - UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM - WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.O.P. - EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S.B.T.- SOUTHERN BELL TELEPHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R.B. - OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.-PLATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.C.- POINT OF COMMENCEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.M.-PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.I.- POINT OF INTERSECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B. - POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W - RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
RGE. - RANGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WPP - POWERPOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R - RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text
O/L - ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B. - PLAT BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.B.C.R. - PALM BEACH COUNTY RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.-MEASURED

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. - NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.E. - OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.H. - MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FPL-FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.O.W. - EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC. - ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
IR/CAP - IRON ROD & CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.F. - FINISHED FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND. - FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV - GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HDPE - HIGH-DENSITY POLYETHYLENE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESMT. - EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX - EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEV. - ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.M.P.-CORRUGATED METAL PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CBS-CONCRETE BLOCK & STUCCO

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLDG.- BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
COV. - COVERED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DE - DRAINAGE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. - CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COR. - CORNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.B. - CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALC. - CALCULATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.W.D.D.. - LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text
BFP -BACK FLOW PREVENTOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING ELEVATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
16.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
- STORM MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- SANITARY MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- GATE VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWALE LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEL.- BELLSOUTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
- LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- CONCRETE POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
- GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C. - CALCULATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.O.T. - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NPBCID.- NORTHERN PALM BEACH COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
         IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICV - IRRIGATION CHECK VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
YD. - YARD DRIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
[POWER]

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER HEAD POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT&T LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
FPL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMCAST LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF VALOR  ALTA / ACSM SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
- WATER SERVICE FROM OLD BLUE 2"X4" STAKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.C.R.- BROWARD COUNTY RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOCATION MAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uKEY MAP%%u

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 3: THE WEST TWO ACRES OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  WEST TWO ACRES OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, WEST TWO ACRES OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  TWO ACRES OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, TWO ACRES OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  ACRES OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, ACRES OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, OF TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, TRACT 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, 96 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  44 SOUTH, 44 SOUTH,  SOUTH, SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  43 EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC 43 EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  79, OF THE PUBLIC 79, OF THE PUBLIC  OF THE PUBLIC OF THE PUBLIC  THE PUBLIC THE PUBLIC  PUBLIC PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. LESS AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL SOUTH 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL 25.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL PALM BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL BEACH COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL COUNTY, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDED IN OFFICIAL  IN OFFICIAL IN OFFICIAL  OFFICIAL OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 6431, PAGE 1748. SUBJECT TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  FEET OF SAID PARCEL FEET OF SAID PARCEL  OF SAID PARCEL OF SAID PARCEL  SAID PARCEL SAID PARCEL  PARCEL PARCEL DESCRIBED IN EASEMENT DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 7855, PAGE 1321.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL 2: THE EAST 117.68 FEET OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  EAST 117.68 FEET OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, EAST 117.68 FEET OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  117.68 FEET OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, 117.68 FEET OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  FEET OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, FEET OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH,  44 SOUTH, 44 SOUTH,  SOUTH, SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  43 EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC 43 EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC THEREOF, RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC IN PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC BOOK 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC 5, PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC PAGE 79, OF THE PUBLIC  79, OF THE PUBLIC 79, OF THE PUBLIC  OF THE PUBLIC OF THE PUBLIC  THE PUBLIC THE PUBLIC  PUBLIC PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET COUNTY, FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET FLORIDA, FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET FRONTING 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET 117.68 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET ON NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET NORTH 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET 2ND AVENUE AND 625 FEET  AVENUE AND 625 FEET AVENUE AND 625 FEET  AND 625 FEET AND 625 FEET  625 FEET 625 FEET  FEET FEET DEEP THEREOF. LESS AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, THE SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, SOUTH 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, 25.00 FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, FEET OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, OF THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, THE EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, EAST 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, 117.00 FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, FEET BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, BY DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, DEED TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  TO PALM BEACH COUNTY, TO PALM BEACH COUNTY,  PALM BEACH COUNTY, PALM BEACH COUNTY,  BEACH COUNTY, BEACH COUNTY,  COUNTY, COUNTY, RECORDED IN MISCELLANEOUS RECORD BOOK 29, PAGE 193. SUBJECT TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  FEET OF SAID PARCEL FEET OF SAID PARCEL  OF SAID PARCEL OF SAID PARCEL  SAID PARCEL SAID PARCEL  PARCEL PARCEL DESCRIBED IN EASEMENT DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 7855, PAGE 1313.

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.B. - MISCELLANEOUS  BOOK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD NOTE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/09/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED NEW TITLE INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/08/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED LWDD REQUIRED R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/15/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED CERTIFICATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/20/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES: 1. THIS SURVEY OR REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE THIS SURVEY OR REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE  SURVEY OR REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE SURVEY OR REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE  OR REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE OR REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE  REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE REPRODUCTIONS THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE  THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE THEREOF ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE  ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE ARE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE  NOT VALID WITHOUT THE NOT VALID WITHOUT THE  VALID WITHOUT THE VALID WITHOUT THE  WITHOUT THE WITHOUT THE  THE THE ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED  SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED SIGNATURE AND THE ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED  AND THE ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED AND THE ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED  THE ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED THE ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED  ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED ORIGINAL SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED  SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED SEAL, OR THE AUTHENTICATED  OR THE AUTHENTICATED OR THE AUTHENTICATED  THE AUTHENTICATED THE AUTHENTICATED  AUTHENTICATED AUTHENTICATED ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE AND SEAL, OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  SIGNATURE AND SEAL, OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL SIGNATURE AND SEAL, OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  AND SEAL, OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL AND SEAL, OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  SEAL, OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL SEAL, OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL OF A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  LICENSED PROFESSIONAL LICENSED PROFESSIONAL  PROFESSIONAL PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR AND MAPPER. 2. LANDS SHOWN HEREON WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE LANDS SHOWN HEREON WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE  SHOWN HEREON WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE SHOWN HEREON WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE  HEREON WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE HEREON WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE  WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE WERE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE  ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE ABSTRACTED BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE  BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE BY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE  FIRST AMERICAN TITLE FIRST AMERICAN TITLE  AMERICAN TITLE AMERICAN TITLE  TITLE TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY, FILE NO. 1062-5693711, DATED OCTOBER 12, 2021.    3. THE "DESCRIPTION" SHOWN HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION THE "DESCRIPTION" SHOWN HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION  "DESCRIPTION" SHOWN HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION "DESCRIPTION" SHOWN HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION  SHOWN HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION SHOWN HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION  HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION HEREON IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION  IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION IS IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION  IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION IN ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION  ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION ACCORD WITH THE DESCRIPTION  WITH THE DESCRIPTION WITH THE DESCRIPTION  THE DESCRIPTION THE DESCRIPTION  DESCRIPTION DESCRIPTION PROVIDED BY CLIENT. 4. UNDERGROUND FOUNDATIONS WERE NOT LOCATED. UNDERGROUND FOUNDATIONS WERE NOT LOCATED. 5. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  OR DELETIONS TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING OR DELETIONS TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  DELETIONS TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING DELETIONS TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING TO SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING SURVEY MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING MAPS BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING BY OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  OTHER THAN THE SIGNING OTHER THAN THE SIGNING  THAN THE SIGNING THAN THE SIGNING  THE SIGNING THE SIGNING  SIGNING SIGNING PARTY OR PARTIES IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  OR PARTIES IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING OR PARTIES IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  PARTIES IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING PARTIES IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING IS PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING PROHIBITED WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  CONSENT OF THE SIGNING CONSENT OF THE SIGNING  OF THE SIGNING OF THE SIGNING  THE SIGNING THE SIGNING  SIGNING SIGNING PARTY OR PARTIES. 6. ORB. 8091, PG 91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER ORB. 8091, PG 91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  8091, PG 91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER 8091, PG 91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  PG 91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER PG 91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER 91, GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER GROUND SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER SYSTEM 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER 24 FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER FEET (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER (8 METERS) SQUARE COPPER  METERS) SQUARE COPPER METERS) SQUARE COPPER  SQUARE COPPER SQUARE COPPER  COPPER COPPER GROUND SCREEN AT BASE OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  SCREEN AT BASE OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS SCREEN AT BASE OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  AT BASE OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS AT BASE OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  BASE OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS BASE OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS OF THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS THE TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS TOWER PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS PLUS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS 120 COPPER GROUND RADIALS  COPPER GROUND RADIALS COPPER GROUND RADIALS  GROUND RADIALS GROUND RADIALS  RADIALS RADIALS VARYING IN LENGTH FROM APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184  IN LENGTH FROM APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184 IN LENGTH FROM APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184  LENGTH FROM APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184 LENGTH FROM APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184  FROM APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184 FROM APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184  APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184 APPROXIMATELY 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184  150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184 150 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184  FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184 FEET .(46 METERS) TO 184  .(46 METERS) TO 184 .(46 METERS) TO 184  METERS) TO 184 METERS) TO 184  TO 184 TO 184  184 184 FEET (56 METERS). 7. BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  BEARINGS SHOWN HEREON ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   SHOWN HEREON ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  SHOWN HEREON ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   HEREON ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  HEREON ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  ARE RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  RELATIVE TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  TO THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  THE THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE  THE FLORIDA STATE PLANE   FLORIDA STATE PLANE  FLORIDA STATE PLANE   STATE PLANE  STATE PLANE   PLANE  PLANE  COORDINATE SYSTEM, EAST ZONE, NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE  SYSTEM, EAST ZONE, NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE SYSTEM, EAST ZONE, NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE  EAST ZONE, NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE EAST ZONE, NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE  ZONE, NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE ZONE, NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE  NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE NAD83, 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE  1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE 1990 ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE  ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE ADJUSTMENT, UTILIZING THE  UTILIZING THE UTILIZING THE  THE THE SOUTH LINE OF TRACTS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  LINE OF TRACTS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS LINE OF TRACTS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  OF TRACTS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS OF TRACTS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  TRACTS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS TRACTS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS 96 AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS AND 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS 97 AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS AS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS MONUMENTED. WHICH BEARS  WHICH BEARS WHICH BEARS  BEARS BEARS N88°04'35"W AND ALL OTHER BEARINGS ARE RELATIVE THERETO.8. ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.) ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.)  SHOWN HEREON ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.) SHOWN HEREON ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.)  HEREON ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.) HEREON ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.)  ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.) ARE NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.)  NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.) NORTH AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.)  AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.) AMERICAN VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.)  VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.) VERTICAL DATUM (NAVD.)  DATUM (NAVD.) DATUM (NAVD.)  (NAVD.) (NAVD.) CON27 EL=12.162, PER PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE  EL=12.162, PER PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE EL=12.162, PER PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE  PER PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE PER PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE  PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE PALM BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE  BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE BEACH COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE  COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE COUNTY ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE  ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE ENGINEERING DEPT. IS THE  DEPT. IS THE DEPT. IS THE  IS THE IS THE  THE THE PARENT BENCHMARK. 9. ACCORDING TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE ACCORDING TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE  TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE TO THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE  THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE THE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE  NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE NATIONAL FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE  FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE  INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE  PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE PROGRAM, FLOOD INSURANCE  FLOOD INSURANCE FLOOD INSURANCE  INSURANCE INSURANCE RATE MAP (FIRM) COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   MAP (FIRM) COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  MAP (FIRM) COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   (FIRM) COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  (FIRM) COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  COMMUNITY PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  PANEL NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  NO. 120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  120192 0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  0165 B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,  B,  PANEL 165 OF 245,    PANEL 165 OF 245,   PANEL 165 OF 245,  PANEL 165 OF 245,   165 OF 245,  165 OF 245,   OF 245,  OF 245,   245,  245,  MAP REVISED DATE  OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  REVISED DATE  OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7 REVISED DATE  OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  DATE  OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7 DATE  OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7   OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7 OCTOBER 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7 15, 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7 1982, THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7 THIS PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7 PROPERTY LIES IN ZONE A7  LIES IN ZONE A7 LIES IN ZONE A7  IN ZONE A7 IN ZONE A7  ZONE A7 ZONE A7  A7 A7 (EL12) 2/1/79. CERTIFICATE: RICHMAN LAKE WORTH APARTMENTS, LLC, A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY FIRST AMERICAN TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY NELSON MULLINS RILEY & SCARBOROUGH, LLP TRUIST BANK, ITS SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS AS THEIR INTERESTS MAY APPEAR. THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS  ON WHICH IT IS ON WHICH IT IS  WHICH IT IS WHICH IT IS  IT IS IT IS  IS IS BASED WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL WERE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL  STANDARD DETAIL STANDARD DETAIL  DETAIL DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND  FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND  ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND  LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND LAND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND  TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND  SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND  JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND  ESTABLISHED AND ESTABLISHED AND  AND AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), 2, 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), 3, 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  4, 5, 6(B), 7(A), 4, 5, 6(B), 7(A),  5, 6(B), 7(A), 5, 6(B), 7(A),  6(B), 7(A), 6(B), 7(A),  7(A), 7(A), 7(B)(1), 8, 9, 10(A), 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  8, 9, 10(A), 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 8, 9, 10(A), 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  9, 10(A), 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 9, 10(A), 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  10(A), 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 10(A), 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 10(B), 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 11(A), 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 12, 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 13, 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 16, 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 17, 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 18, 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  19, AND 21 OF TABLE A 19, AND 21 OF TABLE A  AND 21 OF TABLE A AND 21 OF TABLE A  21 OF TABLE A 21 OF TABLE A  OF TABLE A OF TABLE A  TABLE A TABLE A  A A THEREOF.   THE FIELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON NOVEMBER 8, 2021. NOVEMBER 8, 2021. DATE OF MAP: DECEMBER 3, 2021DECEMBER 3, 2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATED 

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/29/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION: THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, IN THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, THE COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, OF PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, PALM BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA, BEACH, STATE OF FLORIDA,  STATE OF FLORIDA, STATE OF FLORIDA,  OF FLORIDA, OF FLORIDA,  FLORIDA, FLORIDA, AND DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: PARCEL 1: A PORTION OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  PORTION OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 PORTION OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 OF LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 LOT 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 97 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43  SOUTH, RANGE 43 SOUTH, RANGE 43  RANGE 43 RANGE 43  43 43 EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF TO THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF THE PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PLAT THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF THEREOF, RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF RECORDED IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF IN NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF NAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF BOOK 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 5, PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PAGE 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF 79 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF  PUBLIC RECORDS OF PUBLIC RECORDS OF  RECORDS OF RECORDS OF  OF OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT A POINT WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  AT A POINT WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF AT A POINT WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  A POINT WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF A POINT WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  POINT WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF POINT WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF WHERE THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF NORTH LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF LAKE WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF WORTH ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF ROAD INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF INTERSECTS WITH THE EAST LINE OF  WITH THE EAST LINE OF WITH THE EAST LINE OF  THE EAST LINE OF THE EAST LINE OF  EAST LINE OF EAST LINE OF  LINE OF LINE OF  OF OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  RIGHT OF WAY OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A RIGHT OF WAY OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  OF WAY OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A OF WAY OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  WAY OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A WAY OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A OF THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A THE FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A FIRST LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A LATERAL CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A CANAL WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A WEST OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A OF THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A THE TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A TOWN OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A OF LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A LAKE WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  WORTH, RUNNING EAST A WORTH, RUNNING EAST A  RUNNING EAST A RUNNING EAST A  EAST A EAST A  A A DISTANCE OF 394.32 FEET; THENCE NORTH PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  NORTH PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. NORTH PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. WITH THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. THE EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. EAST LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. LINE OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. OF LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. LOT 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. 97 OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. OF THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. THE SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO. SUBDIVISION OF MODEL LAND CO.  OF MODEL LAND CO. OF MODEL LAND CO.  MODEL LAND CO. MODEL LAND CO.  LAND CO. LAND CO.  CO. CO. SUBDIVISION OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH OF SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH SECTION 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH 20, TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH 44 SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH SOUTH, RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH RANGE 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH 43 EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH EAST, A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH A DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH DISTANCE OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH OF 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  625 FEET TO THE NORTH 625 FEET TO THE NORTH  FEET TO THE NORTH FEET TO THE NORTH  TO THE NORTH TO THE NORTH  THE NORTH THE NORTH  NORTH NORTH LINE OF LOT 97; THENCE WEST TO A POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  WEST TO A POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF WEST TO A POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  TO A POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF TO A POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  A POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF A POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF POINT WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF WHERE SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF NORTH LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF LINE INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF INTERSECTS THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF EAST LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF LINE OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  THE RIGHT OF WAY OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF  RIGHT OF WAY OF RIGHT OF WAY OF  OF WAY OF OF WAY OF  WAY OF WAY OF  OF OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY FOLLOWING THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  SOUTHWESTERLY FOLLOWING THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF SOUTHWESTERLY FOLLOWING THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  FOLLOWING THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF FOLLOWING THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF THE RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF RIGHT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF WAY OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF SAID FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF FIRST LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF LATERAL CANAL TO THE POINT OF  CANAL TO THE POINT OF CANAL TO THE POINT OF  TO THE POINT OF TO THE POINT OF  THE POINT OF THE POINT OF  POINT OF POINT OF  OF OF BEGINNING. LESS AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH AND EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH EXCEPT THE SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  THE SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH THE SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH SOUTH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH 25 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH SHOWN AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH AS PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH PARCEL NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH NO. 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH 3 IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH IN THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH THE ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH ORDER OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH OF TAKING BY PALM BEACH  TAKING BY PALM BEACH TAKING BY PALM BEACH  BY PALM BEACH BY PALM BEACH  PALM BEACH PALM BEACH  BEACH BEACH COUNTY, AND AN ADDITIONAL 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  AND AN ADDITIONAL 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, AND AN ADDITIONAL 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  AN ADDITIONAL 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, AN ADDITIONAL 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  ADDITIONAL 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, ADDITIONAL 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, 10 FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, FEET, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, SHOWN AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, AS PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, PARCEL 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, 12, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863, OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 12863,  RECORD BOOK 12863, RECORD BOOK 12863,  BOOK 12863, BOOK 12863,  12863, 12863, PAGE 1606, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA. SUBJECT TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL TO THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL THE RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL RIGHTS OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL OF LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL DRAINAGE DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL DISTRICT TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL TO THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL THE NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL NORTH 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL 15 FEET OF SAID PARCEL  FEET OF SAID PARCEL FEET OF SAID PARCEL  OF SAID PARCEL OF SAID PARCEL  SAID PARCEL SAID PARCEL  PARCEL PARCEL DESCRIBED IN EASEMENT DEED RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORD BOOK 7855, PAGE 1317.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATE SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/08/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TFL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED LWDD REQUIRED R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/12/2022



TRACT 97

L.
W
.D

.D
. 
C
A
N
A
L 

E
-4

(K
E
LL

E
R
 C

A
N
A
L)

AREA
322278.64

SQUARE FEET
OR

7.40 ACRES

N 88°04'35" W 643.94'

TRACT 81

2ND AVE N.

4TH AVE N.

TRACT 96T
R
A
C
T
 9

8

MODEL LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION
PLAT BOOK 5 PAGE 79

MODEL LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION
PLAT BOOK 5 PAGE 79

MODEL LAND COMPANY SUBDIVISION
PLAT BOOK 5 PAGE 79

M
O
D
E
L 

LA
N
D
 C

O
M
PA

N
Y
 S

U
B
D
IV

IS
IO

N

PL
A
T
 B

O
O
K
 5

 P
A
G
E
 7

9
(K

E
LL

E
R
 C

A
N
A
L)

PARCEL 1
PARCEL 2 PARCEL 3

S
 1
°2

8'
3
5
" 
W

 6
16

.5
4
'

S 88°05'13" E 401.62'

N
 2

2°
59

'4
0"

 E
 6

6
0.

6
2'

englewood manor
PLAT BOOK 24 PAGE 52

S 88°06'19" E 506.58'

S 
43

°0
9'
11"
 W

 15
1.0

0'

S
 6

°0
9
'1
1"
 W

 2
4
7
.0

8'

N 67°31'16" W 59.43'

S 23°13'56" W 281.51'
DEED LINE

N 88°05'13" W 214.35'

S 
22

°5
9
'4

0"
 W

 6
71
.2

9
'

N
 2

3°
13

'5
6
" 
E
 3

6
3.

9
8'

5' 
TE

MP
OR

AR
Y 

CO
NS

TR
UC

TIO
N 

EA
SE

ME
NT

 O
.R

.B
. 1

74
54

 P
G 

77
2

15
' E

MB
AN

KM
EN

T E
AS

EM
EN

T

O.
R.

B.
 17

45
4 P

G 
77

2

N26°47'56"E 21.04'

TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTIONEASEMENT  O.R.B. 12282 PG. 10

EMBANKMENT EASEMENT O.R.B.12282 PG. 14

20
' 
R
E
Q
U
IR

E
D
 L

W
D
D
 R

/W

65' REQUIRED
LWDD R/W

L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
E
 A

R
C
H
IT

E
C
T
U
R
E
 -

 S
U
R
V
E
Y
IN

G

C
A
U
L
F
IE

L
D
 &

 W
H
E
E
L
E
R
, 
IN

C
.

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G
IN

E
E
R
IN

G
 -

 L
A
N
D
 P

L
A
N
N
IN

G
 

P
H
O
N
E
 (
5
6
1)
-3

9
2
-1
9
9
1 
/ 

F
A
X
 (
5
6
1)
-7

5
0
-1
4
5
2

7
3
0
1A

 W
. 
P
A
L
M
E
T
T
O
 P

A
R
K
 R

O
A
D
 -

 S
U
IT

E
 1
0
0
A

B
O
C
A
 R

A
T
O
N
, 
F
L
O
R
ID

A
 3

3
4
3
3
  

CA
NA

L 

2ND AVE N.2ND AVE N.

4TH AVE N.

LAGO
LUCERNE

PLAT BOOK
40, PAGE 181

2571 LAKE WORTH
RD

LAKE WORTH, FL
33461

SITE

2480 2ND
AVE N
LAKE

WORTH, FL
33461

LAKE WORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 117.68' OF TRACT 97 DEED BOOK 556, PAGE 194

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 2 ACRES OF TRACT 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CHAIN LINK FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANTENNA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANTENNA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE BUILDING 30'X11.8' FF. EL=13.90 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' CHAIN LINK FENCE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRAILER 10'X20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KELLER CANAL E-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1313

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT DEED BOOK 566,  PAGE 205

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 97 PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1317

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRACT 96 PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE TRACT 96 

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.W.D.D. EASEMENT O.R.B. 12773,  PG. 1382

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' L.W.D.D. EASEMENT  O.R.B.7804, PG.863 

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH 15' OF PLATTED 30' ROAD  SUBJECT TO L.W.D.D. CANAL EASEMENT PER O.R.B.7855, PG. 1321

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' L.W.D.D. EASEMENT  O.R.B.566, PG.196 

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1308

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT DEED BOOK 566, PAGE 189

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1321

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE TRACT 96 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE TRACT 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 30' ROADWAY UNIMPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" IRON ROD BENT NO I.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND ADAIR & BRADY IRON ROD & CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND ADAIR & BRADY IRON ROD & CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND ADAIR & BRADY IRON ROD & CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND  ADAIR & BRADY IRON ROD & CAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' ACCESS AND UTILITY EASEMENT, O.R.B. 12273, PG. 1143 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST LINE OF TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE OF TRACT 96

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEASE PARCEL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
53.9'

AutoCAD SHX Text
145.2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 2  (NORTH PARCEL) O.R.B. 10338, PG. 1808

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 1  (SOUTH PARCEL) O.R.B. 10338, PG. 1808

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT O.R.B. 126831, PG.1606

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' EMBANKMENT EASEMENT O.R.B. 126831, PG.1606

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELLSOUTH PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLATTED 30' ROAD PLAT BOOK 5, PAGE 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC CROSSING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIBER OPTIC HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE HAND  HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABLE HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT&T MH

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT&T MH RIM EL=14.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT&T MH RIM EL=12.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELLSOUTH PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD POWER  POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT&T  HAND  HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND  PALM BEACH COUNTY BRASS DISC

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT&T HAND HOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2' CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°04'35"W 76.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB RIM EL 10.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ORB. 8091, PG. 91

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEE NOTE 7 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
30.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.5'FLUSH CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLUSH CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
41.3'FLUSH CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MH RIM EL=10.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEWER MH RIM EL=12.44 INV EL =3.71 SE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 MH RIM EL=14.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
 MH RIM EL=14.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
 MH RIM EL=14.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM EL=12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM EL=12.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM MH RIM EL=12.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVER HEAD POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
60" CONC. PIPE INVERT EL=4.81 

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP INVERT EL=4.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK#1 FOUND PALM BEACH  COUNTY BRASS DISK ON BRIDGE WALL EL=18.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND. ROD & CAP LB #3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
SET  IRON ROD & CAP LB#3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIPRAP WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD POWER  POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK#2 FOUND  SQUARE CUT  ON TOP OF  CURB INLET EL=12.785

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT CITY OF LAKE WORTH O.R.B.10653 PG 781

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND. ROD & CAP WL FISH & CO. LB #6216

AutoCAD SHX Text
FND. ROD & CAP LB#6216 WL FISH & CO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. LINE OF TRACT 98 N 88°05'13" W 510.85' M. 505' MODEL LAND COMPANY P.B. 5 PG. 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT LINE ENGLEWOOD MANOR P.B. 24 PG.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.W. CORNER  TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
REAL PROPERTY CLAIMED BY ADVERSE  POSSESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH FLORIDA STATUTE 95.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
N01°055'25"W 5.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text
'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' RIGHT OF WAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R.B.17454, PG. 772

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'35"E 76.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S88°04'35"E 214.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 88°04'35" W 265.14'  253' MODEL LAND COMPANY P.B. 5 PG 79

AutoCAD SHX Text
N88°04'35"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST LINE TRACT 97

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.99

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.41

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.45

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.25

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.56

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.89

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.66

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.04

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.79

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.80

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
13.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.07

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.38

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.43

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.78

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.70

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.32

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
14.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.88

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.35

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.84

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.02

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.54

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.60

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.05

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.24

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.73

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.50

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.08

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.47

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.65

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.57

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.18

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.86

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.37

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.63

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.49

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.26

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.29

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.39

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.28

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.14

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.91

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.77

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.62

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.48

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.40

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.95

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.16

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.34

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.23

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.61

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.51

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.83

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.81

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.93

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.36

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.27

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.12

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.42

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.53

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.98

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.22

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.97

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.31

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.64

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.44

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.55

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.59

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.85

AutoCAD SHX Text
11.92

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.76

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.90

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.58

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.33

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.71

AutoCAD SHX Text
10.20

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.87

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.13

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.72

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.19

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.03

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
FPL PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH LEASE PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LEASE PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' INGRESS EGRESS ESMT O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING ESMT O.R.B. 27822 PAGE 1874

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF     SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT.NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.B./ PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
6744-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
07/03/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6744-2 SUR SHEETS 1-3 - 1-12-22.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.B. 3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR NO. 5005

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID P. LINDLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF FLORIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF VALOR ALTA /  SURVEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULOCATION MAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uKEY MAP%%u

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=40'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED LWDD REQUIRED R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/15/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDED CONTOUR

AutoCAD SHX Text
06/29/16

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREE UPDATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/26/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATE TITLE INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/08/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TFL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER CLIENT REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/16/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TFL



0
+
0
0

0
+
2
0

0
+
4
0

0
+
6
0

0
+
8
0

1+
0
0

1+
19

1+
3
9

1+
6
0

1+
8
0

2
+
0
0

2
+
2
0

-10

0

10

20

SECTION A
L.W.D.D CANAL E-4 (KELLER CANAL)

R
.O

.W
.

R
.O

.W
.

200' R/W

ST
A
=0

+0
0 

EL
V=

10
.3

ST
A
=2

+0
0.

88
4 

EL
V=

11.
3

ST
A
=0

+4
5.

32
 E

LV
=1

0.
6

ST
A
=0

+6
9.

94
4 

EL
V=

10
.3

ST
A
=0

+7
7.

26
 E

LV
=1

0.
5 

to
b

ST
A
=0

+9
9.

84
9 

EL
V=

6.
3 

eo
w

ST
A
=1

+0
5.

00
7 

EL
V=

6.
2

ST
A
=1

+1
0.

16
5 

EL
V=

5.
7

ST
A
=1

+1
5.

32
3 

EL
V=

4.
3

ST
A
=1

+2
0.

48
 E

LV
=1

.8

ST
A
=1

+2
5.

63
8 

EL
V=

-0
.9

ST
A
=1

+3
0.

79
6 

EL
V=

-2
.3

ST
A
=1

+3
5.

95
3 

EL
V=

-2
.0

ST
A
=1

+4
1.
111

 E
LV

=-
2.

2

ST
A
=1

+4
6.

26
9 

EL
V=

-2
.1

ST
A
=1

+5
1.
42

7 
EL

V=
-2

.4

ST
A
=1

+5
6.

58
4 

EL
V=

-1
.8

ST
A
=1

+6
1.
74

2 
EL

V=
0.

5

ST
A
=1

+6
6.

9 
EL

V=
1.
9

ST
A
=1

+7
2.

05
7 

EL
V=

3.
2

ST
A
=1

+7
7.

21
5 

EL
V=

5.
4

ST
A
=1

+8
2.

37
3 

EL
V=

6.
3 

eo
w

ST
A
=1

+8
5.

84
9 

EL
V=

11.
6 

to
b

ST
A
=2

+1
7.

84
5 

EL
V=

11.
6

ST
A
=2

+3
1.
46

4 
EL

V=
12

.0

facing north hor. scale=20
vert. sclae = 10

LEGEND:
elv. = ELEVATION

sta.= STATION
tob. = TOP OF BERM

eow = edge of water
r.o.w. = right of way

R
.O

.W

R
.O

.W

L.W.D.D. CANAL - 4 (KELLER CANAL)
SECTION B

0
+
0
0

0
+
2
0

0
+
4
0

0
+
6
0

0
+
8
0

1+
0
0

1+
2
0

1+
4
0

1+
6
0

1+
8
0

2
+
0
0

2
+
2
0

2
+
3
9

2
+
6
0

2
+
8
0

-10

0

10

ST
A
=0

+0
0 

EL
V=

11.
0

ST
A
=0

+3
5 

EL
V=

10
.7

ST
A
=0

+4
1.
49

1 
EL

V=
10

.6

ST
A
=1

+0
3.

81
1 
EL

V=
12

.3

ST
A
=2

+3
5 

EL
V=

12
.4

ST
A
=0

+1
9.

96
5 

EL
V=

10
.7

ST
A
=0

+6
8.

65
5 

EL
V=

11.
5

ST
A
=0

+8
4.

42
 E

LV
=1

2.
7

ST
A
=0

+8
8.

95
6 

EL
V=

11.
3

ST
A
=1

+0
1.
83

5 
EL

V=
11.

3

ST
A
=1

+1
1.
7 

EL
V=

14
.2

ST
A
=1

+2
5.

75
7 

EL
V=

6.
3 

eo
w

ST
A
=1

+3
0.

64
8 

EL
V=

2.
8

ST
A
=1

+3
5.

53
9 

EL
V=

1.
5

ST
A
=1

+4
0.

43
 E

LV
=1

.0

ST
A
=1

+4
5.

32
1 
EL

V=
1.
5

ST
A
=1

+5
0.

21
3 

EL
V=

1.
2

ST
A
=1

+5
5.

10
4 

EL
V=

1.
2

ST
A
=1

+5
9.

99
5 

EL
V=

0.
5

ST
A
=1

+6
4.

88
6 

EL
V=

-0
.6

ST
A
=1

+6
9.

77
8 

EL
V=

-0
.9

ST
A
=1

+7
4.

66
9 

EL
V=

-0
.8

ST
A
=1

+7
9.

56
 E

LV
=-

0.
2

ST
A
=1

+8
4.

45
1 
EL

V=
0.

8

ST
A
=1

+8
9.

34
2 

EL
V=

4.
3

ST
A
=1

+9
4.

23
4 

EL
V=

6.
3 

eo
w

ST
A
=2

+0
5.

87
1 
EL

V=
12

.4
 t

ob

ST
A
=2

+1
6.

91
8 

EL
V=

12
.2

ST
A
=2

+6
1.
68

6 
EL

V=
11.

9

ST
A
=2

+8
2.

03
3 

EL
V=

12
.8

LEGEND:
elv. = ELEVATION

sta.= STATION
tob. = TOP OF BERM

eow = edge of water
r.o.w. = right of way

hor. scale=20
vert. sclae = 10

facing north

drive way RIPRAP

RIPR
AP

200' R/W

0
+
0
0

0
+
2
0

0
+
4
0

0
+
6
0

0
+
8
0

1+
0
0

1+
2
0

1+
4
0

1+
6
0

1+
8
0

2
+
0
0

2
+
2
0

2
+
4
0

-10

0

10

20

30

R
.O

.W
.

R
.O

.W
.

SECTION C
L.W.D.D. CANAL E-4 (KELLER CANAL)

ST
A
=0

+0
0 

EL
V=

9.
5

ST
A
=0

+3
7.

60
2 

EL
V=

9.
6

ST
A
=0

+5
9.

43
5 

EL
V=

10
.4

ST
A
=0

+7
7.

99
3 

EL
V=

10
.7

 T
O
B

ST
A
=0

+8
5.

34
 E

LV
=6

.2
 E

O
W

ST
A
=0

+9
0.

40
6 

EL
V=

5.
9

ST
A
=0

+9
5.

47
1 
EL

V=
5.

1

ST
A
=1

+0
0.

53
7 

EL
V=

2.
6

ST
A
=1

+0
5.

60
2 

EL
V=

0.
7

ST
A
=1

+1
0.

66
8 

EL
V=

-1
.0

ST
A
=1

+1
5.

73
3 

EL
V=

-1
.7

ST
A
=1

+2
0.

79
9 

EL
V=

-2
.6

ST
A
=1

+2
5.

86
4 

EL
V=

-3
.0

ST
A
=1

+3
0.

93
 E

LV
=-

3.
3

ST
A
=1

+3
5.

99
5 

EL
V=

-2
.7

ST
A
=1

+4
1.
06

1 
EL

V=
-1
.5

ST
A
=1

+4
6.

12
6 

EL
V=

0.
9

ST
A
=1

+5
1.
19

2 
EL

V=
4.

1

ST
A
=1

+5
6.

25
7 

EL
V=

5.
4

ST
A
=1

+6
1.
32

3 
EL

V=
5.

9

ST
A
=1

+6
6.

38
8 

EL
V=

6.
0

ST
A
=1

+7
5.

65
6 

EL
V=

12
.0

 T
O
B

ST
A
=1

+8
6.

61
2 

EL
V=

11.
4

ST
A
=2

+0
0.

83
 E

LV
=1

0.
9

ST
A
=2

+2
3.

40
6 

EL
V=

10
.0

ST
A
=2

+4
6.

86
8 

EL
V=

9.
6

facing north

LEGEND:
elv. = ELEVATION

sta.= STATION
tob. = TOP OF BERM

eow = edge of water
r.o.w. = right of way

hor. scale=20
vert. sclae = 10

200' R/W

0
+
0
0

0
+
10

0
+
2
0

0
+
3
0

0
+
4
0

0
+
5
0

0
+
6
0

0
+
7
0

5

10

15

30'
PLATTED ROAD

MID - SECTION
NORTH CANAL

ST
A
=0

+0
0 

EL
V=

9.
1

ST
A
=0

+1
1.
36

2 
EL

V=
9.

9

ST
A
=0

+1
5.

87
5 

EL
V=

10
.4

ST
A
=0

+2
1.
46

5 
EL

V=
10

.2

ST
A
=0

+2
8.

98
6 

EL
V=

10
.4

 T
O
B

ST
A
=0

+3
6.

62
 E

LV
=6

.3
 E

O
W

ST
A
=0

+4
1.
62

6 
EL

V=
5.

8

ST
A
=0

+4
6.

63
2 

EL
V=

5.
3

ST
A
=0

+5
1.
63

8 
EL

V=
6.

0

ST
A
=0

+5
6.

64
4 

EL
V=

6.
3 

EO
W

ST
A
=0

+6
1.
09

2 
EL

V=
8.

1 
TO

B

ST
A
=0

+6
4.

44
6 

EL
V=

8.
0

ST
A
=0

+7
2.

05
5 

EL
V=

8.
1

hor. scale=10
vert. sclae = 10

35'

L.W.D.D. EASEMENT O.R.B.
12773,  PG. 1382

65' R/W
15' ADDITIONAL

R/W

0
+
0
0

0
+
2
0

0
+
4
0

0
+
6
0

0
+
8
0

1+
0
0

1+
2
0

1+
4
0

1+
6
0

1+
8
0

2
+
0
0

2
+
2
0

2
+
4
0

-10

0

10

20

30

SECTION D
L.W.D.D. CANAL E-4 (KELLER CANAL)

R
.O

.W
.

R
.O

.W
.

ST
A
=0

+0
0 

EL
V=

9.
2

ST
A
=0

+5
8.

26
1 
EL

V=
9.

4

ST
A
=0

+7
8.

16
6 

EL
V=

10
.8

 T
O
B

ST
A
=0

+8
5.

98
9 

EL
V=

6.
3 

EO
W

ST
A
=0

+9
0.

90
8 

EL
V=

6.
1

ST
A
=0

+9
5.

82
7 

EL
V=

5.
4

ST
A
=1

+0
0.

74
7 

EL
V=

4.
2

ST
A
=1

+0
5.

66
6 

EL
V=

1.
7

ST
A
=1

+1
0.

58
5 

EL
V=

-0
.1

ST
A
=1

+1
5.

50
4 

EL
V=

-1
.3

ST
A
=1

+2
0.

42
3 

EL
V=

-2
.6

ST
A
=1

+2
5.

34
2 

EL
V=

-3
.5

ST
A
=1

+3
0.

26
1 
EL

V=
-4

.2

ST
A
=1

+3
5.

18
1 
EL

V=
-4

.6

ST
A
=1

+4
0.

1 
EL

V=
-5

.0

ST
A
=1

+4
5.

01
9 

EL
V=

-4
.4

ST
A
=1

+4
9.

93
8 

EL
V=

-3
.2

ST
A
=1

+5
4.

85
7 

EL
V=

-1
.6

ST
A
=1

+5
9.

77
6 

EL
V=

1.
3

ST
A
=1

+6
4.

69
5 

EL
V=

3.
3

ST
A
=1

+6
9.

61
4 

EL
V=

5.
4

ST
A
=1

+7
4.

53
4 

EL
V=

5.
9

ST
A
=1

+7
9.

45
3 

EL
V=

6.
3 

EO
W

ST
A
=1

+8
8.

18
9 

EL
V=

10
.9

 T
O
B

ST
A
=2

+0
0.

16
7 

EL
V=

10
.8

ST
A
=2

+2
3.

70
4 

EL
V=

10
.5

ST
A
=2

+4
4.

64
8 

EL
V=

8.
6

hor. scale=20
vert. sclae = 10

LEGEND:
elv. = ELEVATION

sta.= STATION
tob. = TOP OF BERM

eow = edge of water
r.o.w. = right of way

facing north

200' R/W
0
+
0
0

0
+
10

0
+
2
0

0
+
3
0

0
+
4
0

0
+
5
0

0
+
6
0

0
+
7
0

0
+
8
0

0
+
9
0

1+
0
0

5

10

15

20

30'
PLATTED ROAD

EAST SECTION
NORTH CANAL

ST
A
=0

+0
0 

EL
V=

11.
0

ST
A
=0

+0
1.
51

6 
EL

V=
11.

1

ST
A
=0

+0
9.

99
 E

LV
=1

0.
5

ST
A
=0

+2
0.

04
5 

EL
V=

10
.0

ST
A
=0

+2
8.

44
5 

EL
V=

10
.2

 T
O
B

ST
A
=0

+3
6.

78
2 

EL
V=

6.
3 

EO
W

ST
A
=0

+4
1.
41

 E
LV

=5
.6

ST
A
=0

+4
6.

03
8 

EL
V=

5.
3

ST
A
=0

+5
0.

66
6 

EL
V=

6.
0

ST
A
=0

+5
5.

29
4 

EL
V=

6.
3 

EO
W

ST
A
=0

+6
4.

14
5 

EL
V=

9.
3 

TO
B

ST
A
=0

+8
2.

42
1 
EL

V=
9.

8

ST
A
=1

+0
7.

36
9 

EL
V=

10
.1

hor. scale=10
vert. sclae = 10

15' ADDITIONAL

R/W

0
+
0
0

0
+
2
0

0
+
4
0

0
+
6
0

0
+
8
0

1+
0
0

1+
19

1+
3
9

1+
6
0

1+
8
0

2
+
0
0

-10

0

10

20

30

SECTION E
L.W.D.D. CANAL E-4 (KELLER CANAL)

R
.O

.W
.

R
.O

.W
.

ST
A
=0

+0
0 

EL
V=

11.
8

ST
A
=0

+0
3.

97
 E

LV
=1

2.
0

ST
A
=1

+8
1.
91

4 
EL

V=
11.

4 
TO

B

ST
A
=2

+0
0.

24
9 

EL
V=

10
.6

ST
A
=0

+2
5.

64
1 
EL

V=
12

.0

ST
A
=0

+3
6.

09
 E

LV
=1

1.
9

ST
A
=0

+4
9.

73
 E

LV
=1

1.
8

ST
A
=0

+7
2.

57
4 

EL
V=

11.
9 

TO
B

ST
A
=0

+8
9.

34
1 
EL

V=
6.

3 
EO

W

ST
A
=0

+9
4.

27
6 

EL
V=

6.
1

ST
A
=0

+9
9.

21
2 

EL
V=

5.
7

ST
A
=1

+0
4.

14
8 

EL
V=

4.
3

ST
A
=1

+0
9.

08
3 

EL
V=

2.
0

ST
A
=1

+1
4.

01
9 

EL
V=

-0
.7

ST
A
=1

+1
8.

95
5 

EL
V=

-2
.1

ST
A
=1

+2
3.

89
 E

LV
=-

2.
6

ST
A
=1

+2
8.

82
6 

EL
V=

-2
.9

ST
A
=1

+3
3.

76
1 
EL

V=
-3

.6

ST
A
=1

+3
8.

69
7 

EL
V=

-3
.5

ST
A
=1

+4
3.

63
3 

EL
V=

-2
.9

ST
A
=1

+4
8.

56
8 

EL
V=

-2
.0

ST
A
=1

+5
3.

50
4 

EL
V=

0.
2

ST
A
=1

+5
8.

44
 E

LV
=3

.1

ST
A
=1

+6
3.

37
5 

EL
V=

5.
2

ST
A
=1

+6
8.

31
1 
EL

V=
5.

8

ST
A
=1

+7
3.

24
7 

EL
V=

6.
0 

EO
W

ST
A
=1

+9
0.

09
3 

EL
V=

10
.8

LEGEND:
elv. = ELEVATION

sta.= STATION
tob. = TOP OF BERM

eow = edge of water
r.o.w. = right of way

hor. scale=20

200' R/W

L
A
N
D
S
C
A
P
E
 A

R
C
H
IT

E
C
T
U
R
E
 -

 S
U
R
V
E
Y
IN

G

C
A
U
L
F
IE

L
D
 &

 W
H
E
E
L
E
R
, 
IN

C
.

C
IV

IL
 E

N
G
IN

E
E
R
IN

G
 -

 L
A
N
D
 P

L
A
N
N
IN

G
 

P
H
O
N
E
 (
5
6
1)
-3

9
2
-1
9
9
1 
/ 

F
A
X
 (
5
6
1)
-7

5
0
-1
4
5
2

7
3
0
1A

 W
. 
P
A
L
M
E
T
T
O
 P

A
R
K
 R

O
A
D
 -

 S
U
IT

E
 1
0
0
A

B
O
C
A
 R

A
T
O
N
, 
F
L
O
R
ID

A
 3

3
4
3
3
  

CA
NA

L 

2ND AVE N.2ND AVE N.

4TH AVE N.

LAGO
LUCERNE

PLAT BOOK
40, PAGE 181

2571 LAKE WORTH
RD

LAKE WORTH, FL
33461

SITE

2480 2ND
AVE N
LAKE

WORTH, FL
33461

LAKE WORTH

SECTION "A"

SECTION "B"

SECTION "C"

SECTION "D"

CA
NA

L 

SECTION
"MID" "EAST"

SECTION "E"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1313

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1308

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 566, PG. 196

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7804, PG. 863

AutoCAD SHX Text
35' L.W.D.D. EASEMENT O.R.B. 12773, PG. 1382

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1321

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' EASEMENT O.R.B. 7855, PG. 1308

AutoCAD SHX Text
18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADD

AutoCAD SHX Text
R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF     SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB #

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHT.NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.B./ PG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILE NAME

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
6744-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/A

AutoCAD SHX Text
05/14/14

AutoCAD SHX Text
AMS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6744-2 SUR SHEETS 1-3 - 1-12-22

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.B. 3591

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR NO. 5005

AutoCAD SHX Text
REGISTERED LAND

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID P. LINDLEY

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE OF FLORIDA

AutoCAD SHX Text
VILLAGE OF VALOR  LAKE WORTH DRAINAGE DISTRICT CANAL E-4 (KELLER CANAL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uKEY MAP%%u

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATE TITLE INFORMATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/08/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TFL

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PER CLIENT REVIEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
11/16/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TFL



Y:\AUTOCAD_FILES\2021\21-173\CONCEPTUAL\21173C01-02.dwg 10/12/2022 11:14 AM Connor O'Rourke

No 56934

ER
IK               R.               COOPER

STATE OF

LICENSE

F L O R I D A

PROFESS IONA L ENGIN
EE

R



Y:\AUTOCAD_FILES\2021\21-173\CONCEPTUAL\21173C01-02.dwg 10/12/2022 11:14 AM Connor O'Rourke

No 56934

ER
IK               R.               COOPER

STATE OF

LICENSE

F L O R I D A

PROFESS IONA L ENGIN
EE

R



Y:\AUTOCAD_FILES\2021\21-173\CONCEPTUAL\21173C01-02.dwg 10/12/2022 11:14 AM Connor O'Rourke

No 56934

ER
IK               R.               COOPER

STATE OF

LICENSE

F L O R I D A

PROFESS IONA L ENGIN
EE

R

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O
WE

KAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

EROSION CONTROL NOTES
DETAIL

25
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O
WE

KAL

F
O

Y
T I

C
FLO R ID

A

INLET FILTER DETAIL 26
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O
WE

KAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 27
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O

WE
KAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R IDA

STABILIZED CONSTRUCTION
ENTRANCE DETAIL

29
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

H
T
R
O
WE

KAL

F
O

Y
T I

C

FLO R ID
A

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 28
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

















0.1

0.1

0.3

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.20.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0
0.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.0

1.1

1.1

0.5

0.5

5.2

2.6 2.6

3.0

3.2

2.5

2.7

2.4

2.4

2.7

2.6

2.3

2.6

2.7

3.1

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.3

2.2

2.8

2.7

2.5

2.9

3.0

2.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.3

2.7

2.6

2.5

2.8

2.6

2.2

1.8

2.2

1.9

2.0

2.5

2.6

2.5

2.7

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.4

2.5

2.4

2.2

2.1

2.1

2.1

2.4

3.0

3.3

2.9

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.3

2.6

2.7

2.3

2.4

2.9

3.2

2.4

2.3

2.6

3.0

3.4

4.3

4.5

3.4

3.0

2.7

2.6

2.4

2.7

2.5

2.1

2.3

2.8

2.8

2.2

2.3

2.7

3.0

4.1

4.4

3.5

3.5

3.4

3.0

3.1

2.6

2.1

2.1

2.5

2.6

2.5

2.6

2.4

2.3

2.3

2.5

2.7

3.1

3.1

3.2

3.6

3.4

4.0

4.0

3.1

2.3

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.3

2.5

3.1

2.4

2.2

2.4

2.4

2.4

2.5

2.9

3.3

3.5

4.6

4.9

3.3

2.6

1.7

1.8

2.2

2.9

2.9

2.3

2.2

2.5

2.5

2.4

2.6

3.0

3.3

3.0

3.2

3.8

3.6

2.8

2.5

1.5

1.6

2.3

3.1

2.1

1.9

1.9

2.5

3.1

3.2

3.2

3.1

3.0

3.1

2.7

2.4

2.0

1.5

1.6

2.1

2.6

2.1

2.1

1.9

1.7

3.0

3.6

3.4

3.4

3.6

3.1

2.8

2.3

2.1

2.0

1.8

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.0

2.3

2.5

2.4

2.0

1.4

2.0

3.0

3.6

3.0

3.0

2.6

2.2

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.6

2.4

2.3

2.1

2.1

2.2

2.1

2.0

1.5

2.4

3.3

3.1

3.3

3.1

2.7

2.5

2.3

2.3

2.3

2.1

2.1

2.1

2.1

1.6

1.4

2.4

2.2

2.1

2.0

2.9

2.4

2.3

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.8

2.8

2.5

2.3

2.3

2.6

2.4

2.4

2.6

3.0

3.1

2.6

2.5

2.5

2.5

3.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.2

2.4

2.5

2.4

2.4

2.4

2.5

2.1

2.1

2.0

1.8

2.4

2.5

2.5

2.4

2.1

1.9

2.4

2.5

2.0

2.7

3.1

3.2

2.8

2.5

1.5

1.7

2.4

2.9

2.7

2.8

3.1

2.7

3.0

2.8

2.1

2.2

2.1

2.1

2.1

2.2

1.8

2.0

2.5

2.8

2.9

2.7

2.3

1.4

1.6

2.0

2.3

2.4

2.7

2.9

2.6

2.5

2.2

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.9

1.6

1.8

2.3

2.4

2.4

2.3

2.1

1.5

1.6

1.6

2.2

2.6

2.4

2.4

2.4

2.8

1.3

1.6

1.8

2.3

2.9

3.0

2.6

2.5

2.4

2.5

3.0

1.4

1.5

1.9

2.2

2.1

1.9

2.1

2.2

1.4

1.6

2.0

2.0

2.2

2.4

2.3

2.3

2.4

2.4

1.5

1.7

2.2

2.6

2.3

1.9

2.3

2.1

1.7

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

2.0

1.6

1.8

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.5

2.2

1.9

2.0

1.8

1.6

1.8

2.1

2.3

2.3

1.7

2.0

2.7

3.2

3.3

2.8

2.5

2.8

2.2

1.9

1.8

2.2

2.3

1.9

2.5

2.7

2.8

2.6

2.3

2.3

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.1

1.9

2.3

2.3

2.4

2.3

2.2

1.7

2.0

2.0

2.8

2.5

2.4

2.4

2.5

2.8

1.6

2.1

3.0

2.6

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.9

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.2

2.2

2.2

2.3

1.9

1.9

1.9

2.1

1.9

1.8

2.0

2.1

2.4

2.7

2.9

3.3

2.7

2.4

2.8

2.4

2.7

3.4

3.3

2.6

2.3

2.0

2.1

2.8

3.3

3.1

2.9

2.9

2.3

3.0

2.5

2.4

2.6

2.8

3.0

2.9

3.1

3.4

3.0

2.9

3.0

2.9

2.9

2.3

1.8

1.8

2.0

2.5

2.8

3.0

2.9

3.1

2.9

2.6

2.1

2.1

2.3

2.1

2.1

2.5

2.7

2.7

2.9

3.4

2.9

2.7

2.7

2.6

2.2

2.1

1.8

1.5

1.5

1.7

1.8

2.2

2.6

2.9

2.9

3.4

3.8

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.7

2.1

2.2

2.1

2.6

2.8

2.7

2.9

3.4

2.9

2.8

2.8

2.5

2.0

1.8

1.5

1.2

1.3

1.6

1.8

2.2

2.7

2.9

2.9

3.3

3.8

1.7

1.6

1.6

1.8

2.1

2.7

3.1

3.5

3.2

3.3

3.3

3.3

3.2

3.5

3.0

1.9

1.4

1.2

1.7

2.3

2.7

3.6

3.5

3.4

3.2

2.9

1.3

1.5

1.9

2.4

3.0

4.0

4.9

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.6

3.8

4.9

3.7

2.3

1.3

2.0

2.7

3.6

4.4

3.9

3.5

2.7

1.6

1.6

1.9

2.3

3.1

3.9

4.6

3.8

3.8

3.9

3.7

3.9

4.6

3.8

2.4

1.5

1.3

2.2

2.8

3.7

4.9

4.6

4.2

1.7

1.6

1.7

2.0

2.6

3.0

3.4

3.2

3.2

3.4

3.2

3.1

3.4

3.0

2.6

2.2

1.6

1.5

2.0

2.4

2.9

3.5

3.5

3.3

2.3

1.9

1.9

2.2

2.0

2.0

2.4

2.6

2.6

2.8

3.1

2.6

2.5

2.6

2.3

2.0

2.2

1.8

1.4

1.6

2.0

2.0

2.1

2.6

2.6

2.3

2.4

2.3

2.9

2.1

2.0

2.3

2.0

2.1

2.6

2.7

2.6

2.9

3.1

2.7

2.7

2.7

2.3

2.0

2.2

2.0

1.8

2.0

2.3

2.2

2.1

2.3

2.3

2.1

2.4

2.9

2.5

2.0

2.0

2.3

2.8

3.4

3.4

3.3

3.4

3.4

3.4

3.4

3.5

2.7

2.4

2.4

2.6

2.9

3.4

3.0

2.6

2.1

2.1

2.3

3.1

1.8

1.6

1.7

2.3

3.4

4.6

4.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.6

4.3

5.0

3.1

2.8

2.9

3.0

3.7

4.9

3.7

2.9

1.9

1.7

2.0

2.4

1.7

1.6

1.7

2.3

3.3

4.3

4.2

3.4

3.5

3.7

3.5

4.0

4.6

3.0

2.7

2.8

3.0

3.7

4.5

3.6

2.8

1.7

1.4

1.6

1.8

1.3

1.4

1.8

2.3

2.8

3.3

3.1

2.8

2.9

3.1

3.0

3.3

3.4

2.5

2.4

2.5

2.6

3.0

3.4

2.9

2.4

1.7

1.6

1.3

1.5

1.8

2.2

2.4

2.7

2.6

2.5

2.5

2.8

2.8

2.7

3.0

2.7

2.4

2.3

2.6

2.4

2.3

2.8

2.7

2.4

2.1

2.2

2.0

1.6

1.5

1.8

2.0

2.0

2.3

2.7

2.4

2.4

2.7

2.8

2.7

2.7

3.0

2.6

2.3

2.5

2.7

2.5

2.4

2.9

2.5

2.3

2.3

2.4

2.1

1.6

2.5

2.1

2.4

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

2.7

2.8

2.8

2.5

3.0

3.0

2.6

2.6

2.7

2.5

2.4

2.8

2.3

1.6

1.6

1.9

3.1

3.1

2.0

1.9

1.9

2.0

3.1

3.2

2.1

1.9

1.9

1.8

1.9

3.1

1.9

S S S S

SSS

S

S

S

S

S

S

SSS SS

S

S S

S

S

S

S

S

S
S

S

S S S

S

S2

S2

S2

S2

S2

S2S2

S2

Plan View
Scale  1" = 50'

LUMINAIRE LOCATIONS

No. Label X Y Z MH Orientation Tilt
Location

1 S 366.2 134.2 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

2 S 434.7 134.2 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

3 S 503.2 134.2 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

4 S 572.0 134.2 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

5 S 572.4 68.4 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

6 S 503.2 68.5 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

7 S 434.7 68.6 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

8 S 781.3 161.4 20.0 20.0 -90.0 0.0

9 S 781.3 90.4 20.0 20.0 -90.0 0.0

10 S 780.8 19.9 20.0 20.0 -90.0 0.0

11 S 780.5 -53.7 20.0 20.0 -90.0 0.0

12 S 594.2 163.7 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

13 S 599.3 66.2 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

14 S 429.5 -76.0 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

15 S 360.3 -76.0 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

16 S 291.8 -76.0 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

17 S 696.9 -75.4 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

18 S 616.6 -75.4 20.0 20.0 0.0 0.0

19 S 466.5 -91.1 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

20 S 466.5 -145.3 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

21 S 540.0 -145.5 20.0 20.0 -90.0 0.0

22 S 555.5 -89.3 20.0 20.0 -53.6 0.0

23 S 253.8 -24.3 20.0 20.0 111.0 0.0

24 S 277.5 36.8 20.0 20.0 111.0 0.0

25 S 304.1 105.9 20.0 20.0 111.0 0.0

26 S 415.2 45.3 20.0 20.0 -72.4 0.0

27 S 395.3 -6.6 20.0 20.0 -72.4 0.0

28 S 599.3 2.8 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

29 S 704.4 216.1 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

30 S2 719.6 134.8 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

31 S2 352.7 50.7 20.0 20.0 -67.7 0.0

32 S2 330.0 -8.3 20.0 20.0 -67.7 0.0

33 S2 659.6 165.1 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

34 S2 719.6 -0.6 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

35 S2 719.9 62.4 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

36 S2 659.8 65.4 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

37 S2 659.8 2.4 20.0 20.0 90.0 0.0

38 S 434.7 -9.5 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

39 S 503.2 -9.5 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

40 S 572.0 -11.0 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

41 S 630.8 216.1 20.0 20.0 180.0 0.0

LUMINAIRE SCHEDULE

Symbol Label Qty File Lumens LLF WattsCatalog Number Description Lamp

S 33 NV-1-T4-48L-7-
30K-HSS.IES

Absolute 0.85 104

S2 8 NV-1-T4-32L-7-
30K.IES

Absolute 0.85 142

NLS LIGHTING NV-
1-T4-48L-7-30K-
UNV-HSS ON RTA
DIRECT BURIAL
POLE 20' AFG 

SINGLE LED LUMINAIRE
WITH HOUSE-SIDE
SHIELD ON 20' AFG RTA
POLE

WHT LED ARRAY, 30K,
80 CRI

NLS LIGHTING NV-
1-T4-32L-7-30K-
UNV ON RTA
DIRECT BURIAL
POLE 20' AFG 

DOUBLE LED
LUMINAIRES  ON 20'
AFG RTA POLE

WHT LED ARRAY, 30K,
80 CRI

STATISTICS

Description       Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min

PARKING AREA (Z=0') 2.5 fc 5.2 fc 1.1 fc 4.7:1

0.0 fc 0.5 fc 0.0 fc N / APROPERTY LINE (Z=0')

NOTES

 1.   CALCULATIONS HAVE BEEN PERFORMED ACCORDING TO
 IES STANDARDS AND PRACTICE.  SOME DIFFERENCES
 BETWEEN MEASURED VALUES AND CALCULATED RESULTS MAY
 OCCUR DUE TO TOLERANCES IN CALCULATION METHODS,
 TESTING PROCEDURES, COMPONENT PERFORMANCES,
 MEASURED CONDITIONS SUCH AS TECHNICAL AND FIELD
 VOLTAGES AND TEMPERATURE VARIATIONS.  INPUT DATA SUCH 
 AS ROOM DIMENSIONS, REFLECTANCES, FURNITURE, LIGHT
 LOSS FACTOR, FURNITURE, ARCHITECTURAL ELEMENTS AND 
 FOLIAGE SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT THE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS.
 IF THE REAL ENVIRONMENT DO NOT MATCH INPUT DATA
 DIFFERENCES WILL OCCUR BETWEEN MEASURED AND
 CALCULATED VALUES.

 2.   ALL POLES ARE TO BE 20' AFG WITHOUT TENON. LUMINAIRES
 ARE TO BE BOLTED TO SIDE OF POLES. ALL POLES TO BE (RTA)
 ROUND TAPERED ALUMINUM, DIRECT BURIAL AS 
 MANUFACTURED BY HAPCO # RTA20D6BE-**

 3.   WIND LOAD CALCULATIONS, TO MEET SITE LOCATION
 LOAD REQUIREMENTS, MUST BE PREPARED AND SUBMITTED AS
 PART OF THE SUBMITTAL PROCESS. SAID CALCULATIONS MUST
 BE SIGNED AND SEALED BY FLORIDA REGISTERED ENGINEER.

 0.5FC CURVE (TYPICAL)

 ©
 2

02
2 

BE
H

AR
 F

O
N

T 
PA

R
TN

ER
S,

 P
.A

. T
H

E 
D

ES
IG

N
 A

N
D

 D
R

AW
IN

G
S 

FO
R

 T
H

IS
 P

R
O

JE
C

T 
AR

E 
PR

O
PE

R
TY

 O
F 

TH
IS

 A
R

C
H

IT
EC

T 
AN

D
 A

R
E 

PR
O

TE
C

TE
D

 U
N

D
ER

 T
H

E 
C

O
PY

R
IG

H
T 

PR
O

TE
C

TI
O

N
 A

C
T.

S E A L :

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 R

ES
ID

EN
TI

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

, F
LO

R
ID

A
 2

N
D

 A
VE

N
U

E 
N

O
R

TH

Javier Font  AR No. 12547

DATE:
10-12-2022
PROJECT NO:
21-092
DRAWING  NAME:

SHEET NO:

R
ES

ID
EN

C
ES

 A
T 

LA
KE

 W
O

R
TH

A-0.1

SITE LIGHTING
PHOTOMETRIC PLAN



S I M M O N S  &  W H I T E  
2581 Metrocentre Blvd. W, Suite 3  West Palm Beach, Florida 33407 
O  561.478.7848  |  F  561.478.3738     w w w . s i m m o n s a n d w h i t e . c o m  
C e r t i f i c a t e  o f  A u t h o r i z a t i o n  N u m b e r  3 4 5 2  

Prepared for: 

The Richman Group of FL, Inc. 
477 S. Rosemary Avenue 
Suite 301 
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 

Job No. 21-173B 

Date:   February 11, 2022 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STATEMENT 
RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA 

Anna Lai, P.E., PTOE 
FL Reg. No. 78138 

Digitally signed by Anna Lai 
Date: 2022.02.11 11:42:08 
-05'00'



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

1.0 SITE DATA .......................................................................................................................... 2 

2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY ........................................................................................................ 2 

3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION ..................................................................................................... 3 

4.0 RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE ....................................................................... 3 

5.0 EXISTING TRAFFIC ............................................................................................................ 3 

6.0 TRIP DISTRIBUTION .......................................................................................................... 4 

7.0 TRAFFIC ASSIGNMENT/DISTRIBUTION TEST 1 – PART 2 ............................................ 4 

8.0 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS TEST 1 – PART 1 ................................................................. 4 

9.0 TEST 2 BUILD-OUT ANALYSIS ......................................................................................... 5 

10.0  SITE RELATED IMPROVEMENTS ..................................................................................... 5 

11.0  CONCLUSION ..................................................................................................................... 6 

 

APPENDICES 
 

TEST 1 PART 2: LINK ANALYSIS ............................................................. APPENDIX A 

PBC TPS DATABASE 2026 VOLUME SHEETS ........................................ APPENDIX B 

TEST 1 PART 1: INTERSECTION ANALYSIS ........................................... APPENDIX C 

TEST 2 ANALYSIS: LINK ANALYSIS  ....................................................... APPENDIX D 

 
 
  
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth  
Job No. 21-173B Page 2 
 

1.0 SITE DATA 
 

The subject parcel is located on the north side of 2nd Avenue North, east of Lake 
Worth Drainage District E-4 Canal in the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida and 
contains approximately 6.65 acres.  The Property Control Numbers (PCNs) for 
the subject parcel are 38-43-44-20-01-096-0020, 38-43-44-20-01-097-0010, and 
38-43-44-20-01-097-0020.  Proposed site development on the currently 
unimproved parcel consists of 195 multifamily dwelling units with a project build-
out of 2026.  Site access is proposed via an easterly ingress only driveway and a 
westerly egress only driveway to 2nd Avenue North.   

 
2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY 

 

This study will analyze the proposed development’s impact on the surrounding 
major thoroughfares within the project’s radius of development influence in 
accordance with the Palm Beach County Unified Land Development Code  
Article 12 – Traffic Performance Standards.  The Traffic Performance Standards 
state that a Site Specific Development Order for a proposed project shall meet 
the standards and guidelines outlined in two separate “Tests” with regard to 
traffic performance.  
 
Test 1, or the Build-Out Test, relates to the build-out period of the project and 
requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of development influence 
which would have total traffic exceeding the adopted LOS at the end of the build-
out period.  This Test 1 analysis consists of two parts and no project shall be 
approved for a Site Specific Development Order unless it can be shown to satisfy 
the requirements of Parts One and Two of Test 1.   
 
Part One – Intersections, requires the analysis of major intersections, within or 
beyond a project’s radius of development influence, where a project’s traffic is 
significant on a link within the radius of development influence.  The intersections 
analyzed shall operate within the applicable threshold associated with the level of 
analysis addressed.   
 
Part Two – Links, compares the total traffic in the peak hour, peak direction on 
each link within a project’s radius of development influence with the applicable 
LOS “D” link service volumes.  The links analyzed shall operate within the 
applicable thresholds associated with the level of analysis addressed.  
 
Test 2, or the Five Year Analysis, relates to the evaluation of project traffic five 
years in the future and requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of 
development influence which would result in total traffic exceeding the adopted 
LOS at the end of the Five Year Analysis period.   
 
This test requires analysis of links and major intersections as necessary within or 
beyond the radius of development influence, where a project’s traffic is significant 
on a link within the radius of development influence.   
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth  
Job No. 21-173B Page 3 
 

2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY (CONTINUED) 
 

This analysis shall address the total traffic anticipated to be in place at the end of 
the build out year.  This study will verify that the proposed development’s traffic 
impact will meet the above Traffic Performance Standards.  

 
3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION 

 
Trip generation has been calculated in accordance with the ITE Trip Generation 
Manual, 10th Edition and the Palm Beach County Trip Generation Rates.  Table 1 
shows the daily traffic generation associated with the proposed development in 
trips per day (TPD).  Tables 2 and 3 show the AM and PM peak hour traffic 
generation, respectively, in peak hour trips (pht).  The net traffic to be generated 
by 195 multifamily dwelling units may be summarized by as follows: 

 
Proposed Development 
 
Daily Traffic Generation    =  1,061 tpd 
AM Peak Hour Traffic Generation (In/Out) =       70 pht (18 In/52 Out) 
PM Peak Hour Traffic Generation (In/Out) =       86 pht (52 In/34 Out) 

 
4.0 RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE 

 
Based on Table 12.B.2.D-7 3A of the Palm Beach County Unified Land 
Development Code Article 12 – Traffic Performance Standards, for a net trip 
generation of 86 peak hour trips, the development of influence shall be a one (1) 
mile radius. 
 
For Test 1, a project must address those links within the radius of development 
influence on which its net trips are greater than 1% of the LOS “D” of the link 
affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis AND those links outside of the 
Radius of development influence on which its net trips are greater than five 
percent of the LOS “D” of the link affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis 
up to the limits set forth in Table 12.B.2.C-1 1A: LOS “D” Link Service Volumes.  
 
For Test 2, a project must address those links within the radius of development 
influence on which its net trips are greater than 3% of the LOS “E” of the link 
affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis AND those links outside of the 
radius of development influence on which its net trips are greater than five 
percent of the LOS “E” of the link affected on a peak hour, peak direction basis 
up to the limits set forth in Table 12.B.2.C-4 2A: LOS “E” Link Service Volumes.   
 

5.0 EXISTING TRAFFIC 
 

Existing AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes for the links within the project’s 
radius of development influence were available from the Palm Beach County 
Engineering Traffic Division.  Background traffic data from the Palm Beach 
County Engineering Traffic Division consisting of historical growth rates, major 
project traffic, and anticipated development in the area was also considered.  
Table 4 presents the area wide growth rate calculations. 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth  
Job No. 21-173B Page 4 
 

6.0 TRIP DISTRIBUTION 
 

The project trips were distributed and assigned on the links within the radius of 
development influence based on the existing and anticipated traffic patterns.  
Figure 1 presents the trip distribution percentages. 
 

7.0 TRAFFIC ASSIGNMENT/DISTRIBUTION TEST 1 – PART 2 
 

Tables 5 and 6 (in Appendix A) show the project’s AM and PM peak hour trip 
assignment, respectively, as well as the applicable Level of Service Standard for 
each of the links within the project’s radius of development influence.  Links with 
a project assignment greater than 1% of the applicable Level of Service “D” have 
been outlined as links with significant project assignment.   
 
Tables 7 and 8 (in Appendix A) shows the projected total AM peak hour traffic 
volumes and threshold volumes for the links with significant project assignment 
within the project's radius of development influence.  For the links, the 2026 total 
traffic has been calculated using the higher value between the link historical 
growth rate and the combination of a 1.0% background growth rate and the 
approved committed development trips.   
 
A review of Tables 5-8 indicates this project meets Test 1 – Part 2 of the Palm 
Beach County Traffic Performance Standards on all links within the project's 
radius of development influence. 
 

8.0 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS TEST 1 – PART 1 
 

As a requirement of Part 1 of Test 1 of the Palm Beach County Traffic 
Performance Standards, all major intersections in each direction nearest to the 
point at which the project’s traffic enters each project accessed link, and where 
the project traffic entering or exiting the intersection from/to the project accessed 
link is significant, must be analyzed.  Therefore, the following intersections must 
be analyzed for the 2026 projected AM and PM peak hours: 
 

2nd Avenue North at Congress Avenue 
 

For each intersection, the 2026 total traffic has been calculated using the higher 
value between the background growth rate and the combination of a 1.0% 
background growth rate and the approved committed development trips.  The 
2026 build-out volume reports from the Palm Beach County Engineering Traffic 
Division TPS Database are included in Appendix B. 
 
Each intersection has been analyzed using the adjusted turning movement 
volumes in accordance with the methodology set forth in the Transportation 
Research Board Special Report 209, Planning Analysis.  The intersection 
analyses are included in Appendix C.  The analysis results show that the sum of 
the critical movements during the peak season, peak hours at project build-out is 
less than the adopted Level of Service volume of 1,400 vehicles per hours (vph) 
for the subject intersections. 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth  
Job No. 21-173B Page 5 
 

8.0 INTERSECTION ANALYSIS TEST 1 – PART 1 (CONTINUED) 
 

      CRITICAL SUM 
 INTERSECTION AM PM 
 
 2nd Avenue North at Congress Avenue 1,236 1,385 

 
9.0 TEST 2 BUILD-OUT ANALYSIS 
 

Test 2, or the Five Year Analysis, relates to the evaluation of project traffic five 
years in the future and requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of 
Development influence which would result in total traffic exceeding the adopted 
LOS at the end of the Five Year Analysis Period.   

 
Tables 9 and 10 (in Appendix D) show the project’s AM and PM peak hour trip 
assignment, respectively, as well as the applicable Level of Service Standard for 
each of the links within the project’s radius of development influence.  Links with 
a project assignment greater than 3% of the applicable Level of Service “E” have 
been outlined as links with significant project assignment.   
 
Tables 11 and 12 (in Appendix D) shows the projected total AM and PM peak 
hour traffic volumes and threshold volumes for the links with significant project 
assignment within the project's radius of development influence.   
 
A review of Tables 9-12 indicates this project meets Test 2 of the Palm Beach 
County Traffic Performance Standards on all links within the project's radius of 
development influence. 

 
10.0  SITE RELATED IMPROVEMENTS 

 
The AM and PM peak hour volumes at the project entrances for the overall 
development with no reduction for pass by credits are shown in Tables 2 and 3 
and may be summarized as follows: 
 
 DIRECTIONAL 
 DISTRIBUTION 
 (TRIPS IN/OUT) 
 
           AM =    18 / 52 
           PM =      52 / 34 

   
Figure 2 presents the AM and PM peak turning movement volume assignments 
at the project driveway based on the directional distributions.  As previously 
mentioned, site access is proposed via an easterly ingress only driveway and a 
westerly egress only driveway to 2nd Avenue North.  Based on the Palm Beach 
County Engineering Guidelines used in determining the need for turn lanes of 75 
right turns or 30 left turns in the peak hour, and on the low traffic volumes on 2nd 
Avenue North, additional turn lanes are not warranted or recommended. 

 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth  
Job No. 21-173B Page 6 
 

11.0  CONCLUSION 
 

The proposed development has been estimated to generate 1,061 trips per day, 
70 AM peak hour trips, and 86 PM peak hour trips at project build-out in 2026.  
Based on an analysis of existing and project traffic characteristics and 
distribution, as well as the existing and future roadway network geometry and 
traffic volumes, this overall project meets the Link/Build-Out Test and Five Year 
Analysis test as required by the Palm Beach County Traffic Performance 
Standards. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
AL:   x:\Documents\Traffic Drainage&Structural\tis.21173b



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

TABLE 1 - Daily Traffic Generation
ITE

Landuse Code Rate/Equation In Out % % Trips
Multifamily Mid-Rise Housing 3-10 

story (Apartment/Condo/TH)
221 195 Dwelling Units 5.44 0% 0

Grand Totals: 0.0% 0% 0

TABLE 2 - AM Peak Hour Traffic Generation
ITE

Landuse Code Rate/Equation In Out In Out Total % In Out Total In Out Total % Trips In Out Total
Multifamily Mid-Rise Housing 3-10 

story (Apartment/Condo/TH)
221 195 Dwelling Units 0.36 0.26 0.74 18 52 70 0.0% 0 0 0 18 52 70 0% 0 18 52 70

Grand Totals: 18 52 70 0.0% 0 0 0 18 52 70 0% 0 18 52 70

TABLE 3 - PM Peak Hour Traffic Generation
ITE

Landuse Code Rate/Equation In Out In Out Total % In Out Total In Out Total % Trips In Out Total
Multifamily Mid-Rise Housing 3-10 

story (Apartment/Condo/TH)
221 195 Dwelling Units 0.44 0.61 0.39 52 34 86 0.0% 0 0 0 52 34 86 0% 0 52 34 86

Grand Totals: 52 34 86 0.0% 0 0 0 52 34 86 0% 0 52 34 86

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

Dir Split Internalization Pass-by
Intensity Gross Trips Total External Trips Net Trips

1,061 0 1,061 1,061

1,061 0 1,061 1,061

Net Trips
Intensity

Dir Split Gross Trips Internalization External Trips Pass-by

Net Trips
Intensity

Dir Split Gross Trips Internalization External Trips Pass-by

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

2017 PEAK 2020 PEAK 
SEASON DAILY SEASON DAILY IND.

STATION ROADWAY FROM TO TRAFFIC TRAFFIC (%)

4677 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE 5,967 6,404 2.38%
4679 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE BOUTWELL ROAD 5,266 6,900 9.43%

4647** LAKE WORTH ROAD KIRK ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE 38,415 40,684 1.93%
4651** LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE BOUTWELL ROAD 23,415 26,619 4.37%

4604* CONGRESS AVENUE 10TH AVENUE N FRENCH AVENUE 39,628 46,689 5.62%
4620** CONGRESS AVENUE FRENCH AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 35,400 37,189 1.66%
4622** CONGRESS AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 6TH AVENUE S 35,712 39,282 3.23%

4676** BOUTWELL ROAD 10TH AVENUE N 2ND AVENUE NORTH 10,337 11,365 3.21%

∑ = 194,140 215,132 3.48%

3.5%

*   2016 and 2019 peak season daily traffic volumes were used for links where 2017 or 2020 volumes were unavailable.
**  2015 and 2018 peak season daily traffic volumes were used for links where 2016, 2017, 2019 or 2020 volumes were unavailable.

TABLE 4
AREA WIDE GROWTH RATE CALCULATION

AREA WIDE GROWTH RATE =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth 
Job No. 21-173B  

 
 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 

TEST 1 PART 2: LINK ANALYSIS 
 



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

18
52

AM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS D PROJECT PROJECT 
STATION ROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

4677 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE 5% 3 2 I 880 0.34% NO
4679 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE 60% 31 2 I 880 3.52% YES
4679 2ND AVENUE SITE BOUTWELL ROAD 40% 21 2 I 880 2.39% YES

4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD KIRK ROAD 2ND AVENUE 23% 12 6D II 2680 0.45% NO
4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE 19% 10 6D II 2680 0.37% NO
4651 LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE BOUTWELL ROAD 10% 5 4D II 1770 0.28% NO
N/A LAKE WORTH ROAD BOUTWELL ROAD A STREET 9% 5 4D II 1770 0.28% NO

4604 CONGRESS AVENUE 10TH AVENUE N FRENCH AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2680 0.45% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE FRENCH AVENUE 2ND AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2680 0.45% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 30% 16 6D II 2680 0.60% NO
4622 CONGRESS AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 6TH AVENUE S 10% 5 6D II 2680 0.19% NO

4676 BOUTWELL ROAD 10TH AVENUE N 2ND AVENUE NORTH 30% 16 2 I 880 1.82% YES
N/A BOUTWELL ROAD 2ND AVENUE NORTH LAKE WORTH ROAD 10% 5 2 I 880 0.57% NO

TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 5
TEST 1 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

AM PEAK HOUR
2026 BUILD OUT
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

52
34

PM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS D PROJECT PROJECT 
STATION ROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

4677 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE 5% 3 2 I 880 0.34% NO
4679 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE 60% 31 2 I 880 3.52% YES
4679 2ND AVENUE SITE BOUTWELL ROAD 40% 21 2 I 880 2.39% YES

4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD KIRK ROAD 2ND AVENUE 23% 12 6D II 2680 0.45% NO
4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE 19% 10 6D II 2680 0.37% NO
4651 LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE BOUTWELL ROAD 10% 5 4D II 1770 0.28% NO
N/A LAKE WORTH ROAD BOUTWELL ROAD A STREET 9% 5 4D II 1770 0.28% NO

4604 CONGRESS AVENUE 10TH AVENUE N FRENCH AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2680 0.45% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE FRENCH AVENUE 2ND AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2680 0.45% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 30% 16 6D II 2680 0.60% NO
4622 CONGRESS AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 6TH AVENUE S 10% 5 6D II 2680 0.19% NO

4676 BOUTWELL ROAD 10TH AVENUE N 2ND AVENUE NORTH 30% 16 2 I 880 1.82% YES
N/A BOUTWELL ROAD 2ND AVENUE NORTH LAKE WORTH ROAD 10% 5 2 I 880 0.57% NO

TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 6
TEST 1 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

PM PEAK HOUR
2026 BUILD OUT
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

3.48%
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) = 18
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) = 52

AM PEAK TOTAL
TRAFFIC AM PEAK HOUR BACKGROUND 2026 MEETS
COUNT HOUR PROJECT PROJECT LINK MAJOR 1.0% TRAFFIC TOTAL ASSURED LOS

ROADWAY FROM TO DIRECTION YEAR TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION TRIPS GROWTH PROJECT GROWTH USED TRAFFIC LANES CLASS LOS D STD.

EB 2020 326 60% 11 74 12 20 74 411 2 I 880 YES
WB 2020 197 60% 31 45 24 12 45 273 2 I 880 YES
EB 2020 326 40% 21 74 12 20 74 421 2 I 880 YES
WB 2020 197 40% 7 45 24 12 45 249 2 I 880 YES

NB 2020 553 30% 16 126 60 34 126 695 2 I 880 YES
SB 2020 316 30% 5 72 64 19 83 404 2 I 880 YES

2ND AVENUE SITE BOUTWELL ROAD

BOUTWELL ROAD 10TH AVENUE N 2ND AVENUE NORTH

2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE

TABLE 7
AM PEAK HOUR - TEST 1

2026 BUILD OUT
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
AREA WIDE GROWTH RATE =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

3.48%
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) = 52
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) = 34

PM PEAK TOTAL
TRAFFIC PM PEAK HOUR BACKGROUND 2026 MEETS
COUNT HOUR PROJECT PROJECT LINK MAJOR 1.0% TRAFFIC TOTAL ASSURED LOS

ROADWAY FROM TO DIRECTION YEAR TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION TRIPS GROWTH PROJECT GROWTH USED TRAFFIC LANES CLASS LOS D STD.

EB 2020 320 60% 31 73 33 20 73 424 2 I 880 YES
WB 2020 391 60% 20 89 25 24 89 500 2 I 880 YES
EB 2020 320 40% 14 73 33 20 73 407 2 I 880 YES
WB 2020 391 40% 21 89 25 24 89 501 2 I 880 YES

NB 2020 397 30% 10 90 74 24 98 505 2 I 880 YES
SB 2020 549 30% 16 125 67 34 125 690 2 I 880 YESBOUTWELL ROAD 10TH AVENUE N 2ND AVENUE NORTH

TABLE 8
PM PEAK HOUR - TEST 1

2ND AVENUE SITE BOUTWELL ROAD

2026 BUILD OUT
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE

2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE

AREA WIDE GROWTH RATE =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth 
Job No. 21-173B  

 
 
 

APPENDIX B 
 
 

PBC TPS DATABASE  
2026 BUILD-OUT 

LINK & INTERSECTION VOLUME SHEETS 
(WITH APPROVED COMMITTED TRIPS) 



ROAD NAME: Report Created

CURRENT YEAR: 02/10/2022

ANALYSIS YEAR:

GROWTH RATE:

Time Period
Direction 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB

Existing Volume 522 326 197 675 320 391

Peak Volume 522 326 197 675 320 391

Diversion(%) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Volume after Diversion 522 326 197 675 320 391

Committed Developments Type % Complete

ADOPT A FAMILY 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Lake Worth Corners 15 3 12 32 18 13 Res 0%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 3 1 3 10 6 4 NR 75%

Lake Worth Middle School 6 3 3 2 1 1 NR 77.20%

Mavericks High School 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Race‐Trac 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Village at Lake Worth 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

McDonalds Congress Ave 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 81%

APEC Petroleum 1 1 1 1 1 1 NR 66%

Value Place Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

Kingswood Academy of Palm Springs 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

WAWA‐Lakeworth & Congress 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Boutwell Road Apartments 8 3 5 9 6 4 Res 0%

Golden Roads Apartments 1 0 1 1 1 1 Res 0%

Waterside Plaza 1 1 0 3 1 2 NR 75%

Fontana Townhomes 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 0%

2209 7th Ave N 2 2 0 2 1 1 NR 0%

Total Committed Developments 37 14 25 60 35 27

Total Committed Residential 24 6 18 42 25 18

Total Committed Non‐Residential 13 8 7 18 10 9

Double Count Reduction 3 2 1 4 2 2

Total Discounted Committed 

Developments 34 12 24 56 33 25

Historical Growth 374 234 141 484 229 280

Comm Dev+1% Growth 66 32 36 98 53 49

Growth Volume Used 374 234 141 484 229 280

Total Volume 896 560 338 1159 549 671

Lanes

LOS D Capacity 1480 880 880 1480 880 880

Link Meets Test 1? YES YES YES YES YES YES

LOS E Capacity 1570 880 880 1570 880 880

Link Meets Test 2? YES YES YES YES YES YES

Input Data

2nd Ave N STATION: 4679

2020 FROM: Congress Ave

2026 TO: MIDPOINT

9.43% COUNT DATE: 02/12/2020

2L

PSF: 1

Link Analysis

AM PM



A B C D E F G H I

ROAD NAME: Report Created

CURRENT YEAR: 02/10/2022

ANALYSIS YEAR:

GROWTH RATE:

Time Period
Direction 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB

Existing Volume 522 326 197 675 320 391

Peak Volume 522 326 197 675 320 391

Diversion(%) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Volume after Diversion 522 326 197 675 320 391

Committed Developments Type % Complete

ADOPT A FAMILY 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Lake Worth Corners 15 3 12 32 18 13 Res 0%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 3 1 3 10 6 4 NR 75%

Lake Worth Middle School 6 3 3 2 1 1 NR 77.20%

Mavericks High School 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Race‐Trac 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Village at Lake Worth 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

McDonalds Congress Ave 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 81%

APEC Petroleum 1 1 1 1 1 1 NR 66%

Value Place Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

Kingswood Academy of Palm Springs 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

WAWA‐Lakeworth & Congress 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Boutwell Road Apartments 8 3 5 9 6 4 Res 0%

Golden Roads Apartments 1 0 1 1 1 1 Res 0%

Waterside Plaza 1 1 0 3 1 2 NR 75%

Fontana Townhomes 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 0%

2209 7th Ave N 2 2 0 2 1 1 NR 0%

Total Committed Developments 37 14 25 60 35 27

Total Committed Residential 24 6 18 42 25 18

Total Committed Non‐Residential 13 8 7 18 10 9

Double Count Reduction 3 2 1 4 2 2

Total Discounted Committed 

Developments 34 12 24 56 33 25

Historical Growth 374 234 141 484 229 280

Comm Dev+1% Growth 66 32 36 98 53 49

Growth Volume Used 374 234 141 484 229 280

Total Volume 896 560 338 1159 549 671

Lanes

LOS D Capacity 1480 880 880 1480 880 880

Link Meets Test 1? YES YES YES YES YES YES

LOS E Capacity 1570 880 880 1570 880 880

Link Meets Test 2? YES YES YES YES YES YES

Input Data

2nd Ave N STATION: 4679

2020 FROM: MIDPOINT

2026 TO: Boutwell Rd

9.43% COUNT DATE: 02/12/2020

PSF: 1

Link Analysis

AM PM

2L



ROAD NAME: Report Created

CURRENT YEAR: 02/10/2022

ANALYSIS YEAR:

GROWTH RATE:

Time Period
Direction 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB

Existing Volume 869 553 316 925 397 549

Peak Volume 869 553 316 925 397 549

Diversion(%) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Volume after Diversion 869 553 316 925 397 549

Committed Developments Type % Complete

Lake Worth Corners 29 6 23 63 36 27 Res 0%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 0 0 0 1 1 0 NR 75%

Lake Worth Middle School 29 16 13 8 4 4 NR 77.20%

Mid‐County Center 1 0 1 1 1 0 NR 49%

Race‐Trac 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Village at Lake Worth 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

APEC Petroleum 2 1 1 2 1 1 NR 66%

Value Place Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

Waterville 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

WAWA‐Lakeworth & Congress 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Boutwell Road Apartments 15 10 5 18 7 11 Res 0%

Golden Roads Apartments 6 1 5 7 5 3 Res 0%

Banyan Court 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

Waterside Plaza 2 1 1 7 4 4 NR 75%

7‐Eleven ‐ 1900 10th Ave 17 9 8 15 8 8 NR 10%

3322 Boutwell Road 8 6 2 7 2 4 Res 0%

2209 7th Ave N 20 16 4 15 5 10 NR 0%

Total Committed Developments 129 66 63 144 74 72

Total Committed Residential 58 23 35 95 50 45

Total Committed Non‐Residential 71 43 28 49 24 27

Double Count Reduction 14 6 6 10 5 5

Total Discounted Committed 

Developments 115 60 57 134 69 67

Historical Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0

Comm Dev+1% Growth 168 94 76 191 93 101

Growth Volume Used 168 94 76 191 93 101

Total Volume 1037 647 392 1116 490 650

Lanes

LOS D Capacity 1480 880 880 1480 880 880

Link Meets Test 1? YES YES YES YES YES YES

LOS E Capacity 1570 880 880 1570 880 880

Link Meets Test 2? YES YES YES YES YES YES

Input Data

Boutwell Rd STATION: 4676

2020 FROM: Midpoint

2026 TO: 10th Ave N

0% COUNT DATE: 02/24/2020

2L

PSF: 1

Link Analysis

AM PM



A B C D E F G H I

ROAD NAME: Report Created

CURRENT YEAR: 02/10/2022

ANALYSIS YEAR:

GROWTH RATE:

Time Period
Direction 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB 2‐way NB/EB SB/WB

Existing Volume 869 553 316 925 397 549

Peak Volume 869 553 316 925 397 549

Diversion(%) 0 0 0 0 0 0

Volume after Diversion 869 553 316 925 397 549

Committed Developments Type % Complete

Lake Worth Corners 29 6 23 63 36 27 Res 0%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 0 0 0 1 1 0 NR 75%

Lake Worth Middle School 29 16 13 8 4 4 NR 77.20%

Mid‐County Center 1 0 1 1 1 0 NR 49%

Race‐Trac 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Village at Lake Worth 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

APEC Petroleum 2 1 1 2 1 1 NR 66%

Value Place Hotel 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

Waterville 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

WAWA‐Lakeworth & Congress 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 100%

Boutwell Road Apartments 15 5 10 18 11 7 Res 0%

Golden Roads Apartments 6 1 5 7 5 3 Res 0%

Banyan Court 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 100%

Waterside Plaza 2 1 1 7 4 4 NR 75%

7‐Eleven ‐ 1900 10th Ave 17 9 8 15 8 8 NR 10%

3322 Boutwell Road 5 1 4 4 3 2 Res 0%

2209 7th Ave N 20 16 4 15 5 10 NR 0%

Total Committed Developments 126 56 70 141 79 66

Total Committed Residential 55 13 42 92 55 39

Total Committed Non‐Residential 71 43 28 49 24 27

Double Count Reduction 14 3 6 10 5 5

Total Discounted Committed 

Developments 112 53 64 131 74 61

Historical Growth 0 0 0 0 0 0

Comm Dev+1% Growth 165 87 83 188 98 95

Growth Volume Used 165 87 83 188 98 95

Total Volume 1034 640 399 1113 495 644

Lanes

LOS D Capacity 1480 880 880 1480 880 880

Link Meets Test 1? YES YES YES YES YES YES

LOS E Capacity 1570 880 880 1570 880 880

Link Meets Test 2? YES YES YES YES YES YES

Input Data

Boutwell Rd STATION: 4676

2020 FROM: 2nd Ave N

2026 TO: Midpoint

0% COUNT DATE: 02/24/2020

PSF: 1

Link Analysis

AM PM

2L



MODIFIED

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

E‐W Street: Report Created

N‐S STREET: 02/10/2022

TIME PERIOD:

GROWTH RATE:

SIGNAL ID:

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right

Existing Volume 99 101 110 44 53 153 40 1206 29 221 1332 90

Diversions 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Peak Season Volume 101 103 112 45 54 156 41 1230 30 225 1359 92

Committed Developments Type % Complete

WAWA ‐ SEC 10th and Military Trail 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 20%

McDonalds Congress Ave 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6 0 NR 81%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 70%

Lake Worth Middle School 3 3 0 3 3 0 0 8 3 0 7 3 NR 77.20%

Boutwell Road Apartments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 0%

APEC Petroleum 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 66%

Lantana Airport SDA1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 69 0 NR 0%

Lake Worth Corners 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 2 3 0 9 0 Res 0%

Waterside Plaza 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 75%

Mid‐County Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 49%

Lantana Airport SDA2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 0%

Walmart‐Palm Springs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 75%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 75%

Golden Roads Apartments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 0%

Total Committed Developments 3 3 0 15 3 0 0 34 6 0 91 3

Total Committed Residential 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 2 3 0 9 0

Total Committed Non‐Residential 3 3 0 3 3 0 0 32 3 0 82 3

Double Count Reduction 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 2 0

Total Discounted Committed 3 3 0 14 3 0 0 33 5 0 89 3

Historical Growth 42 43 47 19 22 65 17 511 12 94 565 38

Comm Dev+1% Growth 10 10 8 17 7 11 3 122 7 16 187 10

Growth Volume Used 42 43 47 19 22 65 17 511 12 94 565 38

Total Volume 143 146 159 64 76 221 58 1741 42 319 1924 130

E‐W Street: Report Created

N‐S STREET: 02/10/2022

TIME PERIOD:

GROWTH RATE:

SIGNAL ID:

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right

Existing Volume 85 59 80 53 113 199 90 1514 57 178 1537 165

Diversions 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Peak Season Volume 87 60 82 54 115 203 92 1544 58 182 1568 168

Committed Developments Type % Complete

WAWA ‐ SEC 10th and Military Trail 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 20%

McDonalds Congress Ave 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 81%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 70%

Lake Worth Middle School 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 77.20%

Boutwell Road Apartments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 0%

APEC Petroleum 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 66%

Lantana Airport SDA1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 67 0 0 25 0 NR 0%

Lake Worth Corners 0 0 0 13 0 0 0 15 18 0 11 0 Res 0%

Waterside Plaza 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 11 2 0 11 0 NR 75%

Mid‐County Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 49%

Lantana Airport SDA2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 0%

Walmart‐Palm Springs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 16 0 NR 75%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NR 75%

Golden Roads Apartments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Res 0%

Total Committed Developments 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 108 20 0 63 0

Total Committed Residential 0 0 0 13 0 0 0 15 18 0 11 0

Total Committed Non‐Residential 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 93 2 0 52 0

Double Count Reduction 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 3 0

Total Discounted Committed 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 104 20 0 60 0

Historical Growth 36 25 34 22 48 84 38 642 24 76 652 70

Comm Dev+1% Growth 6 4 6 19 8 15 7 215 24 13 173 12

Growth Volume Used 36 25 34 22 48 84 38 642 24 76 652 70

Total Volume 123 85 116 76 163 287 130 2186 82 258 2220 238

Note: Removed insignificant trips.

36800

Intersection Volume Development

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

PM ANALYSIS YEAR: 2026

5.09% PSF: 1.02

Input Data

2nd Ave N COUNT DATE: 05/01/2019

Congress Ave CURRENT YEAR: 2019

36800

Intersection Volume Development

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

AM ANALYSIS YEAR: 2026

5.09% PSF: 1.02

Input Data

2nd Ave N COUNT DATE: 05/01/2019

Congress Ave CURRENT YEAR: 2019



ORIGINAL

A B C D E F G H I J K L M N O

E‐W Street: Report Created

N‐S STREET: 02/10/2022

TIME PERIOD:

GROWTH RATE:

SIGNAL ID:

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right

Existing Volume 99 101 110 44 53 153 40 1206 29 221 1332 90

Diversions 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Peak Season Volume 101 103 112 45 54 156 41 1230 30 225 1359 92

Committed Developments Type % Complete

WAWA ‐ SEC 10th and Military Trail 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 6 0 NR 20%

McDonalds Congress Ave 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6 0 NR 81%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 0 Res 70%

Lake Worth Middle School 3 3 0 3 3 0 0 8 3 0 7 3 NR 77.20%

Boutwell Road Apartments 3 3 0 5 5 0 0 5 3 0 10 5 Res 0%

APEC Petroleum 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 1 5 1 NR 66%

Lantana Airport SDA1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18 0 0 69 0 NR 0%

Lake Worth Corners 0 0 0 12 0 0 0 2 3 0 9 0 Res 0%

Waterside Plaza 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 4 1 0 3 0 NR 75%

Mid‐County Center 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 7 1 NR 49%

Lantana Airport SDA2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 13 0 NR 0%

Walmart‐Palm Springs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 3 0 NR 75%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 1 NR 75%

Golden Roads Apartments 0 0 0 1 1 0 0 2 0 0 9 1 Res 0%

Total Committed Developments 7 6 0 23 10 3 0 70 10 1 148 12

Total Committed Residential 3 3 0 18 6 2 0 11 6 0 28 6

Total Committed Non‐Residential 4 3 0 5 4 1 0 59 4 1 120 6

Double Count Reduction 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 3 1 0 7 1

Total Discounted Committed 6 5 0 22 9 3 0 67 9 1 141 11

Historical Growth 42 43 47 19 22 65 17 511 12 94 565 38

Comm Dev+1% Growth 13 12 8 25 13 14 3 156 11 17 239 18

Growth Volume Used 42 43 47 25 22 65 17 511 12 94 565 38

Total Volume 143 146 159 70 76 221 58 1741 42 319 1924 130

E‐W Street: Report Created

N‐S STREET: 02/10/2022

TIME PERIOD:

GROWTH RATE:

SIGNAL ID:

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right

Existing Volume 85 59 80 53 113 199 90 1514 57 178 1537 165

Diversions 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Peak Season Volume 87 60 82 54 115 203 92 1544 58 182 1568 168

Committed Developments Type % Complete

WAWA ‐ SEC 10th and Military Trail 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6 0 NR 20%

McDonalds Congress Ave 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 0 0 4 0 NR 81%

The Villages II at Lake Osborne 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 2 0 Res 70%

Lake Worth Middle School 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 2 1 0 2 1 NR 77.20%

Boutwell Road Apartments 6 6 0 4 4 0 0 11 6 0 7 4 Res 0%

APEC Petroleum 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 5 0 1 5 1 NR 66%

Lantana Airport SDA1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 67 0 0 25 0 NR 0%

Lake Worth Corners 0 0 0 13 0 0 0 15 18 0 11 0 Res 0%

Waterside Plaza 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 11 2 0 11 0 NR 75%

Mid‐County Center 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 7 0 0 4 0 NR 49%

Lantana Airport SDA2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16 0 0 5 0 NR 0%

Walmart‐Palm Springs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15 0 0 16 0 NR 75%

Palm Springs Park of Commerce 2 2 0 1 1 0 0 2 2 0 1 1 NR 75%

Golden Roads Apartments 1 1 0 1 1 0 0 9 1 0 5 1 Res 0%

Total Committed Developments 12 10 0 22 7 2 0 171 30 3 104 8

Total Committed Residential 7 7 0 18 5 1 0 36 25 2 25 5

Total Committed Non‐Residential 5 3 0 4 2 1 0 135 5 1 79 3

Double Count Reduction 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 9 1 0 6 1

Total Discounted Committed 11 9 0 21 7 2 0 162 29 3 98 7

Historical Growth 36 25 34 22 48 84 38 642 24 76 652 70

Comm Dev+1% Growth 17 13 6 25 15 17 7 273 33 16 211 19

Growth Volume Used 36 25 34 25 48 84 38 642 33 76 652 70

Total Volume 123 85 116 79 163 287 130 2186 91 258 2220 238

Input Data

2nd Ave N COUNT DATE: 05/01/2019

Congress Ave CURRENT YEAR: 2019

AM ANALYSIS YEAR: 2026

5.09% PSF: 1.02

36800

Intersection Volume Development

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound

Input Data

2nd Ave N COUNT DATE: 05/01/2019

Congress Ave CURRENT YEAR: 2019

PM ANALYSIS YEAR: 2026

5.09% PSF: 1.02

36800

Intersection Volume Development

Eastbound Westbound Northbound Southbound



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth 
Job No. 21-173B  

 
 
 

APPENDIX C 
 
 

TEST 1 PART 1: INTERSECTION ANALYSIS 



02/09/22

IN OUT

AM 18 52

PM 52 34

Comments:

Area Wide Growth Rate = 3.48% 1.02 2019 2026

0 0 12

0 0 4

IN

0% 0% 24% 24% OUT 12 8
Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right 5% OUT 3 2

Existing Volume (2019) 40 1206 29 221 1332 90 99 101 110 44 53 153 30% OUT 16 10
Peak Season Adjustment 1 24 1 4 27 2 2 2 2 1 1 3

Background Traffic Growth 11 333 8 61 368 25 27 28 30 12 15 42 960
1.0% Background Growth 3 89 2 16 98 7 7 7 8 3 4 11 409 0 0 0%

Major Projects Traffic 0 33 5 0 89 3 3 3 0 14 3 0 3 1 IN 5%
1% BGR + Major Projects 3 122 7 16 187 10 10 10 8 17 7 11 0 0 0% 0% 0% 30%
Project Traffic 0 0 5 4 0 0 0 1 0 16 3 12 IN
Total 44 1352 42 246 1546 101 111 114 120 78 64 179 0 0 5
Approach Total 0 0 16

No. of Lanes 1 3 < 1 3 < 1 1 < > 1 <

Per Lane Volume 44 246 111
Right on Red 10 10 10 10
Overlaps Left 321 111 44 246
Adj. Per Lane Volume 44 246 111
Through/Right Volume
Opposing Left Turns
Critical Volume for Approach
Critical Volume for Direction

Intersection Critical Volume
STATUS?

Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right Left Thru Right
Existing Volume (2019) 90 1514 57 178 1537 165 85 59 80 53 113 199
Peak Season Adjustment 2 30 1 4 31 3 2 1 2 1 2 4

Background Traffic Growth 25 418 16 49 424 46 23 16 22 15 31 55 1,140
1.0% Background Growth 7 111 4 13 113 12 6 4 6 4 8 15 503

Major Projects Traffic 0 104 20 0 60 0 0 0 0 15 0 0
1% BGR + Major Projects 7 215 24 13 173 12 6 4 6 19 8 15
Project Traffic 0 0 16 12 0 0 0 3 0 10 2 8

Total 98 1760 98 207 1741 180 93 68 87 83 126 226
Approach Total

No. of Lanes 1 3 < 1 3 < 1 1 < > 1 <
Per Lane Volume 98 207 93
Right on Red 10 10 10 10
Overlaps Left 434 93 98 207
Adj. Per Lane Volume 98 207 93
Through/Right Volume
Opposing Left Turns
Critical Volume for Approach
Critical Volume for Direction

Intersection Critical Volume
STATUS?

155 434

609 145 424

455

235

225

321

311

Peak Season = Current Year = Buildout Year = 

CMA INTERSECTION ANALYSIS TRIPS

RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH
2ND AVENUE N AT CONGRESS AVENUE

INPUT DATA

AM Peak Hour

INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT
Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

246 44 311 111

1,437 1,893 346 321

CRITICAL VOLUME ANALYSIS

549

539
455 539 225 0

465

700 583 536 111
700 536

1,236
NEAR

PM Peak Hour
INTERSECTION VOLUME DEVELOPMENT

Northbound Southbound Eastbound Westbound

207 98 424 93

1,956 2,128 248 434
CRITICAL VOLUME ANALYSIS

640

630
609 630 145 0

619

1,385
NEAR

816 729 569 93
816 569

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



E-W STREET DATE TIME SBL SBT SBR WBL WBT WBRNBL NBT NBR EBL EBT EBR TOTALWBUEBUSBUNBUSIGNAL ID N-S STREET

15th St/LA Kirksey 12/20/2017 7:30 AM 31 259 91 31 58 9531 261 53 52 133 36 1131000025500 Tamarind Ave

15th St/LA Kirksey 12/20/2017 4:45 PM 19 243 83 27 133 2825 274 30 58 64 36 1020000025500 Tamarind Ave

20th St 5/20/2020 7:45 AM 5 673 10 0 0 313 516 2 8 0 6 1239003020500 US-1/Broadway

20th St 5/20/2020 4:45 PM 2 670 15 3 0 619 793 4 17 0 13 1545002120500 US-1/Broadway

25th St 1/31/2019 7:30 AM 163 885 0 246 0 1140 952 253 0 0 0 2614000124600 Australian Ave

25th St 1/31/2019 12:45 PM 91 363 0 168 0 910 454 151 0 0 0 1320002024600 Australian Ave

25th St 1/31/2019 4:45 PM 171 776 0 320 0 1440 880 240 0 0 0 2536005024600 Australian Ave

25th St 9/7/2016 7:30 AM 169 786 0 230 0 1480 786 297 0 0 0 2423004324600 Australian Ave

25th St 9/7/2016 12:45 PM 104 490 0 216 0 1370 489 216 1 0 0 1659006024600 Australian Ave

25th St 9/7/2016 4:45 PM 155 886 0 281 0 1810 754 253 0 0 1 2517006024600 Australian Ave

25th St 2/21/2019 7:30 AM 286 405 177 2 28 1736 138 9 79 74 24 1401000024670 US-1/Broadway

25th St 2/21/2019 12:00 PM 180 312 108 12 64 18510 148 6 74 44 19 1162000024670 US-1/Broadway

25th St 2/21/2019 4:30 PM 232 352 213 10 70 31321 372 11 81 39 12 1726000024670 US-1/Broadway

25th St 9/8/2016 7:30 AM 373 470 166 3 38 20314 132 3 75 66 18 1561000024670 US-1/Broadway

25th St 9/8/2016 11:30 AM 170 263 88 10 36 21911 143 7 66 60 22 1096001024670 US-1/Broadway

25th St 9/8/2016 4:30 PM 178 282 186 6 44 37313 305 6 66 28 17 1504000024670 US-1/Broadway

2nd Ave N 5/1/2019 7:00 AM 203 1332 90 44 53 15332 1206 29 99 101 110 34780018836800 Congress Ave

2nd Ave N 5/1/2019 12:00 PM 111 1165 91 42 26 13534 1139 34 73 39 60 301300372736800 Congress Ave

2nd Ave N 5/1/2019 4:45 PM 153 1537 165 53 113 19969 1514 57 85 59 80 413000252136800 Congress Ave

2nd Ave N 4/1/2021 7:45 AM 43 533 17 20 4 162 365 41 23 19 8 1094000336925 US-1 DIXIE HWY

2nd Ave N 4/1/2021 11:30 AM 65 709 28 45 11 2221 610 91 27 32 19 1687000736925 US-1 DIXIE HWY

2nd Ave N 4/1/2021 4:45 PM 80 849 34 53 6 3020 698 132 32 26 25 1986000136925 US-1 DIXIE HWY

2nd Ave N 9/19/2018 7:30 AM 38 625 27 28 1 62 449 38 28 21 7 1272000236925 US-1 DIXIE HWY

2nd Ave N 9/19/2018 1:00 PM 81 670 22 49 1 313 625 41 20 27 8 1578000036925 US-1 DIXIE HWY

2nd Ave N 9/19/2018 4:45 PM 57 836 28 52 1 210 802 126 24 35 14 1996000036925 US-1 DIXIE HWY

2nd Ave N 5/3/2018 7:30 AM 31 341 0 0 0 00 356 7 47 16 25 823000036950 US-1 FEDEREAL HWY

2nd Ave N 5/3/2018 4:30 PM 31 352 0 0 0 00 425 10 38 29 73 958000036950 US-1 FEDEREAL HWY

36th St 10/18/2017 7:15 AM 144 880 0 170 0 2280 869 46 0 0 0 2342004123800 Australian Ave

36th St 10/18/2017 12:00 PM 147 583 0 64 0 1390 526 63 0 0 0 1524001123800 Australian Ave

36th St 10/18/2017 4:45 PM 235 1187 0 147 0 1980 968 121 0 0 0 2857001023800 Australian Ave

36th St 5/20/2019 7:30 AM 113 980 16 26 35 15614 539 39 23 12 19 1972000023815 US-1/Broadway

36th St 5/20/2019 12:15 PM 46 566 16 17 6 8712 500 9 24 6 9 1298000023815 US-1/Broadway

36th St 5/20/2019 4:45 PM 72 900 37 24 18 14324 826 10 38 10 13 2115000023815 US-1/Broadway

3rd St 10/23/2019 7:05 AM 5 172 116 10 39 234 394 33 109 84 12 1010000026915 N Quadrille Bl

3rd St 10/23/2019 11:45 AM 3 289 195 15 54 232 345 47 47 30 21 1080000026915 N Quadrille Bl

3rd St 10/23/2019 4:30 PM 3 414 486 18 78 725 408 10 75 25 24 1573000026915 N Quadrille Bl

Monday, June 7, 2021 Page 5 of 130

Anna
Highlight

Anna
Highlight



 2019 PEAK SEASON FACTOR CATEGORY REPORT - REPORT TYPE: ALL
CATEGORY: 9301  CEN.-W OF US1 TO SR7     
                                                MOCF: 0.97
WEEK          DATES               SF            PSCF
================================================================================
  1    01/01/2019 - 01/05/2019    1.00          1.03
  2    01/06/2019 - 01/12/2019    1.00          1.03
  3    01/13/2019 - 01/19/2019    1.00          1.03
  4    01/20/2019 - 01/26/2019    0.99          1.02
* 5    01/27/2019 - 02/02/2019    0.98          1.01
* 6    02/03/2019 - 02/09/2019    0.97          1.00
* 7    02/10/2019 - 02/16/2019    0.96          0.99
* 8    02/17/2019 - 02/23/2019    0.96          0.99
* 9    02/24/2019 - 03/02/2019    0.96          0.99
*10    03/03/2019 - 03/09/2019    0.96          0.99
*11    03/10/2019 - 03/16/2019    0.96          0.99
*12    03/17/2019 - 03/23/2019    0.96          0.99
*13    03/24/2019 - 03/30/2019    0.96          0.99
*14    03/31/2019 - 04/06/2019    0.97          1.00
*15    04/07/2019 - 04/13/2019    0.97          1.00
*16    04/14/2019 - 04/20/2019    0.97          1.00
*17    04/21/2019 - 04/27/2019    0.98          1.01
 18    04/28/2019 - 05/04/2019    0.99          1.02
 19    05/05/2019 - 05/11/2019    0.99          1.02
 20    05/12/2019 - 05/18/2019    1.00          1.03
 21    05/19/2019 - 05/25/2019    1.01          1.04
 22    05/26/2019 - 06/01/2019    1.02          1.05
 23    06/02/2019 - 06/08/2019    1.02          1.05
 24    06/09/2019 - 06/15/2019    1.03          1.06
 25    06/16/2019 - 06/22/2019    1.04          1.07
 26    06/23/2019 - 06/29/2019    1.04          1.07
 27    06/30/2019 - 07/06/2019    1.05          1.08
 28    07/07/2019 - 07/13/2019    1.05          1.08
 29    07/14/2019 - 07/20/2019    1.06          1.09
 30    07/21/2019 - 07/27/2019    1.05          1.08
 31    07/28/2019 - 08/03/2019    1.04          1.07
 32    08/04/2019 - 08/10/2019    1.03          1.06
 33    08/11/2019 - 08/17/2019    1.03          1.06
 34    08/18/2019 - 08/24/2019    1.03          1.06
 35    08/25/2019 - 08/31/2019    1.04          1.07
 36    09/01/2019 - 09/07/2019    1.05          1.08
 37    09/08/2019 - 09/14/2019    1.05          1.08
 38    09/15/2019 - 09/21/2019    1.06          1.09
 39    09/22/2019 - 09/28/2019    1.05          1.08
 40    09/29/2019 - 10/05/2019    1.03          1.06
 41    10/06/2019 - 10/12/2019    1.02          1.05
 42    10/13/2019 - 10/19/2019    1.00          1.03
 43    10/20/2019 - 10/26/2019    1.00          1.03
 44    10/27/2019 - 11/02/2019    1.00          1.03
 45    11/03/2019 - 11/09/2019    1.00          1.03
 46    11/10/2019 - 11/16/2019    1.00          1.03
 47    11/17/2019 - 11/23/2019    1.00          1.03
 48    11/24/2019 - 11/30/2019    1.00          1.03
 49    12/01/2019 - 12/07/2019    1.00          1.03
 50    12/08/2019 - 12/14/2019    1.00          1.03
 51    12/15/2019 - 12/21/2019    1.00          1.03
 52    12/22/2019 - 12/28/2019    1.00          1.03
 53    12/29/2019 - 12/31/2019    1.00          1.03

* PEAK SEASON

14-FEB-2020 15:39:27                        830UPD             4_9301_PKSEASON.TXT

Anna
Highlight

Anna
Highlight



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Residences at Lake Worth 
Job No. 21-173B  

 
 
 

APPENDIX D 
 
 

TEST 2 ANALYSIS: LINK ANALYSIS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

18
52

AM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS E PROJECT PROJECT 
STATION ROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

4677 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE 5% 3 2 I 880 0.34% NO
4679 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE 60% 31 2 I 880 3.52% YES
4679 2ND AVENUE SITE BOUTWELL ROAD 40% 21 2 I 880 2.39% NO

4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD KIRK ROAD 2ND AVENUE 23% 12 6D II 2830 0.42% NO
4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE 19% 10 6D II 2830 0.35% NO
4651 LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE BOUTWELL ROAD 10% 5 4D II 1870 0.27% NO
N/A LAKE WORTH ROAD BOUTWELL ROAD A STREET 9% 5 4D II 1870 0.27% NO

4604 CONGRESS AVENUE 10TH AVENUE N FRENCH AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2830 0.42% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE FRENCH AVENUE 2ND AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2830 0.42% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 30% 16 6D II 2830 0.57% NO
4622 CONGRESS AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 6TH AVENUE S 10% 5 6D II 2830 0.18% NO

4676 BOUTWELL ROAD 10TH AVENUE N 2ND AVENUE NORTH 30% 16 2 I 880 1.82% NO
N/A BOUTWELL ROAD 2ND AVENUE NORTH LAKE WORTH ROAD 10% 5 2 I 880 0.57% NO

TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 9
TEST 2 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

AM PEAK HOUR
TEST 2 - FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

52
34

PM PEAK HOUR
DIRECTIONAL TOTAL

PROJECT PROJECT EXISTING LOS E PROJECT PROJECT 
STATION ROADWAY FROM TO DISTRIBUTION TRIPS LANES CLASS STANDARD IMPACT SIGNIFICANT

4677 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE 5% 3 2 I 880 0.34% NO
4679 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE 60% 31 2 I 880 3.52% YES
4679 2ND AVENUE SITE BOUTWELL ROAD 40% 21 2 I 880 2.39% NO

4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD KIRK ROAD 2ND AVENUE 23% 12 6D II 2830 0.42% NO
4647 LAKE WORTH ROAD 2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE 19% 10 6D II 2830 0.35% NO
4651 LAKE WORTH ROAD CONGRESS AVENUE BOUTWELL ROAD 10% 5 4D II 1870 0.27% NO
N/A LAKE WORTH ROAD BOUTWELL ROAD A STREET 9% 5 4D II 1870 0.27% NO

4604 CONGRESS AVENUE 10TH AVENUE N FRENCH AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2830 0.42% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE FRENCH AVENUE 2ND AVENUE 24% 12 6D II 2830 0.42% NO
4620 CONGRESS AVENUE 2ND AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 30% 16 6D II 2830 0.57% NO
4622 CONGRESS AVENUE LAKE WORTH AVENUE 6TH AVENUE S 10% 5 6D II 2830 0.18% NO

4676 BOUTWELL ROAD 10TH AVENUE N 2ND AVENUE NORTH 30% 16 2 I 880 1.82% NO
N/A BOUTWELL ROAD 2ND AVENUE NORTH LAKE WORTH ROAD 10% 5 2 I 880 0.57% NO

TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) =

TABLE 10
TEST 2 - PROJECT SIGNIFICANCE CALCULATION

PM PEAK HOUR
TEST 2 - FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

3.48%
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) = 18
TOTAL AM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) = 52

AM PEAK TOTAL
TRAFFIC AM PEAK HOUR BACKGROUND 2026 MEETS
COUNT HOUR PROJECT PROJECT LINK MAJOR 1.0% TRAFFIC TOTAL ASSURED LOS

ROADWAY FROM TO DIRECTION YEAR TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION TRIPS GROWTH PROJECT GROWTH USED TRAFFIC LANES CLASS LOS E STD.

EB 2020 326 60% 11 74 12 20 74 411 2 I 880 YES
WB 2020 197 60% 31 45 24 12 45 273 2 I 880 YES2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE

TABLE 11
AM PEAK HOUR - TEST 2

TEST 2 - FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
AREA WIDE GROWTH RATE =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL



RESIDENCES AT LAKE WORTH 02/09/22

3.48%
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (ENTERING) = 52
TOTAL PM PEAK HOUR PROJECT TRIPS (EXITING) = 34

PM PEAK TOTAL
TRAFFIC PM PEAK HOUR BACKGROUND 2026 MEETS
COUNT HOUR PROJECT PROJECT LINK MAJOR 1.0% TRAFFIC TOTAL ASSURED LOS

ROADWAY FROM TO DIRECTION YEAR TRAFFIC DISTRIBUTION TRIPS GROWTH PROJECT GROWTH USED TRAFFIC LANES CLASS LOS E STD.

EB 2020 320 60% 31 73 33 20 73 424 2 I 880 YES
WB 2020 391 60% 20 89 25 24 89 500 2 I 880 YES2ND AVENUE CONGRESS AVENUE SITE

TABLE 12
PM PEAK HOUR - TEST 2

TEST 2 - FIVE YEAR ANALYSIS
1 MILE RADIUS OF DEVELOPMENT INFLUENCE
AREA WIDE GROWTH RATE =

X:\Documents\PROJECTS\2021\21-173 Village of Valor\Traffic\Residences_Traffic Calcs.xlsx
AL







  THE SCHOOL DISTRICT OF   KRISTIN K. GARRISON  JOSEPH M. SANCHES, MBA 
  PALM BEACH COUNTY, FL   DIRECTOR    CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER 

 
  PLANNING AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL RELATIONS      

  3661 INTERSTATE PARK RD. N., STE 200      
  RIVIERA BEACH, FL. 33404 
 
  PHONE:  561-434-8020 / FAX:  561-357-1193 
  WWW.PALMBEACHSCHOOLS.ORG/PLANNING 

               
The School District of Palm Beach County, Florida 

A Top High-Performing A Rated School District 
An Equal Education Opportunity Provider and Employer 

 

 
 

SCHOOL CAPACITY AVAILABILITY DETERMINATION (SCAD) 
 

 

 

 

               October 11, 2022 
________________________________________  _______________________________________  
             School District Representative Signature                         Date   
 
 
                   Joyce C. Cai, Senior Planner     joyce.cai@palmbeachschools.org 
__________________________________________  _______________________________________ 
Print Name & Title of School District Representative                                Email Address 
 

 
CC:   Erin Sita, Assistant Director, City of Lake Worth Beach 
        Joyell Shaw, PIR Manager, School District of Palm Beach County 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Application  

Submittal Date 10/03/2022 

SCAD Case No. 22082901D – D. O. 

FLU /Rezoning/D.O. No. 22-140004 – City of Lake Worth Beach 

PCN No. / Address 
38-43-44-20-01-097-0020; 0010; 096-0020 
2559 2nd Avenue North 

Development Name Residences at Lake Worth 

Owner / Agent Name Richman Lake Worth Apartments LLC /Brian Terry 

SAC No. 202 

Proposed Unit No. & Type 195 High-Rise Apartment Units 

 
 

 
Impact Review 

 
 

Highland 
Elementary School 

Lake Worth 
Middle School 

Lake Worth 
High School 

# of New Students Generated 3 2 2 

Capacity Available 48 106 55 

Utilization Percentage 96% 93% 98% 

 
School District Staff’s 
Recommendation 

 
Based on the findings and evaluation of the proposed development, there will be no 
negative impact on the School District of Palm Beach County public school system. 
Therefore, the School District has no comment on this SCAD application. 
 

 
 
Validation Period 

 
1) This determination is valid from 10/11/2022 to 10/10/2023 or the expiration date of 
the site-specific development order approved during the validation period.   
 
2) A copy of the approved D.O. must be submitted to the School District Planning 
Department prior to 10/10/2023 or this determination will expire automatically on 
10/10/2023. 
 

Notice 

 
School age children may not necessarily be assigned to the public school closest to their 
residences. Students in Palm Beach County are assigned annually to schools under the 
authority of the School Board and by direction of the Superintendent, public school 
attendance zones are subject to change.   
 

http://www.palmbeachschools.org/PLANNING


 
 
 

March 25, 2022 
Job No. 21-173 
  

 DRAINAGE STATEMENT 
 

Residences at Lake Worth 
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

 
SITE DATA 

                                                                                                                                                                             
The subject parcel is located at the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida and contains 
approximately 7.40 acres. The site is currently undeveloped with an existing utility tower 
in the northeast corner of the property. Proposed site development will consist of 195 
apartment units, 4100 SF of clubhouse and associated parking.  For additional 
information regarding site location and layout, please refer to the site plan prepared by 
Insite Studios.                                                                  
 
 

PROPOSED DRAINAGE 
 
The site is located within the boundaries of the South Florida Water Management District 
C-51 Basin (Sub-Basin 33), the Lake Worth Drainage District and City of Lake Worth 
Beach.  It is proposed that runoff be directed to the on-site water management areas 
including a lake and storm chambers by means of paved or on-site grass swales and/or 
inlets and storm sewer. Legal positive outfall is available through a control structure and 
into the Lake Worth Drainage District’s E-4 Canal.  
 
Drainage design is to address the following: 
 

1. Due consideration for water quality.  
 

2. No runoff to leave the site except through an approved control structure up to 
the level produced by the 25 year - 3 day rainfall event. 

 
3. Building floor elevations to be set at or above the level produced by the 100 

year - 3 day (zero discharge) rainfall event. 
 
4. Allowable discharge to be in accordance with South Florida Water 

Management District and Lake Worth Drainage District Criteria. 

 
2 5 8 1  M e t r o c e n t r e  B o u l e v a r d  W e s t    S u i t e  3    W e s t  P a l m  B e a c h    F l o r i d a    3 3 4 0 7  

T :   5 6 1 . 4 7 8 . 7 8 4 8    F :  5 6 1 . 4 7 8 . 3 7 3 8    w w w . s i m m o n s a n d w h i t e . c o m  
C e r t i f i c a t e  o f  A u t h o r i z a t i o n  N u m b e r  3 4 5 2  

 



Drainage Statement 
Job No. 21-173 
March 25, 2022 – Page 2 

PROPOSED DRAINAGE (CONTINUED) 

5. Roads to be protected from flooding during the 3 year - 24 hour event.

6. Compliance with the South Florida Water Management District C-51
Drainage Basin Criteria with regard to compensating storage via water
management areas and storm chambers.  Based on preliminary water
management calculations, the site plan as presented will meet the South
Florida Water Management District C-51 Basin requirements.

Required Permits/Approvals: 

1. Lake Worth Drainage District Drainage Permit

2. South Florida Water Management District Environmental Resource Permit

3. City of Lake Worth Beach Engineering

Erik R. Cooper, P.E. 
FL Reg. No. 56934 

sa: x:/docs/trafficdrainage/ds.21173 







 
 

8144 Okeechobee Blvd. Suite A, West Palm Beach, FL 33411 
www.insitestudio.com   561.249.0940 

  

 
Transmittal Letter 

 

To: PBC Dept. of Environmental Resources 
Management 

Date: 04/08/2022 

 
 Project Name: Residences at Lake Worth 
        

Attention:                                                 PBC ERM If enclosures are not as noted, please notify our office.  

  
Subject:    _Residences at Lake Worth – Lake Worth Beach Jurisdiction Project _________________                                            
        (  ) Return enclosures to us.  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
 
We Transmit:  (  ) under separate cover via                                                                                                                  herewith   under separate cover via  
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    as requested 
 
For Your :      (  ) distribution to parties    (  ) information                                                                                                                                                                     approval  distribution to parties  information 
 
  review & comment  record  use   
 
 

The Following:     (  ) specifications  (  ) change order                        drawings  specifications  change order 
   
         shop drawings  product literature     samples 
 
  correspondence    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              

Copies Date Description 

1 4/08/2022 Wellfield Affidavit of Notification 

1 4/08/2022 Owner/Agent Consent Form 

   

   

   

   

   

   

   
 

 





Y:\AUTOCAD_FILES\2021\21-173\EXHIBITS\Z01_Wellfield Exhibit.dwg 8/8/2014 4:30 PM Brandon Longo



 

Report Created and Reviewed by the Department for Community Sustainability 
Project Contact: Erin Sita, AICP, Assistant Director | esita@lakeworthbeachfl.gov 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD REPORT 

 

PZB Project Number 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17): A request for a Residential Planned Development, 
Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use, and Sustainable Bonus for the project commonly 
referred to as “Residences at Lake Worth,” to construct three (3) mid-rise residential structures that are 5-stories in 
height with a total of 195 dwelling units. The sustainable bonus request is for an additional 3-stories in height.   

 

PZB Meeting Date: November 16, 2022 

Property Owner: Richman Lake Worth Apartments 
LLC 

Applicant: Brian Terry – Insite Studio, Inc 

Address: 2559, 2441, and 2431 2nd Ave N 

PCNs:  38-43-44-20-01-097-0020 
             38-43-44-20-01-097-0010 
             38-43-44-20-01-096-0020 
 
Size: 7.40 acres 

General Location: North of 2nd Ave N, and east of 
the LWDD E-4 Canal.  

Existing Land Use: Vacant 

Current Future Land Use Designation: Mixed Use-
West (MU-W) 

Zoning District: Mixed Use-West (MU-W) 

 

 

 

Location Map 

 

Note: Report updated on 1/23/2023 to reflect additional information and clarifications regarding workforce housing. 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 
 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 2 
 
 
  

RECOMMENDATION  

The documentation and materials provided with the application request were reviewed for compliance with the 
applicable guidelines and standards found in the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development Regulations (LDRs), and 
for consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan. The proposed Residential Planned Development, 
Development of Significant Impact, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use, and Sustainable Bonus request is consistent with 
the Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, and LDRs, as conditioned, and, therefore, a recommendation of approval with 
conditions is provided to the Planning and Zoning Board. The conditions are located on pages 8 to 10 of this report.  
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The applicant, Brian Terry of Insite Studio, Inc, is requesting approval of the following for the project commonly referred 

to as “Residences at Lake Worth:” 

 A planned development, development of significant impact and major site plan request to construct a 195-unit 

multi-family development with three (3) mid-rise residential multi-family buildings and one (1) amenity 

building/clubhouse.  Each of the multi-family buildings will have 65 residential units. 

 A conditional use permit request to develop a multi-family residential development with a total of 195 multi-

family units, of which 14 one-bedroom units and 16 two-bedroom units will be restricted as workforce housing. 

The proposed multi-family buildings will be divided between a total of 105 one-bedroom units and 90 two-

bedroom units.  

 A Sustainable Bonus request for an additional 3-stories of bonus height.   

 

The Applicant is proposing a multi-family development on a 7.40 -acre vacant lot with the purpose to provide attainable 
apartments, including income restricted units, and amenities, including a pedestrian path around the lake. Per the 
applicant’s justification statement, “residents will have access to multiple amenities on the property including a +/- 4,980 
square foot clubhouse with a management office, club room, fitness facility, yoga room and mail center.  These amenities 
are located in the center of the property and will be the focal point entering into the community. Exterior to the 
clubhouse is a covered terrace and expansive pool deck with a central bar and grill area covered by an architectural 
pergola structure. Other site amenities include a fully connected sidewalk system that extends completely around the 
retention pond on the north and provides for access to a fenced dog park on the west side of the property.” 
 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH  

Staff has not received any letters of support or opposition for this application. Per LDR Section 23.2-20, Public 
Neighborhood Meeting, a public neighborhood meeting shall be required for all Planned Developments, Developments 
of Significant Impact, and Lake Worth Beach Community Redevelopment Agency sponsored new construction projects 
along the City’s major thoroughfares as well as those utilizing the City’s Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program, Transfer 
of Development Rights Program and/or Economic Investment Incentives.   
 
On November 1, 2022, the applicant held a meeting with neighborhood residents at Mathews Brewing Company. Notices 
were mailed to all property owners within 400 ft of the project on October 15, 2022, and signs were placed on the 
property on October 17, 2022.  There were two attendees at the meeting and no concerns were identified per the 
meeting minutes.  The applicant also has a project webpage: https://www.insitestudio.com/residencesatlakeworth 

 
BACKGROUND  
Below is a summary of the property based on Palm Beach Property Appraiser’s records and City records:  
 
Use/Construction: Currently, the property is vacant with no existing structures on the site.  A mixed-use development 
was previously approved on the property in 2014 with 3, four-story buildings and 104 dwelling units.  There is also an 
existing cell tower in the NE corner of the property. 

Code Compliance: There are no active code cases on the subject site. 

https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.insitestudio.com/residencesatlakeworth__;!!L27OxSvrGzUPJKx-75U!5iZXegPa0jlfgbxTy059zPtwfjenI350Awd3rOFk922IVqj-UT3pmQRiZjPACClnxTaShTuGeXNQEE5_WWl58NtNUAEeaPU$


 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 3 
 
 
  

 
ANALYSIS  
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
The subject site has a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Mixed Use - West (MU-W). Per Policy 1.1.1.6, the MU-W FLU 
is intended to provide for a mixture of residential, office, service, and commercial retail uses within specific areas west 
of I-95. The distinguishing characteristic of the Mixed-Use West land use area is that it allows higher-intensity uses as 
well as higher height limits along the City’s western thoroughfares. The preferred mix of uses area-wide is 75% residential 
and 25% non-residential. While mixed-use projects are allowed on a single site, it is not a requirement that each site 
within the category incorporate multiple uses. Zoning regulations implementing the Mixed-Use West category shall 
permit the establishment and expansion of residential (including single family, two-family and multi-family), office, 
service and commercial retail uses either as uses permitted by right or through conditional use permit provisions. All 
buildings are required to provide transitional buffering and design features to mitigate the impact of the MU-W sites 
adjacent to residential zoning districts. 
 
The City’s Strategic Plan focuses on fostering safer neighborhoods, encouraging community pride, building a vibrant and 
diverse economy, planning for the future, and enhancing the natural, historic, and cultural environment of the City. Pillar  
II and Pilar IV of the Strategic Plan state that the City shall strengthen Lake Worth Beach as a community of 
neighborhoods and navigate towards a sustainable community. Pillars II.A, II.B, IV.A, and IV.E of the Strategic Plan state 
that the City shall diversify housing options, continue crime reduction and prevention in achieving a safe, livable and 
friendly community, achieve economic and financial sustainability through a versatile and stable tax base, and ensure 
facility placement, construction and development that anticipates and embraces the future. The proposed multifamily 
building and associated site improvements will contribute towards the City’s Pillars II.A, II.B, IV.A, and IV.E of the Strategic 
Plan.  
 
The proposed development request is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the City of Lake Worth Beach’s 
Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan as it provides both market rate and income restricted workforce units in a multi-
family project with substantial amenities, including an outdoor recreation path and dog park. 
 
Consistency with the Land Development Regulations 
The proposed application was reviewed for consistency with all applicable requirements in the City’s Land Development 
Regulations (LDR), including the district and planned development requirements. Per Section 23.3-25, planned 
developments are intended to encourage innovative land planning and development techniques through incentives to 
create more desirable and attractive development within the City. The Department of Community Sustainability is tasked 
to review planned development applications in accordance with the City’s LDRs, to assess compliance with the findings 
for granting planned developments (analyzed in the following sections) and to provide a recommendation for whether 
the application should be approved, approved with conditions, or denied. The subject planned development is not 
requesting to waive or relax base zoning district requirements. However, the applicant is opting into the workforce 
housing program to utilize the parking reduction incentive allowed for income restricted workforce housing units. 
 
Mixed Use – West (MU-W): Per LDR Section 23.3-18(a), the MU-W zoning district is intended to provide for the 
establishment and expansion of a broad range of office and commercial uses, including moderate intensity and higher 
intensity commercial, hotel/motel and medium-density multiple-family residential development along the city's western 
thoroughfares. The establishment of certain uses is subject to conditional use review to ensure they will not create 
excessive problems for through traffic, or have a negative impact on nearby residential areas or the commercial viability 
of their neighbors. The district implements in part the mixed-use land use category of the Lake Worth Comprehensive 
Plan. 
 
The table and topic area analysis below evaluate the proposed site features and the project’s compliance with the Code, 
and factoring in the Sustainable Bonus incentives, Planned Development incentives, and the Comprehensive Plan 
maximums: 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 4 
 
 
  

 
 

Development Standard 
Base Zoning District 
Mixed Used – West 

(MU-W) 

Residential Planned 
Development in MU-W 

with SBIP 
Provided  

Lot Size (min) 
In square feet (sf) 

13,000 sf 0.5 acres 7.3985 acres 
(322,278.64 sf) 

Lot Width (min) 100’ 100’ 401.62’ 

Setbacks 

Front (min 
build-to line) 

 

20’ 
20’ 20’ 

Rear (min) 10’ 10’ 178’ 

Street Side 
(min) 

20’ 20’ N/A 

Side (min) 
20’ 20’ 20’ – west side 

41’ – east side 

Impermeable Surface 
Coverage (maximum) 

65% 65% 49% (157,900 SF) 

Structure Coverage (max) 

50% 50% 13.4% (43,293 SF) – 
Buildings 

1.15% (3,722 SF) – 
Communication Tower 

Density (max) 
30 du/acre 
(221 units) 

37.5 du/acre 
(277 units) 

26.36 du/acre 
(195 units) 

 

Building Height (max) 
30’ (max. 2 stories) 65’ 

(Max. 6 stories) 
59’-4” – top of parapet 

(5 stories) 
 

Maximum Wall Height at 
Side Setback 

30’ 65’ +/- 59’ 

Floor Area Ratio (FAR) 
(max) 

1.3 3.75 .6 

Living Area 
(minimum) 

Studio 400 sf 400 sf N/A 

One-
bedroom 

units 

600 sf 600 sf +/-716 sf- 729 sf 

Two-
bedroom 

units 

750 sf 750 s +/- 1013 sf 

Three-
bedroom 

units 

900 sf 900 sf N/A 

Parking  
See page 5 for detailed 

analysis. 
 

Parking Calculated per 

unit, room, and non-

residential square 

footage. 

 
 
 

237 spaces* 
w/ 30 workforce housing units 

 
Max alternate spaces = 59 

spaces 

 

279 spaces 
w/ 12 alternate (compact) spaces 

 
Additional parking that exceeds 

parking requirements: 
42 compact parking spaces & 39 
bicycle spaces = 9 parking spaces 

 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 5 
 
 
  

 

Workforce/Affordable 
Housing 

15% of Total Project 30 Income Restricted 
Units 

30 Income Restricted 
Units 

(14 one-bedroom units and 16 
two-bedroom units) 

*Applicant is choosing to opt-in to the recently adopted workforce housing program ordinance (Ordinance 2022-12), 
which allows for a 25% parking requirement reduction for income restricted units. 
 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program Ordinance 2022-12: The proposed project was submitted to the City prior to 
Ordinance 2022-12 becoming effective.  The applicant has elected to opt into the program to utilize the parking reduction 
incentive.  Tier Two requires that 15% of the total number of units for projects utilizing any City incentives or bonus 
programs be income restricted in accordance with the provisions in this ordinance.   
 
Analysis: The applicant is proposing 195 dwelling units of which 30 units (15%) are required to be income restricted as 
consistent with the requirements in Ordinance 2022-12.  The applicant is proposing to income restrict 30 units as 
required to utilize the parking reduction incentive.  This is being implemented through the PBC Workforce Housing 
Program. 
 
Section 23.4-10. - Off-street parking: This section provides general provisions for off-street parking. The standards “apply 
to all parking spaces required for new buildings, new uses, additions, enlargements, or changes.”   
 
Analysis: The parking for the dwelling units was calculated as follows: 1.5 spaces per 1-bedroom unit (1.5 X 105 units = 
158 spaces) and 1.75 spaces for each 2-bedroom unit (1.75 X 90 units = 158 spaces). The applicant is choosing to opt into 
the City’s recently adopted Workforce Housing program (Ordinance 2022-12). This program provides a 25% reduction in 
required parking. Therefore, a total of two-hundred thirty-seven (237) spaces are required (316 spaces minus 25% 
reduction). Two-hundred and seventy-nine (279) parking spaces are proposed, which exceed the required parking by 
forty-two (42) spaces.  
 
The applicant is proposing to utilize alternate spaces to fulfill their minimum parking requirement as permitted by LDR 
Section 23.4-10.l), which states that “alternate parking spaces including compact spaces shall count towards no more 
than twenty-five (25) percent of the overall site parking requirement.”  The maximum alternate spaces that can be 
applied to meet required parking for this development is 59 alternate spaces.  The applicant is proposing 225 standard 
spaces, and 12 compact spaces as alternate spaces to meet the required parking of 237 total spaces.  In addition to the 
required parking, the applicant is also proposing 42 more compacts spaces (total 54 compact spaces), and 39 bicycle 
spaces (four bicycle spaces count as one parking space).  
 
Section 23.6-1. - Landscape regulations: The objective of this section is to provide minimum standards for the installation 
and maintenance of landscaping within the city. Per Section 23.6-1(c)(2), “on the site of a building or open-lot use 
providing an off-street parking, storage or other vehicular use area, where such an area will not be screened visually by 
an intervening building or structure from an abutting right-of-way or dedicated alley, shall require landscaping”. 
  
Analysis: The development proposal provides perimeter landscaping and shade trees.  The proposed landscaping is 
consistent with the City’s landscape regulations.  Tree species include a mix of Gumbo Limbo, Pigeon Plum, Silver and 
Green Buttonwood, and Live Oak for the perimeter and interior plantings along with multiple native and non-native 
shrubs, grasses, and groundcovers. The proposed landscape complies with the City’s requirement that 75% of all required 
plants be Florida native. 
 
As required by the tree removal provisions in the landscape regulations, the applicant submitted a tree survey and 
disposition plan that was reviewed by staff. The diameter at breast height (DBH) for the existing trees with a condition 
rating of fifty (50) percent or greater on the property is used to calculate the replacement tree requirement. The 
development proposes to retain all existing trees on site, therefore replacement trees and/or mitigation is not required. 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 6 
 
 
  

 
Section 23.5-1- Signage: Signage is required to comply with the size and design requirements of LDR Section 23.5-1, 
Signs. Ground or monument signage are required to be depicted on both the site and landscape plans, and are reviewed 
for consistency with the sign code requirements and planned development at building permit. 
 
Analysis: The proposed entrance sign has a maximum sign area of 200 sf and a maximum height of 12’.  A planned 
development can exceed the sign code maximums in size and total area, provided the signage is requested as part of the 
planned development.  The proposed sign is consistent with the City’s sign code except for the maximum height.  The 
increased height is an appropriate request as signage massing is tied in the code to linear frontage.  The additional 4’ 
feet in height allows for landscaping to maintained with a taller height and the massing of the sign is appropriate along 
the large road frontage (+/- 635 linear feet). 
 
Section 12-7, Dumpster Requirements: The location of all dumpsters shall be approved by the public services director or 
his designee and/or the building official or his designee. All dumpsters shall meet the requirements set forth in this section 
and all other ordinances, rules, regulations and policies adopted by the city. 
 
Analysis: The proposed dumpster location in the NE corner of the project was reviewed by Public Works, who determined 
that the dumpster was consistent with the size and screening requirements. The dumpster is located in the NE corner of 
the property adjacent to the communication/cell tower and is fully screened with fencing and landscaping.  The dumpster 
enclosure material shall be reviewed in a subsequent minor site plan amendment for architecturally consistency with 
the project. 
 
Section 23.4-3, Exterior Lighting: All outdoor lighting shall be installed in conformance with the provisions of this chapter, 
applicable electrical and energy codes, and applicable sections of the building code. 
 
Analysis: A photometric plan was provided depicting compliance with the exterior lighting requirements in Section 23.4-
3 and does not allow light trespass upon neighboring residential properties or districts in excess of 12.57 lumens. 
However, lighting fixtures were not included as part of the applicant’s submittal. A recommended condition of approval 
has been provided requiring that the lighting fixture be reviewed at building permit to comply with Dark Skies lighting 
recommendations and for consistency with the architecture of the buildings. Further, proposed fixtures shall be required 
to have a warm tone setting of 3000 K or less.  
 
Section 23.2-31 - Site Design Qualitative Standards (Attachment A) 
Site Design Qualitative Standards are intended to “promote safety and minimize negative impacts of development on its 
neighbors by establishing qualitative requirements for the arrangements of buildings, structures, parking areas, 
landscaping and other site improvements. The qualitative standards are designed to ensure that site improvements are 
arranged in ways which cannot be otherwise accomplished with quantitative standards.” These qualitative standards are 
applicable to site plan applications as well as all conditional uses. Compliance determination with the applicable 
standards in Section 23.2-31 are provided in Attachment A. The following analysis of the site, building, vehicular use 
area and appearance support the compliance findings for the applicable standards listed in Attachment A.  
 

Site Design Qualitative Standards Analysis (including vehicular use areas): 
The proposed improvements to the site circulations, landscaping and architecture are consistent with the Site Design 
Qualitative Standards.  The architecture for the project is generally appropriate and compatible to the surrounding 
area.  The pedestrian and vehicular site circulation safely connects to the existing public right-of-way.  Further, the 
site pedestrian circulation system is appropriately insulated from vehicular circulation.   A new dumpster enclosure 
is proposed in the rear of the property; this improvement is properly screened as required, and the location is 
deemed appropriate for pick-up services by Pubic Works. Improvements to the existing landscaping are also 
proposed and discussed in the landscape section of this report. 
 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 7 
 
 
  

The proposed configuration and landscape buffering of the parking lot and vehicular use areas will be effectively 
screened from the public view with shade trees, palm trees and shrubs within the landscape areas. The proposed 
curb cuts and parking lot layout does not create an unsafe situation and are typical for the form of the development. 
The proposed architectural modifications are harmonious as a whole, will improve the aesthetics of the site, and will 
be an asset to the neighborhood.  
 

The existing uses in the surrounding area are as follows: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning District Existing Use 

North  Mixed Use - West 
(MU-W) 

Mixed Use - West (MU-
W) 

Multi-family Residential  
(Oakwood Townhomes) 

South  Mixed Use - West 
(MU-W) 

Mixed Use - West (MU-
W) 

Multi-family Residential  
(Village at Lake Osbourne & 
Riverview House) 

East  Mixed Use - West 
(MU-W) 

Mixed Use - West (MU-
W) 

Multi-family Residential  
(Oakwood Townhomes) 

West  N/A N/A LWDD E-4 Canal ROW 

 
The proposed uses and site improvements will not negatively affect the existing surrounding properties and uses. 
They are harmonious and compatible with the existing mixed-use and residential area.  
 
Community Appearance Criteria:  
The proposed building and associated site improvements represent a substantial improvement in the general 
appearance of the property by providing new landscape around the perimeter of the property, and new 
architecturally compatible buildings.  The proposed architecture of the building is appropriate and in harmony with 
the surrounding residential and nonresidential area. Overall, the development proposal represents a substantial 
improvement in the visual appearance of the vacant property.  
 

Development of Significant Impact (DSI)  
A development of significant impact (DSI) is a commercial, office, or industrial development of 100,000 or more gross 
square feet of enclosed building area, including renovations of existing structures when a change to a more intensive 
use is anticipated, or a residential development of 100 or more dwelling units, including renovations of existing 
structures when a change to a more intensive use is anticipated.  The project proposed qualifies as a DSI because it 
exceeds 100 dwelling units.  
 
Per LDR Section 23.2-35, a proposed DSI and any amendments to an approved DSI shall be reviewed and approved in 
accordance with the procedures and requirements for a Conditional Use Permit except that the City Commission shall 
be the decision maker and not the Planning and Zoning Board or the Historic Resources Preservation Board.  The 
Conditional Use Permit criteria is outlined in the conditional use analysis in the subsequent section. 
 
Conditional Use Findings (Attachment B)  
Conditional uses are those uses that are generally compatible with the other uses permitted in a district, but that require 
individual review of their location, design, structure, configuration, density and intensity of use, and may require the 
imposition of conditions pertinent thereto in order to ensure the appropriateness and compatibility of the use at a 
particular location and to prevent or minimize potential adverse impacts to the surrounding area.  The project proposal 
includes a conditional use request to establish a residential development greater than 7,500 square feet. 
 
The proposed conditional use is not anticipated to impact the surrounding area greater than uses permitted by right or 
greater than the previously approved mixed use on the property. The site is currently vacant. The applicant is proposing 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 8 
 
 
  

multifamily buildings that do not utilize the maximum development potential. The buildings will be served by existing 
municipal services, including water, sewer, refuse, fire and police. The proposed associated site improvements would 
provide new landscaping and an improved condition over the current vacant parcel while providing new attainable 
housing options. 
 
Section 23.2-33(c) - Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) 
The City of Lake Worth Beach Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program (SBIP) is intended to implement Objective 1.2.3 of 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan which states the City shall establish incentives to help support the creation of a compact, 
sustainable, community-oriented development by implementing a Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program. The Program 
offers the opportunity to attain an option for increased height and/or FAR in exchange for the incorporation of 
sustainable design features, community-based improvements and overall design excellence as part of a development 
proposal. 
 
Per Policy 1.2.3.4 of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, a residential planned development may obtain a 25% bonus on 
density, intensity (FAR), and height over the base line as outlined in Table 1 of the Comprehensive Plan. The Applicant is 
asking for bonus height that is less than the maximum allowance permitted via the SBIP in a planned development in the 
MU-W zoning district.   The square footage of the bonus area above the second floor (3rd, 4th, and 5th floors) is +/-
12,691 square feet per floor for all three buildings. The SBIP incentive value for all three buildings (Tier One - LDR) is 
$856,642.50 (12,691 sf X 3 Floors X 3 Buildings X $7.50 per sf). Fifty percent (50%) of the incentive award value is 
$428,321.25, which the applicant is required to pay to the City. For the remaining 50% of the incentive award value 
($428,321.25), the applicant is proposing qualified improvements per Resolution 23-2021 & LDR Section 23.2-33, which 
include a Florida Green Building certification ($214,160.63) and six (6) EV charging stations and conduits ($50,000).  The 
total value of the qualifying improvements is $264,160.63.  The total payment by the applicant to the City for the 
additional height includes the 50% required to be paid to the City ($428,321.25), plus the remaining value not mitigated 
by qualifying improvements ($164,160.62).  Conditions of approval have been proposed to address the required schedule 
to pay the SBIP fees. The applicant may propose qualified on-site improvements or provide additional payment to the 
City.  

 

CONCLUSION AND CONDITIONS  

The MU-W district is intended to provide for the establishment and expansion of a broad range of office and 
commercial uses, including moderate intensity and higher intensity commercial, hotel/motel and medium-density 
multiple-family residential development along the city's western thoroughfares. The establishment of certain uses is 
subject to conditional use review to ensure they will not create excessive problems for through traffic, or have a 
negative impact on nearby residential areas or the commercial viability of their neighbors. Based on the data and 
analysis in this report and the supporting materials by the applicant, the use is not anticipated to negatively impact 
adjacent residential property or have a negative impact on the commercial viability of neighboring commercial 
businesses. Further, the proposed site improvements are consistent with the City’s LDR requirements.  Therefore, a 
recommendation of approval is provided to the PZB with the following conditions: 
 

Planning & Zoning 
 
1. Fifty percent of the sustainable bonus fee ($428,321.25) shall be paid to the City within two years of 

approval, or prior to the issuance of the building permit, whichever comes first.  
2. The applicant shall provide qualifying sustainable bonus features equal to $428,321.25, or shall be 

required to pay the remaining portion of the 50% of the incentive value ($428,321.25) prior to the issuance 
of a certificate of occupancy. 

3. Thirty (30) units shall be restricted for workforce housing in accordance with the City’s 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the 
buildings 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 9 
 
 
  

4. A unity of title shall be required to applied for and shall be recorded prior to the issuance of a building 
permit. 

5. An address application shall be required to be submitted prior to application for building permit. 
6. A video security system shall be required for the property.  
7. Exterior lighting shall be required to comply dark sky lighting guidelines, including using fully shielded 

fixtures and led lighting that has a color temperature of no more than 3000 Kelvins. www.darksky.org  
Specifically, the lighting fixtures shall be reviewed at building permit for consistency with the dark sky 
guidelines and the architecture of the buildings. 

8. A designated delivery and/or ride share space shall be provided. 
9. Dumpster enclosure material shall be reviewed for architectural consistency and for compliance with all 

applicable City requirements at building permit. 
10. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, a minor site plan amendment or modification shall be approved 

to update the site plan data table to remove errors. 
 

Utilities (Water, Sewer & Stormwater) 
1. There are several locations where proposed storm chamber overlaps with the water/storm utility 

easements. The easement shall be free of obstructions.  
2. Provide inlet protection on the storm collection structures in 2nd Avenue North and show the erosion 

control and sedimentation plan.  
3. Capacity fees are due prior to building permit issuance.  
4. The title block of all plans shall be updated to say Lake Worth Beach instead of Lake Worth. 
 

Public Works 
1. The issuance of any permits shall comply with all provisions of the Lake Worth Municipal Code and all 

other applicable standards including but not limited to the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), 
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), and City of Lake Worth Public Services Construction 
Standards and Policy and Procedure Manual. No Certificate of Occupancy shall be granted until all 
conditions of approval have been satisfied under jurisdiction of the Department of Public Services.   

2. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the Lake Worth Drainage (LWDD) 
District’s Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary, and furnish to the City. 
Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall contact the South Florida Water Management 
District’s (SFWMD) Engineering Department and obtain any required permit(s), if necessary.   

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall contact and meet with a representative from 
the Public Works Solid Waste and Recycling Division to confirm dumpster enclosure location, accessibility 
and demand on property and that it is compatible with the requirements of the Department of Public 
Works. Solid Waste Division contact number is 561-533-7344.   

4. Prior to the issuance of a certificate of occupancy, the Applicant shall ensure the entire surrounding offsite 
infrastructure inclusive of the roadway, sidewalk, curbing, stormwater system piping and structures, valve 
boxes, manholes, landscaping, striping, signage, and other improvements are in the same condition as 
prior to construction.   

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the applicant shall submit an Erosion Control plan and indicate 
the BMP’s and NPDES compliance practices. 

6. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall fine grade and sod all disturbed 
areas with bahia sod.   

7. Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the applicant shall broom sweep all areas of the 
affected right of way and remove of all silt and debris collected as a result of construction activity.   

8. Prior to performing work in the right of way, the applicant shall apply for and receive issuance of a “Right 
of Way/Utility Permit” application. 
 

Electric Utility 

http://www.darksky.org/


 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 10 
 
 
  

1. Before or at the time of application for a Building Permit, Developer must provide the Load Calculation, 
Voltage requirements and Riser diagram. We will need to know the location of the Pad-Mount 
Transformers for the building. The Transformer locations must be accessible to our vehicles, and must 
have 8-ft minimum clearance in front of them and 3-ft clearance to the side or rear, including landscaping 
(None trees, plants, shrubs or vegetations are allowed within the clearance). The Transformers also must 
not be under or inside any structure.  

2. Before the issuance of a Building permit, we will need a 10-ft wide utility easement for the underground 
electric, transformers and other equipment that will need to be installed to provide power to this project. 

3. The customer will be responsible for installing All Schedule 40 PVC Conduit that will be needed by Lake 
Worth Beach for this project for the primary cable. This conduit must be installed at a 24” minimum depth. 
Pad specs will be given to the customer to show the proper orientation of conduit at the pad mount 
transformers. 

4. Before the issuance of a Building permit, we will need to know if any other services will be needed for the 
project such as irrigation, lift station, lighting, gates, etc., and where these services will be. 

5. Developer to show the location of the meter center on the site plan. 
6. Developer will be responsible for installing their own lightning for the parking areas. 
7. Developer will be responsible for the cost of Lake Worth Beach’s materials and labor for this project. 
8. Before the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the utility easement must be recorded. 
9. Before the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) a final electrical inspection must be done. 

 
Building Division 

1. Pedestrian connections to the club house will require enhanced striping. 
 

 

BOARD POTENTIAL MOTION:   
I move to approve with conditions of Ordinance 2022-17 for a Residential Planned Development, Major Site Plan, 
Conditional Use, and Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program to construct a 195-unit multifamily residential development 
at the subject site based on upon the competent and substantial evidence provided in the staff report and in the 
testimony at the public hearing. 
 
I move to disapprove Ordinance 2022-17 for a Residential Planned Development, Major Site Plan, Conditional Use, and 
Sustainable Bonus Incentive Program to construct a 195-unit multifamily residential development at the subject site. The 
project does not meet the conditional use criteria for the following reasons [Board member please state reasons.].  
 
Consequent Action: The Planning & Zoning Board’s decision will be final decision for the Conditional Use Permit and 
Major Site Plan.  The Applicant may appeal the Board’s decision to the City Commission. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Qualitative Development Standards 
B. Conditional Use Findings 
C. Application Package (survey, site plan, architectural plans & supporting documents) 

ATTACHMENT A – Qualitative Development Standards 

 

Section 23.2-31(c) –Qualitative Development Standards  Analysis 

  
1. Harmonious and efficient organization. All elements of the site plan shall be harmoniously and 
efficiently organized in relation to topography, the size and type of plot, the character of adjoining 
property and the type and size of buildings. The site shall be developed so as to not impede the 

In Compliance  



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 11 
 
 
  

normal and orderly development or improvement of surrounding property for uses permitted in these 
LDRs. 
 
2. Preservation of natural conditions. The natural (refer to landscape code, Article 6 of these LDRs) 
landscape shall be preserved in its natural state, insofar as practical, by minimizing tree and soil 
removal and by such other site planning approaches as are appropriate. Terrain and vegetation shall 
not be disturbed in a manner likely to significantly increase either wind or water erosion within or 
adjacent to a development site. Natural detention areas and other means of natural vegetative 
filtration of stormwater runoff shall be used to minimize ground and surface water pollution, 
particularly adjacent to major waterbodies. Fertilizer/pesticide conditions may be attached to 
development adjacent to waterbodies. Marinas shall be permitted only in water with a mean low 
tide depth of four feet or more.  
 

Not Applicable 

3. Screening and buffering. Fences, walls or vegetative screening shall be provided where needed 
and practical to protect residents and users from undesirable views, lighting, noise, odors or other 
adverse off-site effects, and to protect residents and users of off-site development from on-site 
adverse effects. This section may be interpreted to require screening and buffering in addition to that 
specifically required by other sections of these LDRs, but not less.  
 

In compliance  

4. Enhancement of residential privacy. The site plan shall provide reasonable, visual and acoustical 
privacy for all dwelling units located therein and adjacent thereto. Fences, walks, barriers and 
vegetation shall be arranged for the protection and enhancement of property and to enhance the 
privacy of the occupants.  
 

In compliance 

5. Emergency access. Structures and other site features shall be so arranged as to permit emergency 
vehicle access by some practical means to all sides of all buildings. 
 

In compliance 

6. Access to public ways. All buildings, dwelling units and other facilities shall have safe and 
convenient access to a public street, walkway or other area dedicated to common use; curb cuts close 
to railroad +crossings shall be avoided. 
 

In compliance  

7. Pedestrian circulation. There shall be provided a pedestrian circulation system which is insulated 
as completely as reasonably possible from the vehicular circulation system. 

In compliance  

  
8. Design of ingress and egress drives. The location, size and numbers of ingress and egress drives 
to the site will be arranged to minimize the negative impacts on public and private ways and on 
adjacent private property. Merging and turnout lanes traffic dividers shall be provided where they 
would significantly improve safety for vehicles and pedestrians.  
 

In compliance 

9. Coordination of on-site circulation with off-site circulation. The arrangement of public or 
common ways for vehicular and pedestrian circulation shall be coordinated with the pattern of 
existing or planned streets and pedestrian or bicycle pathways in the area. Minor streets shall not be 
connected to major streets in such a way as to facilitate improper utilization. 
 

In compliance  

10. Design of on-site public right-of-way (ROW). On-site public street and rights-of-way shall be 
designed to for maximum efficiency. They shall occupy no more land than is required to provide 
access, nor shall they unnecessarily fragment development into small blocks. Large developments 
containing extensive public rights-of-way shall have said rights-of-way arranged in a hierarchy with 
local streets providing direct access to parcels and other streets providing no or limited access to 
parcels. 

Not applicable 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 12 
 
 
  

  
11. Off-street parking, loading and vehicular circulation areas. Off-street parking, loading and 
vehicular circulation areas shall be located, designed and screened to minimize the impact of noise, 
glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 

In compliance 

12. Refuse and service areas. Refuse and service areas shall be located, designed and screened to 
minimize the impact of noise, glare and odor on adjacent property. 
 

In compliance 

13. Protection of property values. The elements of the site plan shall be arranged so as to have 
minimum negative impact on the property values of adjoining property. 
 

In compliance  

14. Transitional development. Where the property being developed is located on the edge of the 
zoning district, the site plan shall be designed to provide for a harmonious transition between 
districts. Building exteriors shall complement other buildings in the vicinity in size, scale, mass, bulk, 
rhythm of openings and character. Consideration shall be given to a harmonious transition in height 
and design style so that the change in zoning districts is not accentuated. Additional consideration 
shall be given to complementary setbacks between the existing and proposed development.  
 

In compliance 

15. Consideration of future development. In finding whether or not the above standards are met, 
the review authority shall consider likely future development as well as existing development.  
 

In compliance  

 

Section 23.2-31(d) - Qualitative Buildings, generally Analysis 

1. Buildings or structures which are part of a present or future group or complex shall have a unity 
of character and design. The relationship of forms of the use, texture and color of material shall be 
such as to create one (1) harmonious whole. When the area involved forms an integral part of, is 
immediately adjacent to, or otherwise clearly affects the future of any established section of the city, 
the design, scale and location of the site shall enhance rather than detract from the character, value 
and attractiveness of the surroundings. Harmonious does not mean or require that the buildings be 
the same. 
 

In compliance  

2. Buildings or structures located along strips of land or on a single site, and not a part of a unified 
multi-building complex shall achieve as much visual harmony with the surroundings as is possible 
under the circumstances. If a building is built in an undeveloped area, three (3) primary requirements 
shall be met, including honest design construction, proper design concepts, and appropriateness to 
the city. 
 

In compliance  

3. All façades visible to public or adjacent property shall be designed to create a harmonious whole. 
Materials shall express their function clearly and not appear foreign to the rest of the building. 
 

In compliance  

4. The concept of harmony shall not infer that buildings must look alike or be of the same style. 
Harmony can be achieved through the proper consideration of scale, mass, bulk, proportion, height, 
orientation, site planning, landscaping, materials, rhythm of solids to voids and architectural 
components including but not limited to porches, roof types, fenestration, orientation and stylistic 
expression. 
 

In compliance 

5. Look-alike buildings shall not be allowed unless, in the opinion of the board, there is sufficient 
separation to preserve the aesthetic character of the present or evolving neighborhood. This is not 
to be construed to prohibit the duplication of floor plans and exterior treatment in a planned 

In compliance 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 13 
 
 
  

development where, in the opinion of the board, the aesthetics or the development depend upon, or 
are enhanced by the look-alike buildings and their relationship to each other. 
 
6. Buildings, which are of symbolic design for reasons of advertising, unless otherwise compatible 
with the criteria herein, will not be approved by the board. Symbols attached to the buildings will not 
be allowed unless they are secondary in appearance to the building and landscape and are an 
aesthetic asset to the building, project and neighborhood. 
 

In compliance 

7. Exterior lighting may be used to illuminate a building and its grounds for safety purposes, but in 
an aesthetic manner. Lighting is not to be used as a form of advertising in a manner that is not 
compatible to the neighborhood or in a manner that draws considerably more attention to the 
building or grounds at night than in the day. Lighting following the form of the building or part of the 
building will not be allowed if, in the opinion of the board, the overall effect will be detrimental to 
the environment. All fixtures used in exterior lighting are to be selected for functional as well as 
aesthetic value. 

In compliance  

  
8. Building surfaces, walls and roofs shall be compatible and in harmony with the neighborhood. 
 

In compliance 

9. "Take-out" or "pick-up" windows of retail or wholesale establishments shall not be located on a 
building façade that faces a public right-of-way, unless they are designed in such a manner as to 
constitute an aesthetic asset to the building and neighborhood. 
 

Not applicable 

10. All exterior forms, attached to buildings, shall be in conformity to and secondary to the building. 
They shall be an asset to the aesthetics of the site and to the neighborhood. 
  

In compliance  

11. All telephones, vending machines, or any facility dispensing merchandise, or a service on private 
property, shall be confined to a space built into the building or buildings or enclosed in a separate 
structure compatible with the main building, and where appropriate and feasible, should not be 
readily visible from off-premises. 
 

Not applicable 

12. Buildings of a style or style-type foreign to south Florida or its climate will not be allowed. It is 
also to be understood that buildings which do not conform to the existing or to the evolving 
atmosphere of the city, even though possessing historical significance to south Florida, may not be 
approved. 
 

In compliance 

13. No advertising will be allowed on any exposed amenity or facility such as benches and trash 
containers. 
 

In compliance 

14. Light spillage restriction. The applicant shall make adequate provision to ensure that light 
spillage onto adjacent residential properties is minimized. 

In compliance  

 
 

Section 23.2-31(h) – Criteria for parking lots and vehicular use areas Analysis 

1. Parking lots and other vehicular use areas are to be designed as an aesthetic asset to a 
neighborhood and to the building, group of buildings, or facility they serve. A parking lot is to be 
considered an outside space; a transitional space that is located between access areas (such as 
roads) and the building, group of buildings or other outside spaces which it serves. The parking lot, 
because it is viewed from above as well as at eye level, should be designed accordingly. 
 

In compliance  



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 14 
 
 
  

2. Parking lots, vehicular use areas, and vehicles parked therein are to be effectively screened from 
the public view and from adjacent property in a manner that is attractive and compatible with safety, 
the neighborhood and the facility served. 
 

In compliance  

3. The responsibility for beautification and design of a parking lot is the same as that which a 
homeowner has to his residential lot. The atmosphere within a parking lot or vehicular use area is to 
be as pleasant and park-like as possible, rather than a harsh stand of paving. Trees are of primary 
importance to the landscape and are not to be minimized in either height or quantity. Trees impart 
a sense of three-dimensional space in a relatively flat area. Trees cast shadows that help to reduce 
the monotony of an expanse of paving and create a refuge from the tropical sun. Signs designating 
entrances, exits and regulations are to be of a tasteful design and shall be subject to review by the 
board. Consideration may be given to use of pavement which is varied in texture or color to designate 
lanes for automobile traffic, pedestrian walks and parking spaces. Brightly colored pavement is to 
be used with restraint. In order to create a pleasant atmosphere, it is recommended that 
consideration be given to sculpture, fountains, gardens, pools and benches. Design emphasis is to be 
given to the entrance and exit areas of the lot. Trash, refuse and unaesthetic storage and mechanical 
equipment shall be screened from the parking lot. 
 

In compliance  

4. Lighting is to be designed for visual effects as well as safety and resistance to vandalism. Care 
should be taken not to create a nuisance to the neighborhood from brightness or glare. Low lights in 
modest scale can be used along with feature lighting emphasizing plants, trees, barriers, entrances 
and exits. The fixtures are to be selected for functional value and aesthetic quality. Fixtures should 
be regarded as "furniture of the parking lot" which are visible both day and night. 

In compliance  

  
 

Section 23.2-31(l) – Community Appearance Criteria Analysis 

1. The plan for the proposed structure or project is in conformity with good taste, good design, and 
in general contributes to the image of the city as a place of beauty, spaciousness, harmony, taste, 
fitness, broad vistas and high quality. 
 

In compliance  

2. The proposed structure or project is not, in its exterior design and appearance, of inferior quality 
such as to cause the nature of the local environment or evolving environment to materially 
depreciate in appearance and value. 
 

In compliance  

3. The proposed structure or project is in harmony with the proposed developments in the general 
area, with code requirements pertaining to site plan, signage and landscaping, and the 
comprehensive plan for the city, and with the criteria set forth herein. 
 

In compliance 

4. The proposed structure or project complies with this section and 23.2-29, Conditional Use Permits 
(CUP), as applicable. 

In compliance 
 

 

ATTACHMENT B - Findings for Granting Conditional Uses 

Prior to approving any conditional use permit, the decision-making authority shall find based on competent and substantial 
evidence that the following criteria related to conditional uses are met: 
 

Section 23.2-29(d) General findings relating to harmony with LDRs and protection of public 
interest. 

Analysis 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 15 
 
 
  

1. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with 
the uses which, under these LDRs and the future land use element, are most likely to occur in the 
immediate area where located. 
 

In compliance  

2. The conditional use exactly as proposed at the location where proposed will be in harmony with 
existing uses in the immediate area where located. 
 

In compliance  

3. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in substantially less public benefit or greater 
harm than would result from use of the site for some use permitted by right or some other conditional 
use permitted on the site. 
 

In compliance 

4. The conditional use exactly as proposed will not result in more intensive development in advance 
of when such development is approved by the future land use element of the comprehensive plan. 
 

In compliance 

 

Section 23.2-29(e) Specific findings for all conditional uses.  
 

Analysis 

1.  The proposed conditional use will not generate traffic volumes or movements which will result 
in a significant adverse impact or reduce the level of service provided on any street to a level 
lower than would result from a development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance  

2.  The proposed conditional use will not result in a significantly greater amount of through traffic 
on local streets than would result from a development permitted by right and is appropriately 
located with respect to collector and arterial streets 

 

In compliance  

3.  The proposed conditional use will not produce significant air pollution emissions, or will 
appropriately mitigate anticipated emissions to a level compatible with that which would result 
from a development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance 

4.  The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to the thoroughfare system that 
neither extension nor enlargement nor any other alteration of that system in a manner 
resulting in higher net public cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from 
development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance 

5. The proposed conditional use will be so located in relation to water lines, sanitary sewers, 
storm sewers, surface drainage systems and other utility systems that neither extension nor 
enlargement nor any other alteration of such systems in a manner resulting in higher net public 
cost or earlier incursion of public cost than would result from development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance 

6.  The proposed conditional use will not place a demand on municipal police or fire protection 
service beyond the capacity of those services, except that the proposed facility may place a 
demand on municipal police or fire protection services which does not exceed that likely to 
result from a development permitted by right. 

 

In compliance 

7.  The proposed conditional use will not generate significant noise, or will appropriately mitigate 
anticipated noise to a level compatible with that which would result from a development 
permitted by right. Any proposed use must meet all the requirements and stipulations set forth 
in section 15.24, Noise control. 

 

In compliance 



 
PZB No. 22-01400004 (Ordinance 2022-17) 

P a g e  | 16 
 
 
  

8. The proposed conditional use will not generate light or glare which encroaches onto any 
residential property in excess of that allowed in section 23.4-10, Exterior lighting. 

 

In compliance 

 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT:  Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2023-02 - Second Reading - Amending Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 
2 “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce Housing Program” to 
provide clarification on the combination of incentives, qualifications for affordability, participation in other 
entity programs, and providing additional affordability buy down provisions 

 
SUMMARY: 

The subject ordinance would create additional affordability through buy down options in the City’s 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program, and modify the text of LDR Section 23.2-39 for clarity. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The recently adopted (10/6/2022) Ordinance 2022-12 created the City’s Affordable/Workforce Housing 
Program to encourage the development of affordable and/or workforce housing units within the City.  
The program allows several incentives, including a 15% density bonus and additionally flexibility in unit 
size, parking requirements and financial incentives provided that no less than 15% of the total dwelling 
units are deed restricted as affordable.  The City Commission subsequently directed staff to develop 
additional affordability buy down options.  Further, in the recent implementation of the ordinance, staff 
has identified some minor housekeeping changes that would provide additional clarity on the program’s 
implementation. The subject ordinance would both create the buy down options and modify the text of 
LDR Section 23.2-39 for clarity. 

The Planning Zoning Board voted to recommend approval of the proposed LDR amendments at their 
February 1, 2023 meeting. The HRPB also voted to recommend approval of the amendments at their 
February 8, 2023 meeting. 

The City Commission voted to approve the proposed LDR amendments unaminously at their March 21, 
2023 meeting, and to schedule the second reading and public hearing for April 4, 2023. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2023-02 amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 
Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce 
Housing Program” to provide clarification on the combination of incentives, qualifications for affordability, 
participation in other entity programs, and providing additional affordability buy downs provisions. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2023-02 
PZHP Staff Report 



2023-02 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2023-02 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 23 SECTION 23.2-4 
39 “AFFORDABLE/WORKFORCE HOUSING PROGRAM,” PROVIDING 5 
FOR CLARIFICATION ON COMBINATION OF INCENTIVES, 6 
QUALIFICATIONS FOR AFFORDABILITY AND PARTICIPATION IN 7 
OTHER ENTITY PROGRAMS AND PROVIDING FOR ADDITIONAL 8 

AFFORDABILITY BUY DOWN PROVISIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR 9 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE 10 
DATE 11 

 12 
WHEREAS, as provided in Section 2(b), Article VIII of the Constitution of the State 13 

of Florida, and Section 166.021(1), Florida Statutes, the City of Lake Worth Beach (the 14 
“City”), enjoys all governmental, corporate, and proprietary powers necessary to conduct 15 

municipal government, perform municipal functions, and render municipal services, and 16 
may exercise any power for municipal purposes, except as expressly prohibited by law; 17 
and  18 

 19 

WHEREAS, as provided in Section 166.021(3), Florida Statutes, the governing 20 
body of each municipality in the state has the power to enact legislation concerning any 21 

subject matter upon which the state legislature may act, except when expressly prohibited 22 
by law; and  23 

 24 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to amend Chapter 23, Article 2 “Administration,” to 25 
amend, Section 23.2-39 – Affordable/Workforce Housing Program to provide for 26 

additional buy down options for the affordable/workforce housing program within the City 27 

of Lake Worth Beach; and 28 

 29 
WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 30 

municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 31 

and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 32 
 33 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, in its capacity as the local planning 34 
agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public hearing; and 35 

 36 

WHEREAS, the Historic Resources Preservation Board, in its capacity as the local 37 
planning agency, considered the proposed amendments at a duly advertised public 38 
hearing; and 39 

 40 

WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 41 
ordinance is appropriate, and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the 42 
City, its residents and visitors. 43 

 44 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 45 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 46 
 47 
Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 48 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein. 49 
 50 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2023-02 

 

 51 

Section 2: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,”, Article 2 52 
“Administration,” Section 23.2-39 “Affordable/Workforce Housing Program” is hereby 53 
amended to read as follows: 54 

 55 

Sec. 23.2-39. – Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 56 
 57 

a) Intent. The Affordable/Workforce Housing Program is intended to implement 58 

Objective 3.1.2 of the city comprehensive plan future land use element and 59 
provisions therein regarding affordable and workforce housing. The 60 

Affordable/Workforce Housing Program provides for a density bonus and a 61 
reduction in overall housing unit areas for developments that incorporate 62 
residential units with restrictive covenants that meet the requirements of the 63 

program. 64 
 65 

b) Purpose. The purpose of the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program is to 66 

encourage the inclusion of affordable and workforce housing units within both 67 
residential and mixed-use projects as well as planned developments of all types to 68 

provide for broader and more accessible housing options within the City.  The 69 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program offers the following as “Program 70 
Incentives”. 71 

 72 
1.  Tier One: may apply to all development projects consistent with the 73 

provisions of this section 74 

(a)  Up to a fifteen percent (15%) increase in overall project density; 75 

(b)  Up to a fifteen percent (15%) reduction in the gross area requirements 76 
based on unit type; 77 

(c)  Up to a twenty five percent (25%) reduction in required parking, provided 78 

that each residential dwelling unit is provided at least one (1) parking 79 
space.  This reduction may not be combined with other parking 80 

reduction provisions of these LDRs; 81 
 (d)  Any additional density and/or other benefits provided under this tier 82 

shall require that those units benefiting from the provisions be restricted 83 
as affordable/workforce housing meeting the requirements of this 84 

section through a restrictive covenant. 85 
(e) Additional financial incentives may be considered on a case by case 86 

basis by the applicable decision-making entity if the project provides 87 

more affordable/workforce units that the minimum required. 88 
2. Tier Two: applies to all projects utilizing other city incentive and/or bonus 89 

program(s)  90 
(a) For all projects utilizing any other city incentive or bonus program(s), 91 

fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of dwelling units within the 92 
project must be restricted as affordable/workforce dwelling units 93 
meeting the requirements of this section through a restrictive covenant. 94 

(b) Any combination of Tier One incentives with other city incentive and/or 95 
bonus program(s) related to density, intensity and/or height shall 96 
require that all units benefiting from these increases and/or incentives 97 



Pg.3, Ord. 2023-02 
 

be restricted as affordable/workforce dwelling units meeting the 98 

requirements of this section through a restrictive covenant.  99 
3. Tier One and Tier Two Combination: applies to all projects that combine the Tier 100 

One Incentives with other available city incentives 101 
(a) For all projects combining a Tier One density incentive with other City incentive 102 

and/or bonus program(s) related to density, all units benefitting from the 103 

additional density incentive under Tier One shall be restricted as 104 
affordable/workforce dwelling units meeting the requirements of this section 105 
through a restrictive covenant in addition to the units required to be restricted 106 
under (Tier Two) other city incentive and/or bonus program(s). 107 

 108 
c) Application and Review Process. 109 

 110 

1. Application.  All development proposals seeking increased density of up to 111 

fifteen percent (15%) and/or reductions in overall unit sizes of up to fifteen 112 
percent (15%) shall submit an affordable/workforce housing program 113 
application as provided by the department of community sustainability.  The 114 
application shall accompany the standard City of Lake Worth Beach Universal 115 

Development Application for the development proposal. The 116 
affordable/workforce housing program application shall include all of the 117 

following: 118 
 119 
(a) A project fact sheet with building specifications including the number of 120 

additional units, unit types and unit sizes proposed. 121 
 122 

(b) The affordability criteria for each unit proposed to be included in the project. 123 
 124 

(c) Draft restrictive covenant should the City’s version not be submitted. 125 
 126 

(d) Any other additional information to ensure the timely and efficient evaluation 127 
of the project by city staff to ensure that the requirements of the 128 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program are being met. 129 

 130 
(e) Intent to meet the requirements of the Affordable/Workforce Housing 131 

Program through participation in another entity’s program, including 132 

relevant program criteria and restrictive covenant. 133 
 134 

2. Review/decision. The development review official shall review the application 135 

along with the zoning approvals otherwise required of the development 136 
proposal under these LDRs. Development applications that require further 137 
review or approval by a decision-making board shall also include the 138 
development review official's recommendation regarding the award of 139 

additional density and/or unit size reduction under the Affordable/Workforce 140 
Housing Program. Any decision on the award shall be made by the planning 141 
and zoning board, the historic resources planning board, or the city commission 142 
as applicable. A decision on an award may be appealed under the procedures 143 
applicable to the development application with which it is associated. No waiver 144 
or variance may be granted regarding the award. The award of bonus density, 145 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2023-02 

 

height or intensity under the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program shall be 146 

based on the following criteria: 147 
 148 
(a) Is the award calculated correctly, consistent with the density and unit size 149 

reduction(s) that are allowed under the Affordable/Workforce Housing 150 

Program, including that the affordable/workforce housing unit type mix be 151 
reflective of the overall unit type mix for the entire project; 152 
 153 

(b) Do the proposed income restrictions meet the intent of the 154 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program; 155 

 156 
(c) Do the proposed annual rents and/or mortgage costs meet the intent of the 157 

Affordable/Workforce Housing Program; and 158 

 159 
(d)  Do the proposed restrictive covenants to maintain affordability meet the 160 

intent of the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program? 161 

 162 
d) Qualifying income restrictions.  The following provisions outline the required 163 

income limits and overall percentage of household income to qualify units as being 164 
affordable/workforce under the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program.  All 165 
income values shall be based on the then current area (County) median household 166 

income published annually by the US Department of Housing & Urban 167 
Development.  Whether with a rental unit or for a fee simple, for sale unit, the 168 
overall housing expense (rent, mortgage, property taxes, and insurances) for the 169 

unit shall not exceed thirty percent (30%) of the income limit provided for each unit 170 

type, based upon the number of bedrooms. 171 
 172 

1. For a studio unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed forty five 173 

percent (45%) of area median income and minimum household size is one (1) 174 
person, not to exceed two (2) people. 175 

 176 

2. For a one-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed 177 
sixty five percent (65%) of the area median income and minimum household 178 
size of one (1) person, not to exceed two (2) people. 179 

 180 

3. For a two-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed 181 
eighty five percent (85%) of the area median income and minimum household 182 

size of two (2) people, not to exceed two (2) people per bedroom. 183 
 184 

4. For a three-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not exceed 185 
one hundred and five percent (105%) of the area median income and minimum 186 

household size of three (3) people, not to exceed two (2) people per bedroom. 187 
 188 

5. For a four or more-bedroom unit, the annual gross household income shall not 189 
exceed one hundred and twenty five percent (125%) of the area median income 190 
and minimum household size of four (4) people, not to exceed two (2) people 191 
per bedroom. 192 

 193 



Pg.5, Ord. 2023-02 
 

6. For fee simple ownership, the limits provided above may be increased by fifteen 194 

(15%) based on unit type and shall include the overall housing expense. 195 
 196 

7. Alternatively, if participating in another entity’s workforce (80% to 140% of Area 197 
Median Income) or affordable housing (less than 80% of Area Median Income) 198 
program, the income restrictions may adhere to the following guidelines shall 199 

not exceed the City’s income guidelines singularly or in combination with the 200 
alternative program for the units required to be income restricted under the 201 
City’s program.  The applicant also shall comply fully with the requisite criteria 202 
requirements of the alternative program selected. 203 

 204 

a. “Affordable Housing Eligible Households” means a household with an 205 
annual gross household income at or less than eighty percent (80%) of 206 

the Area Median Income, calculated as percentages of the Median 207 
Family Income for Palm Beach County, as published annually by the US 208 
Department of Housing and Urban Development. 209 
 210 

b. “Workforce Housing Eligible Households” means a household with an 211 

annual gross household income within the following income categories: 212 
Moderate (80%-100%) and Middle (101%-140%) of the Area Median 213 

Income, calculated as percentages of the Median Family Income for 214 
Palm Beach County, as published annually by the US Department of 215 
Housing and Urban Development. 216 

 217 
e) Additional restrictions.  The following requirements outline the restrictive covenant 218 

that shall be recorded and maintained on each unit awarded under the 219 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 220 

 221 

1. The restrictive covenant shall be in a legal form acceptable to the department 222 

of community sustainability and the city attorney’s office or as otherwise 223 
provided by the city and shall require each unit awarded be maintained at the 224 
awarded level of affordability, in accordance with the Affordable/Workforce 225 

Housing Program, for a minimum of twenty-five (2025) years. 226 
 227 

2. The restrictive covenant shall include the more restrictive program 228 

requirements, which shall govern the project if other affordable/workforce 229 
housing incentives are combined with use of the Affordable/Workforce Housing 230 
Program. 231 

 232 

3. The restrictive covenant shall require an annual report of the project’s 233 
compliance with the restrictive covenants and the requirements of the 234 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program be provided to the City or its designee 235 

for evaluation, review and approval.  Should the annual report not be submitted 236 
or should it demonstrate the project is not meeting the requirements of the 237 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program, the project owner shall pay the city, as 238 
a penalty, an amount no less than fifteen dollars ($15) per square foot for each 239 
unit that did not comply with the program’s requirements for the previous year, 240 
or portion thereof. If the report is not submitted, the penalty payment will be 241 



Pg. 6, Ord. 2023-02 

 

calculated as though no units met the requirements of the Affordable/Workforce 242 

Housing Program for the reporting period. The per square foot penalty value 243 
may increase based on the annual U.S. Consumer Price Index (CPI) and shall 244 
be reflected in the City’s adopted annual Schedule of Fees and Charges. Any 245 
required penalty payment shall be made within ten (10) days of notification from 246 

the city of the calculated payment based on the report or failure to submit the 247 
report and the annual penalty value as adopted by the city. 248 

 249 

4. The restrictive covenant shall provide for extension of the affordability period, 250 
as set forth in this section. If the property is qualified through its participation in 251 

another entity’s affordability program, a separate restrictive covenant may be 252 
utilized to provide for the extension of the affordability period in accordance 253 
with the terms of this section. 254 

 255 
f) Financial incentives.  The following are parameters for financial incentive values 256 

based on unit type, which may be utilized to ensure more than the required fifteen 257 

percent (15%) of the dwelling units available after the density increase incentive 258 
remain affordable for a guaranteed twenty-five (25) year period as governed 259 

through a covenant and/or deed restriction.  Values may be paid through utilization 260 
of Sustainable Bonus Incentive Values, Transfer Development Right Values or 261 
cash payments from the City from the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program 262 

Trust Fund, Sustainable Bonus Incentive Trust Account or the Transfer 263 
Development Rights Trust Account or other legally approved funding source(s). 264 
 265 

1. For a studio dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $40,000 or 50% percent of 266 

the area median income, whichever is greater; 267 
 268 

2. For a one-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $60,000 or 75% 269 

percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 270 
 271 

3. For a two-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $80,000 or 100% 272 
percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 273 

 274 

4. For a three-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $100,000 or 125% 275 

percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 276 
 277 

5. For a four or more-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $120,000 or 278 

150% percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 279 
 280 

6. For a fee simple ownership dwelling unit, an additional one-time payment of 281 
$25,000 may be provided; and 282 

 283 
7. Payments shall be made at time of dwelling units receiving a final certificate of 284 

occupancy or certificate of completion. 285 
 286 

g) Affordability extension(s).  The City shall have the express right, in its sole 287 

discretion, to extend the affordability deed restrictions and covenants for another 288 
period of no less than twenty-five (25) years) through the provision of a then current 289 



Pg.7, Ord. 2023-02 
 

economic incentive payment based on unit size. The affordability extension shall 290 

be available to the City pursuant to this subsection regardless of whether the 291 
original affordability period was under the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program 292 
or another entity’s program. 293 
 294 

1.  The City shall provide formal notice of intent to extend affordability of units a 295 

minimum of six (6) months prior to the expiration of the affordability deed 296 
restrictions and covenants. 297 
 298 

2. The City’s notice shall include the number and type of units having affordability 299 
extended and the economic incentive to be provided for those units. 300 

 301 
3. The affordability extension may not exceed the original number and type of 302 

units governed by the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 303 
 304 

4. There shall be no limit on the number of affordability extensions the city may 305 
fund for a project. 306 

 307 

5. The extension incentive payment shall follow the parameters as set forth in f) 308 
of this section based on the values established for the year that the extension 309 

is authorized. 310 
 311 
6. Financial incentives and buy-down options, if part of the original approval, may 312 

each also be extended by mutual agreement of the City and the property 313 
owner(s) and payment by the City under the provisions of those sections at the 314 

time of the extension. 315 
 316 

7. If the original affordability period was under another entity’s program, upon the 317 
City’s notice of intent to extend affordability the covenant and/or deed restriction 318 

may be extended as-is or may be amended to comply with the provisions of the 319 
Affordable/Workforce Housing Program instead of the other entity’s program, 320 
consistent with the provisions in the original recorded covenant and/or deed 321 

restriction providing for the affordability extension.  322 
 323 

h) Additional Buy Down Provisions for Affordability. The following are parameters for 324 

additional buy down values based on unit type, which may be utilized to reduce 325 
the individual unit type household income limits by an additional fifteen percent 326 
(15%) in order to provide expanded affordability for a guaranteed twenty-five (25) 327 

year period as governed through a covenant and/or deed restriction. Values will 328 
be paid as cash payments from the City from the Affordable/Workforce Housing 329 
Program Trust Fund or other legally approved funding source(s).  330 
 331 

1. For a studio dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $40,000 or 50% percent 332 
of the area median income, whichever is greater; 333 

 334 

2. For a one-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $60,000 or 75% 335 
percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 336 

 337 



Pg. 8, Ord. 2023-02 

 

3. For a two-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $80,000 or 100% 338 

percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 339 
 340 

4. For a three-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $100,000 or 341 
125% percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 342 

 343 

5. For a four or more-bedroom dwelling unit, a one-time payment of $120,000 344 
or 150% percent of the area median income, whichever is greater; 345 

 346 

6. For a fee simple ownership dwelling unit, an additional one-time payment 347 

of $25,000 may be provided; and 348 
 349 

7. Payments shall be made at time of dwelling units receiving a final certificate 350 

of occupancy or certificate of completion. 351 
 352 

i) Policies and Procedures.  The city’s director for community sustainability is hereby 353 

authorized to establish policies and procedures including covenants, accountability 354 
and reporting to ensure effective implementation of the Affordable/Workforce 355 

Housing Program and clarify the requirements and procedures as set forth herein. 356 
 357 

j) Trust Fund. There is hereby established an Affordable/Workforce Housing 358 

Program Trust Fund. The trust fund will be a separate line item in the City’s budget.  359 
 360 
1. Payments required by the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program due to non-361 

compliance with restrictive covenants shall be paid into the trust fund.  362 

 363 
2. Funds in the trust fund will be used to fund the financial incentives and the 364 

affordability extensions under the Affordable/Workforce Housing Program. 365 

 366 
3. At least once each fiscal period, the city manager shall present to the city 367 

commission a report on funds held in the trust fund, including any accrued 368 
interest, and any proposed use thereof.  Monies, including any accrued interest, 369 
not assigned in any fiscal period shall be retained in the trust fund until the next 370 
fiscal period. 371 

 372 
k) In Lieu Payment Provision.  In some instances, projects including Density, Intensity 373 

and/or Height Bonuses may not be appropriate for participation in the Program.  In 374 

these cases, the project may pay an in lieu of payment based on the following 375 
provisions; 376 

1. The fee shall be calculated on fifteen percent (15%) of the gross area of the 377 
bonuses requested for the project. 378 

2. The fee shall be a one-time payment of $50 or 0.0625% of the area median 379 
income, whichever is greater, per gross square foot. 380 

3. Projects eligible for an in lieu of payment may include the following: 381 
i. Single or multiple use projects that do not include a residential use; 382 
ii. Mixed use projects that include residential and fewer than 25 383 

residential units; 384 
iii. Residential only projects that include fewer than 15 residential units; 385 



Pg.9, Ord. 2023-02 
 

iv. Any project that includes a residential use(s) and all of the dwelling 386 

units are for sale, home ownership such as condominiums, 387 
townhouses and/or single-family residences of which none are deed 388 
restricted as affordable/workforce housing. 389 

4. Fee payment shall be due prior to issuance of any building permits related 390 
to the project. 391 

 392 
l) Exemptions.  Projects in specific locations are exempt from the requirements of 393 

this section due to their maximum allowed density and/or to their allowed uses.   394 
1. Individual residential dwelling units in the Single Family Residential (SF-R) 395 

and Single Family/Two Family Residential (SF/TF) Zoning Districts unless 396 

units are part of a project requesting additional densities under the 397 
provisions of one of the city’s incentive programs. 398 

2. Projects within the Public (P), Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS), 399 
Beach and Casino (BAC), Conservation (C) and Industrial Park of 400 
Commerce (I-POC) Zoning Districts. 401 

 402 
Section 4: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 403 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 404 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 405 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 406 
portions thereof.  407 

 408 

Section 5:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 409 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 410 

 411 
Section 6: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 412 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 413 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 414 

any other appropriate word. 415 
 416 
Section 7: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 417 

passage. 418 
 419 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Vice Mayor McVoy, 420 

seconded by Commissioner Diaz, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 421 
 422 
Mayor Betty Resch AYE   423 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 424 
Commissioner Sarah Malega ABSENT 425 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 426 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 427 

 428 
The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 429 

21st day of March, 2023. 430 
 431 

 432 



Pg. 10, Ord. 2023-02 

 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 433 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 434 
the vote was as follows: 435 

 436 
Mayor Betty Resch  437 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  438 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  439 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  440 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  441 
 442 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 443 
_____________________, 2023. 444 

 445 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 446 
 447 
 448 

By: __________________________ 449 
Betty Resch, Mayor 450 

 451 
ATTEST: 452 
 453 

 454 
____________________________ 455 
Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 456 

 457 



 
City Of Lake Worth 

Department for Community Sustainability 

Planning, Zoning and Historic Preservation Division 

1900 Second Avenue North · Lake Worth · Florida 33461· Phone: 561-586-1687  
  

 

DATE:  January 23, 2023  
 
TO:  Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards 
 
FROM:  William Waters, Director Community Sustainability 
 
MEETING:  February 1 & 8, 2023 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2023-02: Consideration of an ordinance amending Chapter 23 “Land Development 

Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,” Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-39 
“Affordable/Workforce Housing Program” to provide clarification on the combination of 
incentives, qualifications for affordability, participation in other entity programs, and providing 
additional affordability buy downs provisions. 

 

 
PROPOSAL / BACKGROUND/ ANALYSIS: 
The recently adopted (10/6/2022) Ordinance 2022-12 created the City’s Affordable/Workforce Housing Program 
to encourage the development of affordable and/or workforce housing units within the City.  The program allows 
several incentives, including a 15% density bonus and additionally flexibility in unit size, parking requirements and 
financial incentives provided that no less than 15% of the total dwelling units are deed restricted as affordable.  
The City Commission has subsequently directed staff to develop additional affordability buy down options.  Further, 
in the recent implementation of the ordinance, staff has identified some minor housekeeping changes that would 
provide additional clarity on the program’s implementation. 
 
The proposed ordinance would amend the recently adopted new section of the LDR in Chapter 23 of the City’s 
Code of Ordinances: 

 Article 2, Section 23.2-39 – Affordable/Workforce Housing Program 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that 
the City Commission adopt Ordinance 2023-02. 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION: 
 
I move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text 
amendments included in Ordinance 2023-02. 
 
Attachments 

A. Draft Ordinance 2023-02 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT:  Community Sustainability 

TITLE: 

Ordinance 2023-03 & 2023-04 - Second Reading - A City-initiated small-scale Future Land Use Map 
(FLUM) amendment (Ordinance 2023-03) and a Zoning Map amendment (Ordinance 2023-04) on behalf 
of For The Children Inc (Lessee) located on City owned property at 1718 South Douglas Street 

 
SUMMARY: 

The proposed City-initiated FLUM amendment would amend the FLU designation for approximately 
4.65 acres (2 subject properties) from the Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) FLU to the Public 
(P) FLU. The proposed concurrent rezoning request would amend the zoning district on the subject 
properties from the Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) zoning district to the Public (P) zoning 
district. The proposed map amendments would recognize the existing educational and community uses, 
and would allow for the expansion of facilities and use area on the site. 

The proposed FLUM amendment is eligible for processing as a small-scale future land use map (FLUM) 
amendment per F.S. 163.3187.  If adopted, the proposed FLUM amendment would be transmitted to 
the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) upon adoption and become effective 31 days 
after adoption if not challenged within 30 days. The effective date of the rezoning would be the same 
day as the concurrent FLUM amendment.  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The FLUM and Zoning Map amendments are proposed on property owned by City of Lake Worth Beach 
with a portion (4.62 acres) that is leased to the non-profit organization, For the Children, Inc.  The historic 
Osborne School is located on this property.  For The Children has a secured a grant to expand the 
facilities to provide additional services to children in the area and to rehabilitate the existing historic 
structure.  In addition to the new facilities, the project will include an interactive educational component 
about The Osborne School, which is listed on the National Register of Historic Places for its role in the 
history of public education in Lake Worth Beach. The Osborne School is the only public school to be 
built for African-American students in the City. The school served residents of the City’s segregated 
African-American Osborne neighborhood between 1948 and 1971. The subject amendments are 
corrective as the current uses are not permitted in the PROS zoning district, and would not allow the 
future expansion of site’s facilities and use area.   

The staff report was prepared in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 163 of the Florida 
Statutes, and provides the required, relevant and appropriate data based the City’s community goals 
and vision and consistency with level of service requirements.  The amendment is supported by and is 
consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Land Development Regulations, and Strategic Plan 
as described in the data and analysis contained in the attached advisory board staff report.   There is 
no fiscal impact for this proposed amendment as the property’s ownership and use is not proposed to 
be changed, and the proposed FLU and zoning district is Public (P). 

The Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed future 
land use map and zoning map amendments to the City Commission at their March 1, 2023 meeting. 

The City Commission voted unanimously to approve the proposed future land use map and zoning map 
amendments at their March 21, 2023 meeting, and to schedule second reading/adoption on April 4, 
2023.. 



 
 

 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2023-03 approving a City-initiated small-scale Future Land Use 
Map (FLUM) amendment (Ordinance 2023-03) on behalf of For The Children Inc (Lessee) located on 
City owned property at 1718 South Douglas Street and to transmit the adopted amendment to the 
Department of Economic Opportunity. 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2023-04 approving a City-initiated Zoning Map amendment on 
behalf of For The Children Inc (Lessee) located on City owned property at 1718 South Douglas Street. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Ordinance 2023-03 
Ordinance 2023-04 
PZB Staff Report 



2023-03 1 

 2 

 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-03 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 4 

BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE 5 

PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP THROUGH A SMALL SCALE 6 

MAP AMENDMENT FROM THE FUTURE LAND USE (FLU) 7 

DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE 8 

(PROS) TO THE PUBLIC (P) FLU DESIGNATION ON THE 9 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE EAST SIDE OF 10 

SOUTH DOUGLAS STREET, WEST OF THE FEC RAILWAY, 11 

SOUTH OF LATONA AVENUE, AND NORTH HILLBRATH DRIVE 12 

AT 1718 SOUTH DOUGLAS STREET, AND AS MORE 13 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; PROVIDING THAT 14 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES ARE REPEALED; PROVIDING 15 

FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 16 

 17 

 18 

WHEREAS, the Florida Local Government Comprehensive Planning and 19 

Land Development Regulation Act, section 163.3220, et seq., Florida Statutes, 20 

requires each municipality to adopt a comprehensive plan, including a future land 21 

use map and authorizes amendments to an adopted comprehensive plan; and 22 

 23 

WHEREAS, this is a City-initiated request for two (2) parcels with a total 24 

of 4.65 acres described in Exhibit A (the “Property”) attached hereto and 25 

incorporated herein, for a small-scale map amendment to change the future land 26 

use designation of the property; and 27 

 28 

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and reviewed an amendment to the 29 

Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to change the land use 30 

designations of the property described below from a City of Lake Worth Beach 31 

future land use designation of Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) to a 32 

City future land use designation of Public (P); and  33 

 34 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2023, the City Planning and Zoning Board, sitting 35 

as the duly constituted Local Planning Agency for the City, recommended 36 

approval of the Future Land Use Map Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan of 37 

the City; and 38 

 39 

WHEREAS, the amendment qualifies and meets the criteria to be 40 

reviewed and approved as a small scale map amendment in accordance with 41 

section 163.3187, Florida Statutes; and 42 

 43 

WHEREAS, the City Commission acknowledges that this Future Land Use 44 

Map Amendment is subject to the provisions of Section 163.3187, and 163.3189, 45 

Florida Statutes, and that the City shall maintain compliance with all provisions 46 

thereof; and 47 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2023-03 
 

 

 48 

WHEREAS, the City has received public input and participation through 49 

hearings before the Local Planning Agency and the City Commission in 50 

accordance with Section 163.3181, Florida Statutes; and 51 

 52 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that the adoption of this 53 

Ordinance is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of the City of Lake 54 

Worth Beach. 55 

 56 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF 57 

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 58 

 59 

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and ratified. 60 

 61 

Section 2. The property of land more particularly described in Exhibit A is 62 

hereby designated Public (P) on the City’s Future Land Use Map in Exhibit B. 63 

 64 

Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 65 

repealed. 66 

 67 

Section 4. If any provision of this ordinance, or the application thereof to any 68 

person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other 69 

provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the 70 

invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance 71 

are declared severable, 72 

 73 

Section 5.  The effective date of this small scale map amendment shall be thirty-74 

one (31) days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies the City that 75 

the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this amendment 76 

does not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or the 77 

Administration Commission enters a final order determining the adopted 78 

amendment to be in compliance.. 79 

 80 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Vice Mayor 81 

McVoy, seconded by Commissioner Stokes, and upon being put to a vote, the 82 

vote was as follows: 83 

  84 

Mayor Betty Resch AYE  85 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 86 

Commissioner Sarah Malega ABSENT 87 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 88 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 89 

  90 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2023-03 

 

 91 

 92 

 The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading 93 

on the 21st day of March, 2023. 94 

 95 

 The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 96 

Commissioner _________, seconded by Commissioner ___________, as 97 

amended and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 98 

 99 

Mayor Betty Resch  100 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 101 

Commissioner Sarah Malega 102 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 103 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 104 

 105 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the __ day 106 

of ____, 2023. 107 

 108 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 109 

 110 

 111 

By: _________________________ 112 

Betty Resch, Mayor 113 

 114 

ATTEST: 115 

 116 

 117 

_________________________ 118 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk 119 

 120 



 
Exhibit A 

Property Location 
 
Address: 1718 South Douglas Street 

PCN: 38-43-44-34-00-000-3020 (4.62 acres) & 38-43-44-34-03 -000-0310 (0.03 acres) 

Size: 4.65 acres 

General Location: East side of South Douglas Street, west of the FEC Railway, south of Latona 
Avenue, and north of Hillbrath Drive. 

 

 



 
Exhibit B 

 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment 

From: Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) 
To: Public (P) Future Land Use Designation 

 

From: PROS 
To: Public (P)  



2023-04 1 

 2 

 3 

ORDINANCE NO. 2023-04 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 4 

BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY’S OFFICIAL ZONING 5 

MAP FROM THE ZONING DISTRICT OF PUBLIC RECREATION 6 

AND OPEN SPACE (PROS) TO PUBLIC (P) ON THE 7 

PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE EAST SIDE OF 8 

SOUTH DOUGLAS STREET, WEST OF THE FEC RAILWAY, 9 

SOUTH OF LATONA AVENUE, AND NORTH HILLBRATH 10 

DRIVE AT 1718 SOUTH DOUGLAS STREET, AND AS MORE 11 

PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; PROVIDING THAT 12 

CONFLICTING ORDINANCES ARE REPEALED; PROVIDING 13 

FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 14 

 15 

 16 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, 17 

Florida, pursuant to the authority granted in Chapters 163 and 166, Florida 18 

Statutes, and the Land Development Regulations, as adopted by the City of Lake 19 

Worth Beach, is authorized and empowered to consider amending the City’s 20 

Official Zoning Map; and 21 

 22 

WHEREAS, this is a City-initiated request for a zoning map amendment 23 

to change the zoning district of the properties as more particularly described in 24 

Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Property”); 25 

and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and reviewed an amendment to the 28 

City’s Official Zoning Map to change the zoning district of the properties 29 

described below from Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) to Public (P), 30 

pursuant to the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development Regulations and 31 

Comprehensive Plan; and  32 

 33 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2023, the City Planning and Zoning Board, sitting 34 

as the duly constituted Local Planning Agency for the City, considered a 35 

concurrent future land use map (FLUM) amendment to the P future land use; 36 

 37 

WHEREAS, on March 1, 2023, the City Planning and Zoning Board, sitting 38 

as the duly constituted Local Planning Agency for the City, recommended 39 

approval of the subject zoning map amendment to the City’s Official Zoning Map; 40 

and 41 

 42 

WHEREAS, the City has received public input and participation through 43 

hearings before the Local Planning Agency and the City Commission in 44 

accordance with Section 163.3181, Florida Statutes; and 45 

 46 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2023-04 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and 47 

evidence and has determined that rezoning meets the rezoning review criteria of 48 

the Land Development Regulations, Section 23.2-36 and is consistent with the 49 

City’s Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan. 50 

 51 

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and 52 

evidence and has determined that the adoption of this Ordinance is in the best 53 

interest of the citizens and residents of the City of Lake Worth Beach. 54 

 55 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF 56 

THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 57 

 58 

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and ratified. 59 

 60 

Section 2.   The two (2) parcels of land (4.65 acres) more particularly described 61 

in Exhibit A is hereby designated Public (P) on the City’s Official Zoning Map. 62 

 63 

Section 3.   The City’s zoning maps shall be updated to reflect the changes to 64 

the property described in Exhibit B. 65 

 66 

Section 4.   Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances 67 

in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 68 

 69 

Section 5.   Severability.  If any provision of this ordinance or the application 70 

thereof is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not 71 

affect other provisions of the ordinance which can be given effect without the 72 

invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance 73 

are declared severable. 74 

 75 

Section 6.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon the 76 

same day 77 

as the concurrent Future Land Use Map amendment (Ordinance 2023-03). Per 78 

Florida Statute 163.3187. The Future Land Use Map amendment (Ordinance 79 

2023-03) shall be effective 31 days after adoption provided there is no challenge. 80 

 81 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by 82 

Commissioner Stokes, seconded by Vice Mayor McVoy and upon being put to a 83 

vote, the vote was as follows: 84 

 85 

Mayor Betty Resch  AYE 86 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy AYE 87 

Commissioner Sarah Malega ABSENT 88 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE 89 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz AYE 90 

 91 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading 92 

on the 21st day of March 1, 2023. 93 



Pg. 3, Ord. 2021-04 

 

 94 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 95 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to 96 

a vote, the vote was as follows: 97 

 98 

Mayor Betty Resch  99 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy 100 

Commissioner Sarah Malega  101 

Commissioner Kimberly Stokes 102 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz 103 

 104 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the 105 

_______ day of _____________________, 2023. 106 

 107 

 108 

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 109 

 110 

 111 

By: __________________________ 112 

Betty Resch, Mayor  113 

ATTEST: 114 

 115 

 116 

________________________ 117 

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk118 



 119 

Exhibit A 120 

Property Location 121 
 122 
Address: 1718 South Douglas Street 123 

PCN: 38-43-44-34-00-000-3020 (4.62 acres) & 38-43-44-34-03 -000-0310 (0.03 acres) 124 

Size: 4.65 acres 125 

General Location: East side of South Douglas Street, west of the FEC Railway, south of Latona 126 
Avenue, and north of Hillbrath Drive. 127 

 128 

 129 



 130 

Exhibit B 131 

Amended Zoning District 132 

Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) to Public (P) Zoning District  133 

 134 

 135 



 

Report Created and Reviewed by the Department for Community Sustainability 

Project Contact: Erin Sita, AICP, Assistant Director | esita@LakeWorthBeachFl.gov | 561.586.1617 

 
  

  
 

 
 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD REPORT 

 

PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001: City-initiated small-scale Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment 
(Ordinance 2023-03) and Zoning Map amendment (Ordinance 2023-04) on behalf of For The Children Inc 
(Lessee) requesting for the property located at 1718 South Douglas Street:   

 A corrective FLUM amendment from the Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) FLU to the Public (P) 
FLU; and, 

 A corrective rezoning from the Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) zoning district to the Public (P) 
zoning district. 

 

 

Transmittal Date: February 22, 2023 

Meeting Date:  March 1, 2023 

Property Owner: City of Lake Worth Beach 

Address: 1718 South Douglas Street 

PCN: 38-43-44-34-00-000-3020 (4.62 acres) & 
38-43-44-34-03 -000-0310 (0.03 acres) 

Size: 4.65 acres 

General Location: East side of South Douglas 
Street, west of the FEC Railway, south of 
Latona Avenue, and north of Hillbrath Drive. 

Existing Land Use: Charitable organization 
offering child care, educational support and 
community center uses (4.62 acres); and 
vacant (0.03 acres) 

Current Future Land Use Designation: Public 
Recreation and Open Space (PROS) 

Proposed Future Land Use Designation: 
Public (P) 

Current Zoning District: Public Recreation 
and Open Space (PROS) 

Proposed Zoning District: Public (P)  

 

 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY 
Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division 

1900 2ND Avenue North 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461 

561-586-1687 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 2 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

 

The data and analysis in support of the proposed FLUM amendment was prepared in accordance with F.S. 163.3177.  The 
proposed FLUM amendment is consistent with the purpose, intent, and requirements of the Comprehensive Plan, 
including the level of service requirements and the Strategic Plan. Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning and 
Zoning Board recommend to the City Commission to adopt the proposed small scale FLUM amendment (PZB/HRPB 23-
00300001). 
 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, and the guidelines and standards found 
in the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development Regulations (LDRs). Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning 
and Zoning Board recommend to the City Commission to approve the proposed rezoning request (PZB/HRPB 23-
01300001). 
 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

 

The proposed City-initiated FLUM amendment is a corrective amendment that would amend the FLU designation for 

approximately 4.65 acres (subject property) from the Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS) FLU to the Public (P) 

FLU. The proposed concurrent rezoning request would amend the zoning district on the subject property from the Public 

Recreation and Open Space (PROS) district to the Public (P) district. The proposed map amendments would recognize 

the historic use of the property as an educational institution and provide for greater flexibility for future expansions.  

The applicant has a received grant funding to expand its facilities, which includes a historic preservation component, to 

better serve local families. Furthermore, the amendments are supported by and are consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and City Strategic Plan as described in the respective Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan Analysis sections of 

this report for each request.  

 
The data and analysis section of this staff report for the FLUM amendment was prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of F.S. 163.3177 and provides relevant and appropriate data based on the City’s community goals and 
vision and consistency with level of service requirements. The proposed FLUM amendment is eligible for processing as 
a small-scale future land use map amendment per F.S.163.3187. If adopted, the proposed amendment would be sent 
to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) upon adoption and become effective 31 days after adoption 
if not challenged within 30 days.  
 
The data and analysis section of this staff report for the concurrent Zoning Map amendment analyzes the proposed 
request for consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, and LDR Section 23.2-36(4): Review Criteria 
for the Rezoning of Land. 

 

COMMUNITY OUTREACH  

Staff has not received letters of support or opposition for these applications.  

BACKGROUND  

 
The proposed FLUM and Zoning Map amendments include two parcels owned by the City of Lake Worth Beach with a total 
4.65 acres.  For The Children Inc is located on the larger parcel (4.62 acres) that contains The Osborne School.  For The Children 
has a secured a grant to expand the facilities to provide additional services to children in the area and to rehabilitate the 
existing historic structure.  In addition to the new facilities, the project will include an interactive educational component 
about The Osborne School, which is listed on the National Register of Historic Places for its role in the history of public 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 3 
 

education in Lake Worth Beach. The Osborne School is the only public school to be built for African-American students in the 
City. The school served residents of the City’s segregated African-American Osborne neighborhood between 1948 and 1971.  
 
In 1917, a five-block, ten-acre neighborhood in Lake Worth Beach located west of the FEC railroad and Dixie Highway was 
reserved for Black laborers and their families. The original plat entered in the Palm Beach Land Records was labeled “Osborne 
Colored Addition to Lake Worth.” The name Osborne was presumably derived from nearby Lake Osborne. Original residents 
of the Osborne neighborhood moved to this area from the Bahamas and South Georgia. Family surnames of these original 
settlers included Glinton, Gibson, Jackson, Knowles, and Grimes. After 1922, several residents moved to the Osborne 
neighborhood from Lantana, which had passed an ordinance prohibiting “members of the colored races and people of foreign 
birth” from owning property in the town.  
 
Although the Osborne neighborhood was laid out in 1917, the Palm Beach County Board made no provision for the local 
education of the residents’ school-age children. Until the early 1940s, most African-American students in Lake Worth were 
bused to segregated schools in Delray Beach, nearly 15 miles to the south.  By the 1940s, population growth in Palm Beach 
County spurred the construction of several schools for African-American students. On August 13, 1945, the Palm Beach 
County Board of Public Instruction authorized the purchase of land in the Osborne section of Lake Worth scheduled for sale 
for tax delinquency. The Board declared that the land was to be used for a public elementary school.  
 
On February 25, 1947, the Board of Public Instruction authorized drawing up plans for a new Osborne School. The Board 
instructed its architect, Edgar S. Wortman, to utilize surplus lumber from the newly decommissioned Camp Murphy. 
Wortman, who was the unofficial architect for the Palm Beach County School Board, was responsible for many other schools 
in the county (including Pahokee School, Riviera Beach Junior High School, and part of Palm Beach High School) during the 
1930s and 1940s. 
 
Lake Worth Beach was hit by a severe hurricane on September 16, 1947. At a special meeting of the Palm Beach County 
Board of Instruction, the Board noted that the Osborne School was one of several in the county badly damaged by the 
hurricane and needed to be replaced by a more permanent building. On October 17, 1947, Wortman submitted a new set of 
plans for the Osborne School, utilizing concrete block construction instead of wood frame. 
 
The Osborne school quickly became a center of the African-American community’s educational and social life and was a 
source of community pride. Many of its teachers were locally trained and educated. The school closed in 1971, but reopened 
as a Head Start and community education facility in 1980. In 1985, the property was purchased by the City of Lake Worth 
Beach, and then leased to local community groups, who operated the school as an after-school training and educational 
facility.  For The Children Inc began operating an after school program in 2000.  
 
Source: Osborne School – National Register of Historic Places Registration Form 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP (FLUM) AMENDMENT ANALYSIS 

 
The proposed Public (P) FLU for the subject properties is compatible with the High Density Residential and Artisanal 
Mixed Use FLU designations of surrounding properties. The following outlines the FLU designations for the adjacent 
areas: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 4 
 

Subject 
Property FLU 

Adjacent 
Direction 

Adjacent Future Land Use 
 

Existing Use(s) 

Public 
Recreation and 

Open Space 

North High Density Residential Single Family, Two-Family, 
Multi-Family, and Vacant 

South Outside of City Limits N/A 

East  Artisanal Mixed Use  Vacant and Utilities 

West High Density Residential Single Family, Two-Family, and 
Multi-Family 

 
The Public (P) zoning district implements the Public (P) future land use category of the Lake Worth Beach Comprehensive 
Plan.  The Public zoning district is specifically used for public school, institutional, community and public uses; and, 
provides land development regulations for publicly owned lands.  As the district allows for a diversity of uses, the 
expansion of existing uses and the approval of new uses requires board approval at a public hearing to ensure community 
notice and comment on the use of public lands.  The subject amendments to the FLUM and rezoning would allow for the 
site to be expanded as an after school educational facility and community center use with additional classrooms, 
assembly space, parking, and sports recreation for the students and staff. The current and historic use of the site is not 
permitted in the PROS zoning district.  Expansion of these educational and community uses would help the City of Lake 
Worth Beach achieve educational, cultural, and historic preservation goals enumerated in its Strategic Plan and as 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan 
The proposed FLUM amendments are consistent and in support of the following associated Objectives and Policies of 

the City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed amendment is amending the subject site from one 

public land use category to another.  The underlined text emphasizes key concepts, strategies and objectives within 

these objectives and policies that are furthered by the subject amendments.  

1.  FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT 

 
Objective 1.1.2: Future Land Use Map and Criteria for Delineating Land Use Designation Boundaries 

The City of Lake Worth Future Land Use Element contains a system of land use designations. 
The Future Land Use Map allocates those land uses spatially to outline the desired future 
development pattern for the City of Lake Worth 
. 

Policy 1.1.2.13:  Locational Criteria for the Public and Public Recreation and Open Designations 
  
  The Public and Public Recreation and Open Space land use designations are mapped on sites 

where such uses already exist. The mapping of these uses on these sites indicates that no 
alternative use of these sites should be established without a properly considered and 
enacted Future Land Use Map amendment.  Public school sites have been delineated in 
areas proximate to residential land. Lands contiguous to school sites which are owned by 
the School Board, and proposed for school expansion are intended to be included in this 
category. The City retains the right to impose reasonable site planning standards when 
existing schools are proposed for expansion or new school sites are developed. Schools are 
allowed in all zoning districts except Industrial. 

 
Goal 1.2:  To strive to foster the City of Lake Worth as a livable community where live, work, play and 

learn become part of the daily life of residents and visitors. 
 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 5 
 

GOAL 1.3:  To preserve and enhance the City’s character as a quality residential community and 
business center within Palm Beach County’s urban area 
 

GOAL 1.4:  Encourage preservation and rehabilitation of natural, historic and archaeological resources 
and where appropriate restrict development that would damage or destroy these 
resources. 

 
Objective 1.4.2:  To provide for the protection, preservation or sensitive reuse of historic resources. Policy 

1.4.2.1: The City shall refine and maintain regulations to provide for protection, 
preservation or sensitive reuse of designated historic neighborhoods and historic sites listed 
on the National Register, Local Designation and/or Florida Site File. 

2.  EDUCATION ELEMENT 

Goal 10.1: Advocate for the educational needs of the citizens of Lake Worth by fostering and 
further developing relationships between the City, Non-Profit partners, Colleges and 
Universities, Government Entities and the School District of Palm Beach County (the 
District). 

 
OBJECTIVE 10.1.4: The City shall work to promote an approach to education that is coordinated with 

ancillary facilities such as: parks, libraries, recreational facilities, and Non-profit 
agencies. 

 
Policy 10.1.4.2: The City shall encourage the location and development of facilities such as university 

campuses, testing centers, private educational facilities, satellite educational programs, 
magnet facilities, teaching universities, and technical centers that will enhance the 
educational opportunities in Lake Worth for children and adults alike. These public and 
private facilities shall be located in areas that meet the location criteria and site 
development conditions adopted in the Land Development Regulations. 

 
3.  HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOODS ELEMENT 

 
Policy 3.3.1.7: Strengthen the positive attributes and distinctive character of each neighborhood to 

help sustain Lake Worth as a healthy, vital City.  
 

 Strengthen the sense of place in each neighborhood with adequate and well-

designed, public facilities such as libraries, schools, recreation centers, fire stations 

and streetscapes.   

 Continue to support public art and historic preservation as a focus for 

neighborhood identity and pride.  

 Recognize that every neighborhood has assets that identify that neighborhood and 

contribute to the well-being of the people who live there. Understand what those 

are and look for opportunities to enhance them and leverage them for 

neighborhood improvement. Assets include trees, large yards, schools, people and 

independent businesses. 

 
 
 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 6 
 

4. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT 
 
Policy 11.1.7.1: The City shall encourage education and training institutions to provide education and 

research programs that meet the needs of targeted cluster industries, and encourage 
supplemental education to support existing businesses and programs to stimulate new 
business development.  

 
Consistency with the Strategic Plan 
The proposed amendments further the City’s Strategic Plan that is committed to building a vibrant and diverse economy, 
planning thoughtfully for the future, and support the Strategic Pillars of positioning Lake Worth Beach to be a competitive 
viable location of choice, strengthening Lake Worth Beach as a “Community of Neighborhoods,” and navigating towards 
a sustainable community. 
 
Specifically, the proposed amendments are consistent with the following Strategic Plan Pillars: 
 
Pillar I: Positioning Lake Worth Beach to be a competitive viable location of choice 
A: Ensure effective economic development incentives and zones 
E: Provide superior public amenities and services to retain existing and entice new residents and businesses 
 
Pillar II: Strengthening Lake Worth Beach as a ‘Community of Neighborhoods’ 
D: Preserve the character and protect historic resources. 
F: Deliver sustainable indoor-outdoor leisure opportunities (Parks and Open Spaces). 
 
Pillar IV: Navigating Towards a Sustainable Community 
D: Influence the supply and expansion of jobs.  
E: Ensure facility placement, construction and development that anticipates and embraces the future.  
 
Level of Service Analysis   
Pursuant to Chapter 163 of the Florida Statutes, any FLU amendment must be evaluated to determine if the proposed 
future land use will have a significant impact on the long-range level of service (LOS) for public facilities (i.e. drainage, 
potable water, wastewater, solid waste, parks, schools, and traffic) that service the property and the surrounding area. 
The LOS for public facilities is analyzed based on the maximum development potential for the existing and proposed FLU, 
and whether or not each public facility has capacity to accommodate any additional demands.  
 
According to the City’s Comprehensive Plan, there is no change in the potential development. The existing Public 
Recreation and Open Space (PROS) FLU maximum development potential is 0 du/acre and the proposed Public FLU is 
also 0 du/acre. Public FLU generates the same demands as Public Recreation and Open Space FLU. Community facilities 
and services are available in the area to sustain the future demands and long-range Level of Service (LOS) can be met 
with current and planned system capacities. The following table provides a LOS summary. 

 
FLUM AMENDMENT LOS SUMMARY TABLE 

 

Type of Facility: Existing FLU Designations: 
(at 0 du/acre for Public 

Recreation and Open Space) 

Proposed FLU Designations: 
(at 0 du/acre for Public) 

Drainage 
 
 

3-year, 1-hour storm duration, as 
recorded in the FDOT Drainage Manual 

IDF curves, current edition and fully 
contained onsite. 

Both FLU designations meet the 3 yr. – 1 hr. 
drainage LOS requirements. Site improvements 
may be required to provide drainage collection 

and conveyance systems to positive outfall. 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 7 
 

Potable Water 
105 gpcpd (gallons per capita per day). 

 
The City facilities have available capacity to 

accommodate both FLU designations. 

Sanitary Sewer 
  

Collection and treatment of 100 gallons 
per capita per day at secondary treatment 

level, or 250 gallons per ERU per day. 
 
 

The City facilities have available capacity to 
accommodate both FLU designations. 

 

Solid Waste 

Collection and disposal of 6.5 pounds of 
solid waste per capita per day. 

 
 

The Solid Waste Authority has available capacity 
to accommodate the demand of both FLU 

designations.   
 

Parks 

2.5 acres of community parks for every 
1,000 persons and 2.0 acres of 

neighborhood parks for every 1,000 
persons. 

 
Public Use 

No increase in demand. 

Public Use 
No increase in demand / No density  

Expansion of the existing facilities are planned to 
be added in the future on this property, which 

would include some recreational facilities. 
 

Schools 

 
Public Use 

No Increase in School Capacity Required. 
 

 
Public Use 

No Increase in School Capacity Required/ No 
density 

 

Traffic 
Site historically utilized as school, 

recreational, and community center uses. 
 

This item is a corrective amendment.  The 
expansion of the site’s facilities in the future would 
be subject to review by the City Engineer, and PBC 
County-wide concurrency to ensure any additional 
uses and structures will meet required levels of 
service by both the City and Palm Beach County. 

 
 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT ANALYSIS 

 
Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan 
The subject property currently has a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Public Recreation and Open Space (PROS).  Per 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element Policy 1.1.1.11, the PROS land use category “designates locations for 
parks and other outdoor open space areas intended for active use or passive use. Sites designated in the Public Recreation 
and Open Space category should not be used for other than public recreation purposes or essential services without 
careful consideration of the most appropriate use and a properly enacted amendment to the land use plan. The 
implementing zoning district is PROS.” The property’s historic use as an educational site is not consistent with the current 
PROS zoning district.  While the site does offer some recreational opportunities, the primary use has been as school or 
as educational program for local children. The intention is to change the zoning district of the property from PROS to 
Public (P) with a concurrent FLUM change from the current PROS future land use to Public (P) future land use (FLU) to 
better reflect the existing use of the site, and allow for expansion of the use over time.  Approval of the FLU map 
amendment and rezoning request would allow For The Children Inc to improve the site while being consistent with the 
intent of the requested zoning district and future land use designation.    



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 8 
 

 
Additionally, the proposed changes to the property’s Zoning District and FLU Designation are consistent with Future Land 
Use Element Policy 1.1.2.13 (Locational Criteria for the Public and Public Recreation and Open Designations) as this 
site is adjacent to residential uses to the north and west.  Future Land Use Element Goal 1.2 states: “To strive to foster 
the City of Lake Worth as a livable community where live, work, play and learn become part of the daily life of residents 
and visitors.”  Approval of the rezoning request would be consistent with the educational and community uses and would 
be in keeping with the intent of Goal 1.2.    
 
Furthermore, the Education Element Policy 10.1.4.2 provides for encouragement of the location and development of 
educational facilities that will enhance the educational opportunities in Lake Worth Beach.  
 
The City’s Strategic Plan sets goals and ideals for the City’s future vision and lays out methods to achieve them.  Pillar 
Two, Section F seeks to “Collaborate with schools to foster rich, diverse and culturally enriching educational opportunities 
for all”.  Approval of the rezoning will result in the continued educational use of the site as well as opportunities to expand 
in concert with the permitted uses under the Public Zoning District.  These expansions will allow for more diverse 
programs that can be implemented on site and in keeping with the City’s Strategic Plan. Additionally, the proposal, if 
approved, would be consistent with Strategic Plan Pillar I. A and E ensuring effective economic development and superior 
public amenities and services, and Strategic Plan Pillar IV. D and E influencing the supply and expansion of jobs, and 
ensuring facilities that anticipate and embrace the future.  
 
Consistency with the City’s Land Development Regulations 
Rezoning of the subject site will reflect the current educational use of the property and allow for future educational 
development of the property.  Schools are not permitted in the PROS zoning district which is inconsistent with the historic 
use of the property. The property is adjacent to residential uses on the north and west sides and would be subject to the 
development regulations for sites adjacent to residentially zoned lands (Section 23.3-26.c.1-5).   
 

The LDRs also require all rezoning requests with a concurrent Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment be analyzed for 
consistency with the review criteria in Section 23.2-36(4).  Staff’s full analysis of the review criteria is provided below.  
The analysis demonstrates that the proposed rezoning complies with the review criteria and that the required findings 
can be made in support of the rezoning.  

 
Section 23.2-36(4): Review Criteria for the Rezoning of Land 

The Department of Community Sustainability is tasked in the Code to review rezoning applications for consistency with 
the findings for granting rezoning applications in LDR Section 23.2-36 and to provide a recommendation for whether the 
application should be approved, approved with conditions, or denied.  

 

At the hearing on the application, the Planning and Zoning Board or Historic Resources Preservation Board shall consider 
the rezoning/FLUM amendment application and request, the staff report including recommendations of staff, and shall 
receive testimony and information from the petitioner, the owner, city staff, and public comment. At the conclusion of 
the hearing, the Board shall make a recommendation on the rezoning/FLUM amendment request to the City Commission.  

 

The land development regulations require all rezoning requests with a concurrent FLUM Amendment be analyzed for 
consistency with Section 23.2-36(4).  Staff has reviewed the rezoning against this section and has determined that the 
rezoning complies with the following review criteria: 

 
a. Consistency: Whether the proposed rezoning amendment would be consistent with the purpose and intent of the 
applicable comprehensive plan policies, redevelopment plans, and land development regulations. Approvals of a request 
to rezone to a planned zoning district may include limitations or requirements imposed on the master plan in order to 
maintain such consistency. 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 9 
 

 
Analysis: If the FLUM amendment and the rezoning are approved, the new P zoning district would be consistent with the 
existing uses on the property, and further the purpose and intent of the P FLU designation. Additionally, the existing 
educational, recreational and community uses on the site are consistent with both the P FLU designation and P zoning 
district.  Meets Criterion. 

 
b. Land use pattern. Whether the proposed FLUM amendment would be contrary to the established land use pattern, or 
would create an isolated land use classification unrelated to adjacent and nearby classifications, or would constitute a 
grant of special privilege to an individual property owner as contrasted with the protection of the public welfare. This 
factor is not intended to exclude FLUM amendments that would result in more desirable and sustainable growth for the 
community. 
 
Analysis: The rezoning request will not be contrary or incompatible to the established land pattern, nor will it create an 
isolated zoning district unrelated to the adjacent and nearby classifications or constitute a grant of special privilege to the 
petitioner as contrasted with the protection of the public welfare.  The proposed Public zoning district is consistent with 
the current and future use of the property. Both the current and proposed zoning districts are for publicly owned lands. 
Below is a table outlining the existing zoning and future land use designations of adjacent properties. Meets Criterion. 

 

Subject 
Property FLU 

Adjacent 
Direction 

Adjacent Future Land 
Use Designations 

Adjacent Zoning 
Districts 

 
Existing Use 

Public 
Recreation 
and Open 

Space 

North High Density 
Residential 

Single-Family and 
Two-Family 
Residential 

Single Family, Two-
Family, Multi-Family, and 

Vacant 

South Outside of City Limits Outside of City Limits N/A 

East Artisanal Mixed Use  Artisanal Industrial Vacant and Utilities 

West High Density Residential Single-Family and 
Two-Family 
Residential 

Single Family, Two-Family, 
and Multi-Family 

 
c. Sustainability: Whether the proposed rezoning would support the integration of a mix of land uses consistent with 
smart growth or sustainability initiatives, with an emphasis on 1) complementary land uses; 2) access to alternative 
modes of transportation; and 3) interconnectivity within the project and between adjacent properties. 

 
Analysis: The rezoning request supports the integration of a mix of land uses consistent with smart growth and 
sustainability initiatives with an emphasis on complementary land uses.  Approval of the rezoning request would reflect 
existing educational land use of the Osborne School.  Further, the proposed rezoning would allow the City to benefit from 
increased efficiency and the proximity of educational services on already-developed land that compliments the existing 
educational, community and recreational uses and facilities.  The uses immediately surrounding the properties are 
primarily single-family residential, and multi-family residential.  The site’s existing uses are considered complementary 
uses in function and nature to residential uses. Approval of the rezoning will allow for continuation of these 
complementary uses.  Meets Criterion. 
 
d. Availability of public services/infrastructure: Requests for rezoning to planned zoning districts shall be subject to 
review pursuant to section 23.5-2. 
 
Analysis: This criterion is only applicable to requests to rezone land to a planned zoning district.  As this request seeks 
approval to rezone the subject properties to the conventional Public zoning district and not a planned development 
district, this criterion does not apply.  Criterion not applicable. 
 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 10 
 

e. Compatibility: The application shall consider the following compatibility factors: 
 
1.  Whether the proposed FLUM amendment would be compatible with the current and future use of adjacent and 

nearby properties, or would negatively affect the property values of adjacent and nearby properties. 

 
Analysis: The proposed Public (P) FLU for the subject property is compatible with the residential and mixed-use FLU 

designations of surrounding properties and will not affect the property values of the neighborhoods. The existing zoning 

district of the subject site is not reflective of the current uses on the site.  Rezoning of the subject site and the land use 

change to Public would be consistent with the current use of the site, allow for future modernization/expansion, and 

restoration of the historic structure.  Meets Criterion. 

 
f. Direct community sustainability and economic development benefits: For rezoning involving rezoning to a planned 
zoning district, the review shall consider the economic benefits of the proposed amendment, specifically, whether the 
proposal would: 

1. Further implementation of the city's economic development (CED) program; 

2. Contribute to the enhancement and diversification of the city's tax base; 

3. Respond to the current market demand or community needs or provide services or retail choices not locally 
available; 

4. Create new employment opportunities for the residents, with pay at or above the county average hourly wage; 

5. Represent innovative methods/technologies, especially those promoting sustainability; 

6. Support more efficient and sustainable use of land resources in furtherance of overall community health, 
safety and general welfare; 

7. Be complementary to existing uses, thus fostering synergy effects; and 

8. Alleviate blight/economic obsolescence of the subject area. 

 
Analysis: The rezoning request does not include rezoning to a planned zoning district nor does it have a concurrent site 
plan application in review at this time.  As such, this criterion is not applicable.  Criterion not applicable. 
 
g. Economic development impact determination for conventional zoning districts: For rezoning to a conventional zoning 
district, the review shall consider whether the proposal would further the economic development program, and also 
determine whether the proposal would: 

1. Represent a potential decrease in the possible intensity of development, given the uses permitted in the 
proposed land use category; and 

2. Represent a potential decrease in the number of uses with high probable economic development benefits. 

 

Analysis: The proposed rezoning to the P zoning district will not result in a decrease in development intensity or of a public 

amenity for the neighborhood. The education use is consistent with the City’s goal to encourage education and training 

institutions to provide education and research programs and support existing businesses and programs to stimulate new 

business development.  Meets Criterion. 

 
h. Commercial and industrial land supply. The review shall consider whether the proposed FLUM amendment would 
reduce the amount of land available for commercial/industrial development. If such determination is made, the approval 
can be recommended under the following conditions:  

1. The size, shape, and/or location of the property makes it unsuitable for commercial/industrial development; or  
2. The proposed FLUM amendment provides substantiated evidence of satisfying at least four (4) of the direct 

economic development benefits listed in subparagraph "f" above; and  
3. The proposed FLUM amendment would result in comparable or higher employment numbers, building size and 

valuation than the potential of existing land use designation. 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 11 
 

 
Analysis: If approved, the proposed rezoning will not result in a reduction of land available for commercial and 
industrial development. Commercial (apart from recreational) and industrial uses are not permitted under the existing 
zoning. Therefore, the change from PROS to P zoning district would not reduce or change the commercial and industrial 
development potential of the subject properties.   Meets Criterion. 
 
i. Alternative sites. Whether there are sites available elsewhere in the city in zoning districts which already allow the 
desired use. 
 
Analysis: The purpose of the rezoning request is to reflect the long-standing existing uses on the subject properties as a 
Public use. As such the proposed P rezoning is appropriate for the subject properties.  Meets Criterion. 
 
j. A Master plan and site plan compliance with land development regulations. When master plan and site plan review 
are required pursuant to section 2.D.1.e. above, both shall comply with the requirements of the respective zoning district 
regulations of article III and the site development standards of section 23.2-32.  

 

Analysis: The rezoning request does not require or include a concurrent site plan application as it is a corrective 
amendment.  As such, this criterion is not applicable.   

 

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made in support of the rezoning.  Therefore, the proposed 
rezoning is consistent with the review criteria for rezoning as outlined in LDR Section 23.2-36.   

 
CONCLUSION 

 

The proposed FLUM amendment request is consistent with the purpose, intent, and requirements of the Comprehensive 
Plan. The proposed rezoning is also consistent with the purpose, intent, and requirements of the Comprehensive Plan 
and LDRs. Therefore, staff recommends that the Board recommend approval to the City Commission of both the FLUM 
amendment and the Zoning Map amendment based on the data and analysis in this report and the findings summarized 
below: 

 The amendments are consistent with the existing uses of the subject property, and would allow for future 
expansion of these uses, which would provide additional educational, recreational, and cultural resources and 
opportunities for the City’s residents;  

 The amendments are supported by and are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and City Strategic Plan as 
described in the respective Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan Analysis sections of this report; 

 The FLUM amendment is supported by data and analysis prepared in accordance with the requirement of F.S. 
163.3177 that provides relevant and appropriate data based on the City’s community goals and vision and 
consistency with level of service requirements; and 

 The Zoning Map amendment is consistent with the proposed FLUM amendment. 
 

 
BOARD POTENTIAL MOTION:   

 
I MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 of the proposed 
amendments to the Future Land Use Map and the Zoning Map based on the data and analysis in the staff report and the 
testimony at the public hearing. 
 
I MOVE TO NOT RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 of the proposed 
amendments to the Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map as the proposal is not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan and Strategic Plan for the following reasons [Board member please state reasons.] 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 12 
 

 
Consequent Action: The Planning and Zoning Board will be making a recommendation to the City Commission on the 
FLUM and Zoning Map amendment requests. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Current FLU Map of property  

B. Proposed FLU Map of property  

C. Current Zoning Map of property  

D. Proposed Zoning Map of property  

E. DRAFT Ordinance 2023-03 

F. DRAFT Ordinance 2023-04 

  



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 13 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
Current FLU Map of Subject Properties 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 14 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
Proposed FLU Map of Subject Properties 

 
 

  



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 15 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
CURRENT ZONING MAP 

 



PZB 23-00300001 & 23-01300001 

P a g e  | 16 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
PROPOSED ZONING MAP 

 

 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: City Wide 

TITLE: 

Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Geotechnical Category   

 
SUMMARY: 

Continuing Contracts for Professional Services for Geotechnical category with Tierra South Florida, Inc, 
Radise International LLC, GFA International, Inc dba Universal Engineering Services and Terracon 
Consultants, Inc consistent with Florida’s Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act (CCNA)  

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City of Lake Worth Beach has a requirement for professional consulting firms to provide civil 
engineering, geotechnical engineering, surveying, architecture, hydrogeological services, energy 
management and engineering services. The services consist of engineering studies, reports, design and 
construction phase services for capital improvements projects and other needs within the municipal limits 
of the City of Lake Worth Beach and the water and electric utility service areas.  The City desires to 
establish “continuing contracts” with a manageable number of firms for each engineering category, with 
the intent of affording the City a diverse consultant base, and to facilitate the issuance of engagements 
for studies, design, engineering, construction inspection and other services across a range of CCNA 
disciplines. 

The City issued Request for Qualifications RFQ#23-300 to acquire select professional services for the 
City consistent with the Florida’s Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act (CCNA) (section 287.055, 
Florida Statutes). The RFQ included seven different engineering service categories: Architecture, Civil 
Engineering for Water and Transportation; Geotechnical, Hydrogeological Sciences, Surveying and 
Energy Management and Engineering Services. It is the intent of the City to award multiple non-exclusive 
agreements for the initial period of three years with the possibility to extend the agreements for three 
additional one-year terms.  

The City received 60 qualifications from interested firms across all categories.  
 
The City assembled Evaluation Committees comprised of City staff for each of the seven categories that 
met publicly to evaluate received qualifications. The first step of the evaluations included shortlisting of 
the firms based on the personnel availability, capability, experience and skill, firm’s past performance, 
client management, past terminations and litigations and evidence of veteran business enterprise, small 
business and local business preference. Shortlisted firms were invited to prepare presentations at the 
final evaluation meeting. Evaluation Committees evaluated shortlisted firms after their presentations 
based on firm’s ability of professional personnel, evidence of successful past performance for similar 
projects, recent and current workload and location/convenience to City staff and recommended the 
awards tor each of the categories.  

For the Geotechnical category, the City received 5 qualification submittals. The Evaluation Committee 
shortlisted all five firms for presentations and in the final evaluation meeting recommended award to four 
firms: Tierra South Florida, Inc, Radise International LLC, GFA International, Inc dba Universal 
Engineering Services and Terracon Consultants, Inc. City staff negotiated rates with each of the 
recommended firms.   



 

 
 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove to enter into Agreements for Continuing Contracts for professional services 
for Geotechnical category with Tierra South Florida, Inc, Radise International LLC, GFA International, 
Inc dba Universal Engineering Services and Terracon Consultants, Inc 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Shortlist Results Geotechnical   
Final Results Geotechnical   
Tierra South Florida, Inc, Agreement  
Radise International,LLC, Agreement  
GFA International, Inc dba Universal Engineering Services Agreement  
Terracon Consultants, Inc Agreement  
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
 

RFQ#23-300 Continuing Contracts for Professional Services 
 

Evaluation Committee Meeting – Shortlisting Results 
Geotechnical  

 
 
The following firms have been shortlisted by the Evaluation Committee to proceed to 
presentation meeting: 

 
COMPANY              TOTAL         RANK 

Tierra South Florida     490   1  
Radise      449   2 
Terracon     446   3 
GFA International, Inc.,  
dba Universal Engineering Sciences   415   4 
AE Engineering    373   5 
 
     
 
Attachments: 
 
Evaluation Sheet for RFQ # 23-300 Continuing Contracts for Professional Services 
(CCNA) Civil Engineering – Geotechnical  
  

     
 
 

  



RANKED: 5 4 2 3 1

Weight A & E GFA dba UES Radise Terracon TSF

1 Evidence of personnel availability, capability, experience and 
skill 35 136 158 165 168 172

2 Successful past performance for similar projects & 
accountability 35 139 156 166 170 170

3 Client Management and Project Staffing Plan 20 82 86 93 93 98

4 Terminations and/or litigation(if statement not provided – 0 
points) 5 16 15 25 15 25

5

Evidence of veteran business enterprise, small business or local 
business preference
(documents must be provided to claim preference) Completed & 
verified by Purchasing Division 

5 0 0 0 0 25

373 415 449 446 490

submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted
submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

Exhibit "G" -  Veteran Bus. Enterprise, Small Bus. Local Bus. Preference 
no. does not meet LWB 

requirements* n/a
No. Not compliant with LWB 

policy. * n/a yes/small business
default, termination, litigation statement submitted submitted submitted submitted submitted

MBE/DBE business *W/MBE business

Exhibit "F" -  Scrutinized Companies Certification
Exhibit "E" - Campaign Contribution Statement 

Exhibit "B" -  Respondent Information Form

Exhibit "D" - References

         City of Lake Worth Beach 
                 Evaluation Matrix - Shortlisting 

Shortlist Evaluation Criteria Score Sheet:

Total Points Received:  

RFQ # 23-300   Continuing Contracts for Professional Services (CCNA) - Geotechnical

Exhibit "C" - Drug Free Workplace Form



RANKED: 1 1 4 3 5

Weight Tierra South Florida Radise Terracon GFA Int. dba Universal 
Engineering Sciences AE Engineering 

1 Ability of professional personnel 35 139 137 136 134 128

2  Evidence of successful past performance for similar projects 35 137 140 131 132 127

3 Recent, current workload 15 60 59 55 57 53

4 Location/Convenience to City staff 15 60 60 60 60 57

396 396 382 383 365

         City of Lake Worth Beach 
                Final Evaluation Matrix - Oral Presentations

Oral Presentation Evaluation Criteria Score Sheet:

Total Points Received:  

RFQ # 23-300   Continuing Contracts for Professional Services (CCNA) - Geotechnical 



Page 1 of 26 

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

RFQ#23-300  

(Geotechnical) 

THIS CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on 

_______________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation 

(“City”) and Tierra South Florida, Inc. dba TSFGeo, a corporation registered to do business in the State 

of Florida (“CONSULTANT”).   

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City issued Request for Qualifications (No. 23-300) for civil engineering, 

geotechnical engineering, surveying, architecture, hydrogeological services, transportation and mobility 

planning, energy management and engineering services, construction management and project management 

and related professional services in accordance with the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act, section 

287.055, Florida Statutes (“RFQ”); and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT submitted its qualifications in response to the RFQ; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to award the RFQ to the CONSULTANT based on CONSULTANT’s 

qualifications and experience to provide Geotechnical services; and 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has significant experience in assisting municipal organizations 

in providing engineering services; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal agencies, in which 

case, the CONSULTANT agrees that any services performed pursuant to the RFQ and this Agreement  will 

comply with all applicable Federal law, Federal regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, 

and directives and special clauses as provided for in Exhibit “C”; and 

 WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for the 

provision of services by the CONSULTANT to the City; and, 

WHEREAS, the City finds entering this Agreement with the CONSULTANT serves a valid public 

purpose.   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the 

sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and the CONSULTANT agree as follows: 

SECTION 1:  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this 

Agreement by reference and acknowledged as true and correct statements.  

SECTION 2:  CONSULTANT’S SERVICES.  The City has awarded the CONSULTANT the non-exclusive 

right to provide the City with Geotechnical services (“services”). 

SECTION 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP.  No relationship of employer or 

employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that CONSULTANT will act hereunder as an 

independent contractor and none of the CONSULTANT’s, officers, directors, employees, independent 

contractors, representatives or agents performing services for CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement shall 

have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any kind under this 

Agreement. The relationship between the City and CONSULTANT is that of independent contractors, and 



 

Page 2 of 26 

 

neither shall be considered a joint venturer, partner, employee, agent, representative or other relationship of the 

other for any purpose expressly or by implication.  

 

SECTION 4:  TERM, TIME AND TERMINATION.  

(a) Term.  This non-exclusive Agreement shall become effective upon approval by the City 

Commission and execution by the City, and shall have an initial term of three (3) years with three (3) 

optional, one (1) year renewals. The City Manager is authorized to exercise the optional one (1) year 

renewals. Each fiscal year of this Agreement and any renewals will be subject to the availability of funds 

lawfully appropriated for its purpose by the City Commission. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this 

Agreement may be terminated as stated herein. The term may be extended by written agreement of the 

parties for further services related to those services identified herein. 

 

(b) Time for Completion.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. The 

CONSULTANT shall at all times carry out its duties and responsibilities as expeditiously as possible and 

in accordance with the project schedule set forth by the City.   

 

(c) Force Majeure.  Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to perform hereunder due 

to any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as acts of God, wars, riots, national emergencies, 

sabotage, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, and governmental laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, epidemic 

or pandemic.  The CONSULTANT or City may suspend its performance under this Agreement as a result 

of a force majeure without being in default of this Agreement, but upon the removal of such force majeure, 

the CONSULTANT or City shall resume its performance as soon as is reasonably possible. Upon the 

CONSULTANT’s request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the services 

and, if the CONSULTANT’s failure to perform was without its or its sub-consultants’ fault or negligence, 

the schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Agreement may be revised accordingly, subject to 

the City’s rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the services at any time.  No extension shall be 

made for delay occurring more than seven (7) days before a notice of delay or claim therefore is made in 

writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) notice of delay or claim is 

necessary. 

  

(d) Termination without cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with 

or without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination.   

  

(e) Termination for cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the event 

that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material breach of any term or 

condition of this Agreement. The party electing to terminate this Agreement shall provide the other party 

with written notice specifying the nature of the breach.  The party receiving the notice shall then have three 

(3) days from the date of the notice in which to remedy the breach. If such corrective action is not taken 

within three (3) days, then this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three (3) day period without 

further notice or demand. 

  

(f) Early Termination. If this Agreement is terminated before the completion of all services by 

either party, the CONSULTANT shall: 

 

1. Stop services on the date and to the extent specified including without limitation services 

of any sub-consultants. 

 

2. Transfer all work in progress, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated 

services to the City in the format acceptable to City. 

 

3. Continue and complete all parts of the services that have not been terminated. 

 



 

Page 3 of 26 

 

 (g) Effect of Termination.   Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights, 

obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to termination. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the City is a municipal corporation 

and political subdivision of the state of Florida, and as such, this Agreement is subject to budgeting and 

appropriation by the City of funds sufficient to pay the costs associated herewith in any fiscal year of the 

City. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that no funds are appropriated 

or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any fiscal year to pay the costs associated with the City’s 

obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the funds budgeted or appropriated are, or are estimated 

by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs associated with the City’s obligations hereunder in any fiscal 

period, then the City will notify CONSULTANT of such occurrence and either the City or CONSULTANT 

may terminate this Agreement by notifying the other in writing, which notice shall specify a date of 

termination no earlier than twenty-four (24) hours after giving of such notice.  Termination in accordance 

with the preceding sentence shall be without penalty or expense to the City of any kind whatsoever; 

however, City shall pay CONSULTANT for all services performed under this Agreement through the date 

of termination.  

  

SECTION 5:  COMPENSATION.   

 

  (a) Fee Schedule.  The fee schedule attached as Exhibit “B” shall remain firm for the first 

three (3) years of this Agreement. After the first three (3) years, the CONSUL TANT may request a change 

to the fee schedule. No changes to the fee schedule shall occur unless approved in writing by the City, 

which may be by an approved an amendment signed by the City Manager. The fee schedule shall be the 

basis for all fees proposed by the CONSUL TANT and in any approved task order. 

 

 (b) Task Order(s).  This non-exclusive Agreement does not guarantee that the City will utilize 

CONSULTANT in any capacity or for any services identified herein. When the City identifies a need for 

the CONSULTANT’s services, the City will request a proposal from the CONSULTANT to provide the 

services requested. The CONSULTANT’s proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample task 

order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A” and shall be based on the CONSULTANT’s 

currently hourly fee set forth in the CONSULTANT’s proposal and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. If a 

sub-consultant(s) is to be utilized for services under a task order, the CONSULTANT shall obtain a written 

proposal from the sub-consultant(s) and attach the same with to the CONSULTANT's proposal submitted 

to the City. Upon receipt of the CONSULTANT’s proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion 

whether to award the task order to the CONSULTANT. Depending on the lump sum, not to exceed amount 

of each proposed task order, the task order may be awarded by the City Manager (if within her purchasing 

authority of $50,000 or less) or the City Commission. If the task order is awarded to the CONSULTANT, 

the CONSULTANT shall commence the identified services upon receipt of a Notice to Proceed from the 

City or upon the CONSULTANT's receipt of a fully executed task order for the services. The City reserves 

the right to reject any and all proposals submitted by the CONSULTANT.  

 

  (c) Invoices. Unless otherwise agreed in an issued Task Order, the CONSULTANT shall 

render monthly invoices to the City for services that have been rendered in conformity with this Agreement 

in the previous month. The invoices shall specify the services performed and the time spent on such work. 

All reimbursable expenses shall also be clearly identified on the invoice with supporting documentation. 

Invoices will be paid within thirty (30) days following the City’s receipt of the CONSULTANT’s invoice. 
 

 (d)  Reimbursable Expenses. The CONSUL TANT's reimbursable, out-of-pocket expenses 

including, but not limited to, travel, per diem and other living expenses, shall be identified in an approved 

task order. The City shall not be responsible for payment of any such reimbursable, out-of-pocket expenses 

except as provided for in an approved task order or amendment thereto. Reimbursement for mileage shall 

only be for travel required outside of Palm Beach County. CONSULTANT shall not be reimbursed for 



 

Page 4 of 26 

 

travel within Palm Beach County and all travel shall be proposed and reimbursed pursuant to section 112. 

061, Florida Statutes. 

 

 (e)  Direct Project Expenses. Unless otherwise specifically stated in an approved task order, 

charges for printing, reproduction, use of computer-aided design equipment, field equipment, and any 

laboratory analysis performed by the CONSULTANT or its subconsultants or its subcontractors, and the 

use of the CONSULTANT’s and employee’s automobiles shall be identified in an approved task order. The 

City shall not be responsible for payment of any other direct project expenses. All direct project expenses 

shall be billed at cost to the City and the CONSULTANT shall not mark-up or charge an administrative fee 

in addition to the direct cost for such expenses. 

 

 (f)  Additional Services. If the City seeks to utilize the CONSULTANT for any additional 

services related to the services identified herein, the City and CONSULTANT will meet and negotiate a 

reasonable fee for such services. The negotiated fee shall be approved by the City in the form of an 

Amendment prior to said services being provided. 

 

 (g)  Status Report. The CONSULTANT shall complete and submit a technical summary and 

budgetary status report with each invoice at no additional cost to the City (format may be provided by City 

or CONSULTANT for each approved task order). 

 

(h)  Fiscal Non-funding. In the event sufficient budgeted funds are not available for a new fiscal 

period, the City shall notify the CONSULTANT of such occurrence and this Agreement shall terminate on 

the last day of the current fiscal period without penalty or expense to the City. The CONSULTANT will be 

paid for all services rendered through the date of termination. 

 

SECTION 6: TERMS OF PERFROMANCE  

 

(a) Starting Work. The CONSULTANT will not begin any of the services until authorized in 

writing by a Notice to Proceed from the City or upon the CONSULTANT’s receipt of an approved Task 

Order for the services. 

 

(b) Ownership of Documents. The drawings, specifications, calculations, supporting documents, or 

other work products which are prepared for the City by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement, a City 

issued Task Order, or amendments thereto (“Work Product”), shall be and shall become the property of the 

City upon delivery or completion by the CONSULTANT or receipt of payment from the City for the same. 

The CONSULTANT may keep copies or samples thereof and shall have the right to use such Work Product. 

The City accepts sole responsibility for its reuse of any Work Product in a manner other than as initially 

intended, or for any use of incomplete Work Product unless prior written approval is obtained from the 

CONSULTANT. 

 

(c) Accounting Records. The CONSULTANT’s accounting records, insofar as they pertain to 

invoicing the City or for disbursements made from the CONSULTANT’s account for services under this 

Agreement, shall be open to City’s inspection and audit at the CONSULTANT’s office upon reasonable 

prior notice and during normal business hours. Backup documentation for out-of-pocket expenses 

exceeding Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) each shall be available at the CONSULTANT’s office. These 

records will be retained by the CONSULTANT for five (5) years after the calendar year in which the 

services to which they pertain were rendered or the disbursements were made. 

 

(d ) Approval of Changes. The City, through the City Manager must approve in writing any changes 

in the scope of services which result in additional costs or expenses to the City, extension of the schedule 

or which would change the underlying purpose of the services. Changes include, but are not limited to, 

issuing additional instructions, requesting additional work, direct omission of work previously ordered, or 

changes in time of performance. 



 

Page 5 of 26 

 

 

(e) Authorized Representative. Before starting work, the CONSULTANT shall designate an 

authorized representative acceptable to the City to represent and act for the CONSULTANT and shall 

inform the City in writing of the name and address of such representative together with a clear definition 

of the scope of their authority. The CONSULTANT shall keep the City informed of any subsequent changes 

in the foregoing. The authorized representative of the City shall be the City Manager or designee. 

 

(f) Design/Construction Phase Services.  Visits to construction sites and observations made by the 

CONSULTANT as part of construction phase services, if any, shall not relieve the construction 

contractor(s) of obligation to conduct comprehensive inspections of the work sufficient to insure 

conformance with the intent of the construction contract documents, and shall not relieve the construction 

contractor(s) of full responsibility for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 

procedures necessary for coordinating and completing all portions of the work under the construction 

contract(s) and for all safety precautions incidental thereto. Safety precautions administered by the 

CONSULTANT, if any, to protect the CONSULTANT’s personnel shall meet those policies enacted by 

the City. Further, CONSULTANT shall endeavor to make reasonable efforts to guard the City against 

defects and deficiencies in the services of the construction contractor(s) and to help determine if the 

provisions of the construction contract documents are being fulfilled. This paragraph does not, however, 

release the CONSULTANT from any liability which might be attributable to its negligent acts, errors, or 

omissions, including but not limited to design, construction phase services, or other services as defined in 

this Agreement, of the CONSULTANT.   

 

(g) Personnel.  The CONSULTANT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 

necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be 

employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall 

be performed by the CONSULTANT or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the 

services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform 

such services. The CONSULTANT shall furnish services in a manner consistent with industry standards 

and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable in the industry with regard to services of this kind. 

All of the CONSULTANT’s personnel (and all subconsultants) while on City premises, will comply with 

all City requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request 

replacement of any of CONSULTANT’s personnel furnished by the CONSULTANT upon written notice 

by City to CONSULTANT of the cause for such replacement. 

  

(h) Conflict of Interest.  The CONSULTANT represents that it presently has no interest and shall 

acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of 

services required hereunder, as provided for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The CONSULTANT 

further represents that no person having any such conflicting interest shall be employed for said 

performance. The CONSULTANT shall promptly notify the City’s representative, in writing, of all 

potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance which 

may influence or appear to influence the CONSULTANT’S judgment or quality of services being provided 

hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or 

circumstance, the nature of work that the CONSULTANT may undertake and request an opinion of the 

City as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a 

conflict of interest if entered into by the CONSULTANT. The City agrees to notify the CONSULTANT of 

its opinion within thirty (30) days of receipt of notification by the CONSULTANT. If, in the opinion of the 

City, the prospective business association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest 

by the CONSULTANT, the City shall so state in the notification and the CONSULTANT shall, at its option, 

enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with 

respect to services provided to the City by the CONSULTANT under the terms of this Agreement. 

 



 

Page 6 of 26 

 

(i) News Releases / Publicity.  The CONSULTANT shall not make any news releases, publicity 

releases, or advertisements relating to this Agreement or the services hereunder without prior written City 

approval.  

 

SECTION 8:  CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES  
 

(a) Service of Others. The City shall furnish to the CONSULTANT, if required for 

performance of the Consultant’s services, all available data prepared by or the result of the services of 

others, including without limitation (as may be appropriate):  building plans and related drawings, core 

borings, probings, and subsurface explorations, hydraulic surveys, laboratory tests, and inspections of 

samples, materials, and equipment, appropriate professional interpretations of all of the foregoing; 

environmental assessments and impact statements, appropriate professional interpretations of all of the 

foregoing; property boundary, easement, rights-of-way, topographic and utility surveys; property 

descriptions; zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions; and any other special data or consultations 

relating to the Project.   

 

(b)  Examine Work of the Consultant. Within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services 

of the CONSULTANT, the City shall examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, 

proposals, and other documents presented by the CONSULTANT, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance 

counselor, or other consultants, as the City deems appropriate, for such examinations and the rendering, if 

required, of written opinions pertaining thereto. 

 

SECTION 9: SUSPENSION BY CITY FOR CONVENIENCE. The City may, at any time without cause, 

order CONSULTANT in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt its services in whole or in part for such 

period of time as City may determine for City’s convenience. Such order shall be by written notice to the 

CONSULTANT providing at least ten (10) days advance notice unless such order is immediately necessary 

for the protection of the public health, safety or welfare or for the protection of property.   

 

SECTION 10:  INDEMNIFICATION.  The CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, 

including its officers and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including but not limited 

to, reasonable attorney’s fees (at the trial and appellate levels), to the extent caused by the negligence of the 

CONSULTANT, its officers, directors, employees, representatives, and agents employed or utilized by the 

CONSULTANT in the performance of the services under this Agreement.  The City agrees to be responsible 

for its own negligence. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or 

a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or the CONSULTANT, nor shall this 

Agreement be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity for the City beyond the waiver provided in 

section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

SECTION 11:  COMPLIANCE AND DISQUALIFICATION.  Each of the parties agrees to perform its 

responsibilities under this Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and administrative 

instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of this Agreement.   

 

SECTION 12:  SUB-CONSULTANTS.  The City reserves the right to accept the use of a subconsultant or to 

reject the selection of a particular subconsultant and approve all qualifications of any subconsultant in order to 

make a determination as to the capability of the subconsultant to perform properly under this Agreement. All 

subconsultants providing professional services to the CONSULTANT under this Agreement will also be 

required to provide their own insurance coverage identical to those contained in this Agreement for the 

CONSULTANT. In the event that a subconsultant does not have insurance or does not meet the insurance 

limits as stated in this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the City for any 

claim in excess of the subconsultant’s insurance coverage, arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions 

of the subconsultant. Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any 

subconsultant and the City.  

 



 

Page 7 of 26 

 

SECTION 13:  FEDERAL AND STATE TAX.  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and 

Use Tax.  The CONSULTANT is not authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number. 

 

SECTION 14:  INSURANCE. Prior to commencing any services, the CONSULTANT shall provide proof of 

insurance coverage as required hereunder.  Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the United States 

Treasury or insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who must 

have a rating of no less than “excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed upon by the City and the 

CONSULTANT.  All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 

authorization of the City.   

 

Type of Coverage     Amount of Coverage 

 

Professional liability/     $1,000,000 per occurrence 

Errors and Omissions 

 

Commercial general liability    $1, 000,000 per occurrence 

(Products/completed operations 

Contractual, insurance broad form property,  

Independent CONSULTANT, personal injury)  $2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 

Automobile (owned, non-owned, & hired)  $ 1,000,000 single limits 

 

Worker’s Compensation     $ statutory limits 

 

The commercial general liability and automobile policies will name the City as an additional insured on 

primary, non-contributory basis and proof of all insurance coverage shall be furnished to the City by way of an 

endorsement to same or certificate of insurance prior to the provision of services. The certificates shall clearly 

indicate that the CONSULTANT has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required 

for strict compliance with this section. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve 

CONSULTANT of its liability and obligations under this Agreement. 

 

Additional Insured status shall be provided pursuant and subject to ISO Form CG 20 10 12 19 (ongoing 

operations) and, if applicable, CG 20 37 12 19 (completed operations), or equivalent forms for coverages 

other than Commercial General Liability, to the extent that the loss or claim in question is caused by the 

CONSULTANT’s negligence in its operations in and during the performance of the services, and to no 

greater extent than is necessary to provide insurance coverage for the covered indemnity obligations 

expressly assumed by CONSULTANT under this Agreement, it being the express intent and understanding 

of the Parties that, up to specified limits, additional insured status is provided hereunder as a support to 

performance of CONSULTANT’s expressly assumed, covered indemnity obligations hereunder. 

 

SECTION 15:   SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.   The City and the CONSULTANT each binds itself and 

its partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to 

the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants 

of this Agreement.  Except as agreed in writing by all parties, this Agreement is not assignable.   

 

SECTION 16:  DISPUTE RESOLUTION, LAW, VENUE AND REMEDIES.  All claims arising out of 

this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall share the mediator’s fee 

equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County, Florida. Agreements reached in mediation 

shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  This Agreement 

shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any and all legal action necessary to enforce 

the Agreement or disputes arising out of the Agreement will be held exclusively in Palm Beach County, 

Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and 

each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 



 

Page 8 of 26 

 

hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial 

exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise 

thereof. 

 

SECTION 17:  WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE 

RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL 

BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

SECTION 18:  NONDISCRIMINATION.  The CONSULTANT warrants and represents that all of its 

employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, 

age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, or sexual orientation. 

 

SECTION 19:  AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE.  The CONSULTANT hereby represents and warrants that 

it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its business and provide 

the services required under this Agreement, and that it will at all times conduct its business and provide the 

services under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be 

submitted to the City upon request. 

 

SECTION 20:  SEVERABILITY.  If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof 

to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this 

Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as 

to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this 

Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.   

 

SECTION 21:  PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES.  CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that a person or 

affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime 

may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; 

may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of 

a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a 

public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or subcontractor under a 

contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the 

threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 

months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The CONSULTANT will advise 

the City immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 

SECTION 22:  NOTICE.  All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by hand-delivery, certified 

mail (RRR), or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the CITY shall be sent to: 

 

 City of Lake Worth Beach 

 Attn:  City Manager 

 7 N. Dixie Highway 

 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 

  

and if sent to the CONSULTANT, shall be sent to: 

 

 Tierra South Florida, Inc. dba TSFGeo 

Attn:   Raj Krishnasamy, President 

2765 Vista Parkway, Suite 10 

West Palm Beach, Fl   33411 

   

 

The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the other 

party.  Notice shall be deemed given upon receipt. 



 

Page 9 of 26 

 

 

SECTION 23:  ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT AND CONTROLLING PROVISIONS.  This Agreement 

consists of the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement (inclusive of all exhibits hereto) and any 

City issued Task Orders. The parties agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions set forth in the 

aforementioned documents. To the extent that there exists a conflict between the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement (inclusive of all exhibits hereto) and a City issued Task Order, the terms and conditions of 

this Agreement shall prevail with the City issued Task Order next taking precedence. Wherever possible, 

the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid conflicts between 

provisions of the various documents. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this 

Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument 

executed by the parties hereto. 

SECTION 24:  WAIVER.  Failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this Agreement 

shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any time thereafter. 

SECTION 25:  PREPARATION AND NON-EXCLUSIVE.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 

strongly against either party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation.  This is a non-

exclusive Agreement and the City reserves the right to contract with individuals or firms to provide the 

same or similar services. 

SECTION 26:  MATERIALITY.  All provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed material.  In the event 

CONSULTANT fails to comply with any of the provisions contained in this Agreement or exhibits, 

amendments and addenda attached hereto, said failure shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement 

and City may at its option provide notice to the CONSULTANT to terminate for cause. 

 

SECTION 27:  LEGAL EFFECT.  This Agreement shall not become binding and effective until approved 

by the City Commission.  The Effective Date is the date this Agreement is executed by the City. 

 

SECTION 28:  NOTICE OF COMPLAINTS, SUITS AND REGULATORY VIOLATIONS.  Each party 

will promptly notify the other of any complaint, claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced 

against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, to the performance of this Agreement.  Each party 

agrees to cooperate with the other in any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit 

in which either party is named, and shall do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance 

coverage.  

 

SECTION 29:  SURVIVABILITY.  Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or 

imposes an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or 

earlier termination.  

 

SECTION 30:  COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts 

electronically or digitally, each of which shall be deemed an original, and will become effective and binding 

upon the parties at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement.  

 

SECTION 31:  PALM BEACH COUNTY IG.  In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 

2011-009, the CONSULTANT acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or 

audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The CONSULTANT has reviewed Palm Beach County 

ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 

 

SECTION 32:  REPRESENTATIONS AND BINDING AUTHORITY. By signing this Agreement, on 

behalf of the CONSULTANT, the undersigned hereby represents to the City that he or she has the authority 

and full legal power to execute this Agreement and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and 

implement the terms of this Agreement on behalf of the CONSULTANT for whom he or she is signing and 

to bind and obligate such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 



 

Page 10 of 26 

 

 

SECTION 33:  PUBLIC RECORDS.  The CONSULTANT shall comply with Florida’s Public Records 

Act, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under 

section 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 

(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with 

a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a 

cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by 

law. 

 

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement 

and following completion of this Agreement if the CONSULTANT does not transfer the records to the 

City. 

 

(d) Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in 

possession of the CONSULTANT or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the 

service. If the CONSULTANT transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Agreement, 

the CONSULTANT shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential or exempt 

from public records disclosure requirements. If the CONSULTANT keeps and maintains public records 

upon completion of the Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining 

public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s 

custodian of public records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology 

systems of the City.  

 

IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 

CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 

TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 

RECORDS AT (561) 586-1660, CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, 

OR 7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 33460. 

 
SECTION 34:  CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.  Each party (the “Receiving 

Party”) will keep confidential and not disclose to any other person or entity or use (except as expressly 

and unambiguously authorized by this Agreement) information, technology or software (“Confidential 

Information”) obtained from the other party (the “Disclosing Party”); provided, however, that the 

Receiving Party will not be prohibited from disclosing or using information (i) that at the time of 

disclosure is publicly available or becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Receiving 

Party, (ii) that is or has been disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who is not under, and to 

whom the Receiving Party does not owe, an obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, (iii) that is 

or has been independently acquired or developed by the Receiving Party without access to the Disclosing 

Party’s Confidential Information, (iv) that is already in the Receiving Party’s possession at the time of 

disclosure, or (v) that is required to be released by law. 

SECTION 35:  EXPORT ADMINISTRATION.  Each party agrees to comply with all export laws and 

regulations of the United States (“Export Laws”) to assure that no software deliverable, item, service, 

technical data or any direct product thereof arising out of or related to this Agreement is exported directly 

or indirectly (as a physical export or a deemed export) in violation of Export Laws. 

 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV


 

Page 11 of 26 

 

SECTION 36:  NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  There are no third party beneficiaries under this 

Agreement. 

 

SECTION 37:  SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.   

(a) The CONSULTANT certifies that it and its subconsultants are not on the Scrutinized Companies 

that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida 

Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONSULTANT or 

any of its subconsultants are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONSULTANT or any 

of its subconsultants, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the 

boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

 

(b) If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONSULTANT certifies that it and its 

subconsultants are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 

Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in 

Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may 

immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONSULTANT or any of its subconsultants 

are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONSULTANT or any of its subconsultants are 

placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with 

Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations 

in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

 

(c) The CONSULTANT agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered 

into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

 

(d) The CONSULTANT agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon 

by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

 

(e) The CONSULTANT agrees that if it or any of its subconsultants’ status changes in regards to any 

certification herein, the CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the City of the same. 

 

(f) As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above 

stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 

SECTION 38:  E-VERIFY. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 

2021, the CONSULTANT shall: 

 

(a) Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 

employees and require all subconsultants (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) 

to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subconsultants’ 

newly hired employees; 

 

(b) Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 

Agreement) stating that the subconsultant does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an 

“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

 

(c) Maintain copies of all subconsultant affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the 

same to the City upon request; 

 

(d) Comply fully, and ensure all subconsultant comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes;  

(e) Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized Aliens; Employment 

Prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

 



 

Page 12 of 26 

 

(f) Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statues, 

the CONSULTANT may not be awarded a contract for at least one (1) year after the date on which the 

Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a result of the 

termination of the Agreement. 

 

  





Page 14 of 26 

EXHIBIT “A” 

(Sample Task Order) 

Note: Task Order Number will be issued by the City, leave the line number empty. 



Page 15 of 26 

TASK ORDER No.____ 

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 (Geotechnical) 

THIS TASK ORDER FOR CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (“Task Order”) is made 

on the day of _____________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation 

(“City”) and Tierra South Florida, Inc. dba TSFGeo a State of Florida, CORPORATION 

(“CONSULTANT”). 

1.0 

2.0 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

Project Description: 

The City desires the CONSULTANT to provide those services as identified herein for the Project. 

The Project is described in the CONSULTANT’s Proposal, dated ______________ and services 

are generally described as:  _____________________________ (the “Project”). 

Scope 

Under this Task Order, the CONSULTANT will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach 

__________________________________with geotechnical consulting services for the Project as 

specified in the CONSULTANT’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated herein as 

Exhibit “1”.    

Schedule 

The services to be provided under this Task Order shall be completed within _________ calendar 

days from the City’s approval of this Task Order or the issuance of a Notice to Proceed. 

Compensation 

This Task Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of 

____________________________. The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses 

included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

Project Manager 

The Project Manager for the CONSULTANT is ______________, phone 

(____________________; email: _________________; and, the Project Manager for the City is 

______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 

email:_______________________. 

Progress Meetings 

The CONSULTANT shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project 

Manager as necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

Authorization 

This Task Order is issued pursuant to the Continuing Professional Services 

Agreement (Geotechnical) based on RFQ#23-300 between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the 

CONSULTANT, dated ________ (“Agreement” hereafter). If there are any conflicts 

between the terms and conditions of this Task Order and the Agreement, the terms and 

conditions of the Agreement shall prevail.  



Page 16 of 26 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order No. _____ 

as of the day and year set forth above.   

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By: __________________________________ 

       Betty Resch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

By: __________________________  

      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND         APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL        

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:        SUFFICIENCY 

By: __________________________      By: ________________________________________ 

      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney     Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 

 CONSULTANT:  TIERRA SOUTH FLORIDA, INC. dba TSFGeo 

By:  DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY 

[Corporate Seal] 

STATE OF _________________________) 

COUNTY OF __________________) 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of •physical presence or •online 

notarization on this ____ day of ______________, 2023, by Tierra South Florida, Inc. dba TSFGeo a 

Florida Corporation, who is personally known to me or who has produced_________________________ 

as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing 

instrument and bind the CONSULTANT to the same.   

____________________________________ 

Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal: 



Page 17 of 26 

Exhibit “B” 

Consultant’s Rate Schedule 



Page 18 of 26 



Page 19 of 26 

Exhibit “C” 

Federal Contract Provisions 

The Consultant hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into any 

subsequent contract resulting from this RFQ, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other 

funding where the following terms are applicable: 

Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the Consultant agrees 

as follows: 

(1) The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because

of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Consultant will take

affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during

employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national

origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or

termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including

apprenticeship. The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants

for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The Consultant will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the

Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(3) The Consultant will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or

applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed

the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not

apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other

employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of

such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information,

unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation,

proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with

the Consultant's legal duty to furnish information.

(4) The Consultant will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a

collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the

said labor union or workers' representatives of the Consultant's commitments under this section, and shall

post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.

(5) The Consultant will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965,

and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.

(6) The Consultant will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of

September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto,

and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary

of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract

or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended

in whole or in part and the Consultant may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or

federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order

11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided

in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor,

or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The Consultant will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the

provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules,

regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of



Page 20 of 26 

September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The 

Consultant will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering 

agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  

Provided, however, that in the event a Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with 

a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Consultant may 

request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its 

own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if 

the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not 

applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in 

work on or under the contract.  The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the 

administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and 

subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the 

Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information 

as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the 

administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.   

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification 

subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Consultant debarred from, or who has not 

demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant 

to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity 

clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary 

of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it 

fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the 

following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, 

guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to 

which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received 

from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 

Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 

(1) Overtime requirements. No Consultant or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract

work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any

such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess

of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less

than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such

workweek.

(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause

set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Consultant and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be

liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Consultant and subcontractor shall be liable to the United

States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District

or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to

each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause

set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual

was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of

the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the CITY

shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor

withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the

Consultant or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime

contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards

Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy

any liabilities of such Consultant or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in

the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section.



Page 21 of 26 

(4) Subcontracts. The Consultant or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth

in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these

clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Consultant shall be responsible for compliance by any

subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this

section.

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 

If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and the recipient 

or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding 

the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work 

under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR 

Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under 

Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by 

the awarding agency. 

Clean Air Act 

(1) The Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to

the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.

(2) The Consultant agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that the City will,

in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management

Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The Consultant agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed

in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act 

(1) The Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to

the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.

(2) The Consultant agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that the CITY

will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management

Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

(3) The Consultant agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed

in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ.

Suspension and Debarment. 

(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such,

the Consultant is required to verify that none of the Consultant’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995)

or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified

(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

(2) The Consultant must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and

must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters

into.

(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If

it is later determined that the Consultant did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt.

3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the City, the Federal Government

may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2

C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise

from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in

its lower tier covered transactions.

Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 

 Consultants who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification as laid 

out in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated 



Page 22 of 26 

funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 

of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 

Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 

§ 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection

with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who

in turn will forward the certification(s) to the awarding agency.

Procurement of Recovered materials. 

(i) In the performance of this contract, the Consultant shall make maximum use of products containing

recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired—

• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance

schedule;

• Meeting contract performance requirements; or

• At a reasonable price.

(ii) Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at

EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- 

procurement-guideline-cpg-program.

(iii) The Consultant also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the

Solid Waste Disposal Act.”

Access to Records. 

(1) The Consultant agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the Comptroller

General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents,

papers, and records of the Consultant which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making

audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.

(2) The Consultant agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or

to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

(3) The Consultant agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives access to

construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract.

(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Consultant acknowledge and

agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the DOJ

Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United States.

DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  

The Consultant shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS 

agency officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 

Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders. 

By signing this agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be used to 

fund all or a portion of the contract. The Consultant will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, 

executive orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  

No Obligation by Federal Government.  

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to 

the non-Federal entity, Consultant, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 

Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Consultant acknowledges 

that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the 

Consultant’s actions pertaining to this contract. 

Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  

If the Consultant intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the Consultant 

must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business 



Page 23 of 26 

enterprises and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  Affirmative steps must 

include: 

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation

lists;

(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited

whenever they are potential sources;

(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit

maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises;

(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by

small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and

(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business

Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

Domestic preferences for procurements. 

(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Consultant should purchase, acquire, or use of

goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum,

steel, cement, and other manufactured products).

(2) For purposes of this section:

(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes,

from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.

(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-

ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe;

aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.

Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment.

(1) The Consultant is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:

(a) Procure or obtain;

(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or

(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems

that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any

system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889,

covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei

Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of

critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications

equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology

Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.

(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity

that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director

of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or

otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.

(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1),

the City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions

and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered

communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure

that communications service to users and customers is sustained.



Page 24 of 26 

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension regulations 

implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, 

Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement Debarment and Suspension).  

As such, Consultant is required to confirm that none of the Consultant, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 

180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or 

disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).  

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 

1) By signing this Certification the Consultant, also sometimes referred to herein as a prospective

primary participant, is providing the certification set out below.

2) The inability of a Consultant to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result

in denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation

of why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered

in connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the

prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from

participation in this transaction.

3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed

when the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary

participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the

City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at any

time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has

become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction,

participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily excluded, as used in

this certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules

implementing Executive Order 12549.

6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not knowingly

enter into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR

part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in

this covered transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly entered

into such a transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this

transaction for cause or default.

7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will include

the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -

Lower Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States Department of Homeland

Security, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier

covered transactions.

8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in

a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4,

debarred, suspended, ineligible or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that



















































































































 

Page 1 of 29                                                   
 

 
CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

RFQ#23-300  
(Geotechnical) 

   
 THIS CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on 
_______________, by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation 
(“City”) and Terracon Consultants, Inc., a corporation registered to do business in the State of Florida 
(“CONSULTANT”).   
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the City issued Request for Qualifications (No. 23-300) for civil engineering, 
geotechnical engineering, surveying, architecture, hydrogeological services, transportation and mobility 
planning, energy management and engineering services, construction management and project management 
and related professional services in accordance with the Consultants’ Competitive Negotiations Act, section 
287.055, Florida Statutes (“RFQ”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT submitted its qualifications in response to the RFQ; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to award the RFQ to the CONSULTANT based on CONSULTANT’s 
qualifications and experience to provide Geotechnical services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has significant experience in assisting municipal organizations 
in providing engineering services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this Agreement may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal agencies, in which 
case, the CONSULTANT agrees that any services performed pursuant to the RFQ and this Agreement  will 
comply with all applicable Federal law, Federal regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, 
and directives and special clauses as provided for in Exhibit “C”; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for the 
provision of services by the CONSULTANT to the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City finds entering this Agreement with the CONSULTANT serves a valid public 
purpose.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and the CONSULTANT agree as follows:   

 
SECTION 1:  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference and acknowledged as true and correct statements.  

 
SECTION 2:  CONSULTANT’S SERVICES.  The City has awarded the CONSULTANT the non-exclusive 
right to provide the City with Geotechnical services (“services”). 
 
SECTION 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP.  No relationship of employer or 
employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that CONSULTANT will act hereunder as an 
independent contractor and none of the CONSULTANT’s, officers, directors, employees, independent 
contractors, representatives or agents performing services for CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement shall 
have any claim under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any kind under this 
Agreement. The relationship between the City and CONSULTANT is that of independent contractors, and 



 

Page 2 of 29                                                   
 

neither shall be considered a joint venturer, partner, employee, agent, representative or other relationship of the 
other for any purpose expressly or by implication.  
 
SECTION 4:  TERM, TIME AND TERMINATION.  

(a) Term.  This non-exclusive Agreement shall become effective upon approval by the City 
Commission and execution by the City, and shall have an initial term of three (3) years with three (3) 
optional, one (1) year renewals. The City Manager is authorized to exercise the optional one (1) year 
renewals. Each fiscal year of this Agreement and any renewals will be subject to the availability of funds 
lawfully appropriated for its purpose by the City Commission. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this 
Agreement may be terminated as stated herein. The term may be extended by written agreement of the 
parties for further services related to those services identified herein. 
 

(b) Time for Completion.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. The 
CONSULTANT shall at all times carry out its duties and responsibilities as expeditiously as possible and 
in accordance with the project schedule set forth by the City.   

 
(c) Force Majeure.  Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to perform hereunder due 

to any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as acts of God, wars, riots, national emergencies, 
sabotage, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, and governmental laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, epidemic 
or pandemic.  The CONSULTANT or City may suspend its performance under this Agreement as a result 
of a force majeure without being in default of this Agreement, but upon the removal of such force majeure, 
the CONSULTANT or City shall resume its performance as soon as is reasonably possible. Upon the 
CONSULTANT’s request, the City shall consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the services 
and, if the CONSULTANT’s failure to perform was without its or its sub-consultants’ fault or negligence, 
the schedule and/or any other affected provision of this Agreement may be revised accordingly, subject to 
the City’s rights to change, terminate, or stop any or all of the services at any time.  No extension shall be 
made for delay occurring more than seven (7) days before a notice of delay or claim therefore is made in 
writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of delay, only one (1) notice of delay or claim is 
necessary. 
  

(d) Termination without cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with 
or without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination.   
  

(e) Termination for cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the event 
that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material breach of any term or 
condition of this Agreement. The party electing to terminate this Agreement shall provide the other party 
with written notice specifying the nature of the breach.  The party receiving the notice shall then have three 
(3) days from the date of the notice in which to remedy the breach. If such corrective action is not taken 
within three (3) days, then this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three (3) day period without 
further notice or demand. 
  

(f) Early Termination. If this Agreement is terminated before the completion of all services by 
either party, the CONSULTANT shall: 
 

1. Stop services on the date and to the extent specified including without limitation services 
of any sub-consultants. 

 
2. Transfer all work in progress, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated 

services to the City in the format acceptable to City. 
 

3. Continue and complete all parts of the services that have not been terminated. 
 



 

Page 3 of 29                                                   
 

 (g) Effect of Termination.   Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights, 
obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to termination. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the City is a municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the state of Florida, and as such, this Agreement is subject to budgeting and 
appropriation by the City of funds sufficient to pay the costs associated herewith in any fiscal year of the 
City. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that no funds are appropriated 
or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any fiscal year to pay the costs associated with the City’s 
obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the funds budgeted or appropriated are, or are estimated 
by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs associated with the City’s obligations hereunder in any fiscal 
period, then the City will notify CONSULTANT of such occurrence and either the City or CONSULTANT 
may terminate this Agreement by notifying the other in writing, which notice shall specify a date of 
termination no earlier than twenty-four (24) hours after giving of such notice.  Termination in accordance 
with the preceding sentence shall be without penalty or expense to the City of any kind whatsoever; 
however, City shall pay CONSULTANT for all services performed under this Agreement through the date 
of termination.  
  
SECTION 5:  COMPENSATION.   
 
  (a) Fee Schedule.  The fee schedule attached as Exhibit “B” shall remain firm for the first 
three (3) years of this Agreement. After the first three (3) years, the CONSUL TANT may request a change 
to the fee schedule. No changes to the fee schedule shall occur unless approved in writing by the City, 
which may be by an approved an amendment signed by the City Manager. The fee schedule shall be the 
basis for all fees proposed by the CONSUL TANT and in any approved task order. 
 
 (b) Task Order(s).  This non-exclusive Agreement does not guarantee that the City will utilize 
CONSULTANT in any capacity or for any services identified herein. When the City identifies a need for 
the CONSULTANT’s services, the City will request a proposal from the CONSULTANT to provide the 
services requested. The CONSULTANT’s proposal shall be submitted in the format of the sample task 
order, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “A” and shall be based on the CONSULTANT’s 
currently hourly fee set forth in the CONSULTANT’s proposal and attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. If a 
sub-consultant(s) is to be utilized for services under a task order, the CONSULTANT shall obtain a written 
proposal from the sub-consultant(s) and attach the same with to the CONSULTANT's proposal submitted 
to the City. Upon receipt of the CONSULTANT’s proposal, the City shall decide in its sole discretion 
whether to award the task order to the CONSULTANT. Depending on the lump sum, not to exceed amount 
of each proposed task order, the task order may be awarded by the City Manager (if within her purchasing 
authority of $50,000 or less) or the City Commission. If the task order is awarded to the CONSULTANT, 
the CONSULTANT shall commence the identified services upon receipt of a Notice to Proceed from the 
City or upon the CONSULTANT's receipt of a fully executed task order for the services. The City reserves 
the right to reject any and all proposals submitted by the CONSULTANT.  
 

  (c) Invoices. Unless otherwise agreed in an issued Task Order, the CONSULTANT shall 
render monthly invoices to the City for services that have been rendered in conformity with this Agreement 
in the previous month. The invoices shall specify the services performed and the time spent on such work. 
All reimbursable expenses shall also be clearly identified on the invoice with supporting documentation. 
Invoices will be paid within thirty (30) days following the City’s receipt of the CONSULTANT’s invoice. 
 
 (d)  Reimbursable Expenses. The CONSUL TANT's reimbursable, out-of-pocket expenses 
including, but not limited to, travel, per diem and other living expenses, shall be identified in an approved 
task order. The City shall not be responsible for payment of any such reimbursable, out-of-pocket expenses 
except as provided for in an approved task order or amendment thereto. Reimbursement for mileage shall 
only be for travel required outside of Palm Beach County. CONSULTANT shall not be reimbursed for 



 

Page 4 of 29                                                   
 

travel within Palm Beach County and all travel shall be proposed and reimbursed pursuant to section 112. 
061, Florida Statutes. 
 
 (e)  Direct Project Expenses. Unless otherwise specifically stated in an approved task order, 
charges for printing, reproduction, use of computer-aided design equipment, field equipment, and any 
laboratory analysis performed by the CONSULTANT or its subconsultants or its subcontractors, and the 
use of the CONSULTANT’s and employee’s automobiles shall be identified in an approved task order. The 
City shall not be responsible for payment of any other direct project expenses. All direct project expenses 
shall be billed at cost to the City and the CONSULTANT shall not mark-up or charge an administrative fee 
in addition to the direct cost for such expenses. 
 
 (f)  Additional Services. If the City seeks to utilize the CONSULTANT for any additional 
services related to the services identified herein, the City and CONSULTANT will meet and negotiate a 
reasonable fee for such services. The negotiated fee shall be approved by the City in the form of an 
Amendment prior to said services being provided. 
 
 (g)  Status Report. The CONSULTANT shall complete and submit a technical summary and 
budgetary status report with each invoice at no additional cost to the City (format may be provided by City 
or CONSULTANT for each approved task order). 
 

(h)  Fiscal Non-funding. In the event sufficient budgeted funds are not available for a new fiscal 
period, the City shall notify the CONSULTANT of such occurrence and this Agreement shall terminate on 
the last day of the current fiscal period without penalty or expense to the City. The CONSULTANT will be 
paid for all services rendered through the date of termination. 
 
SECTION 6: TERMS OF PERFROMANCE  
 

(a) Starting Work. The CONSULTANT will not begin any of the services until authorized in 
writing by a Notice to Proceed from the City or upon the CONSULTANT’s receipt of an approved Task 
Order for the services. 
 

(b) Ownership of Documents. The drawings, specifications, calculations, supporting documents, or 
other work products which are prepared for the City by the CONSULTANT under this Agreement, a City 
issued Task Order, or amendments thereto (“Work Product”), shall be and shall become the property of the 
City upon delivery or completion by the CONSULTANT or receipt of payment from the City for the same. 
The CONSULTANT may keep copies or samples thereof and shall have the right to use such Work Product. 
The City accepts sole responsibility for its reuse of any Work Product in a manner other than as initially 
intended, or for any use of incomplete Work Product unless prior written approval is obtained from the 
CONSULTANT. 
 

(c) Accounting Records. The CONSULTANT’s accounting records, insofar as they pertain to 
invoicing the City or for disbursements made from the CONSULTANT’s account for services under this 
Agreement, shall be open to City’s inspection and audit at the CONSULTANT’s office upon reasonable 
prior notice and during normal business hours. Backup documentation for out-of-pocket expenses 
exceeding Twenty-Five Dollars ($25.00) each shall be available at the CONSULTANT’s office. These 
records will be retained by the CONSULTANT for five (5) years after the calendar year in which the 
services to which they pertain were rendered or the disbursements were made. 
 

(d ) Approval of Changes. The City, through the City Manager must approve in writing any changes 
in the scope of services which result in additional costs or expenses to the City, extension of the schedule 
or which would change the underlying purpose of the services. Changes include, but are not limited to, 
issuing additional instructions, requesting additional work, direct omission of work previously ordered, or 
changes in time of performance. 



 

Page 5 of 29                                                   
 

 
(e) Authorized Representative. Before starting work, the CONSULTANT shall designate an 

authorized representative acceptable to the City to represent and act for the CONSULTANT and shall 
inform the City in writing of the name and address of such representative together with a clear definition 
of the scope of their authority. The CONSULTANT shall keep the City informed of any subsequent changes 
in the foregoing. The authorized representative of the City shall be the City Manager or designee. 
 

(f) Design/Construction Phase Services.  Visits to construction sites and observations made by the 
CONSULTANT as part of construction phase services, if any, shall not relieve the construction 
contractor(s) of obligation to conduct comprehensive inspections of the work sufficient to insure 
conformance with the intent of the construction contract documents, and shall not relieve the construction 
contractor(s) of full responsibility for all construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and 
procedures necessary for coordinating and completing all portions of the work under the construction 
contract(s) and for all safety precautions incidental thereto. Safety precautions administered by the 
CONSULTANT, if any, to protect the CONSULTANT’s personnel shall meet those policies enacted by 
the City. Further, CONSULTANT shall endeavor to make reasonable efforts to guard the City against 
defects and deficiencies in the services of the construction contractor(s) and to help determine if the 
provisions of the construction contract documents are being fulfilled. This paragraph does not, however, 
release the CONSULTANT from any liability which might be attributable to its negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions, including but not limited to design, construction phase services, or other services as defined in 
this Agreement, of the CONSULTANT.   
 

(g) Personnel.  The CONSULTANT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 
necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall 
be performed by the CONSULTANT or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the 
services shall be fully qualified and, if required, authorized or permitted under state and local law to perform 
such services. The CONSULTANT shall furnish services in a manner consistent with industry standards 
and to a level of professional skill generally acceptable in the industry with regard to services of this kind. 
All of the CONSULTANT’s personnel (and all subconsultants) while on City premises, will comply with 
all City requirements governing conduct, safety, and security. The City reserves the right to request 
replacement of any of CONSULTANT’s personnel furnished by the CONSULTANT upon written notice 
by City to CONSULTANT of the cause for such replacement. 
  

(h) Conflict of Interest.  The CONSULTANT represents that it presently has no interest and shall 
acquire no interest, either direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with the performance of 
services required hereunder, as provided for in Section 112.311, Florida Statutes. The CONSULTANT 
further represents that no person having any such conflicting interest shall be employed for said 
performance. The CONSULTANT shall promptly notify the City’s representative, in writing, of all 
potential conflicts of interest for any prospective business association, interest or other circumstance which 
may influence or appear to influence the CONSULTANT’S judgment or quality of services being provided 
hereunder. Such written notification shall identify the prospective business association, interest or 
circumstance, the nature of work that the CONSULTANT may undertake and request an opinion of the 
City as to whether the association, interest or circumstance would, in the opinion of the City, constitute a 
conflict of interest if entered into by the CONSULTANT. The City agrees to notify the CONSULTANT of 
its opinion within thirty (30) days of receipt of notification by the CONSULTANT. If, in the opinion of the 
City, the prospective business association, interest or circumstance would not constitute a conflict of interest 
by the CONSULTANT, the City shall so state in the notification and the CONSULTANT shall, at its option, 
enter into said association, interest or circumstance and it shall be deemed not in conflict of interest with 
respect to services provided to the City by the CONSULTANT under the terms of this Agreement. 
 



 

Page 6 of 29                                                   
 

(i) News Releases / Publicity.  The CONSULTANT shall not make any news releases, publicity 
releases, or advertisements relating to this Agreement or the services hereunder without prior written City 
approval.  
 
SECTION 8:  CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES  
 

(a) Service of Others. The City shall furnish to the CONSULTANT, if required for 
performance of the Consultant’s services, all available data prepared by or the result of the services of 
others, including without limitation (as may be appropriate):  building plans and related drawings, core 
borings, probings, and subsurface explorations, hydraulic surveys, laboratory tests, and inspections of 
samples, materials, and equipment, appropriate professional interpretations of all of the foregoing; 
environmental assessments and impact statements, appropriate professional interpretations of all of the 
foregoing; property boundary, easement, rights-of-way, topographic and utility surveys; property 
descriptions; zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions; and any other special data or consultations 
relating to the Project.   
 

(b)  Examine Work of the Consultant. Within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services 
of the CONSULTANT, the City shall examine all studies, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications, 
proposals, and other documents presented by the CONSULTANT, obtain advice of an attorney, insurance 
counselor, or other consultants, as the City deems appropriate, for such examinations and the rendering, if 
required, of written opinions pertaining thereto. 
 
SECTION 9: SUSPENSION BY CITY FOR CONVENIENCE. The City may, at any time without cause, 
order CONSULTANT in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt its services in whole or in part for such 
period of time as City may determine for City’s convenience. Such order shall be by written notice to the 
CONSULTANT providing at least ten (10) days advance notice unless such order is immediately necessary 
for the protection of the public health, safety or welfare or for the protection of property.   
 
SECTION 10:  INDEMNIFICATION.  The CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, 
including its officers and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including but not limited 
to, reasonable attorney’s fees (at the trial and appellate levels), to the extent caused by the negligence of the 
CONSULTANT, its officers, directors, employees, representatives, and agents employed or utilized by the 
CONSULTANT in the performance of the services under this Agreement.  The City agrees to be responsible 
for its own negligence. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or 
a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or the CONSULTANT, nor shall this 
Agreement be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity for the City beyond the waiver provided in 
section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 
 
SECTION 11:  COMPLIANCE AND DISQUALIFICATION.  Each of the parties agrees to perform its 
responsibilities under this Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and administrative 
instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of this Agreement.   

 
SECTION 12:  SUB-CONSULTANTS.  The City reserves the right to accept the use of a subconsultant or to 
reject the selection of a particular subconsultant and approve all qualifications of any subconsultant in order to 
make a determination as to the capability of the subconsultant to perform properly under this Agreement. All 
subconsultants providing professional services to the CONSULTANT under this Agreement will also be 
required to provide their own insurance coverage identical to those contained in this Agreement for the 
CONSULTANT. In the event that a subconsultant does not have insurance or does not meet the insurance 
limits as stated in this Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold harmless the City for any 
claim in excess of the subconsultant’s insurance coverage, arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions 
of the subconsultant. Nothing contained herein shall create any contractual relationship between any 
subconsultant and the City.  

 



 

Page 7 of 29                                                   
 

SECTION 13:  FEDERAL AND STATE TAX.  The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and 
Use Tax.  The CONSULTANT is not authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number. 
 
SECTION 14:  INSURANCE. Prior to commencing any services, the CONSULTANT shall provide proof of 
insurance coverage as required hereunder.  Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the United States 
Treasury or insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who must 
have a rating of no less than “excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed upon by the City and the 
CONSULTANT.  All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 
authorization of the City.   
 
Type of Coverage     Amount of Coverage 
 
Professional liability/     $1,000,000 per claim 
Errors and Omissions 
 
Commercial general liability    $1, 000,000 per occurrence 
(Products/completed operations 
Contractual, insurance broad form property,  
Independent CONSULTANT, personal injury)  $2,000,000 annual aggregate 
 
Automobile (owned, non-owned, & hired)  $ 1,000,000 single limits 
 
Worker’s Compensation     $ statutory limits 
 
The commercial general liability and automobile policies will name the City as an additional insured on 
primary, non-contributory basis and proof of all insurance coverage shall be furnished to the City by way of an 
endorsement to same or certificate of insurance prior to the provision of services. The certificates shall clearly 
indicate that the CONSULTANT has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required 
for strict compliance with this section. Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve 
CONSULTANT of its liability and obligations under this Agreement. 
 
Additional Insured status shall be provided pursuant and subject to ISO Form CG 20 10 12 19 (ongoing 
operations) and, if applicable, CG 20 37 12 19 (completed operations), or equivalent forms for coverages 
other than Commercial General Liability, to the extent that the loss or claim in question is caused by the 
CONSULTANT’s negligence in its operations in and during the performance of the services, and to no 
greater extent than is necessary to provide insurance coverage for the covered indemnity obligations 
expressly assumed by CONSULTANT under this Agreement, it being the express intent and understanding 
of the Parties that, up to specified limits, additional insured status is provided hereunder as a support to 
performance of CONSULTANT’s expressly assumed, covered indemnity obligations hereunder. 
 
SECTION 15:   SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.   The City and the CONSULTANT each binds itself and 
its partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to 
the partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants 
of this Agreement.  Except as agreed in writing by all parties, this Agreement is not assignable.   
 
SECTION 16:  DISPUTE RESOLUTION, LAW, VENUE AND REMEDIES.  All claims arising out of 
this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall share the mediator’s fee 
equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County, Florida. Agreements reached in mediation 
shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  This Agreement 
shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Venue for any and all legal action necessary to enforce 
the Agreement or disputes arising out of the Agreement will be held exclusively in Palm Beach County, 
Florida. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, and 
each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given 



 

Page 8 of 29                                                   
 

hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No single or partial 
exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or further exercise 
thereof. 
 
SECTION 17:  WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE 
RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 
 
SECTION 18:  NONDISCRIMINATION.  The CONSULTANT warrants and represents that all of its 
employees are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, 
age, national origin, ancestry, marital status, or sexual orientation. 
 
SECTION 19:  AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE.  The CONSULTANT hereby represents and warrants that 
it has and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its business and provide 
the services required under this Agreement, and that it will at all times conduct its business and provide the 
services under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be 
submitted to the City upon request. 
 
SECTION 20:  SEVERABILITY.  If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this 
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as 
to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this 
Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law.   
 
SECTION 21:  PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES.  CONSULTANT acknowledges and agrees that a person or 
affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime 
may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; 
may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of 
a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a 
public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or subcontractor under a 
contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the 
threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 
months following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The CONSULTANT will advise 
the City immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 
 
SECTION 22:  NOTICE.  All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by hand-delivery, certified 
mail (RRR), or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the CITY shall be sent to: 
 
 City of Lake Worth Beach 
 Attn:  City Manager 
 7 N. Dixie Highway 
 Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 
  
and if sent to the CONSULTANT, shall be sent to: 
 
 Terracon Consultants, Inc.  

Attn:   Michael J. O’Connor, Principal 
1225 Omar Road 
West Palm Beach, Fl   33405 

   
 
The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the other 
party.  Notice shall be deemed given upon receipt. 



 

Page 9 of 29                                                   
 

 
SECTION 23:  ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT AND CONTROLLING PROVISIONS.  This Agreement 
consists of the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement (inclusive of all exhibits hereto) and any 
City issued Task Orders. The parties agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions set forth in the 
aforementioned documents. To the extent that there exists a conflict between the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement (inclusive of all exhibits hereto) and a City issued Task Order, the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement shall prevail with the City issued Task Order next taking precedence. Wherever possible, 
the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid conflicts between 
provisions of the various documents. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this 
Agreement may be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument 
executed by the parties hereto. 

SECTION 24:  WAIVER.  Failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this Agreement 
shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any time thereafter. 

SECTION 25:  PREPARATION AND NON-EXCLUSIVE.  This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strongly against either party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation.  This is a non-
exclusive Agreement and the City reserves the right to contract with individuals or firms to provide the 
same or similar services. 

SECTION 26:  MATERIALITY.  All provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed material.  In the event 
CONSULTANT fails to comply with any of the provisions contained in this Agreement or exhibits, 
amendments and addenda attached hereto, said failure shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement 
and City may at its option provide notice to the CONSULTANT to terminate for cause. 
 
SECTION 27:  LEGAL EFFECT.  This Agreement shall not become binding and effective until approved 
by the City Commission.  The Effective Date is the date this Agreement is executed by the City. 
 
SECTION 28:  NOTICE OF COMPLAINTS, SUITS AND REGULATORY VIOLATIONS.  Each party 
will promptly notify the other of any complaint, claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced 
against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, to the performance of this Agreement.  Each party 
agrees to cooperate with the other in any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit 
in which either party is named, and shall do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance 
coverage.  
 
SECTION 29:  SURVIVABILITY.  Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or 
imposes an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or 
earlier termination.  
 
SECTION 30:  COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts 
electronically or digitally, each of which shall be deemed an original, and will become effective and binding 
upon the parties at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this Agreement.  
 
SECTION 31:  PALM BEACH COUNTY IG.  In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 
2011-009, the CONSULTANT acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or 
audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General.  The CONSULTANT has reviewed Palm Beach County 
ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 
 
SECTION 32:  REPRESENTATIONS AND BINDING AUTHORITY. By signing this Agreement, on 
behalf of the CONSULTANT, the undersigned hereby represents to the City that he or she has the authority 
and full legal power to execute this Agreement and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and 
implement the terms of this Agreement on behalf of the CONSULTANT for whom he or she is signing and 
to bind and obligate such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 



 

Page 10 of 29                                                   
 

 
SECTION 33:  PUBLIC RECORDS.  The CONSULTANT shall comply with Florida’s Public Records 
Act, Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under 
section 119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 
 

(a) Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 
 
(b) Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with 

a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a 
cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by 
law. 

 
(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 

disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement 
and following completion of this Agreement if the CONSULTANT does not transfer the records to the 
City. 

 
(d) Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in 

possession of the CONSULTANT or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the 
service. If the CONSULTANT transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Agreement, 
the CONSULTANT shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential or exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements. If the CONSULTANT keeps and maintains public records 
upon completion of the Agreement, the CONSULTANT shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining 
public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s 
custodian of public records or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology 
systems of the City.  
 
IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONSULTANT’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS AT (561) 586-1660, CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, 
OR 7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 33460. 

 
SECTION 34:  CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION.  Each party (the “Receiving 
Party”) will keep confidential and not disclose to any other person or entity or use (except as expressly 
and unambiguously authorized by this Agreement) information, technology or software (“Confidential 
Information”) obtained from the other party (the “Disclosing Party”); provided, however, that the 
Receiving Party will not be prohibited from disclosing or using information (i) that at the time of 
disclosure is publicly available or becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Receiving 
Party, (ii) that is or has been disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who is not under, and to 
whom the Receiving Party does not owe, an obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, (iii) that is 
or has been independently acquired or developed by the Receiving Party without access to the Disclosing 
Party’s Confidential Information, (iv) that is already in the Receiving Party’s possession at the time of 
disclosure, or (v) that is required to be released by law. 

SECTION 35:  EXPORT ADMINISTRATION.  Each party agrees to comply with all export laws and 
regulations of the United States (“Export Laws”) to assure that no software deliverable, item, service, 
technical data or any direct product thereof arising out of or related to this Agreement is exported directly 
or indirectly (as a physical export or a deemed export) in violation of Export Laws. 
 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV


 

Page 11 of 29                                                   
 

SECTION 36:  NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  There are no third party beneficiaries under this 
Agreement. 
 
SECTION 37:  SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES.   
(a) The CONSULTANT certifies that it and its subconsultants are not on the Scrutinized Companies 
that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida 
Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONSULTANT or 
any of its subconsultants are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONSULTANT or any 
of its subconsultants, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the 
boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 
 
(b) If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONSULTANT certifies that it and its 
subconsultants are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in 
Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may 
immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the CONSULTANT or any of its subconsultants 
are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the CONSULTANT or any of its subconsultants are 
placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with 
Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations 
in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 
 
(c) The CONSULTANT agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered 
into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 
 
(d) The CONSULTANT agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon 
by the City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 
 
(e) The CONSULTANT agrees that if it or any of its subconsultants’ status changes in regards to any 
certification herein, the CONSULTANT shall immediately notify the City of the same. 
 
(f) As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above 
stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 
 
SECTION 38:  E-VERIFY. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 
2021, the CONSULTANT shall: 
 
(a) Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 
employees and require all subconsultants (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) 
to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subconsultants’ 
newly hired employees; 
 
(b) Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 
Agreement) stating that the subconsultant does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an 
“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 
 
(c) Maintain copies of all subconsultant affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the 
same to the City upon request; 
 
(d) Comply fully, and ensure all subconsultant comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes;  
(e) Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized Aliens; Employment 
Prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 
 



 

Page 12 of 29                                                   
 

(f) Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statues, 
the CONSULTANT may not be awarded a contract for at least one (1) year after the date on which the 
Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a result of the 
termination of the Agreement. 
 
  





 

Page 14 of 29                                                   
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
(Sample Task Order) 

 
Note: Task Order Number will be issued by the City, leave the line number empty.  

 
  



Page 15 of 29

TASK ORDER No.____ 

CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 (Geotechnical) 

THIS TASK ORDER FOR CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (“Task Order”) is made 
on the day of _____________, between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation 
(“City”) and Terracon Consultants, Inc. a State of Florida, CORPORATION (“CONSULTANT”). 

1.0 

2.0 

3.0 

4.0 

5.0 

6.0 

7.0 

Project Description: 

The City desires the CONSULTANT to provide those services as identified herein for the Project. 
The Project is described in the CONSULTANT’s Proposal, dated ______________ and services 
are generally described as:  _____________________________ (the “Project”). 

Scope 

Under this Task Order, the CONSULTANT will provide the City of Lake Worth Beach 
__________________________________with geotechnical consulting services for the Project as 
specified in the CONSULTANT’s proposal attached hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit “1”.    

Schedule 

The services to be provided under this Task Order shall be completed within _________ calendar 
days from the City’s approval of this Task Order or the issuance of a Notice to Proceed. 

Compensation 

This Task Order is issued for a lump sum, not to exceed amount of 
____________________________. The attached proposal identifies all costs and expenses 
included in the lump sum, not to exceed amount. 

Project Manager 

The Project Manager for the CONSULTANT is ______________, phone 
(____________________; email: _________________; and, the Project Manager for the City is 
______________________________, phone:_________________________________; 
email:_______________________. 

Progress Meetings 

The CONSULTANT shall schedule periodic progress review meetings with the City Project 
Manager as necessary but every 30 days as a minimum. 

Authorization 

This Task Order is issued pursuant to the Continuing Professional Services Agreement 
(Geotechnical) based on RFQ#23-300 between the City of Lake Worth Beach and the 
CONSULTANT, dated ________ (“Agreement” hereafter). If there are any conflicts between 
the terms and conditions of this Task Order and the Agreement, the terms and conditions of the 
Agreement shall prevail.  



 

Page 16 of 29                                                   
 

 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order No. 
_____ as of the day and year set forth above.   
 
 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 
 
 
      By: __________________________________ 
             Betty Resch, Mayor 
ATTEST:                                                                       
                                                         
                      
By: __________________________                 
      Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk                           
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND                          APPROVED FOR FINANCIAL         
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:                                        SUFFICIENCY 
 
 
 
By: __________________________                  By: ________________________________________ 
      Glen J. Torcivia, City Attorney                            Yannick Ngendahayo, Financial Services Director 
 
 
 

                                      CONSULTANT:  TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC.  

 
By:  DO NOT SIGN – SAMPLE ONLY   

 
[Corporate Seal]     
 
STATE OF _________________________) 
COUNTY OF __________________) 
 
 
THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical presence or �online 
notarization on this ____ day of ______________, 2023, by Terracon Consultants, Inc. a Florida 
Corporation, who is personally known to me or who has produced_________________________ as 
identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized to execute the foregoing instrument 
and bind the CONSULTANT to the same.   
 
 
____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 
 
Notary Seal:  
 
  



 

Page 17 of 29                                                   
 

Exhibit “B” 
 

Consultant’s Rate Schedule  
 

  



 

Page 18 of 29                                                   
 

 
 
 
 



 

Page 19 of 29                                                   
 

 

 
 
  



 

Page 20 of 29                                                   
 

 
   TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC.   

   2023 FEE SCHEDULE   

   GEOTECHNICAL   

DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNIT RATE 
   TECHNICAL AND PROFESSIONAL STAFF   

 A. Chief Engineer/Chief Scientist/Chief Geologist Per Hour $ 250.00 
 B. Principal Engineer/Principal Scientist/Principal Geologist Per Hour $ 200.00 
 C. Senior Engineer/Senior Project Manager/Senior Geologist/Senior Scientist Per Hour $ 160.00 
 D. Project Manager/Project Engineer/Project Geologist/Project Scientist Per Hour $ 145.00 
 E. Assistant Project Manager/Staff Engineer/Assistant Project Geologist/Assistant Project Scientist Per Hour $ 120.00 
 F. Chief Field Technician/Chief Engineering Technician/Chief Environmental Technician Per Hour $ 90.00 
 G. Senior Field Technician/Senior Engineering Technician/Senior Environmental Technician Per Hour $ 85.00 
 H. Field Technician/Engineering Technician/Environmental Technician Per Hour $ 65.00 
 I. Engineering Technician Per Hour $ 75.00 
 J. CADD Operator Per Hour $ 85.00 
 K. Administrative Assistant Per Hour $ 65.00 

NOTES 
 1. Hourly rates are portal to portal.   

 2. An overtime multiplier of 1.5 will be applied to the above rates for any work performed between 6:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.  

weekends, holidays and over 8 hours per day. 
 3. Rates for services not listed will be provided as requested.   

 4. Stand-by time and cancellation without prior notice will be invoiced at the appropriate hourly rate.   
   TRAVEL EXPENSES   

 A. Automobile Travel (non-rental) Per Mile $ 0.95 
 B. Field Support Vehicle Per Day $ 100.00 
 C. Lodging, per person (subject to change dependent on geographical area) Per Day Cost+15% 
 D. Per Diem, per person Per Day $ 75.00 

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
I. FIELD SERVICES   

 A. Mobilization of Crew and Equipment   

  1. Truck Mounted Equipment Each $ 1,000.00 
  2. Mudbug Drill Rig Each $ 1,500.00 
  3. CPT Mobilization Each $ 1,500.00 
 B. Standard Penetration Test Borings   

  1. Truck/Mudbug   
   i.  0 - 50 foot depths Per L.F. $ 15.00 
   ii.  50 - 100 foot depths Per L.F. $ 17.00 
   iii. 100 - 150 foot depths Per L.F. $ 21.00 
   iv. 150 - 200 foot depths Per L.F. $ 28.00 
 C. Cone Soundings   

  1. 0 - 50 Foot Depths Per Foot $ 15.00 
  2. 50 - 100 Foot Depths Per Foot $ 17.00 
  3. 100 - 150 Foot Depths Per Foot $ 20.00 
 D. Bentonite Chip Backfill   
  1. Truck/Mudbug   

   i.  0 - 100 foot depths Per L.F. $ 4.00 
 E. Grout Seal Boreholes (less than 4 inches)   

  1. Truck/Mudbug   

   i.  0 - 50 foot depths Per L.F. $ 6.00 
   ii.  50 - 100 foot depths Per L.F. $ 7.50 
   iii. 100 - 150 foot depths Per L.F. $ 9.00 
   iv. 150 - 200 foot depths Per L.F. $ 12.00 
 F. Casing Allowance - 3 inch   

  1. Truck/Mudbug   

   i.  0 - 50 foot depths Per L.F. $ 8.00 
   ii.  50 - 100 foot depths Per L.F. $ 10.00 
   iii. 100 - 150 foot depths Per L.F. $ 12.00 
   iv. 150 - 200 foot depths Per L.F. $ 15.00 
 G. Piezometer (<2 inch diameter PVC)   

  1. Truck/Mudbug   

   i.  0 - 50 foot depths Per L.F. $ 30.00 
 H. Auger Borings (Hand and Truck)   

  1. 0 - 50 foot depths Per L.F. $ 12.00 
  2. 50 - 100 foot depths Per L.F. $ 15.00 
 I. Field Permeability Tests   

  1. 0 - 10 foot depths Each $ 500.00 
  2. 10 - 25 foot depths Each $ 650.00 
 J. Hand Probing/Wash Borings   

  1. Two Person Crew Per Hour $ 200.00 
  2. Three Person Crew Per Hour $ 300.00 
 K. Drill Crew Time (drilling and sampling by the hour), Stand-by Time, Clearing, Difficult Access, Etc.   
  1. Truck/Mudbug   

   i. Two Person Crew Per Hour $ 250.00 
   ii. Three Person Crew Per Hour $ 350.00 



 

Page 21 of 29                                                   
 

 
 
 
 

  TERRACON CONSULTANTS, INC.   

  2023 FEE SCHEDULE   

  GEOTECHNICAL   

DESCRIPTION OF WORK UNIT RATE 

L. Thin-Walled Tube Samples   
 1. Truck/Mudbug   

  i.  0 - 50 foot depths Each $ 200.00 
  ii.  50 - 100 foot depths Each $ 250.00 
  iii. 100 - 150 foot depths Each $ 300.00 
  iv. 150 - 200 foot depths Each $ 350.00 

M. Extra Split Spoon Samples   

 1. Truck/Mudbug   
  i.  0 - 50 foot depths Each $ 40.00 
  ii.  50 - 100 foot depths Each $ 55.00 
  iii. 100 - 150 foot depths Each $ 75.00 
  iv. 150 - 200 foot depths Each $ 90.00 

N. Ground Surface D.R.I. Each $ 750.00 
O. Maintenance of Traffic Per Day TBD 

 
II. LABORATORY TESTING   

 A. Visual Examination Stratify   

  1. Staff Engineer Per Hour Staff Eng. Rate 
 B. Natural Moisture Each $ 25.00 
 C. Grain Size Analysis   

  1. Full Gradation Each $ 125.00 
  2. Single Sieve Each $ 55.00 
 D. Hydrometer Each $ 400.00 
 E. Organic Content Each $ 55.00 
 F. Atterberg Limits Each $ 125.00 
 G. Consolidation Each $ 1,500.00 
 H. Permeability   

  1. Granular Each $ 450.00 
 I. FDOT Corrosion Series (pH, Sulfate, Chloride, Resistivity) Each $ 250.00 

 
 
  



 

Page 22 of 29                                                   
 

Exhibit “C” 
 

Federal Contract Provisions  
 

The Consultant hereby agrees that the following terms, at a minimum, will be incorporated into any 
subsequent contract resulting from this RFQ, which is funded in whole or in part with any federal or other 
funding where the following terms are applicable: 
 
Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance of the resulting contract, the Consultant agrees 
as follows: 
 
(1) The Consultant will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because 
of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The Consultant will take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national 
origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants 
for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.   
(2) The Consultant will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to 
race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. 
(3) The Consultant will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or 
applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed 
the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not 
apply to instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information of other 
employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of 
such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, 
unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, 
proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with 
the Consultant's legal duty to furnish information. 
(4) The Consultant will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a 
collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the 
said labor union or workers' representatives of the Consultant's commitments under this section, and shall 
post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment. 
(5) The Consultant will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, 
and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 
 (6) The Consultant will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, 
and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary 
of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 
(7) In the event of the Consultant's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract 
or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended 
in whole or in part and the Consultant may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or 
federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 
11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided 
in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, 
or as otherwise provided by law. 
(8) The Consultant will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the 
provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, 
regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of 
September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The 



 

Page 23 of 29                                                   
 

Consultant will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering 
agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:  
Provided, however, that in the event a Consultant becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with 
a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Consultant may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.  
The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause with respect to its 
own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: Provided, That if 
the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not 
applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in 
work on or under the contract.  The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the 
administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and 
subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the 
Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information 
as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the 
administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.   
The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification 
subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a Consultant debarred from, or who has not 
demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant 
to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity 
clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary 
of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it 
fails or refuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the 
following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan, insurance, 
guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to 
which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received 
from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings. 
 
Compliance with the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. 
(1) Overtime requirements. No Consultant or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract 
work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any 
such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess 
of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek. 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause 
set forth in paragraph (1) of this section the Consultant and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be 
liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Consultant and subcontractor shall be liable to the United 
States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District 
or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to 
each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause 
set forth in paragraph (1) of this section, in the sum of $27 for each calendar day on which such individual 
was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of 
the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this section.   
(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. DOJ, the State of Florida, or the CITY  
shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor 
withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
Consultant or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime 
contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy 
any liabilities of such Consultant or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in 
the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this section. 
(4) Subcontracts. The Consultant or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth 
in paragraph (1) through (4) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these 



 

Page 24 of 29                                                   
 

clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime Consultant shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (1) through (4) of this 
section. 
 
Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 
If the Federal award meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 CFR § 401.2(a) and the recipient 
or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding 
the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work 
under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR 
Part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under 
Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by 
the awarding agency. 
 
Clean Air Act 
(1) The Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to 
the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq. 
(2) The Consultant agrees to report each violation to the City, and understands and agrees that the City will, 
in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.  
(3) The Consultant agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed 
in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act  
(1) The Consultant agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to 
the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq. 
(2) The Consultant agrees to report each violation to the CITY and understands and agrees that the CITY 
will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office. 
(3) The Consultant agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding $150,000 financed 
in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by DOJ. 
 
Suspension and Debarment.  
(1) This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, 
the Consultant is required to verify that none of the Consultant’s principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) 
or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified 
(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935). 
(2) The Consultant must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and 
must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters 
into. 
(3) This certification, as laid out in Exhibit I, is a material representation of fact relied upon by the City. If 
it is later determined that the Consultant did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 
3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to the State of Florida or the City, the Federal Government 
may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment. 
(4) The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 
C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise 
from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in 
its lower tier covered transactions. 
 
Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment. 
 Consultants who apply or bid for an award of $100,000 or more shall file the required certification as laid 
out in Exhibit J. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated 
funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 



 

Page 25 of 29                                                   
 

Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 
§ 1352. Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection 
with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the recipient who 
in turn will forward the certification(s) to the awarding agency. 
 
Procurement of Recovered materials.  
(i) In the performance of this contract, the Consultant shall make maximum use of products containing 
recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired— 
• Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance 
schedule; 
• Meeting contract performance requirements; or 
• At a reasonable price. 
(ii)  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA-designated items, is available at 
EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, https://www.epa.gov/smm/comprehensive- 
procurement-guideline-cpg-program. 
(iii) The Consultant also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the 
Solid Waste Disposal Act.” 
 
Access to Records.  
(1) The Consultant agrees to provide the State of Florida, the CITY, the DOJ Administrator, the Comptroller 
General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, 
papers, and records of the Consultant which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making 
audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.  
(2) The Consultant agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or 
to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed. 
(3) The Consultant agrees to provide the Federal Administrator or his authorized representatives access to 
construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract. 
(4) In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the City and the Consultant acknowledge and 
agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the DOJ 
Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United States. 
 
DHS Seal, Logo, and Flags.  
The Consultant shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS 
agency officials without specific DOJ pre-approval. 
 
Compliance with Federal Law, Regulations, and Executive Orders.  
By signing this agreement, the Consultant acknowledges that federal financial assistance may be used to 
fund all or a portion of the contract. The Consultant will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, 
executive orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives.  
 
No Obligation by Federal Government.  
The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to 
the non-Federal entity, Consultant, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract. 
 
Program Fraud and False or Fraudulent Statements or Related Acts. The Consultant acknowledges 
that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the 
Consultant’s actions pertaining to this contract. 
 
Affirmative Steps.  Required Affirmative Steps  
If the Consultant intends to subcontract any portion of the work covered by this Contract, the Consultant 
must take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small and minority businesses, women’s business 
enterprises and labor surplus area firms are solicited and used when possible.  Affirmative steps must 
include: 



 

Page 26 of 29                                                   
 

(1) Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation 
lists; 
(2) Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited 
whenever they are potential sources; 
(3) Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit 
maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; 
(4) Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by 
small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and 
(5) Using the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business 
Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce. 
 
Domestic preferences for procurements. 
(1) As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Consultant should purchase, acquire, or use of 
goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron, aluminum, 
steel, cement, and other manufactured products).  
(2) For purposes of this section:  
(a) “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing processes, 
from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the United States.  
(b) “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part of non-
ferrous metals such as aluminum; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl chloride pipe; 
aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber. 
Prohibition on certain telecommunications and video surveillance services or equipment. 
(1) The Consultant is prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to:  
(a) Procure or obtain;  
(b) Extend or renew a contract to procure or obtain; or  
(c) Enter into a contract (or extend or renew a contract) to procure or obtain equipment, services, or systems 
that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any 
system, or as critical technology as part of any system. As described in Public Law 115-232, section 889, 
covered telecommunications equipment is telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei 
Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
(i) For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of 
critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and telecommunications 
equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology 
Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).  
(ii) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such equipment.  
(iii) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an entity 
that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence or the Director 
of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or 
otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.  
(2) In implementing the prohibition under Public Law 115-232, section 889, subsection (f), paragraph (1), 
the City shall prioritize available funding and technical support to assist affected businesses, institutions 
and organizations as is reasonably necessary for those affected entities to transition from covered 
communications equipment and services, to procure replacement equipment and services, and to ensure 
that communications service to users and customers is sustained. 
  



 

Page 27 of 29                                                   
 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER 
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - LOWER-TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS 

 
This document is a covered transaction for purposes of the debarment and suspension regulations 
implementing Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension (1986) and Executive Order 12689, 
Debarment and Suspension (1989) at 2 C.F.R. Part 3000 (Non- procurement Debarment and Suspension).  
As such, Consultant is required to confirm that none of the Consultant, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 
180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or 
disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).  
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION 
 
1) By signing this Certification, the Consultant, also sometimes referred to herein as a prospective 
primary participant, is providing the certification set out below.  
 
2) The inability of a Consultant to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result 
in denial of participation in the covered transaction.  The prospective participant shall submit an explanation 
of why it cannot provide the certification set out below.  The certification or explanation will be considered 
in connection with the City’s determination whether to enter into this transaction.  However, failure of the 
prospective primary participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from 
participation in this transaction. 
 
3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 
when the City determined to enter into this transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary 
participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the 
City, the City may terminate this transaction for cause or default. 
 
4) The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the City if at any 
time the prospective primary participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has 
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 
 
5) The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered transaction, 
participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal and voluntarily excluded, as used in 
this certification, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules 
implementing Executive Order 12549. 
 
6) The prospective primary participant agrees by signing the Addendum that it shall not knowingly 
enter into any lower tier covered transactions with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR 
part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in 
this covered transaction.  If it is later determined that the prospective primary participant knowingly entered 
into such a transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the City, the City may terminate this 
transaction for cause or default. 
 
7) The prospective primary participant further agrees by signing this Addendum that it will include 
the clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion - 
Lower Tier Covered Transaction,” as available through the United States Department of Homeland 
Security, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier 
covered transactions. 
 
8) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in 
a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, 
debarred, suspended, ineligible or voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that 



 

Page 28 of 29                                                   
 

the certification is erroneous.  A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines 
the eligibility of its principals.  Each participant may, but is not required to, check the List of Parties 
Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-procurement Programs. 
 
9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause.  The knowledge and 
information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Signature of Consultant’s Authorized Official 
 
__________________________________________ 
Name and Title of Consultant’s Authorized Official 
 
________________ 
Date 
  
  
  

Michael J. O'Connor, P.E., Principal

3/3/2023



 

Page 29 of 29                                                   
 

 
 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements 
 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 
1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, 
to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with 
the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the 
entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 
2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal 
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-
LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 
 
3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each 
such failure.   
 
The Consultant ____________________________ certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each 
statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Consultant understands and agrees that 
the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements, apply to 
this certification and disclosure, if any. 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Signature of Consultant’s Authorized Official 
 
__________________________________________ 
Name and Title of Consultant’s Authorized Official 
 
________________ 
Date 
 
 

Terracon

Michael J. O'Connor, P.E. , Principal

3/3/2023



Page 1 of 11  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(FY 2023 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis) 

 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on 
 , by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation (“City”) 
and Stantec Consulting Services Inc., a corporation authorized to do business in the State of Florida 
(“Consultant”). 

 
RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has provided the City with a written proposal for a FY2023 
Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s procurement code, section 2-112(c), authorizes the selection of a consultant 

to provide professional services with a distinctive field of expertise without competitive selection; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s procurement code, section 2-112(f), similarly authorizes a single source 
procurement without competition if the single source is the only practicable source or in the best interest of 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on the Consultant’s past service and experience with the City; the Consultant’s 

development of its FAMS-XL© model for the City’s Enterprise Funds and General Fund; the Consultant’s 
distinctive field of expertise and experience in creating comprehensive integrated revenue sufficiency 
analysis; and, the substantial development delay in seeking similar services from another consultant, the 
City desires to enter into a direct professional services agreement with the Consultant to perform the 
FY-2023 comprehensive integrated financial sustainability analysis; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for the 

provision of services by the Consultant to the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City finds this Agreement serves a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and the Consultant agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this 
Agreement as true and correct statements. 

 
SECTION 2: CONSULTANT’S SERVICES. As more specifically set forth in the Consultant’s proposal 
(dated February 14, 2023) which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein, the Consultant 
shall update the source data, assumptions and projections within its FAMS-XL© modeling system for each of 
the City’s enterprise funds (water, local sewer, stormwater, sanitation, beach and electric) as well as the City’s 
general fund. The Consultant shall also develop a corresponding revenue sufficiency analysis report reflecting 
the updated projections and information regarding the City’s enterprise funds and the City’s general fund. 

 
SECTION 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. No relationship of employer or 
employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that Consultant will act hereunder as an 
independent contractor and none of the Consultant’s, officers, directors, employees, independent contractors, 
representatives or agents performing services for Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall have any claim 
under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any kind under this Agreement. The 
relationship between the City and Consultant is that of independent contractors, and neither shall be considered 
a joint venture, partner, employee, agent, representative or other relationship of the other for any purpose 
expressly or by implication. 



Page 2 of 11  

SECTION 4: TERM, TIME AND TERMINATION. 
 

a. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the approval of this Agreement 
by the City Commission and shall be for the term necessary to complete all services as set forth in the 
Consultant’s proposal (Exhibit “A) unless earlier terminated as stated herein. The term may be extended by 
written agreement of the parties for further services related to those services identified herein. 

 
b. Time for Completion.   The Consultant shall at all times carry out its duties and 

responsibilities as expeditiously as possible in accordance with the applicable professional standard of 
care and in accordance with the project schedule set forth in Exhibit “A”. 

 
c. Force Majeure. Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to perform hereunder due 

to any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as acts of God, wars, riots, national emergencies, 
sabotage, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, and governmental laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations. The 
Consultant or City may suspend its performance under this Agreement as a result of a force majeure without 
being in default of this Agreement, but upon the removal of such force majeure, the Consultant or City shall 
resume its performance as soon as is reasonably possible. Upon the Consultant’s request, the City shall 
consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the services and, if the Consultant’s failure to perform 
was without its or its subconsultants’ fault or negligence, the schedule and/or any other affected provision 
of this Agreement may be revised accordingly, subject to the City’s rights to change, terminate, or stop any 
or all of the services at any time. No extension shall be made for delay occurring more than seven (7) days 
before a notice of delay or claim therefore is made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of 
delay, only one (1) notice of delay or claim is necessary. 

 
d. Termination without cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with 

or without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination. 
 

e. Termination for cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the event 
that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material breach of any term or 
condition of this Agreement. The party electing to terminate this Agreement shall provide the other party 
with written notice specifying the nature of the breach. The party receiving the notice shall then have three 
(3) days from the date of the notice in which to remedy the breach. If such corrective action is not taken 
within three (3) days, then this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three (3) day period without 
further notice or demand. 

 
f. Early Termination. If this Agreement is terminated before the completion of all services by 

either party, the Consultant shall: 
 

1. Stop services on the date and to the extent specified including without limitation services 
of any subconsultants. 

 
2. Transfer all work in progress, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated 

services to the City in the format acceptable to City. 
 

3. Continue and complete all parts of the services that have not been terminated. 
 

g. Effect of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights, 
obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to termination. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the City is a municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the state of Florida, and as such, this Agreement (and all Exhibits hereto) are 
subject to budgeting and appropriation by the City of funds sufficient to pay the costs associated herewith 
in any fiscal year of the City. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that 



Page 3 of 11  

no funds are appropriated or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any fiscal year to pay the costs 
associated with the City’s obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the funds budgeted or 
appropriated are, or are estimated by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs associated with the City’s 
obligations hereunder in any fiscal period, then the City will notify Consultant of such occurrence and either 
the City or Consultant may terminate this Agreement by notifying the other in writing, which notice shall 
specify a date of termination no earlier than twenty-four (24) hours after giving of such notice. Termination 
in accordance with the preceding sentence shall be without penalty or expense to the City of any kind 
whatsoever; however, City shall pay Consultant for all services performed under this Agreement through 
the date of termination. 

 
SECTION 5: COMPENSATION. 

 

a. Payments. The City agrees to compensate the Consultant in accordance with the rate schedule set 
forth in Exhibit “A”; provided that, the total amount to be paid the Consultant under this Agreement 
shall not exceed One Hundred Thirty-One Thousand, Four Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars 
($131,467.00). The City shall not reimburse the Consultant for any additional costs incurred as a direct or 
indirect result of the Consultant providing services to the City under this Agreement and not set forth in 
Exhibit “A”. 

 
b. Invoices. The Consultant shall render monthly invoices to the City for services that have been 

rendered in conformity with this Agreement in the previous month. The invoices shall specify the services 
performed and the time spent on such work. All reimbursable expenses shall also be clearly identified on 
the invoice with supporting documentation. Invoices will normally be paid within thirty (30) days following 
the City’s receipt of the Consultant’s invoice. 

 
SECTION 6: INDEMNIFICATION. The Consultant, its officers, employees and agents shall indemnify 
and hold harmless the City, including its officers and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, 
including but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees (at the trial and appellate levels), to the extent caused 
by the negligence of the Consultant, its officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents employed 
or utilized by the Consultant in the performance of the services under this Agreement. The City agrees to 
be responsible for its own negligence. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual 
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or the Consultant, nor 
shall this Agreement be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity for the City beyond the waiver 
provided in section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 7: COMPLIANCE AND DISQUALIFICATION. Each of the parties agrees to perform its 
responsibilities under this Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and administrative 
instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 8: PERSONNEL. The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 
necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be 
performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services 
shall be fully qualified and authorized or permitted under federal, state and local law to perform such services. 

 
SECTION 9: SUB-CONSULTANTS. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a sub-consultant or to 
reject the selection of a particular sub-consultant and approve all qualifications of any sub-consultant in order 
to make a determination as to the capability of the sub-consultant to perform properly under this Agreement. 
All sub-consultants providing professional services to the Consultant under this Agreement will also be 
required to provide their own insurance coverage identical to those contained in this Agreement. In the event 
that a sub-consultant does not have insurance or does not meet the insurance limits as stated in this Agreement, 



Page 4 of 11  

the Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the City for any claim in excess of the sub-consultant’s 
insurance coverage, arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the sub-consultant. 

 
SECTION 10: FEDERAL AND STATE TAX. The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and 
Use Tax. The Consultant is not authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number. 

 
SECTION 11: INSURANCE. Prior to commencing any services, the Consultant shall provide proof of 
insurance coverage as required hereunder. Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the United States 
Treasury or insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who must 
have a rating of no less than “excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed upon by the City and the 
Consultant. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 
authorization of the City. 

 
Type of Coverage Amount of Coverage 

 

Professional liability/ $1,000,000 per claim 
Errors and Omissions 

 
Commercial general liability $1, 000,000 per occurrence 
(Products/completed operations 
Contractual, insurance broad form property, 
Independent Consultant, personal injury) $2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Automobile (owned, non-owned, & hired) $ 1,000,000 single limits 

Worker’s Compensation $ statutory limits 

The commercial general liability and automobile policies will name the City as an additional insured and proof 
of all insurance coverage shall be furnished to the City by way of an endorsement to same or certificate of 
insurance prior to the provision of services. The certificates shall clearly indicate that the Consultant has 
obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required for strict compliance with this section. 
Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve Consultant of its liability and obligations 
under this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 12: SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants 
of this Agreement. Except as agreed in writing by all parties, this Agreement is not assignable. 

 
SECTION 13: DISPUTE RESOLUTION, LAW, VENUE AND REMEDIES. All claims arising out of 
this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall share the mediator’s 
fee equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County. Agreements reached in mediation shall be 
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the Agreement 
will be held in Palm Beach County. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive 
of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No 
single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or 
further exercise thereof. 

 
SECTION 14: WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE 
RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 



Page 5 of 11  

SECTION 15: ACCESS AND AUDITS. The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all 
payments made by the City under this Agreement for at least three (3) years after completion of this 
Agreement and longer if required by applicable federal or state law. The City shall have access to such 
books, records, and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during 
normal business hours, at the Consultant’s place of business. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City’s 
right to inspect, copy and audit shall not extend to the composition of the Consultant’s rates and fees, 
percentage mark ups or multipliers but shall apply only to their application to the applicable units. In no 
circumstances will Consultant be required to disclose any confidential or proprietary information 
regarding its products and service costs. 

 
SECTION 16: NONDISCRIMINATION. The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees 
are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national 
origin, ancestry, marital status, or sexual orientation. 

 
SECTION 17: AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE. The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has 
and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its business and provide the 
services required under this Agreement, and that it will at all times conduct its business and provide the 
services under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be 
submitted to the City upon request. 

 
SECTION 18: SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this 
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as 
to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this 
Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law. 

 
SECTION 19: PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate 
who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public 
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract 
with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold 
amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months 
following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Consultant will advise the City 
immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 
SECTION 20: NOTICE. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by hand-delivery, certified 
mail (RRR), or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the CITY shall be sent to: 

 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
Attn: City Manager 
7 N. Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

and if sent to the Consultant, shall be sent to: 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
Attn: David Hyder, Senior Principal – Financial Services 
777 S. Harbor Island Blvd., Suite 600 
Tampa, FL 33602 

 
The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the other 
party. Notice shall be deemed given upon receipt. 



Page 6 of 11  

 
SECTION 21: ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. The City and the Consultant agree that this Agreement 
sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other 
than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may 
be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the 
parties hereto. 

 
SECTION 22: WAIVER. Failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this Agreement 
shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any time thereafter. 

 
SECTION 23: PREPARATION AND NON-EXCLUSIVE. This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strongly against either party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation. This is a non- 
exclusive Agreement and the City reserves the right to contract with individuals or firms to provide the 
same or similar services. 

 
SECTION 24: MATERIALITY. All provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed material. In the event 
Consultant fails to comply with any of the provisions contained in this Agreement or exhibits, amendments 
and addenda attached hereto, said failure shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and City 
may at its option provide notice to the Consultant to terminate for cause. 

 
SECTION 25: LEGAL EFFECT. This Agreement shall not become binding and effective until approved 
by the City. The Effective Date is the date this Agreement is executed by the City. 

 
SECTION 26: NOTICE OF COMPLAINTS, SUITS AND REGULATORY VIOLATIONS. Each party 
will promptly notify the other of any complaint, claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced 
against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, to the performance of this Agreement. Each party 
agrees to cooperate with the other in any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit 
in which either party is named, and shall do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance 
coverage. 

 
SECTION 27: SURVIVABILITY. Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or 
imposes an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or 
earlier termination. 

 
SECTION 28: COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, or electronically and will become effective and binding upon the 
parties as of the effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this 
Agreement. 

 
SECTION 29: PALM BEACH COUNTY IG. In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 
2011-009, the CONSULTANT acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or 
audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General. The CONSULTANT has reviewed Palm Beach County 
ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 

 
SECTION 30: AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS AND CONTROLLING PROVISIONS. This Agreement 
consists of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”. The parties agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions 
set forth in the aforementioned documents. To the extent that there exists a conflict between the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail. 
Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid 
conflicts between provisions of the various documents. 

 
SECTION 31: OWNERSHIP OF DELIVERABLES. The deliverables, work product, specifications, 
calculations, supporting documents, or other work products which are listed as deliverables by the 
Consultant in Exhibit “A” to the City (“Work Product”) shall become the property of the City. The 



Page 7 of 11  

Consultant may keep copies or samples thereof and shall have the right to use the same for its own 
purposes. The City accepts sole responsibility for the reuse of any such deliverables in a manner other 
than as initially intended or for any use of incomplete documents. The City shall have no ownership, 
license to or other right to use the Consultant’s FAMS-XL© Model under this Agreement. All 
rights title and interest in the Consultant’s FAMS-XL© Model shall remain with the Consultant. 

 
SECTION 32: REPRESENTATIONS AND BINDING AUTHORITY. By signing this Agreement, on 
behalf of the Consultant, the undersigned hereby represents to the City that he or she has the authority and 
full legal power to execute this Agreement and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and implement 
the terms of this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant for whom he or she is signing and to bind and 
obligate such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 33: PUBLIC RECORDS. The Consultant shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 
119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 
a. Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 
b. Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a copy 
of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 
c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement 
and following completion of this Agreement if the Consultant does not transfer the records to the City. 

 
d. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 
of the Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 
Consultant transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Agreement, the Consultant shall 
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential or exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements. If the Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public records 
or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City. 

 
IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONSULTANT'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, PLEASE CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF 
PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH, ATTN: CITY CLERK, AT (561) 586-1662, CITY 
CLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, 7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FL 33460. 

SECTION 34: CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Each party (the “Receiving 
Party”) will keep confidential and not disclose to any other person or entity or use (except as expressly 
and unambiguously authorized by this Agreement) information, technology or software (“Confidential 
Information”) obtained from the other party (the “Disclosing Party”); provided, however, that the 
Receiving Party will not be prohibited from disclosing or using information (i) that at the time of 
disclosure is publicly available or becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Receiving 
Party, (ii) that is or has been disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who is not under, and to 
whom the Receiving Party does not owe, an obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, (iii) that is 

mailto:CLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV


Page 8 of 11  

or has been independently acquired or developed by the Receiving Party without access to the Disclosing 
Party’s Confidential Information, (iv) that is already in the Receiving Party’s possession at the time of 
disclosure, or (v) that is required to be released by law. 

SECTION 35: EXPORT ADMINISTRATION. Each party agrees to comply with all export laws and 
regulations of the United States ("Export Laws") to assure that no software deliverable, item, service, 
technical data or any direct product thereof arising out of or related to this Agreement is exported directly 
or indirectly (as a physical export or a deemed export) in violation of Export Laws. 

 
SECTION 36: NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. There are no third-party beneficiaries under this 
Agreement. 

 
SECTION 37: SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES. 

 

a. The Consultant certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that 
Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida 
Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Consultant or any of 
its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Consultant or any of its 
subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott 
of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

 
b. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the Consultant certifies that it and its 
subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in 
Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may 
immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Consultant, or any of its subcontractors are 
found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Consultant or any of its subcontractors are placed on 
the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the 
Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria 
during the term of this Agreement. 

 
c. The Consultant agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 
for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

 
d. The Consultant agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by the 
City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

 
e. The Consultant agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 
certification herein, the Consultant shall immediately notify the City of the same. 

 
f. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above- 
stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
SECTION 38: E-VERIFY 

 

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, the Consultant shall: 
 
a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 
employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) 
to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ 
newly hired employees; 



Page 9 of 11 

b. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this
Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an
“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes;

c. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the
same to the City upon request;

d. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida
Statutes;

e. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment
prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and,

f. Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statues,
the Consultant may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is
terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a result of the termination of
the Agreement.

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 





777 S. Harbor Island Blvd., Suite 600   Tampa, Florida 33602   Phone (202) 585-6391   
E-mail: David.hyder@stantec.com 

Page 1 

February 14, 2023 

Mr. Yannick Ngendahayo 
Finance Director 
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL, 33460 

Re: FY 2023 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis 

Dear Mr. Ngendahayo: 

As requested, Stantec has prepared this proposed Agreement for the above referenced Project. 
The following sections present the scope of services included in this proposal and our proposed 
work plan and fee to accomplish the scope of services. 

Scope of Services 

The proposed scope of services for this proposed Agreement is as follows: 

1. Update the source data, assumptions, and projections within our FAMS Modeling System
which has been customized for each of the City’s Enterprise Funds (Water, Local Sewer,
Stormwater, Sanitation, Beach and Electric) as well as the City’s General Fund and have
been updated annually since 2015.

2. Meet with Staff in interactive online work sessions to review preliminary results for each
fund.  Make adjustments as necessary and present results to City Commission.

3. Develop a corresponding revenue sufficiency analysis report reflecting the updated
projections and information regarding the City’s Enterprise Funds and the City’s General
Fund.

Meetings 

We will conduct the following conference calls, on-site meetings (if possible and appropriate) and 
interactive work sessions during the project.  Each is described in the Project Work Plan and 
Cost Estimate Schedule, and a summary of the meetings is presented below.  Meetings with City 
staff will be conducted using online conferences to review data, assumptions, and results. 

1. We will conduct (1) one kick-off conference call to review project objectives, schedule,
key issues, approach, available data, and key assumptions for all seven funds.

2. We will conduct multiple online interactive review session with City staff to review data,
assumptions, and preliminary results for each of the seven funds.

3. We will conduct one onsite presentation of the results of the analysis to City Commission
during a regularly schedule work session.

EXHIBIT “A” 
(Consultant’s Proposal) 



777 S. Harbor Island Blvd., Suite 600   Tampa, Florida 33602   Phone (202) 585-6391   
E-mail: David.hyder@stantec.com 

Page 2 

Proposed Work Plan and Consultant’s Compensation 

I have enclosed in the Appendix a Project Work Plan and Fee Estimate Schedule (Schedule) 
which presents our proposed work plan and fee to conduct the analysis. The above referenced 
Schedule presents the tasks and sub-tasks that will be required to accomplish the goals of the 
study as specified in the Scope of Services, and 2) shows that the Study can be completed for 
a fixed fee of $131,467, inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses. The table below shows a 
breakdown of the work between funds.  We can begin work on this assignment immediately 
and estimate that it can be completed within approximately 150 days of receipt of all required 
data.   

We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and look forward to working with you 
on this project.  If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (202) 585-6391. 

Very truly yours, 

David Hyder 
Senior Principal - Financial Services 

If the terms of this proposed Agreement are acceptable, please affix the appropriate signature 
below and return a copy to us for our files: 



CONSULTANT: 

CLIENT: 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc.  

777 Harbour Island Boulevard, Suite 600, Tampa, FL 33602 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

SCOPE OF SERVICES: FY 2023 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis 

COMPENSATION: A Fixed Fee of $131,467 as set out in the attached Project Work Plan & 
Fee Estimate Schedule, billed monthly based upon percentage work 
complete by task. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement will be effective on the date last executed below. 
Receipt by CONSULTANT of this executed Agreement from CLIENT will 
serve as a Notice to Proceed. 

The services shall be performed by the Consultant in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement 
and any attachments. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings and may 
only be changed by written amendment executed by both parties. 

STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By: By: 

Name: David Hyder Name: 

Title: Senior Principal Title: 

Date: February 14, 2023 Date: 



Detailed Task Plan 

This Appendix presents the detailed task plan that we propose to execute to accomplish the scope of this project. The detailed task plan is 
presented in the Project Work Plan and Fee Estimate Schedule (Schedule) on the following pages. 







 

 

 



 

 

 





 

 



Attachment 

Independent Municipal Advisor Exemption 

February 14, 2023 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida is aware of the “Municipal Advisor Rule” of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and the “independent municipal advisor” exemption from the definition of “advice.” 
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida hereby notifies Stantec Consulting Services Inc. that it wishes them to 
continue to provide recommendations on user fees and financial forecasting related to the issuance of 
municipal securities.  City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida is represented by the firm of Davenport & 
Company, which it has retained to, among other things, assist the City in evaluating any and all of such 
recommendations.  City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida will rely on Davenport & Company for advice.  
Therefore, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida understands that Stantec Consulting Services Inc. is 
not a municipal advisor and is not subject to the fiduciary duty established in Section 15B(c)(1) of 
the Securities and Exchange Act.  This certificate may be relied upon until February 14, 2024.  Stantec 
Consulting Services Inc. understands that it must also send a copy of this certificate to Davenport & 
Company. 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Financial Services 

TITLE: 

Agreement with Stantec Consulting Services, Inc for Comprehensive Sustainability Analysis for the City 
for the FY 2024 Budget 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Agreement will provide an update to the FY2023 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability 
Analysis which provided framework for the City’s FY 2024 budget and budget projections through FY 
2033. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

As demonstrated during the FY 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022 and 2023 budget process, Stantec FAMS-EL© 
Model provides a dashboard of information and variables for multi-year budgets and plans. The Model 
plots multiple variables in the City’s differing funds and enables the City to obtain real-time information 
on proposed changes to those funds.   

Stantec Consulting Services, Inc has provided the City with a written proposal to provide an updated 
Revenue Sufficiency Analysis for FY 2024 budget preparation in the amount not to exceed $131,467.00. 
The City’s Procurement Code, section 2-112 (g) and City Procurement Policy authorize the selection of 
a consultant to provide professional services with a distinctive field of expertise without competitive 
selection. The City’s procurement code, section 2-112 (e), similarly authorizes a single source 
procurement without competition if the single source is the only practical source or in the best interest of 
the City.  Based on Stantec’s past service and experience with the City and propriety FAMS-XL© Model, 
the City may enter into a direct professional services agreement with Stantec to provide an update of its 
Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis for the City’s major funds for FY 2024 budget 
preparation. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the agreement with Stantec for an updated Comprehensive Integrated 
Financial Sustainability Analysis for FY 2024 Budget Preparation, not to exceed $131,467.00. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Stantec Agreement  



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Operating  131,467.00 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 131,467.00 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  City wide 

Division   

GL Description   

GL Account Number Various from funds: 001, 140, 401, 402, 403, 408 & 410  

Project Number   

Requested Funds  $131,467.00 

 



Page 1 of 11  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
(FY 2023 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis) 

 

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is entered on 
 , by and between the City of Lake Worth Beach, a Florida municipal corporation (“City”) 
and Stantec Consulting Services Inc., a corporation authorized to do business in the State of Florida 
(“Consultant”). 

 
RECITALS 

 

WHEREAS, the Consultant has provided the City with a written proposal for a FY2023 
Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s procurement code, section 2-112(c), authorizes the selection of a consultant 

to provide professional services with a distinctive field of expertise without competitive selection; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s procurement code, section 2-112(f), similarly authorizes a single source 
procurement without competition if the single source is the only practicable source or in the best interest of 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, based on the Consultant’s past service and experience with the City; the Consultant’s 

development of its FAMS-XL© model for the City’s Enterprise Funds and General Fund; the Consultant’s 
distinctive field of expertise and experience in creating comprehensive integrated revenue sufficiency 
analysis; and, the substantial development delay in seeking similar services from another consultant, the 
City desires to enter into a direct professional services agreement with the Consultant to perform the 
FY-2023 comprehensive integrated financial sustainability analysis; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions for the 

provision of services by the Consultant to the City; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City finds this Agreement serves a valid public purpose. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual covenants herein contained, the 
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties, the City and the Consultant agree as follows: 

 
SECTION 1: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into this 
Agreement as true and correct statements. 

 
SECTION 2: CONSULTANT’S SERVICES. As more specifically set forth in the Consultant’s proposal 
(dated February 14, 2023) which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein, the Consultant 
shall update the source data, assumptions and projections within its FAMS-XL© modeling system for each of 
the City’s enterprise funds (water, local sewer, stormwater, sanitation, beach and electric) as well as the City’s 
general fund. The Consultant shall also develop a corresponding revenue sufficiency analysis report reflecting 
the updated projections and information regarding the City’s enterprise funds and the City’s general fund. 

 
SECTION 3: INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. No relationship of employer or 
employee is created by this Agreement, it being understood that Consultant will act hereunder as an 
independent contractor and none of the Consultant’s, officers, directors, employees, independent contractors, 
representatives or agents performing services for Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall have any claim 
under this Agreement or otherwise against the City for compensation of any kind under this Agreement. The 
relationship between the City and Consultant is that of independent contractors, and neither shall be considered 
a joint venture, partner, employee, agent, representative or other relationship of the other for any purpose 
expressly or by implication. 



Page 2 of 11  

SECTION 4: TERM, TIME AND TERMINATION. 
 

a. Term. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the approval of this Agreement 
by the City Commission and shall be for the term necessary to complete all services as set forth in the 
Consultant’s proposal (Exhibit “A) unless earlier terminated as stated herein. The term may be extended by 
written agreement of the parties for further services related to those services identified herein. 

 
b. Time for Completion.   The Consultant shall at all times carry out its duties and 

responsibilities as expeditiously as possible in accordance with the applicable professional standard of 
care and in accordance with the project schedule set forth in Exhibit “A”. 

 
c. Force Majeure. Neither party hereto shall be liable for its failure to perform hereunder due 

to any circumstances beyond its reasonable control, such as acts of God, wars, riots, national emergencies, 
sabotage, strikes, labor disputes, accidents, and governmental laws, ordinances, rules, or regulations. The 
Consultant or City may suspend its performance under this Agreement as a result of a force majeure without 
being in default of this Agreement, but upon the removal of such force majeure, the Consultant or City shall 
resume its performance as soon as is reasonably possible. Upon the Consultant’s request, the City shall 
consider the facts and extent of any failure to perform the services and, if the Consultant’s failure to perform 
was without its or its subconsultants’ fault or negligence, the schedule and/or any other affected provision 
of this Agreement may be revised accordingly, subject to the City’s rights to change, terminate, or stop any 
or all of the services at any time. No extension shall be made for delay occurring more than seven (7) days 
before a notice of delay or claim therefore is made in writing to the City. In the case of continuing cause of 
delay, only one (1) notice of delay or claim is necessary. 

 
d. Termination without cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time with 

or without cause by giving not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination. 
 

e. Termination for cause. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time in the event 
that the other party engages in any act or makes any omission constituting a material breach of any term or 
condition of this Agreement. The party electing to terminate this Agreement shall provide the other party 
with written notice specifying the nature of the breach. The party receiving the notice shall then have three 
(3) days from the date of the notice in which to remedy the breach. If such corrective action is not taken 
within three (3) days, then this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the three (3) day period without 
further notice or demand. 

 
f. Early Termination. If this Agreement is terminated before the completion of all services by 

either party, the Consultant shall: 
 

1. Stop services on the date and to the extent specified including without limitation services 
of any subconsultants. 

 
2. Transfer all work in progress, completed work, and other materials related to the terminated 

services to the City in the format acceptable to City. 
 

3. Continue and complete all parts of the services that have not been terminated. 
 

g. Effect of Termination. Termination of this Agreement shall not affect any rights, 
obligations, and liabilities of the parties arising out of transactions which occurred prior to termination. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties acknowledge and agree that the City is a municipal corporation 
and political subdivision of the state of Florida, and as such, this Agreement (and all Exhibits hereto) are 
subject to budgeting and appropriation by the City of funds sufficient to pay the costs associated herewith 
in any fiscal year of the City. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, in the event that 



Page 3 of 11  

no funds are appropriated or budgeted by the City’s governing board in any fiscal year to pay the costs 
associated with the City’s obligations under this Agreement, or in the event the funds budgeted or 
appropriated are, or are estimated by the City to be, insufficient to pay the costs associated with the City’s 
obligations hereunder in any fiscal period, then the City will notify Consultant of such occurrence and either 
the City or Consultant may terminate this Agreement by notifying the other in writing, which notice shall 
specify a date of termination no earlier than twenty-four (24) hours after giving of such notice. Termination 
in accordance with the preceding sentence shall be without penalty or expense to the City of any kind 
whatsoever; however, City shall pay Consultant for all services performed under this Agreement through 
the date of termination. 

 
SECTION 5: COMPENSATION. 

 

a. Payments. The City agrees to compensate the Consultant in accordance with the rate schedule set 
forth in Exhibit “A”; provided that, the total amount to be paid the Consultant under this Agreement 
shall not exceed One Hundred Thirty-One Thousand, Four Hundred Sixty-Seven Dollars 
($131,467.00). The City shall not reimburse the Consultant for any additional costs incurred as a direct or 
indirect result of the Consultant providing services to the City under this Agreement and not set forth in 
Exhibit “A”. 

 
b. Invoices. The Consultant shall render monthly invoices to the City for services that have been 

rendered in conformity with this Agreement in the previous month. The invoices shall specify the services 
performed and the time spent on such work. All reimbursable expenses shall also be clearly identified on 
the invoice with supporting documentation. Invoices will normally be paid within thirty (30) days following 
the City’s receipt of the Consultant’s invoice. 

 
SECTION 6: INDEMNIFICATION. The Consultant, its officers, employees and agents shall indemnify 
and hold harmless the City, including its officers and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, 
including but not limited to, reasonable attorney's fees (at the trial and appellate levels), to the extent caused 
by the negligence of the Consultant, its officers, directors, employees, representatives and agents employed 
or utilized by the Consultant in the performance of the services under this Agreement. The City agrees to 
be responsible for its own negligence. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual 
relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either the City or the Consultant, nor 
shall this Agreement be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity for the City beyond the waiver 
provided in section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 7: COMPLIANCE AND DISQUALIFICATION. Each of the parties agrees to perform its 
responsibilities under this Agreement in conformance with all laws, regulations and administrative 
instructions that relate to the parties’ performance of this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 8: PERSONNEL. The Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all 
necessary personnel required to perform the services under this Agreement. Such personnel shall not be 
employees of or have any contractual relationship with the City. All of the services required hereunder shall be 
performed by the Consultant or under its supervision, and all personnel engaged in performing the services 
shall be fully qualified and authorized or permitted under federal, state and local law to perform such services. 

 
SECTION 9: SUB-CONSULTANTS. The City reserves the right to accept the use of a sub-consultant or to 
reject the selection of a particular sub-consultant and approve all qualifications of any sub-consultant in order 
to make a determination as to the capability of the sub-consultant to perform properly under this Agreement. 
All sub-consultants providing professional services to the Consultant under this Agreement will also be 
required to provide their own insurance coverage identical to those contained in this Agreement. In the event 
that a sub-consultant does not have insurance or does not meet the insurance limits as stated in this Agreement, 



Page 4 of 11  

the Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless the City for any claim in excess of the sub-consultant’s 
insurance coverage, arising out of the negligent acts, errors or omissions of the sub-consultant. 

 
SECTION 10: FEDERAL AND STATE TAX. The City is exempt from payment of Florida State Sales and 
Use Tax. The Consultant is not authorized to use the City’s Tax Exemption Number. 

 
SECTION 11: INSURANCE. Prior to commencing any services, the Consultant shall provide proof of 
insurance coverage as required hereunder. Such insurance policy(s) shall be issued by the United States 
Treasury or insurance carriers approved and authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and who must 
have a rating of no less than “excellent” by A.M. Best or as mutually agreed upon by the City and the 
Consultant. All such insurance policies may not be modified or terminated without the express written 
authorization of the City. 

 
Type of Coverage Amount of Coverage 

 

Professional liability/ $1,000,000 per claim 
Errors and Omissions 

 
Commercial general liability $1, 000,000 per occurrence 
(Products/completed operations 
Contractual, insurance broad form property, 
Independent Consultant, personal injury) $2,000,000 annual aggregate 

Automobile (owned, non-owned, & hired) $ 1,000,000 single limits 

Worker’s Compensation $ statutory limits 

The commercial general liability and automobile policies will name the City as an additional insured and proof 
of all insurance coverage shall be furnished to the City by way of an endorsement to same or certificate of 
insurance prior to the provision of services. The certificates shall clearly indicate that the Consultant has 
obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required for strict compliance with this section. 
Failure to comply with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve Consultant of its liability and obligations 
under this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 12: SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The City and the Consultant each binds itself and its 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party of this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants 
of this Agreement. Except as agreed in writing by all parties, this Agreement is not assignable. 

 
SECTION 13: DISPUTE RESOLUTION, LAW, VENUE AND REMEDIES. All claims arising out of 
this Agreement or its breach shall be submitted first to mediation. The parties shall share the mediator’s 
fee equally. The mediation shall be held in Palm Beach County. Agreements reached in mediation shall be 
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. This Agreement shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Florida. Any and all legal action necessary to enforce the Agreement 
will be held in Palm Beach County. No remedy herein conferred upon any party is intended to be exclusive 
of any other remedy, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 
other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise. No 
single or partial exercise by any party of any right, power, or remedy hereunder shall preclude any other or 
further exercise thereof. 

 
SECTION 14: WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE 
RESOLUTION OF ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT. 



Page 5 of 11  

SECTION 15: ACCESS AND AUDITS. The Consultant shall maintain adequate records to justify all 
payments made by the City under this Agreement for at least three (3) years after completion of this 
Agreement and longer if required by applicable federal or state law. The City shall have access to such 
books, records, and documents as required in this section for the purpose of inspection or audit during 
normal business hours, at the Consultant’s place of business. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City’s 
right to inspect, copy and audit shall not extend to the composition of the Consultant’s rates and fees, 
percentage mark ups or multipliers but shall apply only to their application to the applicable units. In no 
circumstances will Consultant be required to disclose any confidential or proprietary information 
regarding its products and service costs. 

 
SECTION 16: NONDISCRIMINATION. The Consultant warrants and represents that all of its employees 
are treated equally during employment without regard to race, color, religion, disability, sex, age, national 
origin, ancestry, marital status, or sexual orientation. 

 
SECTION 17: AUTHORITY TO PRACTICE. The Consultant hereby represents and warrants that it has 
and will continue to maintain all licenses and approvals required to conduct its business and provide the 
services required under this Agreement, and that it will at all times conduct its business and provide the 
services under this Agreement in a reputable manner. Proof of such licenses and approvals shall be 
submitted to the City upon request. 

 
SECTION 18: SEVERABILITY. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof 
to any person or circumstances shall, to any extent, be held invalid or unenforceable, to remainder of this 
Agreement, or the application of such terms or provision, to persons or circumstances other than those as 
to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, and every other term and provision of this 
Agreement shall be deemed valid and enforceable to the extent permitted by law. 

 
SECTION 19: PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES. Consultant acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate 
who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public 
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract 
with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold 
amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months 
following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The Consultant will advise the City 
immediately if it becomes aware of any violation of this statute. 

 
SECTION 20: NOTICE. All notices required in this Agreement shall be sent by hand-delivery, certified 
mail (RRR), or by nationally recognized overnight courier, and if sent to the CITY shall be sent to: 

 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
Attn: City Manager 
7 N. Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

and if sent to the Consultant, shall be sent to: 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
Attn: David Hyder, Senior Principal – Financial Services 
777 S. Harbor Island Blvd., Suite 600 
Tampa, FL 33602 

 
The foregoing names and addresses may be changed if such change is provided in writing to the other 
party. Notice shall be deemed given upon receipt. 



Page 6 of 11  

 
SECTION 21: ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. The City and the Consultant agree that this Agreement 
sets forth the entire agreement between the parties, and that there are no promises or understandings other 
than those stated herein. None of the provisions, terms and conditions contained in this Agreement may 
be added to, modified, superseded or otherwise altered, except by written instrument executed by the 
parties hereto. 

 
SECTION 22: WAIVER. Failure of a party to enforce or exercise any of its right(s) under this Agreement 
shall not be deemed a waiver of that parties’ right to enforce or exercise said right(s) at any time thereafter. 

 
SECTION 23: PREPARATION AND NON-EXCLUSIVE. This Agreement shall not be construed more 
strongly against either party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation. This is a non- 
exclusive Agreement and the City reserves the right to contract with individuals or firms to provide the 
same or similar services. 

 
SECTION 24: MATERIALITY. All provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed material. In the event 
Consultant fails to comply with any of the provisions contained in this Agreement or exhibits, amendments 
and addenda attached hereto, said failure shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement and City 
may at its option provide notice to the Consultant to terminate for cause. 

 
SECTION 25: LEGAL EFFECT. This Agreement shall not become binding and effective until approved 
by the City. The Effective Date is the date this Agreement is executed by the City. 

 
SECTION 26: NOTICE OF COMPLAINTS, SUITS AND REGULATORY VIOLATIONS. Each party 
will promptly notify the other of any complaint, claim, suit or cause of action threatened or commenced 
against it which arises out of or relates, in any manner, to the performance of this Agreement. Each party 
agrees to cooperate with the other in any investigation either may conduct, the defense of any claim or suit 
in which either party is named, and shall do nothing to impair or invalidate any applicable insurance 
coverage. 

 
SECTION 27: SURVIVABILITY. Any provision of this Agreement which is of a continuing nature or 
imposes an obligation which extends beyond the term of this Agreement shall survive its expiration or 
earlier termination. 

 
SECTION 28: COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, or electronically and will become effective and binding upon the 
parties as of the effective date at such time as all the signatories hereto have signed a counterpart of this 
Agreement. 

 
SECTION 29: PALM BEACH COUNTY IG. In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 
2011-009, the CONSULTANT acknowledges that this Agreement may be subject to investigation and/or 
audit by the Palm Beach County Inspector General. The CONSULTANT has reviewed Palm Beach County 
ordinance number 2011-009 and is aware of its rights and/or obligations under such ordinance. 

 
SECTION 30: AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS AND CONTROLLING PROVISIONS. This Agreement 
consists of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”. The parties agree to be bound by all the terms and conditions 
set forth in the aforementioned documents. To the extent that there exists a conflict between the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and Exhibit “A”, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail. 
Wherever possible, the provisions of such documents shall be construed in such a manner as to avoid 
conflicts between provisions of the various documents. 

 
SECTION 31: OWNERSHIP OF DELIVERABLES. The deliverables, work product, specifications, 
calculations, supporting documents, or other work products which are listed as deliverables by the 
Consultant in Exhibit “A” to the City (“Work Product”) shall become the property of the City. The 



Page 7 of 11  

Consultant may keep copies or samples thereof and shall have the right to use the same for its own 
purposes. The City accepts sole responsibility for the reuse of any such deliverables in a manner other 
than as initially intended or for any use of incomplete documents. The City shall have no ownership, 
license to or other right to use the Consultant’s FAMS-XL© Model under this Agreement. All 
rights title and interest in the Consultant’s FAMS-XL© Model shall remain with the Consultant. 

 
SECTION 32: REPRESENTATIONS AND BINDING AUTHORITY. By signing this Agreement, on 
behalf of the Consultant, the undersigned hereby represents to the City that he or she has the authority and 
full legal power to execute this Agreement and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and implement 
the terms of this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant for whom he or she is signing and to bind and 
obligate such party with respect to all provisions contained in this Agreement. 

 
SECTION 33: PUBLIC RECORDS. The Consultant shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Act, 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and, if determined to be acting on behalf of the City as provided under section 
119.011(2), Florida Statutes, specifically agrees to: 

 
a. Keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. 

 
b. Upon request from the City’s custodian of public records or designee, provide the City with a copy 
of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 
c. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of this Agreement 
and following completion of this Agreement if the Consultant does not transfer the records to the City. 

 
d. Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the City all public records in possession 
of the Consultant or keep and maintain public records required by the City to perform the service. If the 
Consultant transfers all public records to the City upon completion of the Agreement, the Consultant shall 
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential or exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements. If the Consultant keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the 
Agreement, the Consultant shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records 
stored electronically must be provided to the City, upon request from the City’s custodian of public records 
or designee, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the City. 

 
IF THE CONSULTANT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONSULTANT'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 
TO THIS AGREEMENT, PLEASE CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF 
PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH 
BEACH, ATTN: CITY CLERK, AT (561) 586-1662, CITY 
CLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV, 7 N. DIXIE HIGHWAY, LAKE 
WORTH BEACH, FL 33460. 

SECTION 34: CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Each party (the “Receiving 
Party”) will keep confidential and not disclose to any other person or entity or use (except as expressly 
and unambiguously authorized by this Agreement) information, technology or software (“Confidential 
Information”) obtained from the other party (the “Disclosing Party”); provided, however, that the 
Receiving Party will not be prohibited from disclosing or using information (i) that at the time of 
disclosure is publicly available or becomes publicly available through no act or omission of the Receiving 
Party, (ii) that is or has been disclosed to the Receiving Party by a third party who is not under, and to 
whom the Receiving Party does not owe, an obligation of confidentiality with respect thereto, (iii) that is 

mailto:CLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV


Page 8 of 11  

or has been independently acquired or developed by the Receiving Party without access to the Disclosing 
Party’s Confidential Information, (iv) that is already in the Receiving Party’s possession at the time of 
disclosure, or (v) that is required to be released by law. 

SECTION 35: EXPORT ADMINISTRATION. Each party agrees to comply with all export laws and 
regulations of the United States ("Export Laws") to assure that no software deliverable, item, service, 
technical data or any direct product thereof arising out of or related to this Agreement is exported directly 
or indirectly (as a physical export or a deemed export) in violation of Export Laws. 

 
SECTION 36: NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. There are no third-party beneficiaries under this 
Agreement. 

 
SECTION 37: SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES. 

 

a. The Consultant certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that 
Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel. Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida 
Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Consultant or any of 
its subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Consultant or any of its 
subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott 
of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

 
b. If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the Consultant certifies that it and its 
subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations in 
Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes. Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may 
immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Consultant, or any of its subcontractors are 
found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Consultant or any of its subcontractors are placed on 
the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the 
Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria 
during the term of this Agreement. 

 
c. The Consultant agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 
for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

 
d. The Consultant agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by the 
City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

 
e. The Consultant agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 
certification herein, the Consultant shall immediately notify the City of the same. 

 
f. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above- 
stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
SECTION 38: E-VERIFY 

 

Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, the Consultant shall: 
 
a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired 
employees and require all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this Agreement) 
to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all the subcontractors’ 
newly hired employees; 



Page 9 of 11  

b. Secure an affidavit from all subcontractors (providing services or receiving funding under this 
Agreement) stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an 
“unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

 
c. Maintain copies of all subcontractor affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and provide the 
same to the City upon request; 

 
d. Comply fully, and ensure all of its subcontractors comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes; 

 
e. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; employment 
prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

 
f. Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statues, 
the Consultant may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the Agreement is 
terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the City as a result of the termination of 
the Agreement. 

 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 





Page 11 of 11  

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

(Consultant’s Proposal) 



777 S. Harbor Island Blvd., Suite 600   Tampa, Florida 33602   Phone (202) 585-6391     
E-mail: David.hyder@stantec.com 

Page 1 

 

 

 
 
 

February 14, 2023 

Mr. Yannick Ngendahayo 
Finance Director 
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida  
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL, 33460 
 
Re: FY 2023 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis  
 
Dear Mr. Ngendahayo: 

As requested, Stantec has prepared this proposed Agreement for the above referenced Project. 
The following sections present the scope of services included in this proposal and our proposed 
work plan and fee to accomplish the scope of services. 
 
Scope of Services 
 

The proposed scope of services for this proposed Agreement is as follows: 
 

1. Update the source data, assumptions, and projections within our FAMS Modeling System 
which has been customized for each of the City’s Enterprise Funds (Water, Local Sewer, 
Stormwater, Sanitation, Beach and Electric) as well as the City’s General Fund and have 
been updated annually since 2015.    

 
2. Meet with Staff in interactive online work sessions to review preliminary results for each 

fund.  Make adjustments as necessary and present results to City Commission. 
 

3. Develop a corresponding revenue sufficiency analysis report reflecting the updated 
projections and information regarding the City’s Enterprise Funds and the City’s General 
Fund.  

 
Meetings 
 

We will conduct the following conference calls, on-site meetings (if possible and appropriate) and 
interactive work sessions during the project.  Each is described in the Project Work Plan and 
Cost Estimate Schedule, and a summary of the meetings is presented below.  Meetings with City 
staff will be conducted using online conferences to review data, assumptions, and results. 
 

1. We will conduct (1) one kick-off conference call to review project objectives, schedule, 
key issues, approach, available data, and key assumptions for all seven funds. 

2. We will conduct multiple online interactive review session with City staff to review data, 
assumptions, and preliminary results for each of the seven funds.   

3. We will conduct one onsite presentation of the results of the analysis to City Commission 
during a regularly schedule work session. 

 



777 S. Harbor Island Blvd., Suite 600   Tampa, Florida 33602   Phone (202) 585-6391     
E-mail: David.hyder@stantec.com 

Page 2 

 

 

Proposed Work Plan and Consultant’s Compensation 
 

I have enclosed in the Appendix a Project Work Plan and Fee Estimate Schedule (Schedule) 
which presents our proposed work plan and fee to conduct the analysis. The above referenced 
Schedule presents the tasks and sub-tasks that will be required to accomplish the goals of the 
study as specified in the Scope of Services, and 2) shows that the Study can be completed for 
a fixed fee of $131,467, inclusive of out-of-pocket expenses. The table below shows a 
breakdown of the work between funds.  We can begin work on this assignment immediately 
and estimate that it can be completed within approximately 150 days of receipt of all required 
data.   
 

 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal and look forward to working with you 
on this project.  If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call me at (202) 585-6391. 

 
Very truly yours, 

 

 

David Hyder 
Senior Principal - Financial Services 

 

If the terms of this proposed Agreement are acceptable, please affix the appropriate signature 
below and return a copy to us for our files: 



 

 

CONSULTANT: 
 

CLIENT: 

Stantec Consulting Services Inc.  

777 Harbour Island Boulevard, Suite 600, Tampa, FL 33602 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES: FY 2023 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis 
 

COMPENSATION: A Fixed Fee of $131,467 as set out in the attached Project Work Plan & 
Fee Estimate Schedule, billed monthly based upon percentage work 
complete by task. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: This Agreement will be effective on the date last executed below. 
Receipt by CONSULTANT of this executed Agreement from CLIENT will 
serve as a Notice to Proceed. 

The services shall be performed by the Consultant in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement 
and any attachments. This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements and understandings and may 
only be changed by written amendment executed by both parties. 

 

 
STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

By: 
 

By: 
 

Name: David Hyder Name:  

Title: Senior Principal Title:  

Date: February 14, 2023 Date: 
 

 
 



 

 

 

Detailed Task Plan 
 

This Appendix presents the detailed task plan that we propose to execute to accomplish the scope of this project. The detailed task plan is 
presented in the Project Work Plan and Fee Estimate Schedule (Schedule) on the following pages. 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

 

Attachment 
 

Independent Municipal Advisor Exemption 
 

February 14, 2023 
 

 
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida is aware of the “Municipal Advisor Rule” of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and the “independent municipal advisor” exemption from the definition of “advice.”  
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida hereby notifies Stantec Consulting Services Inc. that it wishes them to 
continue to provide recommendations on user fees and financial forecasting related to the issuance of 
municipal securities.  City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida is represented by the firm of Davenport & 
Company, which it has retained to, among other things, assist the City in evaluating any and all of such 
recommendations.  City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida will rely on Davenport & Company for advice.  
Therefore, City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida understands that Stantec Consulting Services Inc. is 
not a municipal advisor and is not subject to the fiduciary duty established in Section 15B(c)(1) of 
the Securities and Exchange Act.  This certificate may be relied upon until February 14, 2024.  Stantec 
Consulting Services Inc. understands that it must also send a copy of this certificate to Davenport & 
Company. 



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Public Works 

TITLE: 

Resolution No. 08-2023 - FDOT Local Agency Program Agreement – ADA Improvements 

 
SUMMARY: 

The City successfully submitted an ADA (Americans with Disabilities Act) project to the Palm Beach 
Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) for funding under their Transportation Alternatives grant 
reimbursement program.  As with all Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Local Agency 
Program (LAP) projects, an agreement is required.  This Resolution approves and authorizes that 
agreement. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

Back in 2020, Public Works submitted an application for the Palm Beach TPA’s Transportation 
Alternatives program totaling $914,305.43.  The scope of this project, FDOT FPN #448301-1-58-01, 
consists of the addition and improvement of ADA ramps throughout the entire City.  The total project cost 
is an estimated $1,277,066, but in working closely with FDOT they were able to increase their 
participation amount to $1,107,854 of the total estimated cost.  Reimbursement from FDOT back to the 
City shall occur on a quarterly basis for the duration of the project.   

Voters approved a four-year infrastructure bond back in November of 2016, but there are still numerous 
City infrastructure needs in excess of available funding.  While the bond program provided a much 
needed boost, it only addressed about a third of the City.  This proposed project will help address ADA 
issues in areas that weren’t covered under the bond by providing the installation of new curb ramps in 
locations where they are currently damaged or missing all together.   

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 08-2023 for the Local Agency Program Agreement with 
FDOT for the Lake Worth Beach ADA Improvements project.   

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Resolution No. 08-2023 
FDOT LAP Agreement 
Plans - 100% Initial Phase Submittal 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 

 
Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants $1,107,854 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 
Outflows 
   Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital $1,107,854 0 0 0 0 

 
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 

 
No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

   

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Public Services  

Division Street Maintenance 

GL Description Improvement Other than Building/ Infrastructure 

GL Account Number 170-5020-519.63-15 

Project Number  FG2300 Roads/ADA Improv.  

Requested Funds $1,107,854 (Increase of $237,854 from $870K FY23 CIP Budget) 

 



08-2023 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 08-2023 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LOCAL AGENCY PROGRAM AGREEMENT 
448301-1-58-01 BETWEEN THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION AND THE CITY IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$1,107,854 IN FEDERAL-AID GRANT FUNDS FROM THE FEDERAL 
HIGHWAY ADMINISTRTION TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVES 
PROGRAM FOR THE LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY WIDE ADA 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO 
EXECUTETHE AGREEMENT AND ALL RELATED DOCUMENTS; 
PROVIDING  FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to make City wide ADA infrastructure improvements 

to enhance safe use by pedestrians; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to make City wide ADA infrastructure improvements 

to enhance safe use by pedestrians; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has been awarded a Federal-aid grant in an amount not to 

exceed $1,107,854 under the Federal Highway Administration Transportation 
Alternatives Program made available through the Florida Department of Transportation: 
and 

 
WHEREAS, this grant funding amount was based on engineer estimates of eligible 

participating and non-participating costs for the project scope of work; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Transportation and the City shall enter into 

a Local Agency Agreement 4448301-1-58-01 that set forth the terms and conditions for 
the use of these Federal Aid funds in the estimated amount of $1,107,854 for participating 
costs and for an estimated local cost share of $169,212 in non-participating costs included 
in the project scope of work based on the engineer estimate; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Florida Department of Transportation has prepared a Local 

Agency Program Agreement 448301-1-58-1 that sets forth the terms and conditions for 
the use of Federal aid funds in the amount of $1,107,854 for participating costs and a 
local cost share of $169,212 for non-participating costs for improvements included in the 
approved scope of work for this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into this Local Agency Program Agreement 

with the Florida Department of Transportation for this purpose. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 
 



Pg. 2, Reso. 08-2023 

Section 1:  The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby 
approves the Local Agency Program Agreement 448301-1-58-01 between the Florida 
Department of Transportation and the City in an amount not to exceed $1,107,854 in 
Federal Highway Administration Transportation Alternatives Program funding for the Lake 
Worth Beach city-wide ADA improvements project. 

 
Section 2. The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby 
authorizes the Mayor to execute the original of the Local Agency Program Agreement 
448301-1-58-01 between the Florida Department of Transportation and the City and all 
related documents for this stated purpose. 

 
Section 3. Upon execution of the resolution, one original shall be forwarded to the 
Florida Department of Transportation and one copy shall be forwarded to the Works 
Director. One fully executed original shall be maintained by the City Clerk as a public 
record of the City. 
 
Section 4.   This resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 

The passage of this resolution was moved by        , seconded by    , and upon 

being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 

Mayor Betty Resch  
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  
Commissioner Sarah Malega  
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  
 
 
The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the 4th 

day of April, 2023.  

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 
 
 
By: __________________________ 

Betty Resch, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Melissa Ann Coyne, CMC, City Clerk 
 

 





















































1 

FHWA-1273 -- Revised  

REQUIRED CONTRACT PROVISIONS  
FEDERAL-AID CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

I. General
II. Nondiscrimination
III. Non-segregated Facilities
IV. Davis-Bacon and Related Act Provisions
V. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act

Provisions
VI. Subletting or Assigning the Contract
VII. Safety: Accident Prevention
VIII. False Statements Concerning Highway Projects
IX. Implementation of Clean Air Act and Federal Water

Pollution Control Act
X. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension,

Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
XI. Certification Regarding Use of Contract Funds for

Lobbying
XII. Use of United States-Flag Vessels:

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Employment and Materials Preference for Appalachian
Development Highway System or Appalachian Local Access
Road Contracts (included in Appalachian contracts only)

I. GENERAL

1. Form FHWA-1273 must be physically incorporated in each
construction contract funded under title 23, United States
Code, as required in 23 CFR 633.102(b) (excluding
emergency contracts solely intended for debris removal).  The
contractor (or subcontractor) must insert this form in each
subcontract and further require its inclusion in all lower tier
subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental agreements
and other agreements for supplies or services).  23 CFR
633.102(e).

The applicable requirements of Form FHWA-1273 are 
incorporated by reference for work done under any purchase 
order, rental agreement or agreement for other services.  The 
prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider.  23 
CFR 633.102(e).   

Form FHWA-1273 must be included in all Federal-aid design-
build contracts, in all subcontracts and in lower tier 
subcontracts (excluding subcontracts for design services, 
purchase orders, rental agreements and other agreements for 
supplies or services) in accordance with 23 CFR 633.102.  The 
design-builder shall be responsible for compliance by any 
subcontractor, lower-tier subcontractor or service provider. 

Contracting agencies may reference Form FHWA-1273 in 
solicitation-for-bids or request-for-proposals documents, 
however, the Form FHWA-1273 must be physically 
incorporated (not referenced) in all contracts, subcontracts and 
lower-tier subcontracts (excluding purchase orders, rental 
agreements and other agreements for supplies or services 
related to a construction contract).  23 CFR 633.102(b). 

2. Subject to the applicability criteria noted in the following
sections, these contract provisions shall apply to all work

performed on the contract by the contractor's own organization 
and with the assistance of workers under the contractor's 
immediate superintendence and to all work performed on the 
contract by piecework, station work, or by subcontract.  23 
CFR 633.102(d). 

3. A breach of any of the stipulations contained in these
Required Contract Provisions may be sufficient grounds for
withholding of progress payments, withholding of final
payment, termination of the contract, suspension / debarment
or any other action determined to be appropriate by the
contracting agency and FHWA.

4. Selection of Labor: During the performance of this contract,
the contractor shall not use convict labor for any purpose
within the limits of a construction project on a Federal-aid
highway unless it is labor performed by convicts who are on
parole, supervised release, or probation.  23 U.S.C. 114(b).
The term Federal-aid highway does not include roadways
functionally classified as local roads or rural minor collectors.
23 U.S.C. 101(a).

II. NONDISCRIMINATION (23 CFR 230.107(a); 23 CFR Part
230, Subpart A, Appendix A; EO 11246)

The provisions of this section related to 23 CFR Part 230, 
Subpart A, Appendix A are applicable to all Federal-aid 
construction contracts and to all related construction 
subcontracts of $10,000 or more.  The provisions of 23 CFR 
Part 230 are not applicable to material supply, engineering, or 
architectural service contracts.   

In addition, the contractor and all subcontractors must comply 
with the following policies: Executive Order 11246, 41 CFR 
Part 60, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 
of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 
21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633. 

The contractor and all subcontractors must comply with:  the 
requirements of the Equal Opportunity Clause in 41 CFR 60-
1.4(b) and, for all construction contracts exceeding $10,000, 
the Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity 
Construction Contract Specifications in 41 CFR 60-4.3. 

Note: The U.S. Department of Labor has exclusive authority to 
determine compliance with Executive Order 11246 and the 
policies of the Secretary of Labor including 41 CFR Part 60, 
and 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627.  The contracting agency and 
the FHWA have the authority and the responsibility to ensure 
compliance with 23 U.S.C. 140, Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
2000d et seq.), and related regulations including 49 CFR Parts 
21, 26, and 27; and 23 CFR Parts 200, 230, and 633. 

The following provision is adopted from 23 CFR Part 230, 
Subpart A, Appendix A, with appropriate revisions to conform 
to the U.S. Department of Labor (US DOL) and FHWA 
requirements.   



2 

1. Equal Employment Opportunity: Equal Employment 
Opportunity (EEO) requirements not to discriminate and to 
take affirmative action to assure equal opportunity as set forth 
under laws, executive orders, rules, regulations (see 28 CFR 
Part 35, 29 CFR Part 1630, 29 CFR Parts 1625-1627, 41 CFR 
Part 60 and 49 CFR Part 27) and orders of the Secretary of 
Labor as modified by the provisions prescribed herein, and 
imposed pursuant to 23 U.S.C. 140, shall constitute the EEO 
and specific affirmative action standards for the contractor's 
project activities under this contract. The provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et 
seq.) set forth under 28 CFR Part 35 and 29 CFR Part 1630 
are incorporated by reference in this contract. In the execution 
of this contract, the contractor agrees to comply with the 
following minimum specific requirement activities of EEO: 

a. The contractor will work with the contracting agency and 
the Federal Government to ensure that it has made every 
good faith effort to provide equal opportunity with respect to all 
of its terms and conditions of employment and in their review 
of activities under the contract.  23 CFR 230.409 (g)(4) & (5). 

b. The contractor will accept as its operating policy the 
following statement: 

"It is the policy of this Company to assure that applicants 
are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, religion, sex, 
sexual orientation, gender identity, color, national origin, age 
or disability.  Such action shall include: employment, 
upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms 
of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship, pre-apprenticeship, and/or on-the-job 
training." 

 
2.  EEO Officer: The contractor will designate and make 
known to the contracting officers an EEO Officer who will have 
the responsibility for and must be capable of effectively 
administering and promoting an active EEO program and who 
must be assigned adequate authority and responsibility to do 
so. 
 
3.  Dissemination of Policy: All members of the contractor's 
staff who are authorized to hire, supervise, promote, and 
discharge employees, or who recommend such action or are 
substantially involved in such action, will be made fully 
cognizant of and will implement the contractor's EEO policy 
and contractual responsibilities to provide EEO in each grade 
and classification of employment.  To ensure that the above 
agreement will be met, the following actions will be taken as a 
minimum: 
 

a.  Periodic meetings of supervisory and personnel office 
employees will be conducted before the start of work and then 
not less often than once every six months, at which time the 
contractor's EEO policy and its implementation will be 
reviewed and explained.  The meetings will be conducted by 
the EEO Officer or other knowledgeable company official. 
  

b.  All new supervisory or personnel office employees will be 
given a thorough indoctrination by the EEO Officer, covering 
all major aspects of the contractor's EEO obligations within 
thirty days following their reporting for duty with the contractor. 
 

c.  All personnel who are engaged in direct recruitment for 
the project will be instructed by the EEO Officer in the 
contractor's procedures for locating and hiring minorities and 
women. 

  
d.  Notices and posters setting forth the contractor's EEO 

policy will be placed in areas readily accessible to employees, 
applicants for employment and potential employees. 
 

e.  The contractor's EEO policy and the procedures to 
implement such policy will be brought to the attention of 
employees by means of meetings, employee handbooks, or 
other appropriate means. 
 
4. Recruitment: When advertising for employees, the 
contractor will include in all advertisements for employees the 
notation: "An Equal Opportunity Employer."  All such 
advertisements will be placed in publications having a large 
circulation among minorities and women in the area from 
which the project work force would normally be derived. 
 

a.  The contractor will, unless precluded by a valid 
bargaining agreement, conduct systematic and direct 
recruitment through public and private employee referral 
sources likely to yield qualified minorities and women.  To 
meet this requirement, the contractor will identify sources of 
potential minority group employees and establish with such 
identified sources procedures whereby minority and women 
applicants may be referred to the contractor for employment 
consideration. 
 

b.  In the event the contractor has a valid bargaining 
agreement providing for exclusive hiring hall referrals, the 
contractor is expected to observe the provisions of that 
agreement to the extent that the system meets the contractor's 
compliance with EEO contract provisions.  Where 
implementation of such an agreement has the effect of 
discriminating against minorities or women, or obligates the 
contractor to do the same, such implementation violates 
Federal nondiscrimination provisions. 
 

c.  The contractor will encourage its present employees to 
refer minorities and women as applicants for employment.  
Information and procedures with regard to referring such 
applicants will be discussed with employees. 
 
5.  Personnel Actions: Wages, working conditions, and 
employee benefits shall be established and administered, and 
personnel actions of every type, including hiring, upgrading, 
promotion, transfer, demotion, layoff, and termination, shall be 
taken without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, age or disability.  
The following procedures shall be followed: 
 

a.  The contractor will conduct periodic inspections of project 
sites to ensure that working conditions and employee facilities 
do not indicate discriminatory treatment of project site 
personnel. 
 

b.  The contractor will periodically evaluate the spread of 
wages paid within each classification to determine any 
evidence of discriminatory wage practices. 
 

c.  The contractor will periodically review selected personnel 
actions in depth to determine whether there is evidence of 
discrimination.  Where evidence is found, the contractor will 
promptly take corrective action.  If the review indicates that the 
discrimination may extend beyond the actions reviewed, such 
corrective action shall include all affected persons. 
 

d.  The contractor will promptly investigate all complaints of 
alleged discrimination made to the contractor in connection 
with its obligations under this contract, will attempt to resolve 
such complaints, and will take appropriate corrective action 



3 

within a reasonable time.  If the investigation indicates that the 
discrimination may affect persons other than the complainant, 
such corrective action shall include such other persons.  Upon 
completion of each investigation, the contractor will inform 
every complainant of all of their avenues of appeal. 

6. Training and Promotion: 

a.  The contractor will assist in locating, qualifying, and 
increasing the skills of minorities and women who are 
applicants for employment or current employees.  Such efforts 
should be aimed at developing full journey level status 
employees in the type of trade or job classification involved.  

b.  Consistent with the contractor's work force requirements 
and as permissible under Federal and State regulations, the 
contractor shall make full use of training programs (i.e., 
apprenticeship and on-the-job training programs for the 
geographical area of contract performance).  In the event a 
special provision for training is provided under this contract, 
this subparagraph will be superseded as indicated in the 
special provision.  The contracting agency may reserve 
training positions for persons who receive welfare assistance 
in accordance with 23 U.S.C. 140(a). 
 

c.  The contractor will advise employees and applicants for 
employment of available training programs and entrance 
requirements for each. 
 

d.  The contractor will periodically review the training and 
promotion potential of employees who are minorities and 
women and will encourage eligible employees to apply for 
such training and promotion. 
 
7. Unions: If the contractor relies in whole or in part upon 
unions as a source of employees, the contractor will use good 
faith efforts to obtain the cooperation of such unions to 
increase opportunities for minorities and women.  23 CFR 
230.409.  Actions by the contractor, either directly or through a 
contractor's association acting as agent, will include the 
procedures set forth below: 
 

a.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to develop, in 
cooperation with the unions, joint training programs aimed 
toward qualifying more minorities and women for membership 
in the unions and increasing the skills of minorities and women 
so that they may qualify for higher paying employment. 
 

b.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to incorporate an 
EEO clause into each union agreement to the end that such 
union will be contractually bound to refer applicants without 
regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, 
gender identity, national origin, age, or disability. 
 

c.  The contractor is to obtain information as to the referral 
practices and policies of the labor union except that to the 
extent such information is within the exclusive possession of 
the labor union and such labor union refuses to furnish such 
information to the contractor, the contractor shall so certify to 
the contracting agency and shall set forth what efforts have 
been made to obtain such information. 
 

d.  In the event the union is unable to provide the contractor 
with a reasonable flow of referrals within the time limit set forth 
in the collective bargaining agreement, the contractor will, 
through independent recruitment efforts, fill the employment 
vacancies without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability; 
making full efforts to obtain qualified and/or qualifiable 
minorities and women.  The failure of a union to provide 

sufficient referrals (even though it is obligated to provide 
exclusive referrals under the terms of a collective bargaining 
agreement) does not relieve the contractor from the 
requirements of this paragraph.  In the event the union referral 
practice prevents the contractor from meeting the obligations 
pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and these 
special provisions, such contractor shall immediately notify the 
contracting agency. 
 
8.  Reasonable Accommodation for Applicants / 
Employees with Disabilities:  The contractor must be familiar 
with the requirements for and comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act and all rules and regulations established 
thereunder.  Employers must provide reasonable 
accommodation in all employment activities unless to do so 
would cause an undue hardship. 
 
9. Selection of Subcontractors, Procurement of Materials 
and Leasing of Equipment: The contractor shall not 
discriminate on the grounds of race, color, religion, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, age, or disability in 
the selection and retention of subcontractors, including 
procurement of materials and leases of equipment.  The 
contractor shall take all necessary and reasonable steps to 
ensure nondiscrimination in the administration of this contract. 
 

a.  The contractor shall notify all potential subcontractors, 
suppliers, and lessors of their EEO obligations under this 
contract. 
 

b.  The contractor will use good faith efforts to ensure 
subcontractor compliance with their EEO obligations. 
 
 
10. Assurances Required: 
 

a.  The requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 and the State 
DOT’s FHWA-approved Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
(DBE) program are incorporated by reference. 
 

b.  The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex 
in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry 
out applicable requirements of 49 CFR part 26 in the award 
and administration of DOT-assisted contracts. Failure by the 
contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach 
of this contract, which may result in the termination of this 
contract or such other remedy as the recipient deems 
appropriate, which may include, but is not limited to: 

(1) Withholding monthly progress payments; 
(2) Assessing sanctions; 
(3) Liquidated damages; and/or 
(4) Disqualifying the contractor from future bidding as non-

responsible. 
c.  The Title VI and nondiscrimination provisions of U.S. 

DOT Order 1050.2A at Appendixes A and E are incorporated 
by reference.  49 CFR Part 21. 
 
11. Records and Reports: The contractor shall keep such 
records as necessary to document compliance with the EEO 
requirements.  Such records shall be retained for a period of 
three years following the date of the final payment to the 
contractor for all contract work and shall be available at 
reasonable times and places for inspection by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency and the FHWA. 
 

a.  The records kept by the contractor shall document the 
following: 
 



4 

 (1) The number and work hours of minority and non-
minority group members and women employed in each work 
classification on the project; 
 

(2) The progress and efforts being made in cooperation 
with unions, when applicable, to increase employment 
opportunities for minorities and women; and 

(3) The progress and efforts being made in locating, hiring, 
training, qualifying, and upgrading minorities and women.  

 
b.  The contractors and subcontractors will submit an annual 

report to the contracting agency each July for the duration of 
the project indicating the number of minority, women, and non-
minority group employees currently engaged in each work 
classification required by the contract work.  This information is 
to be reported on Form FHWA-1391.  The staffing data should 
represent the project work force on board in all or any part of 
the last payroll period preceding the end of July.  If on-the-job 
training is being required by special provision, the contractor 
will be required to collect and report training data.  The 
employment data should reflect the work force on board during 
all or any part of the last payroll period preceding the end of 
July. 

III. NONSEGREGATED FACILITIES 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related construction subcontracts of more 
than $10,000.  41 CFR 60-1.5. 
 
As prescribed by 41 CFR 60-1.8, the contractor must ensure 
that facilities provided for employees are provided in such a 
manner that segregation on the basis of race, color, religion, 
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin 
cannot result.  The contractor may neither require such 
segregated use by written or oral policies nor tolerate such use 
by employee custom.  The contractor's obligation extends 
further to ensure that its employees are not assigned to 
perform their services at any location under the contractor's 
control where the facilities are segregated.  The term "facilities" 
includes waiting rooms, work areas, restaurants and other 
eating areas, time clocks, restrooms, washrooms, locker 
rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots, 
drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, 
transportation, and housing provided for employees.  The 
contractor shall provide separate or single-user restrooms and 
necessary dressing or sleeping areas to assure privacy 
between sexes. 
 
 
IV.  DAVIS-BACON AND RELATED ACT PROVISIONS 

This section is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
projects exceeding $2,000 and to all related subcontracts and 
lower-tier subcontracts (regardless of subcontract size), in 
accordance with 29 CFR 5.5.  The requirements apply to all 
projects located within the right-of-way of a roadway that is 
functionally classified as Federal-aid highway.  23 U.S.C. 113.  
This excludes roadways functionally classified as local roads 
or rural minor collectors, which are exempt.  23 U.S.C. 101.  
Where applicable law requires that projects be treated as a 
project on a Federal-aid highway, the provisions of this subpart 
will apply regardless of the location of the project.  Examples 
include: Surface Transportation Block Grant Program projects 
funded under 23 U.S.C. 133 [excluding recreational trails 
projects], the Nationally Significant Freight and Highway 

Projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 117, and National Highway 
Freight Program projects funded under 23 U.S.C. 167.    

The following provisions are from the U.S. Department of 
Labor regulations in 29 CFR 5.5 “Contract provisions and 
related matters” with minor revisions to conform to the FHWA-
1273 format and FHWA program requirements. 

1.  Minimum wages (29 CFR 5.5) 

a.  All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon 
the site of the work, will be paid unconditionally and not less 
often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or 
rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are 
permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor 
under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of 
wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents 
thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less 
than those contained in the wage determination of the 
Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part 
hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may 
be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers 
and mechanics. 

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona 
fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon 
Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages 
paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions 
of paragraph 1.d. of this section; also, regular contributions 
made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not 
less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs 
which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be 
constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. 
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate 
wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for 
the classification of work actually performed, without regard to 
skill, except as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or 
mechanics performing work in more than one classification 
may be compensated at the rate specified for each 
classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided, 
That the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the 
time spent in each classification in which work is performed. 
The wage determination (including any additional classification 
and wage rates conformed under paragraph 1.b. of this 
section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH–1321) shall be 
posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at 
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where 
it can be easily seen by the workers. 

b. (1) The contracting officer shall require that any class of 
laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in 
the wage determination and which is to be employed under the 
contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage 
determination. The contracting officer shall approve an 
additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits 
therefore only when the following criteria have been met: 

(i) The work to be performed by the classification 
requested is not performed by a classification in the wage 
determination; and 

(ii) The classification is utilized in the area by the 
construction industry; and 



5 

(iii) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide 
fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the 
wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

(2) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be 
employed in the classification (if known), or their 
representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of 
the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, U.S. 
Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The 
Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, 
modify, or disapprove every additional classification action 
within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting 
officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day 
period that additional time is necessary. 

(3) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics 
to be employed in the classification or their representatives, 
and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed 
classification and wage rate (including the amount 
designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the 
contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the 
views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the 
contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. 
The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue 
a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the 
contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within 
the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. 

(4) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where 
appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs 1.b.(2) or 
1.b.(3) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing 
work in the classification under this contract from the first 
day on which work is performed in the classification. 

c. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the 
contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe 
benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor 
shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination 
or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash 
equivalent thereof. 

d. If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or 
other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits 
under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of 
Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, 
that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have 
been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor 
to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of 
obligations under the plan or program. 

2.  Withholding (29 CFR 5.5)  

The contracting agency shall upon its own action or upon 
written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor, withhold or cause to be withheld from 
the contractor under this contract, or any other Federal 
contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-
assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage 
requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so 
much of the accrued payments or advances as may be 
considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, 

including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the 
contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages 
required by the contract.  In the event of failure to pay any 
laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or 
helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part 
of the wages required by the contract, the contracting agency 
may, after written notice to the contractor, take such action as 
may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further 
payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations 
have ceased. 

3.  Payrolls and basic records (29 CFR 5.5)  

a.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be 
maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and 
preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers 
and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records 
shall contain the name, address, and social security number of 
each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates 
of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs 
anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents 
thereof of the types described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, 
deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the 
Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that 
the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of 
any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a 
plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-
Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show 
that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, 
that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the 
plan or program has been communicated in writing to the 
laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the 
costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such 
benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under 
approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the 
registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of 
trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and 
trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the 
applicable programs. 

b. (1) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in 
which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to 
the contracting agency.  The payrolls submitted shall set out 
accurately and completely all of the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), except that full social 
security numbers and home addresses shall not be included 
on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to 
include an individually identifying number for each employee 
(e.g., the last four digits of the employee's social security 
number). The required weekly payroll information may be 
submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH–347 is 
available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division 
Web site. The prime contractor is responsible for the 
submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. 
Contractors and subcontractors shall maintain the full social 
security number and current address of each covered worker, 
and shall provide them upon request to the contracting agency 
for transmission to the State DOT, the FHWA or the Wage and 
Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 
investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage 
requirements. It is not a violation of this section for a prime 
contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and 
social security numbers to the prime contractor for its own 
records, without weekly submission to the contracting agency. 

(2) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a 
“Statement of Compliance,” signed by the contractor or 



6 

subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the 
payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall 
certify the following: 

(i) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the 
information required to be provided under 29 CFR 
5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(i), and that such 
information is correct and complete; 

(ii) That each laborer or mechanic (including each 
helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract 
during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly 
wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, 
and that no deductions have been made either directly or 
indirectly from the full wages earned, other than 
permissible deductions as set forth in 29 CFR part 3; 

(iii) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not 
less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or 
cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, 
as specified in the applicable wage determination 
incorporated into the contract. 

(3) The weekly submission of a properly executed 
certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form 
WH–347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the 
“Statement of Compliance” required by paragraph 3.b.(2) of 
this section. 

(4) The falsification of any of the above certifications may 
subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal 
prosecution under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and 31 U.S.C. 231. 

c. The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records 
required under paragraph 3.a. of this section available for 
inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized 
representatives of the contracting agency, the State DOT, the 
FHWA, or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours 
on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the 
required records or to make them available, the FHWA may, 
after written notice to the contractor, the contracting agency or 
the State DOT, take such action as may be necessary to 
cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or 
guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required 
records upon request or to make such records available may 
be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12. 

4.  Apprentices and trainees (29 CFR 5.5) 

a. Apprentices (programs of the USDOL).  

Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the 
predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are 
employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide 
apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of 
Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of 
Apprenticeship Training, Employer and Labor Services, or with 
a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a 
person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary 
employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship 
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but 
who has been certified by the Office of Apprenticeship 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State 

Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for 
probationary employment as an apprentice.  

The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job 
site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio 
permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under 
the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an 
apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the 
applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the 
classification of work actually performed. In addition, any 
apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the 
ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not 
less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination 
for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is 
performing construction on a project in a locality other than 
that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage 
rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly 
rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractor's registered 
program shall be observed.  

Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate 
specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of 
progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly 
rate specified in the applicable wage determination. 
Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with 
the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the 
apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, 
apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits 
listed on the wage determination for the applicable 
classification. If the Administrator determines that a different 
practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, 
fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination.  

In the event the Office of Apprenticeship Training, Employer 
and Labor Services, or a State Apprenticeship Agency 
recognized by the Office, withdraws approval of an 
apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable 
predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable 
program is approved. 

b. Trainees (programs of the USDOL).  

Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be 
permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the 
work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and 
individually registered in a program which has received prior 
approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 
Department of Labor, Employment and Training 
Administration.  

The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be 
greater than permitted under the plan approved by the 
Employment and Training Administration.  

Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified 
in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, 
expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate 
specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall 
be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the 
trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention 
fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination unless the 
Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that 
there is an apprenticeship program associated with the 



7 

corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage 
determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 
for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee 
rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed. 
In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in 
excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program 
shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
wage determination for the work actually performed.  

In the event the Employment and Training Administration 
withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no 
longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the 
applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an 
acceptable program is approved. 

c. Equal employment opportunity. The utilization of 
apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be 
in conformity with the equal employment opportunity 
requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, and 29 
CFR part 30. 

d.  Apprentices and Trainees (programs of the U.S. DOT). 

Apprentices and trainees working under apprenticeship and 
skill training programs which have been certified by the 
Secretary of Transportation as promoting EEO in connection 
with Federal-aid highway construction programs are not 
subject to the requirements of paragraph 4 of this Section IV. 
23 CFR 230.111(e)(2). The straight time hourly wage rates for 
apprentices and trainees under such programs will be 
established by the particular programs. The ratio of 
apprentices and trainees to journeymen shall not be greater 
than permitted by the terms of the particular program.   

5. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.  The 
contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 
3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract as 
provided in 29 CFR 5.5. 

6. Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
Form FHWA-1273 in any subcontracts and also require the 
subcontractors to include Form FHWA-1273 in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5. 

7. Contract termination: debarment.  A breach of the 
contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination 
of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 

8. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act 
requirements.  All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-
Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 
are herein incorporated by reference in this contract as 
provided in 29 CFR 5.5. 

9. Disputes concerning labor standards. As provided in 29 
CFR 5.5, disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions 
of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes 
clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in 
accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor 

set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the 
meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor 
(or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the 
U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their 
representatives. 

10. Certification of eligibility (29 CFR 5.5) 

a. By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that 
neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an 
interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to 
be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of 
the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

b. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person 
or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue 
of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1). 

c. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the 
U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001. 
 
V.  CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS 
ACT  

Pursuant to 29 CFR 5.5(b), the following clauses apply to any 
Federal-aid construction contract in an amount in excess of 
$100,000 and subject to the overtime provisions of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act. These 
clauses shall be inserted in addition to the clauses required by 
29 CFR 5.5(a) or 29 CFR 4.6.  As used in this paragraph, the 
terms laborers and mechanics include watchmen and guards. 

1. Overtime requirements.  No contractor or subcontractor 
contracting for any part of the contract work which may require 
or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall 
require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any 
workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to 
work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such 
laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours 
worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.  29 CFR 
5.5. 

2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated 
damages.  In the event of any violation of the clause set forth 
in paragraph 1 of this section, the contractor and any 
subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the 
unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor 
shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done 
under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such 
District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such 
liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each 
individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and 
guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in 
paragraph 1 of this section, in the sum currently provided in 29 
CFR 5.5(b)(2)* for each calendar day on which such individual 
was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard 
workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime 
wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph 1 of this 
section.  29 CFR 5.5. 

* $27 as of January 23, 2019 (See 84 FR 213-01, 218) as may 
be adjusted annually by the Department of Labor; pursuant to 
the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990). 



8 

3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. 
The FHWA or the contacting agency shall upon its own action 
or upon written request of an authorized representative of the 
Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from 
any moneys payable on account of work performed by the 
contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any 
other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any 
other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same 
prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be 
necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or 
subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as 
provided in the clause set forth in paragraph 2 of this section.  
29 CFR 5.5. 

4. Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert 
in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1 
through 4 of this section and also a clause requiring the 
subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier 
subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for 
compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor 
with the clauses set forth in paragraphs 1 through 4 of this 
section.  29 CFR 5.5. 

VI. SUBLETTING OR ASSIGNING THE CONTRACT 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts on the National Highway System pursuant to 23 CFR 
635.116. 

1. The contractor shall perform with its own organization 
contract work amounting to not less than 30 percent (or a 
greater percentage if specified elsewhere in the contract) of 
the total original contract price, excluding any specialty items 
designated by the contracting agency.  Specialty items may be 
performed by subcontract and the amount of any such 
specialty items performed may be deducted from the total 
original contract price before computing the amount of work 
required to be performed by the contractor's own organization 
(23 CFR 635.116).  

a.  The term “perform work with its own organization” in 
paragraph 1 of Section VI refers to workers employed or 
leased by the prime contractor, and equipment owned or 
rented by the prime contractor, with or without operators.  
Such term does not include employees or equipment of a 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor, agents of the prime 
contractor, or any other assignees.  The term may include 
payments for the costs of hiring leased employees from an 
employee leasing firm meeting all relevant Federal and State 
regulatory requirements.  Leased employees may only be 
included in this term if the prime contractor meets all of the 
following conditions: (based on longstanding interpretation) 

 (1) the prime contractor maintains control over the 
supervision of the day-to-day activities of the leased 
employees; 

(2) the prime contractor remains responsible for the quality 
of the work of the leased employees; 

   (3) the prime contractor retains all power to accept or 
exclude individual employees from work on the project; and 

(4) the prime contractor remains ultimately responsible for 
the payment of predetermined minimum wages, the 
submission of payrolls, statements of compliance and all 
other Federal regulatory requirements. 

b. "Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work 
that requires highly specialized knowledge, abilities, or 

equipment not ordinarily available in the type of contracting 
organizations qualified and expected to bid or propose on the 
contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor 
components of the overall contract.  23 CFR 635.102. 
 
2. Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(a), the contract amount upon 
which the requirements set forth in paragraph (1) of Section VI 
is computed includes the cost of material and manufactured 
products which are to be purchased or produced by the 
contractor under the contract provisions. 
 
3. Pursuant to 23 CFR 635.116(c), the contractor shall furnish 
(a) a competent superintendent or supervisor who is employed 
by the firm, has full authority to direct performance of the work 
in accordance with the contract requirements, and is in charge 
of all construction operations (regardless of who performs the 
work) and (b) such other of its own organizational resources 
(supervision, management, and engineering services) as the 
contracting officer determines is necessary to assure the 
performance of the contract. 
 
4. No portion of the contract shall be sublet, assigned or 
otherwise disposed of except with the written consent of the 
contracting officer, or authorized representative, and such 
consent when given shall not be construed to relieve the 
contractor of any responsibility for the fulfillment of the 
contract.  Written consent will be given only after the 
contracting agency has assured that each subcontract is 
evidenced in writing and that it contains all pertinent provisions 
and requirements of the prime contract. (based on long-
standing interpretation of 23 CFR 635.116). 
 
5. The 30-percent self-performance requirement of paragraph 
(1) is not applicable to design-build contracts; however, 
contracting agencies may establish their own self-performance 
requirements.  23 CFR 635.116(d).  
 
 
VII. SAFETY: ACCIDENT PREVENTION 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts. 
 
1.  In the performance of this contract the contractor shall 
comply with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws 
governing safety, health, and sanitation (23 CFR Part 635). 
The contractor shall provide all safeguards, safety devices and 
protective equipment and take any other needed actions as it 
determines, or as the contracting officer may determine, to be 
reasonably necessary to protect the life and health of 
employees on the job and the safety of the public and to 
protect property in connection with the performance of the 
work covered by the contract.  23 CFR 635.108. 
 
2.  It is a condition of this contract, and shall be made a 
condition of each subcontract, which the contractor enters into 
pursuant to this contract, that the contractor and any 
subcontractor shall not permit any employee, in performance 
of the contract, to work in surroundings or under conditions 
which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous to his/her 
health or safety, as determined under construction safety and 
health standards (29 CFR Part 1926) promulgated by the 
Secretary of Labor, in accordance with Section 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 
3704).  29 CFR 1926.10. 
 
3.  Pursuant to 29 CFR 1926.3, it is a condition of this contract 
that the Secretary of Labor or authorized representative 
thereof, shall have right of entry to any site of contract 
performance to inspect or investigate the matter of compliance 



9 

with the construction safety and health standards and to carry 
out the duties of the Secretary under Section 107 of the 
Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. 
3704). 

VIII. FALSE STATEMENTS CONCERNING HIGHWAY 
PROJECTS 

This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts. 

In order to assure high quality and durable construction in 
conformity with approved plans and specifications and a high 
degree of reliability on statements and representations made 
by engineers, contractors, suppliers, and workers on Federal-
aid highway projects, it is essential that all persons concerned 
with the project perform their functions as carefully, thoroughly, 
and honestly as possible.  Willful falsification, distortion, or 
misrepresentation with respect to any facts related to the 
project is a violation of Federal law.  To prevent any 
misunderstanding regarding the seriousness of these and 
similar acts, Form FHWA-1022 shall be posted on each 
Federal-aid highway project (23 CFR Part 635) in one or more 
places where it is readily available to all persons concerned 
with the project: 

18 U.S.C. 1020 reads as follows: 

  "Whoever, being an officer, agent, or employee of the United 
States, or of any State or Territory, or whoever, whether a 
person, association, firm, or corporation, knowingly makes any 
false statement, false representation, or false report as to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of the material used or to 
be used, or the quantity or quality of the work performed or to 
be performed, or the cost thereof in connection with the 
submission of plans, maps, specifications, contracts, or costs 
of construction on any highway or related project submitted for 
approval to the Secretary of Transportation; or 

  Whoever knowingly makes any false statement, false 
representation, false report or false claim with respect to the 
character, quality, quantity, or cost of any work performed or to 
be performed, or materials furnished or to be furnished, in 
connection with the construction of any highway or related 
project approved by the Secretary of Transportation; or 

  Whoever knowingly makes any false statement or false 
representation as to material fact in any statement, certificate, 
or report submitted pursuant to provisions of the Federal-aid 
Roads Act approved July 11, 1916, (39 Stat. 355), as 
amended and supplemented; 

  Shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than 5 
years or both." 

IX. IMPLEMENTATION OF CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL 
WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT (42 U.S.C. 7606; 2 
CFR 200.88; EO 11738) 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts in excess of $150,000 and to all related 
subcontracts.  48 CFR 2.101; 2 CFR 200.326. 
 
By submission of this bid/proposal or the execution of this 
contract or subcontract, as appropriate, the bidder, proposer, 
Federal-aid construction contractor, subcontractor, supplier, or 
vendor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders 

or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 
7401-7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
amended (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387). Violations must be reported 
to the Federal Highway Administration and the Regional Office 
of the Environmental Protection Agency.  2 CFR Part 200, 
Appendix II. 
 
The contractor agrees to include or cause to be included the 
requirements of this Section in every subcontract, and further 
agrees to take such action as the contracting agency may 
direct as a means of enforcing such requirements.  2 CFR 
200.326. 
 
 
 
X. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, 
SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY AND VOLUNTARY 
EXCLUSION 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier 
subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, consultant 
contracts or any other covered transaction requiring FHWA 
approval or that is estimated to cost $25,000 or more –  as 
defined in 2 CFR Parts 180 and 1200.  2 CFR 180.220 and 
1200.220. 
 
 
1. Instructions for Certification – First Tier Participants:  
  
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
first tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The inability of a person to provide the certification set out 
below will not necessarily result in denial of participation in this 
covered transaction. The prospective first tier participant shall 
submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification 
set out below. The certification or explanation will be 
considered in connection with the department or agency's 
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, 
failure of the prospective first tier participant to furnish a 
certification or an explanation shall disqualify such a person 
from participation in this transaction.  2 CFR 180.320. 
 
    c. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when the contracting 
agency determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later 
determined that the prospective participant knowingly rendered 
an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal Government, the contracting agency 
may terminate this transaction for cause of default.  2 CFR 
180.325. 
 
    d. The prospective first tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the contracting agency to whom 
this proposal is submitted if any time the prospective first tier 
participant learns that its certification was erroneous when 
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances.  2 CFR 180.345 and 180.350. 
 
    e. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180.900-180.1020, and 1200.  
“First Tier Covered Transactions” refers to any covered 
transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of Federal 
funds and a participant (such as the prime or general contract).  
“Lower Tier Covered Transactions” refers to any covered 
transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction (such as 
subcontracts).  “First Tier Participant” refers to the participant 



10 

who has entered into a covered transaction with a recipient or 
subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or general 
contractor).  “Lower Tier Participant” refers any participant who 
has entered into a covered transaction with a First Tier 
Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as 
subcontractors and suppliers).  

    f. The prospective first tier participant agrees by submitting 
this proposal that, should the proposed covered transaction be 
entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is debarred, 
suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by 
the department or agency entering into this transaction.  2 
CFR 180.330. 

    g. The prospective first tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include the clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," 
provided by the department or contracting agency, entering 
into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower 
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier 
covered transactions exceeding the $25,000 threshold.  2 CFR 
180.220 and 180.300. 
 
    h. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous.  2 CFR 180.300; 
180.320, and 180.325.  A participant is responsible for 
ensuring that its principals are not suspended, debarred, or 
otherwise ineligible to participate in covered transactions.  2 
CFR 180.335.  To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well 
as the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the System for 
Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/).  2 CFR 
180.300, 180.320, and 180.325.  

    i.  Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require the establishment of a system of records in order to 
render in good faith the certification required by this clause. 
The knowledge and information of the prospective participant 
is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by 
a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

    j. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph (f) of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency may terminate this transaction for cause 
or default.  2 CFR 180.325. 

* * * * * 

2.  Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion – First Tier 
Participants: 

a.  The prospective first tier participant certifies to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: 

    (1)   Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participating in covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency, 2 CFR 180.335;. 

    (2)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing 
a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under 
a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust 
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property, 2 CFR 180.800;  
 
    (3)   Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or 
civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (a)(2) of this certification, 2 CFR 180.700 and 
180.800; and 
 
    (4)   Have not within a three-year period preceding this 
application/proposal had one or more public transactions 
(Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.  2 
CFR 180.335(d). 
 
 (5) Are not a corporation that has been convicted of a felony 
violation under any Federal law within the two-year period 
preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing 
appropriations act requirements); and 
 
 (6) Are not a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability 
that has been assessed, for which all judicial and 
administrative remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, 
and that is not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an 
agreement with the authority responsible for collecting the tax 
liability (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act 
requirements). 
 
  b.   Where the prospective participant is unable to certify to 
any of the statements in this certification, such prospective 
participant should attach an explanation to this proposal.  2 
CFR 180.335 and 180.340. 
 
 
  3. Instructions for Certification - Lower Tier Participants: 
 
(Applicable to all subcontracts, purchase orders, and other 
lower tier transactions requiring prior FHWA approval or 
estimated to cost $25,000 or more - 2 CFR Parts 180 and 
1200).  2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220. 
 
    a. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective 
lower tier participant is providing the certification set out below. 
 
    b. The certification in this clause is a material representation 
of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction 
was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective 
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous 
certification, in addition to other remedies available to the 
Federal Government, the department, or agency with which 
this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, 
including suspension and/or debarment. 
 
    c. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide 
immediate written notice to the person to which this proposal is 
submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant 
learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of 
changed circumstances.  2 CFR 180.365. 
 
    d. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," 
"suspended," "ineligible," "participant," "person," "principal," 
and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, are defined 
in 2 CFR Parts 180, Subpart I, 180.900 – 180.1020, and 1200.  
You may contact the person to which this proposal is 



11 

submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those 
regulations.  “First Tier Covered Transactions” refers to any 
covered transaction between a recipient or subrecipient of 
Federal funds and a participant (such as the prime or general 
contract).  “Lower Tier Covered Transactions” refers to any 
covered transaction under a First Tier Covered Transaction 
(such as subcontracts).  “First Tier Participant” refers to the 
participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a 
recipient or subrecipient of Federal funds (such as the prime or 
general contractor).  “Lower Tier Participant” refers any 
participant who has entered into a covered transaction with a 
First Tier Participant or other Lower Tier Participants (such as 
subcontractors and suppliers). 

    e. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by 
submitting this proposal that, should the proposed covered 
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into 
any lower tier covered transaction with a person who is 
debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless 
authorized by the department or agency with which this 
transaction originated.  2 CFR 1200.220 and 1200.332. 

    f. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by 
submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled 
"Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility 
and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," 
without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and 
in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions exceeding 
the $25,000 threshold.  2 CFR 180.220 and 1200.220. 

    g. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a 
certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered 
transaction that is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or 
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it 
knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant is 
responsible for ensuring that its principals are not suspended, 
debarred, or otherwise ineligible to participate in covered 
transactions.  To verify the eligibility of its principals, as well as 
the eligibility of any lower tier prospective participants, each 
participant may, but is not required to, check the System for 
Award Management website (https://www.sam.gov/), which is 
compiled by the General Services Administration.  2 CFR 
180.300, 180.320, 180.330, and 180.335. 

    h. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to 
require establishment of a system of records in order to render 
in good faith the certification required by this clause. The 
knowledge and information of participant is not required to 
exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person 
in the ordinary course of business dealings. 

    i. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph e of 
these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction 
knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a 
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to 
other remedies available to the Federal Government, the 
department or agency with which this transaction originated 
may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or 
debarment.  2 CFR 180.325. 

* * * * * 

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, 
Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion--Lower Tier 
Participants: 

1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by 
submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals: 

 
(a) is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participating in 
covered transactions by any Federal department or agency, 2 
CFR 180.355; 
 
(b) is a corporation that has been convicted of a felony 
violation under any Federal law within the two-year period 
preceding this proposal (USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing 
appropriations act requirements); and 
 
(c) is a corporation with any unpaid Federal tax liability that 
has been assessed, for which all judicial and administrative 
remedies have been exhausted, or have lapsed, and that is 
not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement 
with the authority responsible for collecting the tax liability. 
(USDOT Order 4200.6 implementing appropriations act 
requirements) 
 
  2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to 
certify to any of the statements in this certification, such 
prospective participant should attach an explanation to this 
proposal.   
 
* * * * * 
 
XI. CERTIFICATION REGARDING USE OF CONTRACT 
FUNDS FOR LOBBYING 
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts and to all related subcontracts which exceed 
$100,000.  49 CFR Part 20, App. A. 
 
  1. The prospective participant certifies, by signing and 
submitting this bid or proposal, to the best of his or her 
knowledge and belief, that: 
 
    a. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be 
paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of 
any Federal agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or 
employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any 
Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement. 
 
    b. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have 
been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in 
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 
 
  2. This certification is a material representation of fact upon 
which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or 
entered into.  Submission of this certification is a prerequisite 
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31 
U.S.C. 1352.  Any person who fails to file the required 
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
  3. The prospective participant also agrees by submitting its 
bid or proposal that the participant shall require that the 
language of this certification be included in all lower tier 



12 

subcontracts, which exceed $100,000 and that all such 
recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

XII.  USE OF UNITED STATES-FLAG VESSELS:  
 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid construction 
contracts, design-build contracts, subcontracts, lower-tier 
subcontracts, purchase orders, lease agreements, or any other 
covered transaction.  46 CFR Part 381. 
 
This requirement applies to material or equipment that is 
acquired for a specific Federal-aid highway project.  46 CFR 
381.7.  It is not applicable to goods or materials that come into 
inventories independent of an FHWA funded-contract.  
 
When oceanic shipments (or shipments across the Great 
Lakes) are necessary for materials or equipment acquired for a 
specific Federal-aid construction project, the bidder, proposer, 
contractor, subcontractor, or vendor agrees:  
 
1. To utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial 
vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage 
(computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, 
and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, 
material, or commodities pursuant to this contract, to the 
extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates 
for United States-flag commercial vessels.  46 CFR 381.7. 
 
2. To furnish within 20 days following the date of loading for 
shipments originating within the United States or within 30 
working days following the date of loading for shipments 
originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, 
‘on-board’ commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each 
shipment of cargo described in paragraph (b)(1) of this section 
to both the Contracting Officer (through the prime contractor in 
the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Office of 
Cargo and Commercial Sealift (MAR-620), Maritime 
Administration, Washington, DC 20590. (MARAD requires 
copies of the ocean carrier's (master) bills of lading, certified 
onboard, dated, with rates and charges. These bills of lading 
may contain business sensitive information and therefore may 
be submitted directly to MARAD by the Ocean Transportation 
Intermediary on behalf of the contractor).  46 CFR 381.7. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



13 

ATTACHMENT A - EMPLOYMENT AND MATERIALS 
PREFERENCE FOR APPALACHIAN DEVELOPMENT 
HIGHWAY SYSTEM OR APPALACHIAN LOCAL ACCESS 
ROAD CONTRACTS (23 CFR 633, Subpart B, Appendix B) 
This provision is applicable to all Federal-aid projects funded 
under the Appalachian Regional Development Act of 1965. 
 
  1. During the performance of this contract, the contractor 
undertaking to do work which is, or reasonably may be, done 
as on-site work, shall give preference to qualified persons who 
regularly reside in the labor area as designated by the DOL 
wherein the contract work is situated, or the subregion, or the 
Appalachian counties of the State wherein the contract work is 
situated, except: 
 
    a. To the extent that qualified persons regularly residing in 
the area are not available. 
 
    b. For the reasonable needs of the contractor to employ 
supervisory or specially experienced personnel necessary to 
assure an efficient execution of the contract work. 
 
    c. For the obligation of the contractor to offer employment to 
present or former employees as the result of a lawful collective 
bargaining contract, provided that the number of nonresident 
persons employed under this subparagraph (1c) shall not 
exceed 20 percent of the total number of employees employed 
by the contractor on the contract work, except as provided in 
subparagraph (4) below. 
 
  2. The contractor shall place a job order with the State 
Employment Service indicating (a) the classifications of the 
laborers, mechanics and other employees required to perform 
the contract work, (b) the number of employees required in 
each classification, (c) the date on which the participant 
estimates such employees will be required, and (d) any other 
pertinent information required by the State Employment 
Service to complete the job order form.  The job order may be 
placed with the State Employment Service in writing or by 
telephone.  If during the course of the contract work, the 
information submitted by the contractor in the original job order 
is substantially modified, the participant shall promptly notify 
the State Employment Service. 
 
  3. The contractor shall give full consideration to all qualified 
job applicants referred to him by the State Employment 
Service.  The contractor is not required to grant employment to 
any job applicants who, in his opinion, are not qualified to 
perform the classification of work required. 
 
  4. If, within one week following the placing of a job order by 
the contractor with the State Employment Service, the State 
Employment Service is unable to refer any qualified job 
applicants to the contractor, or less than the number 
requested, the State Employment Service will forward a 
certificate to the contractor indicating the unavailability of 
applicants.  Such certificate shall be made a part of the 
contractor's permanent project records.  Upon receipt of this 
certificate, the contractor may employ persons who do not 
normally reside in the labor area to fill positions covered by the 
certificate, notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (1c) 
above. 
 
    5. The provisions of 23 CFR 633.207(e) allow the 
contracting agency to provide a contractual preference for the 
use of mineral resource materials native to the Appalachian 
region.   
  6. The contractor shall include the provisions of Sections 1 
through 4 of this Attachment A in every subcontract for work 
which is, or reasonably may be, done as on-site work. 

 
 
 



PREPARED FOR:
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH

1749 3RD AVE SOUTH, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460

PROJECT/ CLIENT LOGO

FM: 448301-1-58-01
(FEDERAL FUNDS)

100% INITIAL PHASE SUBMITTAL

C000
SHEET #:

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
LA

KE
 W

O
R

TH
BE

AC
H

 V
AR

IO
U

S 
LO

C
AT

IO
N

S
LA

KE
 W

O
R

TH
 B

EA
C

H
PA

LM
 B

EA
C

H
, F

L

CONSULTANTS:

100% INITIAL PHASE
SUBMITTAL

PROJECT TITLE:

I-95

N.T.S.

PROJECT LOCATED IN
SECTION 16 / TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH / RANGE 43 EAST
SECTION 15 / TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH / RANGE 43 EAST
SECTION 21 / TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH / RANGE 43 EAST
SECTION 22 / TOWNSHIP 44 SOUTH / RANGE 43 EAST

STEPHEN C. CHERRY, PE
PE# 83268
October 6, 2022

JACKSONVILLE

FT PIERCE

FT LAUDERDALE

MIAMI

NAPLES

TAMPA

ORLANDO

TALLAHASSEE
PENSACOLA

4

4

TURNPIKE

BEE LINE
EXPRESSWAY

FLORIDA SBARTOW

KEY WEST

CHIPLEY

DELAND

PREPARED BY:

ENGINEER OF RECORD

TOTAL SHEETS

41

SITE

LOCATION MAP

1

DESCRIPTION:DATE:NO:

CHECKED BY:

PROJECT #:

DRAWN BY:
DRAWN DATE:

CTR
2022-03-19

SCC

2974.30

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
BEACH VARIOUS LOCATIONS 2035 Vista Parkway, West Palm Beach, FL 33411

Phone No. 866.909.2220     www.wginc.com
Cert No. 6091 - LB No. 7055

FOREST HILL BLVD

U
.S

. 1

BROWARD COUNTY

FL
A.

   
 T

U
R

N
PI

KE
LY

O
N

S 
R

D
.

GLADES RD.

PALMETTO PARK RD.

WEST ATLANTIC AVE

CLINT MOORE RD.

R.R.

M
IL

IT
AR

Y

JO
G

 R
D

. F.
E.

C
.

YAMATO RD.

S.
C

.L
.

BOYNTON BCH BLVD

U
.S

. 4
41

LANTANA RD.

LAKE WORTH RD.

TR
AI

L

R
.R

.

JO
G

  R
D

HYPOLUXO RD.

I-9
5

MARTIN COUNTY

SOUTHERN BLVD.

NORTHLAKE BLVD

BELVEDERE RD.

OKEECHOBEE BLVD.

H
AV

ER
H

IL
L 

 R
D

45th ST.

DONALD ROSS RD.

INDIANTOWN RD.
BEE    LINE    HWY.

F.
E.

C
.  

R
.R

.

P.G.A. BLVD

LAKE WORTH BEACH

AT
LA

N
TI

C
 O

C
EA

N

BOCA RATON

DELRAY BEACH

BOYNTON
 BEACH

LANTANA

WEST PALM 
  BEACH

BEACH
RIVIERA

JUNO BEACH

JUPITER

C
O

N
G

R
ES

S 
   

AV
E.

N.T.S. GARDENS
PALM BEACH

BLUE HERON BLVD

HORIZONTAL DATUM:  NORTH AMERICAN
DATUM OF 1983, FLORIDA STATE
PLANES, EAST ZONE, U.S. FEET (NAD83)

TM

LAKE WORTH BEACH

LAKE WORTH RD

LAKE AVE

A1
A

6TH AVE S

10TH AVE N

D
IX

IE
 H

W
Y

FE
D

ER
AL

 H
W

Y

S 
C

O
N

G
R

ES
S 

AV
E

FL
O

R
ID

A 
M

AN
G

O
 R

D

LANTANA RD IN
TR

AC
O

AS
TA

L 
W

AT
ER

W
AY

AT
LA

N
TI

C
 O

C
EA

N

LUCERNE AVE

LOCATION

Sheet List Table
Sheet Number Sheet Description Sheet Title

1 C000 COVER

2 C001 GENERAL NOTES

3 C002 MASTER KEY MAP

4 C100 DISTRICT 1 KEY MAP

5 C101 DISTRICT 1 KEY MAP

6 C102 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 1 - 6

7 C103 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 7 - 12

8 C104 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 13 - 18

9 C105 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 19 - 24

10 C106 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 25 - 31

11 C107 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 32 - 37

12 C108 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 38 - 43

13 C109 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 44 - 49

14 C110 DISTRICT 1 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 50 - 53

15 C200 DISTRICT 2 KEY MAP

16 C201 DISTRICT 2 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 1 - 6

17 C202 DISTRICT 2 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 7 - 12

18 C203 DISTRICT 2 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 13 - 16

19 C300 DISTRICT 3 KEY MAP

20 C301 DISTRICT 3 KEY MAP

21 C302 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 1 - 6

22 C303 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 7 - 12

23 C304 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 13 - 17 & 20

24 C305 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 21, 22 - 25, 27 & 29

25 C306 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 30 - 34 & 37

26 C307 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 38 - 39 & 41 - 44

27 C308 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 46-48, 50-51 & 53

28 C309 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 54 - 59

29 C310 DISTRICT 3 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 60 - 61

30 C400 DISTRICT 4 KEY MAP

31 C401 DISTRICT 4 KEY MAP

32 C402 DISTRICT 4 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 1 - 6

33 C403 DISTRICT 4 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 7 - 12

34 C404 DISTRICT 4 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 13 - 18

35 C405 DISTRICT 4 ADA IMPROVEMENTS @ INTERSECTIONS 19 - 20

36 C500 CITY OF LAKE WORTH DETAILS 1

37 C501 CITY OF LAKE WORTH 2 & FDOT DETAILS 1

38 C502 FDOT DETAILS 2

39 C503 FDOT DETAILS 3

40 C504 FDOT DETAILS 4

41 C505 TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE CITY

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
275

AutoCAD SHX Text
295

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
75



No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

GE
NE

RA
L 

NO
TE

S

C001
2 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:4
6 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

5 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
GE

NN
OT

ES
.d

w
g

GENERAL NOTES:

1. THESE GENERAL NOTES APPLY TO WORK IN THIS SET OF DRAWINGS.

2. WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (FDOT) STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, 2022 EDITION, AND FDOT STANDARD PLANS FY2022-23 OR LATEST
EDITION. ALL FDOT INDEXES ARE INCORPORATED AS PLAN REFERENCED HEREIN. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
OBTAINING COMPLETE COPIES OF APPLICABLE FDOT INDEXES.

3. PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY EXCAVATION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLY WITH FLORIDA STATURE 556-
UNDERGROUND FACILITY DAMAGE PREVENTION AND SAFETY ACT.

4. NO CONSTRUCTION SHALL COMMENCE UNTIL ALL REQUIRED PERMITS AND APPROVALS HAVE BEEN SECURED AND THE
CONTRACTOR IS ISSUED A NOTICE TO PROCEED. CONTRACTOR SHALL ABIDE BY ALL PERMIT CONDITIONS.

5. ALL STATIONS AND OFFETS REFER TO CENTERLINE OF CONSTRUCTION. ALL STATIONS, OFFSETS, AND RADII ARE FROM THE
EDGE OF PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS.

6. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN SAFE VEHICULAR ACCESS TO ALL ADJACENT PROPERTY AT ALL TIMES AND SHALL MAINTAIN
ACCOMMODATIONS FOR INTERSECTING CROSSING TRAFFIC. NO ROAD OR STREET CROSSING SHALL BE BLOCKED OR UNDULY
RESTRICTED.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE SAFE PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AND PROTECTION ADJACENT TO CONSTRUCTION THROUGHOUT
THE PROJECT.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO MAINTAIN THE EXISTING LEVEL OF ILLUMINATION THROUGHOUT THE PROJECT
LIMITS DURING CONSTRUCTION.

9. TWO (2) LANES OF ROAD MUST BE OPEN TO TRAFFIC DURING AN EVACUATION NOTICE OF HURRICANE OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENT AND SHALL REMAIN OPEN FOR THE DURATION OF THE EVENT AND UNTIL NOTIFIED OTHERWISE BY THE
ENGINEER.

10. EXISTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURES WITHIN CONSTRUCTION LIMITS SHALL REMAIN UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED. ALL DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM THE SEDIMENTATION DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS ACCORDING TO DEP
FLORIDA STORMWATER, EROSION, AND SEDIMENTATION INSPECTOR MANUAL, SECTION 4.08 STORM DRAIN INLET
PROTECTION.

11. NO EXISTING MATERIAL SHALL BE USED IN NEW CONSTRUCTION UNLESS APPROVED DURING THE SHOP DRAWING REVIEW
PROCESS.

12. CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE CONSTRUCTION METHODS AND DEVICES AS INDICATED, AT A MINIMUM, IN FDOT STANDARD
INDEXES 100.101, 102, 103, 104, 105 WHERE NECESSARY IN ORDER TO COMPLY WITH ALL STATE AND LOCAL WATER QUALITY
STANDARDS.

13. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR KEEPING INLETS CLEAN OF PAVING MATERIAL, SILT, ROCK, AND DEBRIS DURING THE
CONSTRUCTION AT NO ADDITIONAL COST.

14. ALL MILLED MATERIAL SHALL BE REMOVED AND DISPOSED OF PROPERLY AT THE END OF EACH DAILY MILLING OPERATION.

15. ALL AREAS DESIGNATED FOR PAVEMENT REMOVAL SHALL BE SAW-CUT AT THE LIMITS OF REMOVAL WHERE EXISTING
PAVEMENT IS TO REMAIN. ALL AREAS DESIGNATED AS THE LIMITS OF MILLING & RESURFACING SHALL BE SAW-CUT WHERE
EXISTING PAVEMENT IS TO REMAIN.

16. CROSS SLOPES SHALL MATCH EXISTING ADJACENT PAVEMENT UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS.

17. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXERCISE EXTREME CAUTION WHILE REMOVING AND/OR RELOCATING EXISTING SIGNS IN ORDER TO
PREVENT ANY UNNECESSARY DAMAGE TO THE SIGNS. SIGNS WHICH ARE DAMAGED BEYOND USE, AS DETERMINED BY THE
ENGINEER SHALL BE REPLACED BY THE CONTRACTOR AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE CITY.

18. PROPOSED SIDEWALK IS TO BE CONNECTED TO EXISTING SIDEWALK WHERE APPLICABLE.

19. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXTREMELY CAUTIOUS WHEN WORKING NEAR TREES WHICH ARE TO BE SAVED, WHETHER SHOWN ON
THE DRAWINGS OR DESIGNATED IN THE FIELD.

20. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ADJACENT WATER BODIES, WETLANDS AND PROPERTIES FROM SEDIMENTATION OR OTHER
POTENTIAL CONSTRUCTION RELATED CAUSES.

21. ALL RECOMMENDATIONS AND REQUIREMENTS OF THE INSPECTION PERSONNEL OTHER THAN THE OWNER'S SHALL BE
REPORTED TO THE ENGINEER PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION. COMPENSATION WILL NOT BE ALLOWED FOR WORK WHICH IS NOT
AUTHORIZED BY THE ENGINEER OR OWNER.

22. ALL WORK SHALL BE OPEN AND SUBJECT TO INSPECTION BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL OF THE CITY, INVOLVED UTILITY
COMPANIES, PROJECT ENGINEER, AND EACH APPLICABLE REGULATORY AGENCY.

23. ANY DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS FROM THAT WHICH IS REPRESENTED HEREON, WHETHER ABOVE, ON OR BELOW THE
SURFACE OF THE GROUND, SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE IMMEDIATE ATTENTION OF THE ENGINEER AND THE CITY OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH IN WRITING. NO CLAIM FOR EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE CONTRACTOR DUE TO DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS
WILL BE ALLOWED IF THE CONTRACTOR FAILS TO PROVIDE THE REQUIRED WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF SUCH CONDITIONS
FOR REVIEW BY THE ENGINEER AND THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH.

24. ALL EXISTING CITY OF LAKE WORTH SIGNS WITHIN THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH ARE TO BE RELOCATED OR
REMOVED SHALL BE REMOVED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND STOCKPILE AT A LOCATION DESIGNATED BY THE ENGINEER.

25. ALL VEGETATION, DEBRIS, CONCRETE OR OTHER UNSUITABLE MATERIAL SHALL BE DISPOSED OF LEGALLY OFFSITE BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT HIS EXPENSE.

26. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR FURNISHING DETAILED TRAFFIC MAINTENANCE AND CONTROL DRAWINGS
ACCORDANCE WITH REGULATORY STANDARDS AND CURRENT FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARDS (FDOT
INDEX 600 SERIES) AND THE MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES, REVISIONS 1 AND 2. THESE DRAWINGS SHALL
INCLUDE A CLEAR SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION. TWO (2) LANES OF TRAFFIC SHALL BE ACCOMMODATED AT ALL TIMES ON
7TH AVE NORTH. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE AND SUBMIT TO THE ENGINEER AT THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE
THE MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC PLAN FOR APPROVAL BY ALL APPLICABLE REGULATORY AGENCIES.

27. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING THE NECESSARY TESTING TO ASSURE THAT THE PROPER
COMPACTION HAS BEEN ACHIEVED IN THE SUBGRADE, BASE MATERIAL, CONCRETE, ASPHALT, PIPE BASE MATERIAL AND ALL
OTHER PERTINENT AREAS THAT HAVE BEEN COMPLETED. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR SCHEDULING THE TESTS AND
COORDINATING WITH THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH REPRESENTATIVE. THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH WILL PAY FOR INITIAL TESTS.
THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH RETESTING OF FAILED TESTS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE
THE CITY AND THE ENGINEER COPIES OF ALL TEST RESULTS. ALL REPORTS ARE TO BE SIGNED AND SEALED BY A REGISTERED
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER IN THE STATE OF FLORIDA.

28. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR VERIFYING ALL QUANTITIES, TAKE-OFF MEASUREMENTS, MATERIALS, ETC.
DURING THE BID PROCESS. WHEN DISCREPANCIES OCCUR, THE PHYSICAL PLAN TAKES PRECEDENCE. THE ENGINEER,
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT, CITY OR PROJECT MANAGERS ARE NOT TO BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR DISCREPANCIES TO THE
SPECIFICATIONS OR DRAWINGS. QUANTITIES PROVIDED ARE PROVIDED FOR REFERENCE ONLY; IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY ALL QUANTITIES PRIOR TO BID SUBMITTAL.

29. SPECIAL ATTENTION IS DIRECTED TO THE FACT THAT PORTIONS OF SOME DRAINAGE STRUCTURES AND CULVERTS MAY
EXTEND INTO THE STABILIZED PORTION OF THE ROAD BED AND EXTREME CAUTION WILL BE NECESSARY DURING
STABILIZATION OPERATIONS AT THESE LOCATIONS.

30. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO USE EXTREME CAUTION WHEN WORKING IN OR AROUND AREAS OF EXISTING LOOP AND LEAD-IN
WIRES; TRANSMISSION LINES, UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AND OVERHEAD UTILITIES.

31. ALL TRENCHING OR EXCAVATION WITHIN THE PAVEMENT AREA SHALL BE PERFORMED PRIOR TO PLACEMENT OF BASE AND
ASPHALT.

32. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE PALM BEACH COUNTY TRAFFIC DIVISION, PHONE (561) 684-4030, TWO WORKING DAYS
PRIOR TO ANY MODIFICATION OF AN EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEM. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE FULL RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF THE EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL(S) WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS.

GENERAL NOTES (CONTINUED):

33. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH CITY OF LAKE WORTH AND PALM BEACH COUNTY TRAFFIC DIVISION PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION OF LOOP ASSEMBLIES AND THEIR CONNECTION TO CONTROLLERS AT SIGNALIZED INTERSECTIONS WITHIN 
THE PROJECT LIMITS. INSTALLATION OF LOOP ASSEMBLIES SHALL BE PERFORMED AFTER MILLING AND RESURFACING.

34. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE SELECTION AND REVIEW OF ANY PROPOSED STAGING AREAS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS
PROJECT WITH JAMIE BROWN, THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT AT (561) 586-1720.

35. NO STAGING OR OPERATING OF EQUIPMENT WILL BE PERMITTED WITHIN THE FOLLOWING PUBLICLY OWNED LANDS: LANTANA
SCRUB NATURAL AREA, LAKE WORTH GOLF COURSE, SUNSET RIDGE PARK, HAROLD GRIMES MEMORIAL PARK, HOWARD PARK
LAKE WORTH, LAKE WORTH MUNICIPAL GYMNASIUM, BRYANT PARK & BOAT RAMP, LAKE WORTH COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION, OSBORNE COMMUNITY CENTER AND LAKE WORTH HIGH SCHOOL PROPERTY.

UTILITIES:
1. THE LOCATION OF THE EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN OR COVERED IN UTILITY NOTE 'II.H' IN THE DRAWINGS ARE ONLY

APPROXIMATE. THE EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS WERE PLOTTED FROM THE BEST AVAILABLE INFORMATION.
HOWEVER, NO ASSURANCES ARE MADE BY THE ENGINEER OR CITY AS TO THEIR ACCURACY. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY
THE UTILITY COMPANIES IN THE AREA OF WORK BEFORE BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION.

2. THE LOCATION(S) OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS (INCLUDING THOSE DESIGNATED Vvh) ARE BASED ON LIMITED
INVESTIGATION TECHNIQUES AND SHOULD BE CONSIDERED APPROXIMATE ONLY. THE VERIFIED LOCATIONS/ELEVATIONS APPLY
ONLY AT THE POINTS SHOWN. INTERPOLATIONS BETWEEN THESE POINTS HAVE NOT BEEN VERIFIED.

3. UPON RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF AWARD, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ATTEND A PRE CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE TO INCLUDE ALL
INVOLVED GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES, ALL AFFECTED UTILITY OWNERS, THE CITY, AND THE ENGINEER.

4. PRIOR TO EXCAVATION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT SUNSHINE 811 AND THE UTILITY OWNER AND REQUEST UTILITY
LOCATIONS. A CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE MUST BE PRESENT WHEN UTILITY COMPANIES LOCATE THEIR FACILITIES.

5. UTILITY COMPANIES:

BRIAN SHIELDS
CITY OF LAKE WORTH WATER AND SEWER UTILITY
(561)586-1610

EDWARD LIBERTY
CITY OF LAKE WORTH ELECTRIC UTILITY
(561) 586-1665

ROD FRIEDEL
PALM BEACH COUNTY TRAFFIC DIVISION
(561) 681-4371

HENRY PATINO
COMCAST - PALM BEACH COUNTY
(561) 436-9031

CHRIS CANINO
FLORIDA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMPANY
(561) 832-1773

GARTH BEDWARD
AT&T
(561) 357-6553

SCOTT PHILBRICK
PALM BEACH COUNTY TRAFFIC OPERATIONS
(561) 233-3908

6. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S SOLE RESPONSIBILITY TO TAKE THE NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS TO ENSURE PROPER SAFETY
AND WORKMANSHIP WHEN WORKING IN THE VICINITY OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND AND OVERHEAD UTILITY LINES. PRIOR TO
BEGINNING CONSTRUCTION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE SIZE, LOCATION, ELEVATION, AND MATERIAL OF ALL EXISTING
UTILITIES WITHIN THE AREA OF CONSTRUCTION.

7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY IF "OTHER" UTILITIES (NOT SHOWN IN THE DRAWINGS) EXIST WITHIN THE
AREA OF CONSTRUCTION. SHOULD THERE BE UTILITY CONFLICTS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM THE ENGINEER AND NOTIFY
THE RESPECTIVE UTILITY OWNER(S) TO RESOLVE UTILITY CONFLICTS AND PERFORM UTILITY ADJUSTMENTS, AS REQUIRED.

8. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE TO ANY EXISTING UTILITIES FOR WHICH IT FAILS TO REQUEST
LOCATIONS FROM THE UTILITY OWNER. THE CONTRACTOR IS ALSO RESPONSIBLE FOR DAMAGE TO ANY EXISTING UTILITIES
WHICH ARE PROPERLY LOCATED.

9. IF UPON EXCAVATION, AN EXISTING UTILITY IS FOUND TO BE IN CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION OR TO BE OF A
SIZE OR MATERIALLY DIFFERENT FROM THAT SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS; THE CONTRACTOR SHALL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE
ENGINEER.

10. THE LOCATIONS OF EXISTING UTILITIES AND STORM DRAINAGE SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS HAVE BEEN DETERMINED FROM THE
BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE AND ARE GIVEN FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE CONTRACTOR. ENGINEER ASSUMES NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR INACCURACY. PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY, IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S
RESPONSIBILITY TO MAKE ARRANGEMENTS FOR THE FIELD LOCATIONS AND FOR ANY RELOCATIONS OF THE VARIOUS EXISTING
UTILITIES WITH THE UTILITY OWNERS, WHICH SHALL BE DONE IN A TIMELY MANNER TO MINIMIZE IMPACT ON THE
CONSTRUCTION  SCHEDULE. ANY DELAY CAUSED BY THE CONTRACTOR BY THE RELOCATION OF UTILITIES SHALL BE INCIDENTAL
TO THE CONTRACT AND NO EXTRA COMPENSATION WILL BE ALLOWED.

CONSTRUCTION SAFETY:

1. ALL CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A SAFE MANNER, SPECIFICALLY, THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ADMINISTRATION (OSHA).

2. CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH THE STATE OF FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT.

3. WHERE EXCAVATIONS TO A DEPTH IN EXCESS OF FIVE FEET (5') ARE REQUIRED, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE THE
FOLLOWING IN THE BID:

3.1. REFERENCE TO THE TRENCH SAFETY STANDARDS THAT WILL BE IN EFFECT DURING THE PERIOD OF CONSTRUCTION OF
THE PROJECT.

3.2. WRITTEN ASSURANCES BY THE CONTRACTOR PERFORMING THE TRENCH EXCAVATION THAT SUCH CONTRACTOR WILL
COMPLY WITH THE FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT.

3.3. A SEPARATE ITEM IDENTIFYING THE COST OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE TRENCH SAFETY STANDARDS.

R/W:

1. ALL WORK SHALL BE COMPLETED FROM AND WITHIN EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY.

ENVIRONMENTAL:

1. WHEN ENCOUNTERING OR EXPOSING ANY ABNORMAL CONDITION INDICATING THE PRESENCE OF A HAZARDOUS OR TOXIC
WASTE, OR CONTAMINANTS, CEASE OPERATIONS IMMEDIATELY IN THE VICINITY AND NOTIFY THE LAP CITY OF LAKE WORTH
BEACH ENGINEER (JAMIE BROWN, 561-586-1720). THE PRESENCE OF TANKS OR BARRELS; DISCOLORED EARTH, METAL, WOOD,
GROUND WATER, ETC.; VISIBLE FUMES; ABNORMAL ODORS; EXCESSIVELY HOT EARTH; SMOKE; OR OTHER CONDITIONS THAT
APPEAR ABNORMAL MAY INDICATE HAZARDOUS OR TOXIC WASTES OR CONTAMINANTS AND MUST BE TREATED WITH EXTREME
CAUTION.

2. MAKE EVERY EFFORT TO MINIMIZE THE SPREAD OF CONTAMINATION INTO UNCONTAMINATED AREAS. IMMEDIATELY PROVIDE
FOR THE HEALTH AND SAFETY OF ALL WORKERS AT THE JOB SITE AND MAKE PROVISIONS NECESSARY FOR THE HEALTH AND
SAFETY OF THE PUBLIC THAT MAY BE EXPOSED TO ANY POTENTIALLY HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS. PROVISIONS SHALL MEET ALL
APPLICABLE LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL LAWS, RULES, REGULATIONS OR CODES COVERING HAZARDOUS CONDITIONS AND
WILL BE IN A MANNER COMMENSURATE WITH THE GRAVITY OF THE CONDITIONS.

3. THE LAP CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH ENGINEER (JAMIE BROWN, 561-586-1720) WILL COORDINATE AND MOBILIZE A
QUALIFIED CONTAMINATION ASSESSMENT/REMEDIATION (CAR) CONTRACTOR. QUALIFICATIONS OF SUCH CAR CONTRACTOR
SHALL INCLUDE, BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO: EXPERIENCE AND PERSONNEL TO PREPARE CONTAMINATION ASSESSMENT PLANS,
CONDUCT CONTAMINATION ASSESSMENTS, PREPARE SITE ASSESSMENT REPORTS, REMEDIATION PLANS, IMPLEMENT REMEDIAL
ACTION PLANS, RISK BASED CORRECTIVE ACTIONS, STORAGE TANKS SYSTEM REMOVAL, HIGHWAY SPILL RESPONSE AS WELL AS
EXPERIENCE WITH INFRASTRUCTURE/CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES WITHIN (POTENTIALLY) CONTAMINATED AREAS SPECIFIC TO
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS.

ENVIRONMENTAL (CONTINUED):

4. ALL THE WORK PERFORMED BY THE CAR CONTRACTOR SHALL BE PERFORMED IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL,
STATE AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS GOVERNING WORKER SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS. THIS IS TO INCLUDE
OCCUPATIONAL EXPOSURE TO CONTAMINATED SOILS, GROUNDWATER, WASTES AND ATMOSPHERE DURING THE
CONSTRUCTION OF ALL FEATURES INCLUDED IN THE CONSTRUCTION PLANS. IN ADDITION, THE CAR CONTRACTOR MUST BE
STAFFED WITH FLORIDA LICENSED TECHNICAL PROFESSIONALS (GEOLOGISTS AND ENGINEERS) WHO WILL BE INVOLVED WITH
THE PROJECT AND KNOWLEDGEABLE OF THE WORK ACTIVITIES CONDUCTED WITHIN THE IDENTIFIED CONTAMINATED AREAS
AND WHO WOULD SIGN AND SEAL PROJECT REPORTS AS REQUIRED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE APPROPRIATE ENVIRONMENTAL
REGULATORY AGENCIES.

5. THE LAP CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH ENGINEER, (JAMIE BROWN, 561-586-1720) WILL IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE FLORIDA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (FDOT) DISTRICT IV CONTAMINATION IMPACT COORDINATOR (DCIC) AT (954)777-4286
AFTER ENCOUNTERING THE UNIDENTIFIED AREAS OF CONTAMINATION. PRELIMINARY INVESTIGATION BY THE CAR
CONTRACTOR WILL DETERMINE THE COURSE OF ACTION NECESSARY FOR SITE SECURITY AND THE STEPS NECESSARY UNDER
APPLICABLE LAWS, RULES, AND REGULATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL ASSESSMENT AND/OR REMEDIATION WORK TO RESOLVE THE
CONTAMINATION ISSUE.

6. FOLLOWING COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT, THE CAR CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO PROVIDE COPIES OF ALL REPORTS
SUBMITTED TO REGULATORY AGENCIES, WASTE MATERIAL PROFILES, MANIFESTS AND/OR DISPOSAL RECEIPTS FOR THE
HANDLING OF ALL CONTAMINATED MEDIA INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO GROUND WATER, WASTE WATER, SOILS, SOLID
WASTES, SLUDGE, HAZARDOUS WASTES, AIR MONITORING RECORDS AND SAMPLE RESULTS FOR ALL MATERIALS TESTED AND
ANALYZED TO THE LAP CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH ENGINEER (JAMIE BROWN, 561-586-1720) AND THE FDOT DCIC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



DISTRICT 2
SHEETS 15-18

DISTRICT 3
SHEETS 19-29

DISTRICT 4
SHEETS 30-35

DISTRICT 1
SHEETS 4-14

N DIXIE HWY

I-95

LUCERNE AVE

S DIXIE HWY

LUCERNE AVE

22ND AVE N15TH AVE N

10TH AVE N

5TH AVE N

N A ST

DARTM
OUTH DR

5TH AVE S

1ST AVE S

10TH AVE S

15TH AVE S

S FEDERAL HWY

1ST AVE S

S A ST

10TH AVE N

W
ASHINGTON AVE

S DIXIE HWY

15TH AVE S

10TH AVE S

5TH AVE S

N G ST

15TH AVE N

N A ST N A ST

20TH AVE N

N D ST

N FEDERAL HWY

5TH AVE N

N LAKESIDE DR

N FEDERAL HWY

W
ELLESLEY DR

I-95

I-95

LUCERNE AVE

N J TERRACE

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

0 600' 1200'300'

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

M
AS

TE
R 

KE
Y 

M
AP

C002
3 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:4
7 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

3 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
M

AS
TE

R 
KE

Y.
dw

g

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



S 
A 

ST

1ST AVE S

S 
B 

ST

1ST AVE S

S 
F 

ST

2ND AVE S

S 
B 

ST

3RD AVE S

INTERSECTION 1 INTERSECTION 2
INTERSECTION 3 INTERSECTION 4

INTERSECTION 5

INTERSECTION 6 INTERSECTION 7 INTERSECTION 8

INTERSECTION 9
INTERSECTION 10 INTERSECTION 11

INTERSECTION 12 INTERSECTION 13

INTERSECTION 14
INTERSECTION 15

INTERSECTION 16 INTERSECTION 17

INTERSECTION 18

INTERSECTION 19 INTERSECTION 20

INTERSECTION 21
INTERSECTION 22

INTERSECTION 23

INTERSECTION 24

S 
E 

ST
S 

E 
ST

S 
E 

STS 
A 

ST

4TH AVE S

2ND AVE S

10TH AVE S

S 
D 

ST

S 
E 

ST

S 
F 

ST

3RD AVE S

S 
H 

ST
S 

H 
ST

S H ST

S 
G 

ST
S 

G 
ST

S 
F 

ST

S 
F 

ST
S 

F 
ST

S 
F 

ST

9TH AVE S

8TH AVE S
S 

EA
ST

 C
OA

ST
 S

T

6TH AVE S

BR
IG

HT
LI

NE
 R

AI
LR

OA
D

0 200' 400'100'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 K

EY
 M

AP

C100
4 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
3 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

5 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 K
EY

.d
w

g

MATCH LINE SHEET 5 MATCH LINE SHEET 5

KEY SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION INTERSECTION NW NE SW SE

C100

102 1 1-1 1-2
102 2 1-3
102 3 1-5 1-4
102 4 1-8 1-6 1-7
102 5 1-124 1-123 1-126 1-125
102 6 1-9
103 7 1-11 1-10 1-12
103 8 1-128 1-127 1-130 1-129
103 9 1-16 1-14 1-15 1-13
103 10 1-20 1-19 1-17 1-18
103 11 1-21 1-22 1-23
103 12 1-131 1-132
104 13 1-134 1-133 1-136 1-135
104 14 1-25 1-24
104 15 1-29 1-28 1-27 1-26
104 16 1-30
104 17 1-32 1-33 1-31
104 18 1-37 1-36 1-35 1-34
105 19 1-38 1-39
105 20 1-42 1-40 1-41
105 21 1-43A 1-43B 1-43
105 22 1-47 1-46 1-45 1-44
105 23 1-48 1-49 1-50 1-51
105 24 1-52

C101

106 25 1-54 1-53
106 26 1-56 1-55
106 27 1-58 1-57
106 28 1-60 1-59
106 29 1-62 1-61 1-64 1-63
106 30 1-66 1-65
106 31 1-68 1-67
107 32 1-71 1-72
107 33 1-70 1-69
107 34 1-73 1-74
107 35 1-75 1-76
107 36 1-93 1-94
107 37 1-90 1-89 1-91 1-92
108 38 1-88 1-87 1-86 1-85
108 39 1-82 1-81 1-84 1-83
108 40 1-79 1-80
108 41 1-111A 1-111
108 42 1-78 1-77
108 43 1-109 1-110
109 44 1-122
109 45 1-95 1-96
109 46 1-97 1-98
109 47 1-99 1-100
109 48 1-104 1-103 1-102 1-101
109 49 1-106 1-105
110 50 1-108 1-107
110 51 1-120 1-121
110 52 1-116 1-117 1-118 1-119
110 53 1-112 1-113 1-115 1-114

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



INTERSECTION 25

INTERSECTION 26

INTERSECTION 29

INTERSECTION 30 INTERSECTION 31

INTERSECTION 32 INTERSECTION 33

INTERSECTION 34 INTERSECTION 35
INTERSECTION 36

INTERSECTION 37 INTERSECTION 38

INTERSECTION 40

INTERSECTION 41

INTERSECTION 42

INTERSECTION 44

INTERSECTION 45 INTERSECTION 46

INTERSECTION 47
INTERSECTION 48

INTERSECTION 49

INTERSECTION 43
INTERSECTION 50

INTERSECTION 51

INTERSECTIONS 27 & 28

INTERSECTION 39

INTERSECTION 52

INTERSECTION 53

12TH AVE S
12TH AVE S

12TH CT S

13TH AVE S

14TH AVE S

15TH AVE S

WASHINGTON AVE

TRUMAN ST

14TH AVE S
14TH AVE S

15TH AVE S
15TH AVE S

14TH AVE S

S 
D 

ST

S 
E 

ST
S 

E 
ST

S 
F 

ST

S 
C 

TE
RR

S 
C 

ST
S 

C 
ST

SG
 S

T
S 

G 
ST S 

H 
ST

S 
H 

ST

W
IN

GF
IE

LD
 S

T
W

IN
GF

IE
LD

 S
T

14TH CT S

BRIGHTLINE RAILROAD

0 200' 400'100'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 K

EY
 M

AP

C101
5 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
3 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 K
EY

.d
w

g

MATCH LINE SHEET
4

MATCH LINE SHEET
4

KEY SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION INTERSECTION NW NE SW SE

C100

102 1 1-1 1-2
102 2 1-3
102 3 1-5 1-4
102 4 1-8 1-6 1-7
102 5 1-124 1-123 1-126 1-125
102 6 1-9
103 7 1-11 1-10 1-12
103 8 1-128 1-127 1-130 1-129
103 9 1-16 1-14 1-15 1-13
103 10 1-20 1-19 1-17 1-18
103 11 1-21 1-22 1-23
103 12 1-131 1-132
104 13 1-134 1-133 1-136 1-135
104 14 1-25 1-24
104 15 1-29 1-28 1-27 1-26
104 16 1-30
104 17 1-32 1-33 1-31
104 18 1-37 1-36 1-35 1-34
105 19 1-38 1-39
105 20 1-42 1-40 1-41
105 21 1-43A 1-43B 1-43
105 22 1-47 1-46 1-45 1-44
105 23 1-48 1-49 1-50 1-51
105 24 1-52

C101

106 25 1-54 1-53
106 26 1-56 1-55
106 27 1-58 1-57
106 28 1-60 1-59
106 29 1-62 1-61 1-64 1-63
106 30 1-66 1-65
106 31 1-68 1-67
107 32 1-71 1-72
107 33 1-70 1-69
107 34 1-73 1-74
107 35 1-75 1-76
107 36 1-93 1-94
107 37 1-90 1-89 1-91 1-92
108 38 1-88 1-87 1-86 1-85
108 39 1-82 1-81 1-84 1-83
108 40 1-79 1-80
108 41 1-111A 1-111
108 42 1-78 1-77
108 43 1-109 1-110
109 44 1-122
109 45 1-95 1-96
109 46 1-97 1-98
109 47 1-99 1-100
109 48 1-104 1-103 1-102 1-101
109 49 1-106 1-105
110 50 1-108 1-107
110 51 1-120 1-121
110 52 1-116 1-117 1-118 1-119
110 53 1-112 1-113 1-115 1-114

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

1-126 1-125

1-124

1-123

1ST AVE S

S 
H 

ST
ROW

(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

1-1

1-2

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1ST AVE S

S 
A 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

1-3

1ST AVE S

S 
B 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

1-5

1-4

1ST AVE S

S 
E 

ST

EOP
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

1-8
1-6

1-7

1ST AVE S

S 
F 

ST

EOP
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2ND AVE S

S 
B 

ST

EOP
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

1-9

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
1 

- 6

C102
6 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

5 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 5
1-123  THRU 1-126

INTERSECTION 2
1-3

INTERSECTION 4
1-6  THRU 1-8

INTERSECTION 6
1-9

INTERSECTION 1
1-1 THRU 1-2

INTERSECTION 3
1-4 THRU 1-5

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

S 
E 

ST

3RD AVE S

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-20

1-17

1-19

1-18

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

1-11

1-121-10

2ND AVE S
S 

E 
ST

EOP
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

EOP
(TYP.) 2ND AVE S

S 
H 

ST

ROW
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-128

1-130
1-129

1-127

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3RD AVE S

S 
A 

ST

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)CENTERLINE

(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-14

1-16

1-15 1-13

LAKE WORTH COMMUNITY
HIGH SCHOOL

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

S 
F 

ST

3RD AVE S

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-21

1-22

1-23

EOP
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3RD AVE SS 
EA

ST
 C

OA
ST

 S
T

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-131

1-132

ROW
(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
7 

- 1
2

C103
7 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:1

0 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 7
1-10 THRU 1-12

INTERSECTION 8
1-127 THRU 1-130

INTERSECTION 9
1-13 THRU 1-16

INTERSECTION 10
1-17 THRU 1-20

INTERSECTION 11
1-21 THRU 1-23

INTERSECTION 12
1-131 THRU 1-132

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

S 
E 

ST

4TH AVE S

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-30

ROW
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3RD AVE S
S 

H 
ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-134

1-133

1-136 1-135

ROW
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

S 
A 

ST

4TH AVE S
CENTERLINE

(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-25

1-24

ROW
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4TH AVE S

S 
D 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-26

1-28

1-29

1-27

ROW
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4TH AVE S

S 
F 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-33

1-31

1-32

ROW
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

S 
F 

ST

8TH AVE S

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-37
1-36

1-35

1-34 ROW
(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
13

 - 
18

C104
8 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

4 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 16
1-30

INTERSECTION 13
1-133 THRU 1-136

INTERSECTION 14
1-24 THRU 1-25

INTERSECTION 15
1-26 THRU 1-29

INTERSECTION 17
1-31 THRU 1-33

INTERSECTION 18
1-34 THRU 1-37

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

10TH AVE S

S 
F 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-47

1-46

1-44

1-45

ROW
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

S 
F 

ST

9TH AVE S

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-38

1-39

ROW
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

S 
G 

ST

9TH AVE S
EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-42

1-41

1-40

ROW
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

10TH AVE S

S 
E 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-43

1-43A

1-43B

ROW
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

10TH AVE S

S H ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-52

ROW
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

10TH AVE S

S 
G 

STCENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-48
1-49

1-51

1-50

ROW
(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
19

 - 
24

C105
9 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

2 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 22
1-44 THRU 1-47

INTERSECTION 19
1-38 THRU 1-39

INTERSECTION 20
1-40 THRU 1-42

INTERSECTION 21
1-43

INTERSECTION 24
1-52

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

INTERSECTION 23
1-48 THRU 1-51

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

12TH AVE S S 
E 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-631-64

1-62 1-61

ROW
(TYP.)

12TH AVE S

S 
C 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-56

1-55

ROW
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

12TH AVE S

S 
H 

ST

1-671-68

CENTERLINE
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

12TH AVE S

S 
D 

ST

S 
D 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-58 1-57

1-60

1-59

ROW
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

12TH AVE S

S 
F 

ST

1-651-66

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.
REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

12TH AVE S
S 

C 
ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB RAMP,
SIDEWALK AND F-CURB.

REWORK ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP.)

1-54

1-53

ROW
(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
25

 - 
31

C106
10 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 29
1-61 THRU 1-64

INTERSECTION 25
1-53 THRU 1-54

INTERSECTION 26
1-55 THRU 1-56

INTERSECTION 27 AND 28
1-57 THRU 1-58 AND 1-59 THRU 1-60

INTERSECTION 30
1-65 THRU 1-66

INTERSECTION 31
1-67 THRU 1-68

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



13TH AVE S

S 
H 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-75

1-76

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

12TH CT SS 
G 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-71

1-72

12TH CT S S 
H 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-70

1-69

13TH AVE SS 
G 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-73

1-74

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

14TH AVE S

S 
C 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-89

1-92

1-90

1-91

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

14TH AVE S

S 
C 

TE
RR

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-93

1-94

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
32

 - 
37

C107
11 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:1

0 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 35
1-75 THRU 1-76

INTERSECTION 32
1-71 THRU 1-72

INTERSECTION 33
1-69 THRU 1-70

INTERSECTION 34
1-73 THRU 1-74

INTERSECTION 37
1-89 THRU 1-92

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

INTERSECTION 36
1-93 THRU 1-94

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



14TH AVE S

S 
G 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB

ROW
(TYP.)

1-111

1-111A

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

14TH AVE S
S 

D 
ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-87

1-85

1-88

1-86

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

14TH AVE S

S 
E 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-81

1-83

1-82

1-84

icrosoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

14TH AVE S SG
 S

T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-79

1-80

S 
G 

ST

14TH CT S

S 
G 

ST

14TH CT S

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-110

1-109

14TH AVE S S 
H 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-77

1-78

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
38

 - 
43

C108
12 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

1 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 38
1-85 THRU 1-88

INTERSECTION 39
1-81 THRU 1-84

INTERSECTION 40
1-79 THRU 1-80

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

INTERSECTION 41
1-111

INTERSECTION 43
1-109 THRU 1-110

INTERSECTION 42
1-77 THRU 1-78

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

15TH AVE S

S 
D 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-1001-99

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

14TH AVE SW
IN

GF
IE

LD
 S

T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-122

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

15TH AVE S

S 
C 

TE
RR

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-961-95

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

15TH AVE S

S 
C 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-981-97

15TH AVE S

S 
G 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-105
1-106

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

15TH AVE S

S 
E 

ST
RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND
F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-1031-104

1-101

1-102

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
44

 - 
49

C109
13 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

6 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 47
1-99 THRU 1-100

INTERSECTION 44
1-122

INTERSECTION 45
1-95 THRU 1-96

INTERSECTION 49
1-105 THRU 1-106

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

INTERSECTION 48
1-101 THRU 1-104

INTERSECTION 46
1-97 THRU 1-98

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

TRUMAN ST

W
IN

GF
IE

LD
 S

T

1-113

1-114

1-112

1-115

ROW
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK, AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

15TH AVE S

S 
H 

ST

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

1-108

1-107

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

15TH AVE SW
IN

GF
IE

LD
 S

T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-120

1-121

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

WASHINGTON
AVE

W
IN

GF
IE

LD
 S

T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALK AND

F-CURB. REWORK ASPHALT
AS NEEDED (TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

1-117

1-119

1-116

1-118

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 1
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
50

 - 
53

C110
14 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
10

:1
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D1

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 53
1-112 THRU 1-115

INTERSECTION 50
1-107 THRU 1-108

INTERSECTION 51
1-120 THRU 1-121

INTERSECTION 52
1-116 THRU 1-119

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



INTERSECTION 2

INTERSECTION 1

INTERSECTION 3

INTERSECTION 4

INTERSECTION 5

N 
B 

ST

9TH AVE N

N 
C 

ST

N 
D 

ST

N 
E 

ST

N 
F 

ST

N 
C 

ST

N 
D 

ST
N 

D 
ST

N 
D 

ST

11TH AVE N

12TH AVE N

13TH AVE N

CRESTWOOD BLVD

15TH AVE N

16TH AVE N

INTERSECTION 6 INTERSECTION 7

INTERSECTION 8

INTERSECTION 9 INTERSECTION 10 INTERSECTION 11 INTERSECTION 12

INTERSECTION 13 INTERSECTION 14

INTERSECTION 15

N 
E 

ST

N 
F 

ST

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

0 200' 400'100'

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 2
 K

EY
 M

AP

C200
15 41

2974.30

7/
27

/2
02

2 
3:

21
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

2 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D2

 K
EY

.d
w

g

KEY SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION INTERSECTION NW NE SW SE

C200

201 1 2-36
201 2 2-34 2-35
201 3 2-33
201 4 2-31 2-30 2-32
201 5 2-16 2-15 2-17
201 6 2-27 2-26 2-29 2-28
202 7 2-41 2-42
202 8 2-47 2-46 2-49 2-48
202 9 2-14 2-13
202 10 2-23 2-22 2-25 2-24
202 11 2-38 2-37 2-39 2-40
202 12 2-45A 2-43 2-45 2-44
203 13 2-5 2-7 2-6 2-8
203 14 2-9 2-11 2-10 2-12
203 15 2-19 2-18 2-20 2-21
203 16 2-1 2-3 2-2 2-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-15

2-16

2-17

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
C 

ST

12TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-36

N 
D 

ST

16TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-34

2-35

N 
D 

ST

15TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-33

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
D 

ST

CRESTWOOD
BLVD

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-30

2-31

2-32

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
D 

ST

13TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-26
2-27

2-29
2-28

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
D 

ST

12TH AVE N

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 2
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
1 

- 6

C201
16 41

2974.30

10
/3

/2
02

2 
4:

45
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

3 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D2

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 5
2-15  THRU 2-17

INTERSECTION 1
2-36

INTERSECTION 2
2-34 THRU 2-35

INTERSECTION 3
2-33

INTERSECTION 4
2-30  THRU 2-32

INTERSECTION 6
2-26 THRU 2-29

0 20' 40'10'

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-222-23

2-25
2-24

N 
D 

ST

11TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-41

2-42
N 

E 
ST

12TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-47

2-49

2-46

2-48

N 
F 

ST

12TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-14 2-13

N 
C 

ST

11TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-372-38

2-40 2-39

N 
E 

ST

11TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-43

2-45

2-44

N 
F 

ST

11TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

2-45A

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 2
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
7 

- 1
2

C202
17 41

2974.30

10
/3

/2
02

2 
4:

45
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

7 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D2

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 7
2-41THRU 2-42

INTERSECTION 8
2-46 THRU 2-49

INTERSECTION 9
2-13 THRU 2-14

INTERSECTION 10
2-22 THRU 2-25

INTERSECTION 11
2-37 THRU 2-40

INTERSECTION 12
2-43 THRU 2-45

0 20' 40'10'

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-1
2-3

2-2

2-4
4TH AVE N

N 
B 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-5

2-6

2-7

2-8

N 
B 

ST

9TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-9

2-10

2-11

2-12

N 
C 

ST

9TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

2-18

2-19

2-21
2-20

N 
D 

ST

9TH AVE N

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 2
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
13

 - 
16

C203
18 41

2974.30

10
/3

/2
02

2 
4:

45
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

8 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D2

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 16
2-1 THRU 2-4

INTERSECTION 13
2-5 THRU 2-8

INTERSECTION 14
2-9 THRU 2-12

INTERSECTION 15
2-18 THRU 2-21

0 20' 40'10'

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



INTERSECTION 1

INTERSECTION 2

INTERSECTION 3

INTERSECTION 4

INTERSECTION 5

INTERSECTION 6 INTERSECTION 7 INTERSECTION 8

INTERSECTION 10 INTERSECTION 11 INTERSECTION 12 INTERSECTION 13

INTERSECTION 14 INTERSECTION 15 INTERSECTION 16 INTERSECTION 17

11TH AVE N

N 
L 

ST

12TH AVE N

13TH AVE N

15TH AVE N

16TH AVE N

18TH AVE N

N 
N 

ST

WELLESLEY DR

N 
PA

LM
W

AY
N 

PA
LM

W
AY

N 
M

 S
T

N 
M

 S
T

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

N 
L 

ST

N 
K 

ST

11TH AVE N 11TH AVE N

12TH AVE N

13TH
AVE N

18TH AVE N

N 
FE

DE
RA

L 
HW

Y

N 
DI

XI
E 

HW
Y

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

0 200' 400'100'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 K

EY
 M

AP

C300
19 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
8:

28
 A

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

4 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 K
EY

.d
w

g

MATCH LINE SHEET 20 MATCH LINE SHEET 20

KEY SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION INTERSECTION NW NE SW SE

C300

302 1 3-167 3-166 3-169 3-168
302 2 3-163 3-162 3-165 3-164
302 3 3-160 3-161
302 4 3-153 3-152
302 5 3-151
302 6 3-141 3-140
303 7 3-143 3-142 3-145 3-144
303 8 3-149 3-148
303 10 3-137 3-136 3-139 3-138
303 11 3-133 3-132 3-135 3-134
303 12 3-129 3-128 3-131 3-130
304 13 3-156 3-157
304 14 3-119 3-118 3-121 3-120
304 15 3-122 3-123
304 16 3-125 3-124 3-127 3-126
304 17 3-154 3-155

C301

304 20 3-115A 3-115 3-114
305 21 3-116 3-117
305 23 3-102 3-100 3-103 3-101
305 24 3-99 3-98 3-98A
305 25 3-97
305 27 3-92
305 29 3-80 3-79
306 30 3-82 3-81 3-82A
306 31 3-83
306 32 3-85 3-84 3-87 3-86
306 33 3-88A 3-89 3-88
306 34 3-90 3-91
306 37 3-66 3-64 3-65A 3-65
307 38 3-63
307 39 3-62
307 41 3-51
307 42 3-53 3-52 3-54
307 43 3-58 3-57 3-59
307 44 3-60 3-61
308 46 3-37 3-39 3-38 3-40
308 47 3-42 3-41
308 48 3-43 3-44
308 50 3-25 3-27 3-26 3-28
308 51 3-29 3-31 3-30 3-32
308 53 3-18 3-20 3-19 3-21
309 54 3-46B 3-45 3-46A 3-46
309 55 3-1
309 56 3-2 3-4 3-3
309 57 3-5
309 58 3-6 3-8 3-7 3-9
309 59 3-10 3-12 3-11 3-13
310 60 3-14 3-16 3-15
310 61 3-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



INTERSECTION
20

INTERSECTION
21

INTERSECTION 23 INTERSECTION
24

INTERSECTION
25

INTERSECTION 27

INTERSECTION 29 INTERSECTION
30

INTERSECTION
31

INTERSECTION
32

INTERSECTION
33

INTERSECTION
34

INTERSECTION
37

INTERSECTION
38

INTERSECTION
39

INTERSECTION 41 INTERSECTION
42

INTERSECTION
43

INTERSECTION
44

INTERSECTION
46 INTERSECTION

47
INTERSECTION
48

INTERSECTION
50

INTERSECTION
51

INTERSECTION
53 INTERSECTION

54

INTERSECTION
55

INTERSECTION
56

INTERSECTION
57

INTERSECTION
58

INTERSECTION
59

INTERSECTION
60

INTERSECTION
61

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

N 
M

 S
T

N 
K 

ST

2ND AVE N

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

3RD AVE N

4TH AVE N

5TH AVE N

6TH AVE N

7TH AVE N

N 
J 

ST

8TH AVE N

N 
J 

ST

9TH AVE N

N LA
KE

SI
DE

DR
N 

LA
KE

SI
DE

 D
R

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

N 
M

 S
T

2ND AVE N

3RD AVE N

N 
L 

ST
N 

L 
ST

N 
L 

ST

4TH AVE N

5TH AVE N

6TH AVE N

8TH AVE N

9TH AVE N
9TH AVE N

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

N 
 F

ED
ER

AL
 H

W
Y

0 200' 400'100'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 K

EY
 M

AP

C301
20 41

2974.30

10
/5

/2
02

2 
8:

28
 A

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

5 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 K
EY

.d
w

g

MATCH LINE SHEET 19 MATCH LINE SHEET 19

KEY SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION INTERSECTION NW NE SW SE

C300

302 1 3-167 3-166 3-169 3-168
302 2 3-163 3-162 3-165 3-164
302 3 3-160 3-161
302 4 3-153 3-152
302 5 3-151
302 6 3-141 3-140
303 7 3-143 3-142 3-145 3-144
303 8 3-149 3-148
303 10 3-137 3-136 3-139 3-138
303 11 3-133 3-132 3-135 3-134
303 12 3-129 3-128 3-131 3-130
304 13 3-156 3-157
304 14 3-119 3-118 3-121 3-120
304 15 3-122 3-123
304 16 3-125 3-124 3-127 3-126
304 17 3-154 3-155

C301

304 20 3-115A 3-115 3-114
305 21 3-116 3-117
305 23 3-102 3-100 3-103 3-101
305 24 3-99 3-98 3-98A
305 25 3-97
305 27 3-92
305 29 3-80 3-79
306 30 3-82 3-81 3-82A
306 31 3-83
306 32 3-85 3-84 3-87 3-86
306 33 3-88A 3-89 3-88
306 34 3-90 3-91
306 37 3-66 3-64 3-65A 3-65
307 38 3-63
307 39 3-62
307 41 3-51
307 42 3-53 3-52 3-54
307 43 3-58 3-57 3-59
307 44 3-60 3-61
308 46 3-37 3-39 3-38 3-40
308 47 3-42 3-41
308 48 3-43 3-44
308 50 3-25 3-27 3-26 3-28
308 51 3-29 3-31 3-30 3-32
308 53 3-18 3-20 3-19 3-21
309 54 3-46B 3-45 3-46A 3-46
309 55 3-1
309 56 3-2 3-4 3-3
309 57 3-5
309 58 3-6 3-8 3-7 3-9
309 59 3-10 3-12 3-11 3-13
310 60 3-14 3-16 3-15
310 61 3-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-151

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

15TH AVE N

N 
M

 S
T

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-1663-167

3-169 3-168

N 
N 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

WELLESLEY DR

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-1623-163

3-165 3-164

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

18TH AVE N

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-160

3-161

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

18TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-153 3-152

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

16TH AVE N

N 
M

 S
T

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-141 3-140

N 
J 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

13TH AVE N

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
1 

- 6

C302
21 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

2 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 5
3-150 THRU 3-151

INTERSECTION 1
3-166 THRU 3-169

INTERSECTION 2
3-162 THRU 3-165

INTERSECTION 3
3-160 THRU 3-161

INTERSECTION 4
3-152 THRU 3-153

INTERSECTION 6
3-140 THRU 3-141

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-133 3-132

3-135 3-134

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
K 

ST

12TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-143 3-142

3-145 3-144

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
K 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)
N 

K 
ST

13TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-149

3-148

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
L 

ST

N 
L 

ST

13TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-137 3-136

3-139 3-138

N 
J 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

12TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-129 3-128

3-131 3-130

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
L 

ST

12TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

13TH AVE N

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
7 

- 1
2

C303
22 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

6 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 11
1-132 THRU 1-135

INTERSECTION 7
3-142 THRU 3-145

INTERSECTION 8
3-146 THRU 3-149

INTERSECTION 9
3-158 THRU 3-159

INTERSECTION 10
3-136 THRU 3-1139

INTERSECTION 12
1-128 THRU 1-131

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-156

3-157

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

12TH AVE N

N 
O 

ST

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS © 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-114

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

10TH AVE N

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

3-115

3-115A

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-119 3-118

3-121 3-120

N 
J 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

11TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-122

3-123

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
K 

ST

11TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-125 3-124

3-127 3-126

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
L 

ST

11TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-154

3-155

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

11TH AVE N

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
13

 - 
17

 &
 2

0

C304
23 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

6 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 17
3-154 THRU 3-155

INTERSECTION 13
3-156 THRU 3-157

INTERSECTION 14
3-118 THRU 3-121

INTERSECTION 15
3-122 THRU 3-123

INTERSECTION 16
3-124 THRU 3-127

INTERSECTION 20
3-114 THRU 3-115

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-116

3-117

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

10TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-80 3-79

N 
J 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

8TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-102 3-100

3-103 3-101

N 
J 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

9TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-99 3-98

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
L 

ST

9TH AVE N

3-98A

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-97

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
M

 S
T

9TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-92

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

9TH AVE N

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
21

, 2
2 

- 2
5,

 2
7 

& 
29

C305
24 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

8 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 27
3-92

INTERSECTION 21
3-116 THRU 3-117

INTERSECTION 23
3-100 THRU 3-103

INTERSECTION 24
3-98 THRU 3-99

INTERSECTION 25
3-97

INTERSECTION 29
3-79 THRU 3-80

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-82

3-81

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
L 

ST
8TH AVE N

3-82A

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-66 3-64

3-65

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

7TH AVE N

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

3-65A

N 
O 

ST

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-83

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
M

 S
T

8TH AVE N

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-85 3-84

3-87 3-86

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

8TH AVE N

N 
O 

ST

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-89 3-88

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

8TH AVE N

3-88A

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-90

3-91

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

8TH AVE N

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
30

 - 
34

 &
 3

7

C306
25 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

9 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 34
3-90 THRU 3-91

INTERSECTION 30
3-81 THRU 3-82

INTERSECTION 31
3-83

INTERSECTION 32
3-84 THRU 3-87

INTERSECTION 33
3-88 THRU 3-89

INTERSECTION 37
3-64 THRU 3-66

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-63

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)
N 

PA
LM

W
AY

7TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-60

3-61

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

6TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-62

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

7TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-51

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

6TH AVE N

N 
L 

ST

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-53

3-52 3-54

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

6TH AVE N

N 
O 

ST

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-58

3-57 3-59

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

6TH AVE N

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
38

 - 
39

 &
 4

1 
- 4

4

C307
26 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

9 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 43
3-57 THRU 3-59

INTERSECTION 38
3-63

INTERSECTION 39
3-62

INTERSECTION 41
3-51

INTERSECTION 42
3-52 THRU 3-54

INTERSECTION 44
3-60 THRU 3-61

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-37 3-39

3-38 3-40

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

5TH AVE N
N 

L 
ST

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-18 3-20

3-19 3-21

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

3RD AVE N

N 
L 

ST

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-42 3-41

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

5TH AVE N

N 
O 

ST

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-43

3-44

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

5TH AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-25 3-27

3-26 3-28

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

4TH AVE N

N 
L 

ST

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-29

3-31

3-30 3-32

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

4TH AVE N

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
46

-4
8,

 5
0-

51
 &

 5
3

C308
27 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:1

0 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 50
3-25 THRU 3-28

INTERSECTION 46
3-37 THRU 3-40

INTERSECTION 47
3-41 THRU 3-42

INTERSECTION 48
3-43 THRU 3-44

INTERSECTION 51
3-29 THRU 3-32

INTERSECTION 53
3-18 THRU 3-21

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-45

3-46

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

N 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

3RD AVE N

3-46B

3-46A

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-12

3-133-11

3-10

N 
PA

LM
W

AY

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

2ND AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-1

N 
K 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

2ND AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

SD

3-2

3-33-4

N 
L 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

2ND AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS © 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-5

N 
M

 S
T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

2ND AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS © 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-8

3-93-7

3-6

N 
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

2ND AVE N

N 
O 

ST

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
54

 - 
59

C309
28 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

5 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 57
3-5

INTERSECTION 54
3-45 THRU 3-46

INTERSECTION 55
3-1

INTERSECTION 56
3-2 THRU 3-4

INTERSECTION 58
3-6 THRU 3-9

INTERSECTION 59
3-10 THRU 3-13

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS © 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-14

3-16 3-15
N 

LA
KE

SI
DE

 D
R

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

2ND AVE N

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

3-17

2ND AVE N

N 
GO

LF
VI

EW
 R

D

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

EOP
(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 3
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
60

 - 
61

C310
29 41

2974.30

10
/6

/2
02

2 
11

:5
0 

AM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

3 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D3

 P
GD

.d
w

g

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

INTERSECTION 60
3-14 THRU 3-16

INTERSECTION 61
3-17

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



INTERSECTION 1

INTERSECTION 2 INTERSECTION 3

INTERSECTION 4

INTERSECTION 5

INTERSECTION 6

INTERSECTION 7

INTERSECTION 8

INTERSECTION 9

INTERSECTION 10

INTERSECTION 11 INTERSECTION 12

INTERSECTION
13

INTERSECTION 15
INTERSECTION 14

INTERSECTION 16

1st AVE S

OC
EA

N 
BR

EE
ZE

S 
PA

LM
W

AY

S 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

1st AVE S

2ND AVE S

3RD AVE S

OC
EA

N 
BR

EE
ZE

4TH AVE S

S 
M

 S
T

7TH AVE S

S 
K 

ST

8TH AVE S

S 
M

 S
T

S 
J 

ST

S 
L 

ST

S 
M

 S
T

S 
N 

ST

S 
GO

LF
VI

EW
 R

D

S 
PA

LM
W

AY

S 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

10TH AVE S 10TH AVE S

S 
K 

ST

6TH AVE S

BR
IG

HT
LI

NE
 R

AI
LR

OA
D

0 200' 400'100'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 4
 K

EY
 M

AP

C400
30 41

2974.30

6/
20

/2
02

2 
9:

23
 A

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

4 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D4

 K
EY

.d
w

g

MATCH LINE SHEET 31 MATCH LINE SHEET 31

KEY SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION INTERSECTION NW NE SW SE

C400

402 1 4-4 4-3 4-2 4-1
402 2 4-8 4-7 4-6 4-5
402 3 4-12 4-11 4-10 4-9
402 4 4-13
402 5 4-14/4-18 4-17 4-16 4-15
402 6 4-19 4-20
403 7 4-21 4-22 4-23 4-24
403 8 4-25 4-26 4-27 4-28
403 9 4-30 4-29
403 10 4-31A 4-31/4-32

403 11 4-33
403 12 4-34
404 13 4-36 4-35 4-38 4-37
404 14 4-40 4-39 4-42 4-41
404 15 4-44 4-43 4-46 4-45
404 16 4-47 4-48 4-49 4-50

C401

404 17 4-54 4-53 4-53 4-51
404 18 4-58 4-57
405 19 4-55 4-56
405 20 4-60 4-59 4-62 4-61

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



INTERSECTION 17

INTERSECTION 18

INTERSECTION 19

INTERSECTION 20

11TH AVE S

S 
N 

ST

14TH AVE S

S 
PA

LM
W

AY

16TH AVE S

S 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

17TH AVE S

S 
PA

LM
W

AY

BRIGHTLINE RAILROAD

0 200' 400'100'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 4
 K

EY
 M

AP

C401
31 41

2974.30

6/
20

/2
02

2 
9:

23
 A

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

5 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D4

 K
EY

.d
w

g

MATCH LINE SHEET 30 MATCH LINE SHEET 30

KEY SHEET SHEET DESCRIPTION INTERSECTION NW NE SW SE

C400

402 1 4-4 4-3 4-2 4-1
402 2 4-8 4-7 4-6 4-5
402 3 4-12 4-11 4-10 4-9
402 4 4-13
402 5 4-14/4-18 4-17 4-16 4-15
402 6 4-19 4-20
403 7 4-21 4-22 4-23 4-24
403 8 4-25 4-26 4-27 4-28
403 9 4-30 4-29
403 10 4-31A 4-31/4-32

403 11 4-33
403 12 4-34
404 13 4-36 4-35 4-38 4-37
404 14 4-40 4-39 4-42 4-41
404 15 4-44 4-43 4-46 4-45
404 16 4-47 4-48 4-49 4-50

C401

404 17 4-54 4-53 4-53 4-51
404 18 4-58 4-57
405 19 4-55 4-56
405 20 4-60 4-59 4-62 4-61

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-17
4-14/4-18

4-16

4-15

2ND AVE S

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

S 
GO

LF
VI

EW
 R

D

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-34-4

4-2 4-1

1st AVE S
OC

EA
N 

BR
EE

ZE

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-7
4-8

4-6 4-5

1ST AVE S

S 
PA

LM
W

AY

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-10
4-9

4-11
4-12

1ST AVE S

S 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-13

1ST AVE S

S 
GO

LF
VI

EW
 R

D

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)ROW

(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-19 4-20

3RD AVE S

OC
EA

N 
BR

EE
ZE

 S
T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 4
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
1 

- 6

C402
32 41

2974.30

10
/3

/2
02

2 
4:

44
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

8 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D4

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 5
4-14 THRU 4-18

INTERSECTION 1
4-1 THRU 4-4

INTERSECTION 2
4-5 THRU 4-8

INTERSECTION 3
4-9 THRU 4-12

INTERSECTION 4
4-13

INTERSECTION 6
4-19 THRU 4-20

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-33

8TH AVE S

S 
K 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

oration © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-224-21

4-23 4-24

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

S 
PA

LM
W

AY
3RD AVE S

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-264-25

4-28 4-27

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

S 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

3RD AVE S

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-31/4-32

7TH AVE S

S 
K 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

4-31A

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-34

8TH AVE S

S 
M

 S
T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-30

4-29

4TH AVE S

S 
M

 S
T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND
F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED
(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 4
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
7 

- 1
2

C403
33 41

2974.30

10
/3

/2
02

2 
4:

44
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:1

0 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D4

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 11
4-33

INTERSECTION 7
4-21 THRU 4-24

INTERSECTION 8
4-25 THRU 4-28

INTERSECTION 9
4-29 THRU 4-30

INTERSECTION 10
4-31 THRU 4-32

INTERSECTION 12
4-34

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-354-36

4-38 4-37

10TH AVE S

S 
J 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-58

4-57

14TH AVE S

S 
PA

LM
W

AY

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-394-40

4-42 4-41

S 
L 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

10TH AVE S

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-434-44

4-46 4-45

S 
M

 S
T

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.) EOP

(TYP.)

10TH AVE S

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-484-47

4-49 4-50

S 
N 

ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

10TH AVE S

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-534-54

4-52 4-51

11TH AVE S
S 

N 
ST

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 4
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
13

 - 
18

C404
34 41

2974.30

10
/3

/2
02

2 
4:

44
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

4 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D4

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 17
4-51 THRU 4-54

INTERSECTION 13
4-35 THRU 4-38

INTERSECTION 14
4-39 THRU 4-42

INTERSECTION 15
4-43 THRU 4-46

INTERSECTION 16
4-47 THRU 4-50

INTERSECTION 18
4-57 THRU 4-58

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-55

4-56

16TH AVE S

S 
LA

KE
SI

DE
 D

R

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

© 2022 Microsoft Corporation © 2022 Maxar ©CNES (2022) Distribution Airbus DS 

4-594-60

4-62 4-61

17TH AVE S

S 
PA

LM
W

AY

RECONSTRUCT EX. CURB
RAMP, SIDEWALKS, AND

F-CURB. REWORK
ASPHALT AS NEEDED

(TYP)

CENTERLINE
(TYP.)

ROW
(TYP.)

EOP
(TYP.)

0 20' 40'10'

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1

-5
8-

01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

DI
ST

RI
CT

 4
 A

DA
 IM

PR
OV

EM
EN

TS
 @

 IN
TE

RS
EC

TI
ON

S 
19

 - 
20

C405
35 41

2974.30

10
/3

/2
02

2 
4:

44
 P

M
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

9 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
D4

 P
GD

.d
w

g

INTERSECTION 19
4-55 THRU 4-56

INTERSECTION 20
4-59 THRU 4-62

LEGEND
LIMITS OF RECONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

01GENERAL NOTES
ISSUED: 09/18/13

GENERAL NOTES

1. EXISTING UTILITIES.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR CONTACTING ALL UTILITY COMPANIES AND "SUNSHINE STATE ONE CALL OF FLORIDA,
INC." TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING UTILITIES WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION AREA PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.  CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE HORIZONTAL AND
VERTICAL LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROTECTING ALL
EXISTING UTILITIES DURING CONSTRUCTION AND RESETTING UTILITIES TO NEW GRADE AND SLOPE WITHIN THE LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. SAFETY.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLYING WITH THE PROVISIONS OF THE FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT, THE FLORIDA
UNDERGROUND FACILITY DAMAGE PREVENTION AND SAFETY ACT, AND ALL APPLICABLE O.S.H.A. REQUIREMENTS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR TAKING ALL NECESSARY PRECAUTIONS WHEN WORKING IN THE VICINITY OF OVERHEAD ELECTRIC LINES.

3. MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC (MOT) PLANS, PREPARED BY A WORK SITE TRAFFIC SUPERVISOR AS
CERTIFIED BY THE AMERICAN TRAFFIC SAFETY SERVICES ASSOCIATION, PRIOR TO COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION WITHIN CITY OF LAKE WORTH
RIGHT-OF-WAY.

4. ACCESS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING SAFE VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN ACCESS AT ALL TIMES.
5. WARRANTY.  ALL WORK, MATERIALS, OR EQUIPMENT SHALL BE WARRANTIED FOR A MINIMUM OF ONE YEAR, FROM THE DATE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE

CITY OF LAKE WORTH, AGAINST DEFECTIVE MATERIALS AND/OR WORKMANSHIP.  ALL WORK FOUND TO BE DEFECTIVE WILL BE REPLACED BY THE
CONTRACTOR AT NO EXPENSE TO THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

6. SHOP DRAWINGS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF SEVEN (7) COPIES (OR MORE, IF REQUIRED) OF SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA,
MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER INFORMATION REGARDING CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS AND STRUCTURES AS REQUESTED BY THE ENGINEER OF
RECORD OR THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.  SHOP DRAWINGS MUST BE NEWLY PREPARED INFORMATION, DRAWN TO ACCURATE SCALE.  STANDARD
INFORMATION PREPARED WITHOUT SPECIFIC REFERENCE TO THE PROJECT WILL BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRACTOR WITHOUT REVIEW.  SHOP DRAWINGS
SHALL BE SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING:

A. BY SUBMITTAL OF ANY SHOP DRAWING OR CATALOG DATA, BEARING AN APPROVAL STAMP, THE CONTRACTOR REPRESENTS THAT IT HAS
DETERMINED AND VERIFIED ALL FIELD MEASUREMENTS, FIELD CONSTRUCTION CRITERIA, MATERIALS, DIMENSIONS, CATALOG NUMBERS AND SIMILAR
DATA, OR WILL DO SO, AND THAT IT HAS CHECKED AND COORDINATED EACH ITEM WITH OTHER APPLICABLE APPROVED SHOP DRAWINGS AND THE
CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS.

B. SHOP DRAWINGS AND CATALOG DATA SUBMITTED WITHOUT THE CONTRACTOR'S STAMP OF APPROVAL WILL BE RETURNED TO THE CONTRACTOR
WITHOUT REVIEW.  APPROVAL OF SHOP DRAWINGS, SAMPLES, OR CATALOG DATA BY THE ENGINEER OF RECORD OR THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH
SHALL NOT AUTHORIZE ANY DEVIATION FROM THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.

C. ANY PROPOSED SUBSTITUTE OR EQUAL TO THE THAT SHOWN ON THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS SHALL BE ACCOMPANIED BY CALCULATIONS
SUBSTANTIATING EQUIVALENCY.  SHOP DRAWINGS WITH SUBSTITUTE MATERIALS NOT ACCOMPANIED BY CALCULATIONS WILL BE RETURNED
WITHOUT REVIEW.

D. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONFIRM COMPATIBILITY OF PIPE SLOPES AND INVERTS DURING THE SHOP DRAWING AND MATERIALS ORDERING PHASE OF
THE PROJECT AND ADVISE THE ENGINEER OF RECORD IN WRITING OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.

E. INDIVIDUAL SHOP DRAWINGS FOR ALL PRECAST STRUCTURES ARE REQUIRED.  CATALOG LITERATURE WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED FOR PRECAST
STRUCTURES.

7. FIELD REVIEWS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTIFICATION, 48 HOURS (MIN.), PRIOR TO ANY REQUIRED FIELD REVIEWS OR INSPECTIONS AND SHALL
SUPPLY ALL NECESSARY EQUIPMENT, LABOR, AND MATERIALS FOR INSPECTION AND/OR TEST.  ALL WORK SHALL BE OPEN AND SUBJECT TO REVIEW AND/OR
INSPECTION BY AUTHORIZED PERSONNEL OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH AND THE ENGINEER OF RECORD.

13. DENSITY TESTING.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL NECESSARY TESTING TO ENSURE THAT THE PROPER COMPACTION HAS
BEEN ACHIEVED FOR ALL SUBGRADE, BASE MATERIAL, PIPE BASE MATERIAL, BACKFILL, & ALL OTHER AREAS WHERE COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS ARE
SPECIFIED.  ALL TEST RESULTS SHALL BE SIGNED & SEALED BY A FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER AND COPIES SHALL BE PROVIDED TO THE
ENGINEER OF RECORD AND THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

14. PERMITS.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOT COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION PRIOR TO RECEIPT OF ALL APPLICABLE PERMITS AND APPROVALS INCLUDING AN
APPROVED MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC PLAN.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ABIDE BY ALL APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PERMITS AND AGENCY
APPROVALS.

15. EROSION CONTROL.  ALL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT INDICES 102, 103 AND 106, THE FDEP NATIONAL
POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) GENERAL PERMIT (IF APPLICABLE), AND THE STORMWATER POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (SWPPP).
FILTER FABRIC, HAY BALES, OR ROCK BAGS SHALL BE INSTALLED IN EACH INLET THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION PERIOD.  A SOIL TRACKING PREVENTION
DEVICE (STPD) SHALL CONSTRUCTED AT ALL UNSTABILIZED CONSTRUCTION ACCESS POINTS, PER FDOT INDEX NO. 106.

16. STORM DRAINAGE.  ALL STORM DRAINAGE PIPE JOINTS SHALL BE WRAPPED IN FILTER FABRIC PER FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 280.  ALL DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES SHALL CONFORM TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION.
ALL GRATES SHALL BE SECURED TO THE STRUCTURES WITH AN EYEBOLT AND CHAIN.  ALL STORM DRAINAGE SHALL BE FREE OF SILT AND SEDIMENT AT THE
TIME OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

17. DEWATERING.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING AND COMPLYING WITH ANY DEWATERING PERMITS AND/OR APPROVALS
NECESSARY FOR CONSTRUCTION.  NO WATER FROM DEWATERING MEASURES SHALL BE DISCHARGED OFF-SITE.  ALL DISCHARGE SHALL BE CONTAINED IN
ON-SITE SEDIMENT BASINS.

18. SIDEWALKS.  ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, CHAPTER 11 - FLORIDA
ACCESSIBILITY CODE FOR BUILDING CONSTRUCTION.  ALL CURB RAMPS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 304
AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE.  ALL WALKWAYS CROSSING VEHICULAR AREAS SHALL HAVE A DETECTABLE WARNING SURFACE
(TRUNCATED DOMES) IN ACCORDANCE WITH FDOT STANDARD INDEX NO. 304 AND THE FLORIDA BUILDING CODE, CHAPTER 11 - ACCESSIBILITY CODE FOR
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION.  ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE BROOM FINISHED WITH AN EVEN, DUSTLESS SURFACE AND SHALL BE FREE OF CRACKS AT TIME OF
FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH.

19. PAVEMENT.  WHERE FULL-DEPTH PAVEMENT REPLACEMENT IS SPECIFIED, EXISTING BASEROCK MAY NOT BE RE-USED, HOWEVER IT MAY BE UTILIZED AS
SUBGRADE STABILIZATION MATERIAL.  ALL SUBGRADE SHALL BE FREE OF MUCK, ROOTS, UNDERBRUSH, VEGETATIVE MATTER, GARBAGE, TRASH, OR ANY
OTHER UNSUITABLE MATERIALS.  BASEROCK AND ASPHALT SHALL BE PLACED IN MULTIPLE LIFTS AND SHALL BE PLACED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
APPLICABLE FDOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROAD AND BRIDGE CONSTRUCTION, LATEST EDITION.  FINAL LIFT OF ASPHALT SHALL PROVIDE A
UNIFORM FINISH AND SHALL BE PLACED TO CORRECT MINOR IMPERFECTIONS IN THE FIRST LIFT AND TO PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE FOR THE ROADWAY.

20. SIGNING AND PAVEMENT MARKING.  ALL PAVEMENT MARKINGS WITHIN CITY OF LAKE WORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY SHALL BE THERMOPLASTIC.  THERMOPLASTIC
SHALL NOT BE INSTALLED ON PAVEMENT UNTIL A MINIMUM OF FIVE CALENDAR DAYS AFTER THE FINAL LIFT OF ASPHALT HAS BEEN COMPLETED.  BLUE/BLUE
REFLECTIVE PAVEMENT MARKERS (RPM) SHALL BE INSTALLED TO INDICATE THE LOCATION OF ALL FIRE HYDRANTS.

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

VALLEY GUTTER
(DROP CURB)

NOTES:
1. ULTIMATE STRENGTH OF CONCRETE

FOR CURBS AND GUTTERS SHALL BE
3,000 P.S.I. @ 28 DAYS.

2. 1/8"-1/4" CONTRACTION JOINTS IN CURB
AND GUTTER SHALL BE CUT AS SHOWN
AND AT 10 FT. MAXIMUM SPACING. NO
SECTION SHALL BE LESS THAN 4 FT.

3. WHEN PAVEMENT IS CONCRETE,
PROVIDE A 1/2" EXPANSION JOINT WITH
PRE-FORMED JOINT FILLER & JOINT SEAL
BETWEEN CURB AND CONCRETE
PAVEMENT. (1-1/2" TAPER ON CURB FACE
NOT REQUIRED AT CONCRETE
PAVEMENT.)

4. WHEN USED ON HIGH EDGE OF
PAVEMENT, THE CROSS SLOPE OF
TYPES "E", "F", AND VALLEY GUTTER
SHALL MATCH THE CROSS SLOPE OF
THE ADJACENT EDGE OF PAVEMENT.
THE THICKNESS OF THE LIP SHALL BE 6"
MINIMUM UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN
ON PLANS. THE SURFACE ON THE LOW
EDGE OF PAVEMENT TO BE 1/4" ABOVE
LIP OF GUTTER. SURFACE ON HIGH EDGE
OF PAVEMENT TO BE FLUSH WITH LIP OF
CURB AND GUTTER. IF BOTH EDGES ARE
AT SAME ELEVATION, SURFACE SHALL
BE FLUSH.

5. ENDS OF TYPE "E" & "F" CURBING SHALL
TRANSITION FROM FULL HEIGHT TO
FLUSH IN 3 FEET.

6. THE MINIMUM CONSTRUCTED FLOW-LINE
GRADIENT FOR STREET DRAINAGE
UTILIZING CURB & GUTTER OR VALLEY
GUTTER SHALL BE 0.20%.

7. REFER TO FDOT INDEX 300 FOR
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

8. CONCRETE CURBING SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED ON A 4" THICK
BASEROCK CURB PAD

TYPE E

TYPE F

2'-0" 1 12" TAPER

6 1 4"

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

7 1 2" 
ST

D.
6"

 M
IN

.

SEE
NOTE 4

SLOPE TO FITDRIVEWAY* 3
4"R

10" 1'-2"

2'-0"
1 12" TAPER8"

1'-
0"

6"
6"

6" 1'-6"

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

SEE
NOTE 4

3"R

2"R

7 1 2" 
ST

D.
6"

 M
IN

.

1 12" TAPER2'-3"

7 1 2" 
ST

D.
6"

 M
IN

.

11
"

FLEXIBLE
PAVEMENT

1
4" ASPHALT LIP

SEE
NOTE 4

9" 1'-6"

3
4"R

13 4"R

3 4"R

3" 5"

CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER 05
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

*NOTE:  2% MAX. SLOPE
FOR PEDESTRIAN
PATHWAYS; 12% MAX.
SLOPE FOR DRIVEWAYS

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

CONCRETE WALK

TABLE OF SIDEWALK
THICKNESS - "T"

RESIDENTIAL AREAS        4"

AT DRIVEWAYS & OTHER AREAS

TABLE OF SIDEWALK
WIDTHS - "W"

STANDARD WIDTH
OTHER AREAS AS SPECIFIED BY THE
CITY ENGINEER.

5'

2% MAX. SLOPE

P.T.

P.C.

A

A

WITHIN 10' OF CROSS-STREETS,

CONCRETE WALK CONSTRUCTION

SIDEWALK JOINT

EXIST. S.W.
NEW  S.W. "W

"

E.O.P.

SECTION A-A

"W"
SUBGRADE; MIN. 95%

MAX DENSITY PER AASHTO T-99.
COMPACT SUBGRADE 12" BEYOND EACH END OF

SIDEWALK, WHERE RIGHT-OF-WAY ALLOWS.

R/W LINE

R/W LINEEDGE 1/2"
RADIUS

CLASS I CONCRETE
PER SECTION 345,
F.D.O.T. STD.
SPECIFICATIONS
3,000 PSI MIN.

5'-0"
TYP

1/4"R 1-
1/2

"

1/8"

6"

CURB RAMP
PER FDOT INDEX 304

TACTILE SURFACE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH FDOT INDEX 304 &
FLORIDA BUILDING CODE CH. 11

NOTE:
1. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED THROUGH DRIVEWAYS.
2. ALL SIDEWALKS SHALL INCLUDE ADA COMPLIANT RAMPS @ INTERSECTIONS.
3. CONCRETE SHALL BE BROOM FINISHED WITH EVEN DUSTLESS SURFACE.

12" 12"

07
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

STOP SIGN AND STOP BAR

NOTES:
1. STOP SIGN PLACEMENT SHALL BE AT RADIUS, WHEN POSSIBLE

(6' MINIMUM / 30' MAXIMUM FROM THROUGHFARE).
2. AT CURBED LOCATIONS, SIGN SHALL BE 2' FROM EDGE OF SIGN

TO FACE OF CURB.  AT UNCURBED LOCATIONS, SIGN SHALL BE
6" TO 12" FROM EDGE OF PAVEMENT.  WHERE SIDEWALK ABUTS
CURB, SIGN SHALL BE PLACED IN SIDEWALK AS SHOWN.

3. STOP BAR AND STOP SIGN SHALL BE PLACED ADJACENT TO
EACH OTHER, WHEN POSSIBLE.  WHEN A CROSSWALK IS
PRESENT, THE STOP BAR SHALL BE PLACE  4' CLEAR FROM
CROSSWALK STRIPING.

4. FLAT BLADE: ALCOA #86054.6063-T6 ALLOY,  ETCHED,
DEGREASED WITH #1200 ALODINE FINISH WITH #3877 GREEN
HIGH INTENSITY BACKGROUND AND  EQUAL DIMENSIONS - 9" &
12" MIN. H, 24", 30"  OR 36" L.

5. LETTERS:  NAME - 6" & 9" SERIES 'B' # 3870 HIGH INTENSITY
(SILVER) OR EQUAL - SUFFIX - 4.5" SERIES AS ABOVE.

6. 9" BLADES WITH  6" LETTERS FOR  TWO LANE ROADS WITH A
SPEED LIMIT UNDER 45 MPH.

7. 12" BLADES WITH 9" LETTERS:
· THOROUGHFARE ROADS FOUR LANES OR WIDER.
· TWO LANE ROADS WITH A POSTED SPEED LIMIT OF 45 MPH

OR MORE.
· ONLY ONE BLADE WILL BE USED INDICATING THE SIDE

STREET NAME.

SEE NOTE 2

SE
E 

NO
TE

 1

4'

STOP SIGN
 R1-1  MUTCD - 30" x 30"

 (HIGH INTENSITY)

STOP

SIDEWALKSIDEWALK
24" WHITE

THERMOPLASTC
STOP BAR

6" DOUBLE
YELLOW

STRIPE
(THERMO-
PLASTIC)

REFER TO CROSSWALK
STRIPING DETAIL

REFER TO CONCRETE
WALK DETAIL

ANY  ST.

4'-
3"

MI
N.

7'-
0"

MI
N.

1'-3"
CONC.
WALK

18" LONG - 3" x 18"
ALUMINUM SLEEVE

CORE 5" HOLE IN
EXIST. WALK  & SET
SLEEVE IN CEMENT GROUT

3
8" x 31

2"
STAINLESS
STEEL BOLT

2 12" x 18"
ALUMINUM POST

30" x 30" HIGH
INTENSITY STOP SIGN

25
'

MI
N.

AMBER/AMBER
BI-DIRECTIONAL
RPM'S @ 5' O.C.

BLADESBRACKETS

STREET SIGNS

09
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

STOP

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

STREET SIGN DETAIL 10
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

PAVEMENT AND SIDEWALK RESTORATION

N.T.S.
CONCRETE SIDEWALK RESTORATION DETAIL

WHERE RESTORATION OF EXIST. CONCRETE WALK IS
REQUIRED, REMOVE EXIST. SIDEWALK TO CONTROL
JOINTS & REPLACE WITH 4" THICK CONCRETE (3,000 PSI)
W/ CONTROL JOINTS @ 5' O.C.  CONCRETE TO BE BROOM
FINISHED W/ EVEN, DUSTLESS SURFACE.

4" COMPACTED SUBBASE
(95% AASHTO T-99)

PAVEMENT RESTORATION DETAIL

PROPOSED SUBBASE

PROPOSED BASE

PROPOSED ASPHALT

EXISTING PAVEMENT

SHOWN ON PLANS
LIMIT OF PAVEMENT 12"

NOTE: REFER TO PAVEMENT
SECTIONS FOR MATERIAL
THICKNESS

12"

EXIST. BASE

EXIST. SUBBASE

WHERE PROPOSED PAVEMENT MEETS EXISTING PAVEMENT
REMOVE ASPHALTIC CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE OR
LEVELING COURSE, SAWCUT NEAT TRIM EDGE AND TACK
COAT JUST PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF NEW SURFACE
COURSE.

EXISTING PAVEMENT
TO REMAIN

19
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 D

ET
AI

LS
 1

C500
36 41

2974.30

3/
23

/2
02

2 
12

:5
9 

PM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:1

1 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
DE

TA
IL

S.
dw

g

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANY ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLADES

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRACKETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR FLAT BLADES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
90%%d CROSS BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST CAP BRACKET

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR ROUND POST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.04"R

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLAT BLADE SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
9"ALONG COLLECTORS

AutoCAD SHX Text
& ARTERIALS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLADE: ALCOA NO.86054,6063-T6 ALLOY, ETCHED, DEGREASED, AND DEBURRED WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO.1200 ALDOLINE FINISH WITH HIGH INTENSITY GREEN BACKGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
      DIMENSIONS: 6" OR 9" IN HEIGHT,  AND 24", 30", OR 36" IN LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
LETTERS: NAME 4" SERIES "B" HIGH INTENSITY (SILVER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUFFIX 2" SERIES "B" HIGH INTENSITY (SILVER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POST: STEEL FLANGED GALVANIZED CHANNEL.

AutoCAD SHX Text
     PER A.S.T.M. A123 WITHOUT ANCHOR PLATES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRACKETS: DIE CAST HIGH STRENGTH ALUMINUM ALLOY, MIN. TENSILE STRENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
         45,000 P.S.I., DEGREASED, TUMBLED, AND POLISHED SIDES OF ALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
         SLOTS SHALL BE SOLID METAL WITH TWO HOLES PER SLOT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
         (SAME SIDE) DRILLED TO 7/32" AND TAPPED TO 1/4" TO RECEIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
         STAINLESS STEEL ALLENHEAD SET SCREWS, SKIRT OF POST CAP 

AutoCAD SHX Text
         BRACKET TO BE DRILLED AND TAPPED FOR 3 SCREWS OF WHICH NO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
         TWO IS TO BE LESS THAN 90%%D OR MORE THAN 135%%d APART.

AutoCAD SHX Text
         (METRO HUSKEY NO.6 OR EQUAL.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL LETTERS FOR SIGNS ALONG COLLECTOR OR ARTERIAL ROADWAYS SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE 7" SERIES "B" WITH 4" SERIES "B" SUFFIX ON 9" HIGH BLADES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET SIGN DETAIL RT 2.1a

AutoCAD SHX Text
3' MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3 1/8"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
* 6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.080"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

INLET FILTER DETAIL 26
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 27
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT

HT
RO

WE
KAL

FO
YT I C

FLORIDA

SILT FENCE INSTALLATION DETAIL 28
ISSUED: 09/18/13

DETAIL NO.

No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 2

 &
 F

DO
T 

DE
TA

IL
S 

1

C501
37 41

2974.30

3/
23

/2
02

2 
12

:5
9 

PM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

9 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
DE

TA
IL

S.
dw

g

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET FILTER INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITHOUT FRAME AND GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELD WIRE SUPPORT. EXTEND 6" MIN. AT SIDES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WIRE SUPPORT - MOULD 6x6", 5/5 GA. 49 #/100 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECURE FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO FRAME AND GRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. CONTRACTOR IS TO CLEAN INLET FILTER AFTER EVERY STORM.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. CONTRACTOR TO REMOVE FABRIC JUST PRIOR TO PAVING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL AFTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSTALLATION OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
INLET FILTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A SEDIMENT TRAP WILL BE EXCAVATED BEHIND THE CURB AT THE INLET.  THE BASIN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHALL BE AT LEAST 12 TO 14 INCHES IN DEPTH, APPROXIMATELY 36 INCHES IN WIDTH,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND APPROXIMATELY 7 TO 10 FEET IN LENGTH PARALLEL TO THE CURB.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM WATER WILL REACH THE SEDIMENT TRAP VIA CURB CUTS ADJACENT TO EACH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIDE OF THE INLET STRUCTURE.  THESE OPENINGS SHALL BE AT LEAST 12 INCHES IN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LENGTH.  STORM WATER MAY ALSO REACH THE BASIN VIA OVERLAND FLOW LAND AREA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEHIND THE CURB.  THE CURB CUTS SHALL BE REPAIRED WHEN THE SEDIMENT TRAP IS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVED.

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THE HEIGHT OF A SILT FENCE SHALL NOT EXCEED 36 INCHES (90 CM). 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2. THE FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE PURCHASED IN A CONTINUOUS ROLL CUT TO THE LENGTH 

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE BARRIER TO AVOID THE USE OF JOINTS. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
3. POSTS SHALL BE SPACED A MAXIMUM OF 10 FEET (3 M) APART AT THE BARRIER LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND DRIVEN SECURELY INTO THE GROUND A MINIMUM OF 12 INCHES (30 CM). WHEN EXTRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRENGTH FABRIC IS USED WITHOUT THE WIRE SUPPORT FENCE, POST SPACING SHALL NOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXCEED 6 FEET (1.8 M).

AutoCAD SHX Text
5. WHEN STANDARD STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC IS USED, A WIRE MESH SUPPORT FENCE SHALL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE FASTENED SECURELY TO THE UPSLOPE SIDE OF THE POSTS USING HEAVY DUTY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STAPLES AT LEAST 1 INCH (25 MM) LONG, TIE WIRES, OR HOG RINGS.  THE WIRE SHALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4. A TRENCH SHALL BE EXCAVATED APPROXIMATELY 4 INCHES (10 CM) WIDE AND 4 INCHES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
(10 CM) DEEP ALONG THE LINE OF POSTS AND UPSLOPE FROM THE BARRIER.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTEND INTO THE TRENCH A MINIMUM OF 2 INCHES (5 CM) AND SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
THAN 36 INCHES (90 CM) ABOVE THE ORIGINAL GROUND SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6. THE STANDARD STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC SHALL BE STAPLED OR WIRED TO THE FENCE,

AutoCAD SHX Text
AND 8 INCHES (20 CM) OF THE FABRIC SHALL BE EXTENDED INTO THE TRENCH. THE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC SHALL NOT EXTEND MORE THAN 36 INCHES (90 CM) ABOVE THE ORIGIONAL 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7. THE TRENCH SHALL BE BACKFILLED AND THE SOIL COMPACTED OVER THE FILTER FABRIC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL OR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTRA STRENGTH FILTER FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEEDED WITHOUT WIRE MESH SUPPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 FT. MAX. SPACING WITHOUT WIRE SUPPORT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10 FT. MAX. SPACING WITH WIRE SUPPORT FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILTER FABRIC MATERIAL CAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOR ADDITIONAL STRENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BE ATTACHED TO A 6-INCH (MAX.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MESH WIRE SCREEN WHICH HAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEEN FASTENED TO THE POSTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND SURFACE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
8. ALL PROJECTS REQUIRE SUBMITTAL OF POLLUTION PREVENTION PLAN (PPP).

AutoCAD SHX Text
9. ALL PROJECTS 1 AC. OR MORE MUST SUBMIT NOTICE OF INTENT (NOI) TO FDEP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uSILT FENCE SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2'-0" MIN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FABRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" OF FABRIC, AND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH, BURY BOTTOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIG 4" WIDE & 4" DEEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUNOFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
(WOOD OR STEEL)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRECTION OF RUNOFF WATERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UATTACHING TWO SILT FENCES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLACE THE END POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE SECOND FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE THE END POST

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF THE FIRST FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CREATE A TIGHT SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLOCKWISE DIRECTION TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEAST 180 DEGREES IN A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROTATE BOTH POSTS AT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRIVE BOTH POSTS ABOUT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
18 INCHES INTO THE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND AND BURY FLAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WITH THE FABRIC MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANCHOR W/COMPACTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
BACKFILL MATERIAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

FD
OT

 D
ET

AI
LS

 2

C502
38 41

2974.30

3/
23

/2
02

2 
12

:5
9 

PM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

3 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
DE

TA
IL

S.
dw

g

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

FD
OT

 D
ET

AI
LS

 3

C503
39 41

2974.30

3/
23

/2
02

2 
12

:5
9 

PM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

2 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
DE

TA
IL

S.
dw

g

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



No
.

DA
TE

RE
VI

SI
ON

BY

CE
RT

 N
O:

 6
09

1

20
35

 V
IS

TA
 P

AR
KW

AY
, W

ES
T 

PA
LM

 B
EA

CH
, F

LO
RI

DA
 3

34
11

56
1.

68
7.

22
20

PRELIMINARY

G F E D C B A

ABCDEFG

5

4

3

2

1

FM
:

44
83

01
-1
-5
8-
01

SHEET

OF

SA
VE

D:
PL

OT
 D

AT
E:

PL
OT

TE
D 

BY
:

DR
AW

IN
G:

CI
TY

 O
F 

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

 V
AR

IO
US

 L
OC

AT
IO

NS
FM

44
83

01
-5

8-
01

LA
KE

 W
OR

TH
 B

EA
CH

, P
AL

M
 B

EA
CH

, F
L

FD
OT

 D
ET

AI
LS

 4

C504
40 41

2974.30

3/
23

/2
02

2 
12

:5
9 

PM
10

/6
/2

02
2 

12
:0

2 
PM

M
AS

ON
 S

HU
TT

P:
\2

90
0\

29
74

.3
0 

La
ke

 W
or

th
 F

DO
T 

LA
P 

AD
A\

CI
VI

L\
10

-S
ht

s\
29

74
.3

0 
DE

TA
IL

S.
dw

g

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION, BIDDING, OR PERMIT PURPOSES. PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION OF STEPHEN CRAWFORD CHERRY P.E. #83268 ON 2022-10-062022-10-06



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 
  

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Leisure Services 

TITLE:  

Construction Agreement with M&M Asphalt Maintenance, Inc. for the Harold Grimes Memorial Park 
Improvement Project Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 

 
SUMMARY: 

The Agreement with M&M Asphalt Maintenance, Inc. authorizes the contractor to resurface the existing 
parking lot located at the Harold Grimes Memorial Field at a cost not to exceed $54,922.50. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

The City identified deficiencies in the current surface conditions of the parking lot located at Harold 
Grimes Memorial Field that require resurfacing to correct. The resurfacing of the parking lot will provide 
a safe and functional parking area for the park that meets current City standards. This project will utilize 
funding from the previous years CDBG Grant for the replacement of the Harold Grimes Memorial Field 
pavilion improvement project. 

Harold Grimes Memorial Field is located in District 1.  It currently serves as a complex for the 
multi-use athletic field and public pavilion.  The proposed will rehabilitate the existing parking lot 
and meet current City specifications.  The project duration is one hundred twenty (120) calendar 
days for completion. 

 The City advertised and accepted bids via the public procurement process and on February 1, 
2023 received a total of seven (7) bids from qualified and experienced contractors.  Staff from 
Public Works and Financial Services reviewed the bids and determined that M&M Asphalt 
Maintenance, Inc. met the requirements of a  responsive and responsible bidder.  The 
Agreement with M&M Asphalt Maintenance, Inc. is at a cost not to exceed $54,922.50 and is 
being fully funded by CDBG grant funds. 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove the Agreement with M&M Asphalt Maintenance, Inc. for the Harold Grimes 
Memorial Park Improvement Project Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis 
Construction Agreement 
Bid Tab 



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact: 
 

Fiscal Years 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 
Inflows 
 Current Appropriation 0 0 0 0 0 
 Program Income 0 0 0 0 0 
 Grants 0 0 0 0 0 
 In Kind 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Outflows  
 Current Appropriation $54,922.50 0 0 0 0 
 Operating  0 0 0 0 0 
 Capital 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0 
 

No. of Addn’l Full-Time 
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0 
 

New Appropriation Fiscal Impact: 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Budget Transfer Impact 

  Revenue Source Expenditure 

Department      

Division     

GL Description     

GL Account Number     

Project Number     

Requested Funds     

   

Contract Award - Existing Appropriation 

  Expenditure 

Department  Recreation 

Division Recreation 

GL Description Improve other than Build  

GL Account Number  301-8060-572.63-63 

Project Number  GV2201 

Requested Funds  $54,922.50 

 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA 

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 

IFB #23-103 

Harold Grimes Memorial Park  
Improvement Project  

Phase 1B – Parking Lot 
Resurfacing

Contract  

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

1749 3rd Avenue South 
Lake Worth, FL 33460 



 
 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

01/06/95           TC-1 
 

              City of Lake Worth Beach 
Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project 

Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing IFB #23-103 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
     NO. OF PAGES  

BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS  
 
00020 INVITATION TO BID  ........................................................................................................... 2 
 
00100 INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS  .......................................................................................... 10 
 
00300 BID FORM  ............................................................................................................................ 11  
 
00310 BIDDERS’S QUALIFICATION QUESTIONAIRE…………………………………………5 
 
00500 AGREEMENT  ...................................................................................................................... 11 
 
00501 OPINION OF ATTORNEY  .................................................................................................... 1 
 
00620 CONSTRUCTION PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND  ......................................... 3 
 
00630 NOTICE OF COMPLIANCE WITH CHAPTER 556, FLORIDA STATUTES ..................... 1 
 
00670 CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER  ....................................................................... 1 
 
00680 APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT  .......................................................................................... 1 
 
00681 SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED   ..................................................... 1 
 
00700 GENERAL CONDITIONS  ................................................................................................... 72 
 
00800 SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS  ..................................................................................... 6 
 
00820 SPECIAL CONDITIONS  ....................................................................................................... 2 
 
00840 RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE  ........................................................................ 3 
 
00850 CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT  .................................................................... 2 
 
00851 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES CERTIFICATION FORM…………………………………..1 
 
00900 ADDENDUM 1  ....................................................................................................................... 2 
 
NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD ........................................................................................................... 1 
 
BID BOND  ................................................................................................................................................. 4 
 
DOCUMENTATION SUBMITTED WITHIN CONTRACTOR BID PACKAGE  ................................ 10 
SCOPE OF WORK, SITE MAP & PHOTOS .........  ……………………………………………………..10  
 
01000  Palm Beach County Department of Housing & Economic Development  
 Requirements for Federally Funded Projects Documentation……………………………….54 

 Part 1 – General Requirement and Forms 
Part 2 – DBRA Requirements and Use of Online Labor Compliance Reporting System 
(Elation) 

 Wage Decision:  FL20220182 Highway Mod 1 2-25-22 
 HUD 2516 Reporting Form 
 Subcontractor Statement of Acknowledgment 



 
 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

01/12/21-LWU         00020-1 
 

 
City of Lake Worth Beach 

Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project  
Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 

IFB #23-103 
               

00020 
INVITATION TO BID 

 
The City of Lake Worth Beach is soliciting bids from responsible and experienced contractors for the 
parking lot resurfacing of the Harold Grimes Memorial Park located at 520 Sunrise Court, Lake Worth 
Beach FL 33460.  

This Invitation for Bid (IFB) may be downloaded at lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov. All Bidders shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be registered 
as a Plan Taker for this Bid opportunity, which will enable the Bidders to download the Bid Call Document, 
to receive Addenda email notifications and download all documents without the watermark “preview” on 
them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this bid, or if a Bidder has 
obtained this Bid Document from a third party, the onus is on the Bidder to create a Bidding System Vendor 
account and be register as a Plan Taker for the bid opportunity.  Copies of this IFB may also be acquired 
by contacting purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov.  
 
Time is of the essence and any bid received after 3:00 PM, February 1, 2023 whether by mail or otherwise 
shall be rejected by the City. The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock located in the 
Financial Services Office. Bids shall be placed in a sealed envelope, marked with the bid number, title, 
date, and hour bids are scheduled to be received. The City offices have limited access to the public at 
this time. Courier deliveries SHALL NOT require signature for the receipt. Bidders may deliver bids 
directly to City Hall during regular business hours 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday. If bids 
are delivered in person, visitors shall ring the bell at the City Hall front entrance and wait for 
assistance or by contacting Procurement Division at (561) 586 – 1770 in advance. Bidders are 
responsible for ensuring that their bid is stamped by office personnel by the deadline indicated. 
 
All persons or entities responding to the IFB (hereafter “Bidders”) are responsible for ensuring that their 
bid is received by the City at its’ designated office address by the deadline indicated in the IFB. The City 
will in no way be responsible for delays caused by any occurrence. Bids shall not be submitted and will 
not be accepted in by e-mail, telephone, telegram, facsimile or any other City’s address except as notified 
below.  The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock in Financial Services Department.  
 

All bids must be mailed or delivered to:  
 

City of Lake Worth Beach, City Hall  
Financial Services – Procurement Division 

7 North Dixie Hwy. 2nd floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 
SUBJECT LINE MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS IFB # 23-103 City of Lake Worth Beach Harold 
Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project, Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing. 
 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 
 

 
INVITATION TO BID 

01/12/21-LWU         00020-2 
 

Any subsequent contract executed as a result of this IFB may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal 
funds.  Bidders therefore agree that any work performed pursuant to this IFB and resulting contract will 
comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, federal policies, procedures, and 
directives. 

This project is funded by a HUD Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) via the PBC Department 
of Housing & Economic Development.  Davis-Bacon & Related Acts, including wage rates, will apply to 
all construction work performed on this project.  PBC requires the use of an online Labor Compliance 
Reporting System for all contractors and sub-contractors.  Section 3 businesses are encouraged to bid. 

 
All questions must be in writing submitted on lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov before January 13, 2023 at 4 p.m.  
 
 Bids must be accompanied by a copy of Bid Security in the form of a certified or bank check made 
payable to the Owner, or a Bid Bond.  The amount of the security shall not be less than five (5) percent of 
the Bidder's total price indicated in Bid Form. Bidder must be able to deliver original Bid Bond immediately 
after the bid opening if requested by the City.  
 
 No Bid may be withdrawn for a period of 120 days after the scheduled closing date for the receipt of 
bids except as otherwise provided in Article 13 of the Instructions to Bidders. 
 
 The successful Bidder, who is awarded the Contract, shall be required to furnish a 100% Construction 
Performance Bond and a 100% Construction Payment Bond which meet the requirements of section 255.05, 
Florida Statutes. 
 
 The OWNER reserves the right to reject any or all Bids, to waive all nonmaterial irregularities, to re-
advertise, and to cancel any invitation to bid when it is in the best interests of the City. 
 
 
 
PUBLISHED: January 1, 2023 – Palm Beach Post & City Website 

mailto:purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov


 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-1 

City of Lake Worth Beach 
Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project  

Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 
IFB #23-103 

 
00100 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
 
 
1. DEFINED TERMS. 
 
Terms used in these Instructions to Bidders which are defined in the Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract (EDCJC C-700, 2013 Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the General 
Conditions.  The term "Bidder" means one who submits a Bid directly to Owner, as distinct from a sub-
bidder, who submits a bid to a Bidder.  The term "Successful Bidder" means the lowest, qualified, 
responsible and responsive Bidder to whom Owner (on the basis of Owner's evaluation as hereinafter 
provided) makes an award.  The term "Bidding Documents" includes the Advertisement or Invitation to 
Bid, Instructions to Bidders, the Bid Form, and the proposed Contract Documents (including all Addenda 
issued prior to receipt of Bids). 
 
2. COPIES OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS. 
 
2.1.  Complete sets of the Bidding Documents in the number and for the cost, if any, stated in the 
Advertisement or Invitation to Bid may be obtained from lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or 
www.lakeworthbeachfl.gov. 
 
All Bidders shall have a Bidding System Vendor account and be registered as a Plan Taker for this Bid 
opportunity, which will enable the Bidders to download the Bid Call Document, to receive Addenda email 
notifications and download all documents without the watermark “preview” on them. 
To ensure receipt of the latest information and updates via email regarding this bid, or if a Bidder has 
obtained this Bid Document from a third party, the onus is on the Bidder to create a Bidding System Vendor 
account and be register as a Plan Taker for the bid opportunity. 
 
2.2.  Complete sets of Bidding Documents must be used in preparing Bids; neither Owner nor Engineer 
assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of incomplete sets of 
Bidding Documents. 
 
2.3.  Owner and Engineer in making copies of Bidding Documents available on the above terms do so only 
for the purpose of obtaining Bids on the Work and do not confer a license or grant for any other use. 
 
3. QUALIFICATIONS OF BIDDERS. 
 
To demonstrate qualifications to perform the Work, each Bidder must be prepared to submit within five 
days of Owner's request, written evidence such as financial data, previous experience, present commitments 
and other such data as may be reasonably specifically requested by Owner or otherwise required in Contract 
Documents.  Each Bid must contain evidence of Bidder's qualification to do business in the state where the 
Project is located.  
 
4. EXAMINATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SITE. 
 
4.1. It is the responsibility of each Bidder before submitting a Bid, to (a) examine the Contract Documents 
thoroughly, (b) visit the site to become familiar with local conditions that may affect cost, progress, 
performance or furnishing of the Work, (c) consider federal, state and local Laws and Regulations that may 
affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work, (d) study and carefully correlate Bidder's 
observations with the Contract Documents, and (e) notify Engineer of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies 
in the Contract Documents. 
 
4.2. Reference is made to Division 1: General Requirements of the Specifications for the identification of: 
 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-2 

4.2.1. those reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at the site which have been 
utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents. 
 
4.2.2. those drawings of physical conditions in or relating to existing surface and subsurface 
conditions (except Underground Facilities) which are at or contiguous to the site which have been 
utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents. 

 
4.2.3. Copies of such reports and drawings (referred to above), if not attached to the Specifications 
or added on the Drawings, will be made available by Owner to any Bidder on request.  Those reports 
and drawings are not a part of the Contract Documents.  Bidder may not rely upon the accuracy of the 
non-technical data, interpretations or opinions contained in those reports and drawings.  Bidder may 
not rely on the completeness of those reports and drawings for the purposes of bidding or construction.  
Bidder may rely on any technical data contained in those reports and drawings specifically referenced 
in Division 1: General Requirements as technical data that can be relied on. 

 
4.3. Information and data reflected in the Contract Documents with respect to Underground Facilities at or 
contiguous to the site is based upon information and data furnished to Owner and Engineer by owners of 
such Underground Facilities or others, and Owner does not assume responsibility for the accuracy or 
completeness thereof unless it is expressly provided otherwise in the Supplementary Conditions. 
 
4.4. Provisions concerning responsibilities for the adequacy of data furnished to prospective Bidders on 
subsurface conditions, Underground Facilities and other physical conditions, and possible changes in 
Contract Documents due to differing conditions appear in Paragraphs 5.03 and 5.05 of the General 
Conditions. 
 
4.5. Before submitting a Bid, each Bidder will, at Bidder's own expense, be responsible to make or obtain 
such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests and studies and obtain any additional information and 
data which pertain to the physical conditions (surface, subsurface and Underground Facilities) at or 
contiguous to the site or otherwise which may affect cost, progress, performance or furnishing of the Work 
and which Bidder deems necessary to determine its Bid for performing and furnishing the Work in 
accordance with the time, price and other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
4.6. On request in advance, Owner will provide each Bidder access to the site to conduct such explorations 
and tests as each Bidder deems necessary for submission of a Bid.  Bidder shall fill all holes, clean up and 
restore the site to its former condition upon completion of such explorations. 
 
4.7. The lands upon which the Work is to be performed, rights-of-way and easements for access thereto and 
other lands designated for use by Contractor in performing the Work are identified in the Contract 
Documents.  All additional lands and access thereto required for temporary construction facilities or storage 
of materials and equipment are to be provided by Contractor.  Easements for permanent structures or 
permanent changes in existing structures are to be obtained and paid for by Owner unless otherwise 
provided in the Contract Documents. 
 
4.8. The submission of a Bid will constitute an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that Bidder has 
complied with every requirement of this Article 4, that without exception the Bid is premised upon 
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents and such means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures of construction as may be indicated in or required by the Contract 
Documents, and that the Contract Documents are sufficient in scope and detail to indicate and convey 
understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work. 
 
5.  INTERPRETATIONS AND ADDENDA. 
 
5.1 All questions about the meaning or intent of the Contract Documents are to be directed to the bid on 
lakeworthbeachfl.bidsandtenders.net or by e-mail to purchasing1@lakeworthbeachfl.gov.  
Interpretations or clarifications considered necessary by the Owner or Engineer in response to such 
questions will be issued by Addenda.  Questions received after January 13, 2023 at 4 PM may not be 
answered.  Only questions answered by formal written Addenda will be binding.  Questions or requests 
for clarification directed to any member of the City staff or Engineer may be grounds for rejection 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-3 

of the bid as being irregular. Oral and other interpretations or clarifications will be without legal 
effect. 
 
5.2. Addenda may also be issued to modify the Bidding Documents as deemed advisable by Owner or 
Engineer. 
 
6.  BID SECURITY. 
 
6.1. Each Bid must be accompanied by Bid security made payable to Owner in an amount of five percent 
of the Bidder's maximum Bid price and in the form of a certified or bank check or a Bid Bond issued by a 
surety meeting the requirements of Paragraph 6.01 of the General Conditions.  
 
6.2. The Bid security of the Successful Bidder will be retained by the Owner until such Bidder has delivered 
all of the following documents to the Owner: 
 6.2.1 All required certificates or proof of insurance;  
 6.2.2 The fully executed Agreement contained in the Contract Documents; and, 
 6.2.3 The fully executed Public Construction Bond (if required) along with a certified copy of the 
Public Construction Bond as recorded in the Official Records of Palm Beach County, Florida. 
 
Upon receipt of all of the foregoing documents, the Bid security will be returned to the Successful Bidder. 
The required certificates or proof of insurance and the fully executed Agreement must be delivered by the 
Successful Bidder within fifteen days after the Successful Bidder’s receipt of the Agreement from the 
Owner. The Public Construction Bond and certified copy of the same must be delivered to the Owner by 
the Successful Bidder no later than fifteen (15) days after the Owner approves and executes the Agreement 
contained in the Contract Documents (as previously executed and delivered by the Successful Bidder). 
 
If the Successful Bidder fails to deliver all of the above documentation to the Owner in the timeframes 
stated above, the Owner may annul the Notice of Award and/or may immediately terminate the Agreement 
upon written notice to the Successful Bidder and the Bid security will be forfeited.  The Bid security of 
other Bidders whom Owner believes to have a reasonable chance of receiving the award may be retained 
by Owner until the earlier of the seventh day after the Effective Date of the Agreement or the 120th  
day after the Bid opening, whereupon Bid security furnished by such Bidders will be returned.  Bid security 
with Bids which are not competitive will be returned within seven days after the Bid opening. 
 
7.  CONTRACT TIME. 
 
The numbers of days within which, or the dates by which, the Work is to be substantially completed and 
also completed and ready for final payment (the Contract Time) are set forth in the Bid Form and the 
Agreement.  If Contract Times are left blank in the Bid Form, the time for Substantial Completion and final 
completion are to be set forth by Bidder in the Bid and will be included in the Agreement.  The times will 
be taken into consideration by Owner during the evaluation of Bids, and it will be necessary for the 
Successful Bidder to satisfy Owner of Bidder's ability to achieve Substantial Completion and final 
completion within the times designated in the Bid. 
 
8.  LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. 
 
Provisions for liquidated damages, if any, are set forth in the Agreement. 
 
9.  SUBSTITUTE OR "OR-EQUAL" ITEMS. 
 
The contract, if awarded, will be on the basis of materials and equipment described in the Drawings or 
specified in the Specifications. A substitute or "or-equal" item of material or equipment may be furnished 
or used by Contractor if acceptable to Engineer, application for such acceptance will not be considered by 
Engineer until after the Effective Date of the Agreement.  The procedure for submission of any such 
application by Contractor and consideration by Engineer is set forth in Article 7 of the General Conditions 
and may be supplemented in Division 1: General Requirements. 
 
10. SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND OTHERS. 
 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-4 

10.1. If the Bid Form or Specifications require (or if Owner requests after Bids are received) the identity 
of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations (including those who are to furnish 
the principal items of material and equipment) to be submitted to Owner in advance of the specified date 
prior to the Effective Date of the Agreement, the apparent Successful Bidder, and any other Bidder so 
requested, shall within seven days after the Bid opening (or seven days after request by Owner) submit to 
Owner a list of all such Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and organizations proposed for those 
portions of the Work for which such identification is required.  Such list shall be accompanied by an 
experience statement with pertinent information regarding similar projects and other evidence of 
qualification for each such Subcontractor, Supplier, person or organization if requested by Owner.  
Subcontractors shall be required to meet Contractor's liability insurance requirements as established by the 
General and Supplementary Conditions or be listed as an additional insured on the apparent successful 
Bidder's policy.  If Owner or Engineer after due investigation has reasonable objection to any proposed 
Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization, either may before the Notice of Award is given 
request the apparent Successful Bidder to submit an acceptable substitute without an increase in Bid price.  
If apparent Successful Bidder declines to make any such substitution, Owner may award the contract to the 
next lowest Bidder that proposes to use acceptable Subcontractors, Suppliers and other persons and 
organizations.  The declining to make requested substitutions will not constitute grounds for sacrificing the 
Bid security of any Bidder.  Any Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or organization listed and to whom 
Owner or Engineer does not make written objection prior to the giving of the Notice of Award will be 
deemed acceptable to Owner and Engineer subject to revocation of such acceptance after the Effective Date 
of the Agreement as provided in the General Conditions. 
 
10.2. No Contractor shall be required to employ any Subcontractor, Supplier, other person or 
organization against whom Contractor has reasonable objection. 
 
11. BID FORM. 
 
 11.1. The Bid Form is included with the Bidding Documents; additional copies may be obtained 

from the issuing office. 
 
 11.2. All blanks on the Bid Form must be completed in ink or by typewriter. 
 
 11.3. Bids by corporations must be executed in the corporate name by the president or a vice-

president (or other corporate officer accompanied by evidence of authority to sign) and the corporate 
seal must be affixed and attested by the secretary or an assistant secretary.  The corporate address and 
state of incorporation must be shown below the signature. 

 
 11.4. Bids by partnerships must be executed in the partnership name and signed by a general partner, 

whose title must appear under the signature and the official address of the partnership must be shown 
below the signature. 

 
 11.5. All names must be typed or printed below the signature. 
 
 11.6. The Bid shall contain an acknowledgement of receipt of all Addenda (the numbers of which 

must be filled in on the Bid Form).  All Addenda are a part of the Bid documents and each Bidder will 
be bound by such Addenda, whether or not received by the Bidder.  It is the responsibility of each 
Bidder to verify that he or she has received all Addenda issued before Bids are opened. 

 
 11.7. The address and telephone number for communications regarding the Bid must be shown. 
 
12. SUBMISSION OF BIDS. 
 
Bids shall be submitted at the time and place indicated in the Advertisement or Invitation to Bid marked 
with the Project title (and, if applicable, the designated portion of the Project for which the Bid is submitted) 
and name and address of the Bidder and accompanied by the Bid security and other required documents.   
Bids shall not be submitted and will not be accepted in by e-mail, telephone, telegram, facsimile or any 
other City’s address except as notified below.  The time of receipt shall be determined by the time clock in 
Financial Services Department.  
 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-5 

The original and one (1) electronic copy maximum size of 5 MB file on USB drive of the bid must be 
submitted in a sealed envelope, marked on the outside of the envelope with the Bid number, title, and date 
and hour bids are scheduled to be received. 
 
 

All bids must be mailed or delivered by February 1, 2023 at 3 p.m. to: 
 

City of Lake Worth Beach, City Hall 
Financial Services Office - Procurement 

7 North Dixie Hwy. 2nd floor 
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33460 

 
SUBJECT LINE MUST BE IDENTIFIED AS IFB # 23-103 City of Lake Worth Beach Harold 
Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project, Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing. 
 
 
13. MODIFICATION AND WITHDRAWAL OF BIDS. 
 
 13.1. Bids may be modified or withdrawn by an appropriate document duly executed (in the manner 

that a Bid must be executed) and delivered to the place where Bids are to be submitted at any time prior 
to the opening of Bids. 

 
 13.2. If, within twenty-four hours after Bids are opened, any Bidder files a duly signed, written notice 

with Owner and promptly thereafter demonstrates to the reasonable satisfaction of Owner that there 
was a material and substantial mistake in the preparation of its Bid, that Bidder may withdraw its Bid 
and the Bid security will be returned.  Thereafter, that Bidder will be disqualified from further bidding 
on the Work to be provided under the Contract Documents. 

 
14. OPENING OF BIDS. 
 
Bids will be opened publicly immediately after the bid receipt at the City Hall, 7 N Dixie Ave, Lake 
Worth Beach, FL 33460 and as indicated in the Invitation to Bid. 
 
 14.1. When Bids are opened publicly they will be read aloud, and the amounts of the base Bids and 

major alternates (if any) will be made available after the opening of Bids.  If applicable, the bid will be 
opened in accordance with sec. 255.0518, Florida Statutes. 

 
15. BIDS TO REMAIN SUBJECT TO ACCEPTANCE. 
 
All bids will remain subject to acceptance for    120  days after the day of the Bid opening, but Owner 
may, in its sole discretion, release any Bid and return the Bid security prior to that date. 
 
16. AWARD OF CONTRACT. 
 
 16.1. Owner reserves the right to reject any and all Bids, to waive any and all informalities not 

involving price, time or changes in the Work and to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Bidder, 
and the right to disregard all nonconforming, nonresponsive, unbalanced or conditional Bids.  Also, 
Owner reserves the right to reject the Bid of any Bidder if Owner believes that it would not be in the 
best interest of the Project to make and award to the Bidder, whether because the Bid is not responsive 
or the Bidder is unqualified or of doubtful financial ability or fails to meet any other pertinent standard 
or criteria established by Owner.  Discrepancies in the multiplication of units of Work and unit prices 
will be resolved in favor of the unit prices.  Discrepancies between the indicated sum of any column of 
figures and the correct sum thereof will be resolved in favor of the correct sum. 

 
 16.2. In evaluating Bids, Owner will consider the qualifications of the Bidders, whether or not the 

Bids comply with the prescribed requirements, and such alternates, unit prices and other data, as may 
be requested in the Bid Form or prior to the Notice of Award. 

 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-6 

 16.3. Owner may consider the qualifications and experience of Subcontractors, Suppliers and other 
persons and organizations proposed for those portions of the Work as to which the identity of 
Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations must be submitted as provided in the 
Supplementary Conditions (or as requested by Owner after the Bids are received). Owner also may 
consider the operating costs, maintenance requirements, performance data and guarantees of major 
items of materials and equipment proposed for incorporation in the Work when such data is required to 
be submitted prior to the Notice of Award. 

 
 16.4. Owner may conduct such investigations as Owner deems necessary to assist in the evaluation 

of any Bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications and financial ability of Bidders, proposed 
Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other persons and organizations to perform and furnish the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents to Owner's satisfaction within the prescribed time. 

 
 16.5. If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest, responsive and responsible 

Bidder whose evaluation by Owner indicates to Owner that the award will be in the best interests of the 
Project.  No bid shall be accepted from, nor will any Contract be awarded to any Bidder who is in 
arrears to the Owner upon any debt or Contract or who is a defaulter as surety or otherwise upon any 
obligation to the Owner or who has failed to perform faithfully any previous Contract with the Owner 
or other party as determined by the Owner. 

 
 16.6. If the contract is to be awarded, Owner will give the Successful Bidder a Notice of Award 

within   120  days after the day of the Bid opening. 
 
 16.7. When Bidder is permitted to designate the Contract Time, Bid prices will be compared after 

adjusting for differences in the time designated in the Bid for Substantial Completion. 
 
 16.8. Any subsequent contract executed as a result of this IFB may be funded, in whole or in part, 

by the Federal funds.  Bidders therefore agree that any work performed pursuant to this IFB and 
resulting contract will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, federal 
policies, procedures, and directives. 

 
17. CONTRACT SECURITY. 
 
Paragraph 6.01 of the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions set forth Owner's requirements 
as to performance and payment Bonds.  When the Successful Bidder delivers the executed Agreement to 
Owner, it must be accompanied by the required performance and payment Bonds. 
 
18. SIGNING OF AGREEMENT. 
 
When Owner gives a Notice of Award to the Successful Bidder, it will be accompanied by the required 
number of unsigned counterparts of the Agreement with all other written Contract Documents attached.  
Within   15  days thereafter Contractor shall sign and deliver the required number of counterparts of 
the Agreement and attached documents to Owner with the required Bonds.  In the event the successful 
Bidder fails to execute the Contract and return same to the Owner within the stipulated fifteen (15) days, 
the Owner may disqualify the Bid, and said Bidder shall not be permitted to contest to the contrary and 
does waive such right upon submitting a Bid. 
 
19. DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDER 
 
 19.1 Bidder may be disqualified and its Bid rejected for any of the following: 
 
   a) Bidder does not meet the Competency of Bidder and Reference requirements set forth 

herein. 
   b) Reason to believe that collusion exists among or between Bidders 
   c) Unbalanced Bid; that is, Bid in which the prices bid for some items are out of all proportion 

to those Bids of others. 
  d) Bidder’s uncompleted workload, which in the judgment of the Owner, may cause 

detrimental  impact or impair the prompt completion of this Contract. 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-7 

  e) Lack of responsibility on the part of Bidder, (for example, no Bidder would be considered 
responsible who had failed to carry out any Contract in which the Owner had been directly 
or indirectly concerned), or to which Bidder failed to perform on other projects.   

  f) A determination by Owner of the Contractor’s lack of experience or lack of competency as 
may be revealed by qualification statements, financial statements, experience records, 
references, or other questionnaires. 

  g) Substantial evidence of bad character or dishonesty. 
  h) Bidder is involved in any current litigation with Owner. 
  i) Bidder has defaulted on any contract or is in arrears on any contract. 

 
20. LICENSES, PERMITS, AND CERTIFICATION 
 
 20.1 When applicable, vendor must hold a Certificate of Competency issued by the State of Florida 

or the Palm Beach County Construction Industry Licensing. 
 
 20.2 A business tax receipt obtained from the Owner shall be required of any person maintaining a 

permanent business location or branch office within the City of Lake Worth Beach.   
 
 20.3 A copy of any licenses and permits shall be submitted with the Bid and must be in the name of 

the vendor shown on the Bid submittal. 
 
 
21. PREPARATION EXPENSE 
 
 21.1 Neither the Owner nor its representatives will be liable for any expenses incurred in connection 

with the preparation, presentation or submittal of any Bid. 
 
22. NON-COLLUSION 
 
 22.1 Bidder certifies that this Bid is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection 

with any individual, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity submitting a Bid for the same 
materials, services, supplies, or equipment and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud.  No 
premiums, rebates, or gratuities are permitted with, prior to, or after any delivery of material or 
provisions of services.  Any violation of this provision may result in Contract cancellation, return of 
materials or discontinuation of services, and the possible removal of Bidder from the vendor Bid list(s). 

 
23. CODE OF ETHICS 
 
 23.1 If any Bidder violates or is a party to a violation of the Code of Ethics of the Owner, Palm 

Beach County, and/or of the State of Florida with respect to this Bid, such Bidder may be disqualified 
from performing the work described in this Bid or from furnishing the goods or services for which this 
Bid is submitted and may be further disqualified from bidding on any future Bids for work or for goods 
or services for the Owner.   

 
24. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 24.1 The award is subject to any and all applicable conflict of interest provisions found in the 

policies or Code of Ordinances of the City, the Palm Beach County Code of Ethics, and found in the 
Florida Statutes.  All Bidders must complete the Conflict of Interest Form attached hereto. 

 
Further, any Bidder coming before the City Commission for an award of a contract and who has made 
an election campaign contribution in an amount that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any 
elected official of the City Commission, who is a current sitting member of the Commission, must 
disclose such election campaign contribution, verbally and in writing, in their responsive proposal to 
this IFB. FAILURE TO INCLUDE THE CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT WILL 
CAUSE YOUR BID TO BE REJECTED.   
 
 

 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-8 

25. DRUG FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAMS 
 
 25.1 Preference may be given to businesses with Drug-Free Work Place Programs.  Whenever two 

or more Bids which are equal with respect to price, quality, and service are received by the Owner for 
the procurement of commodities or contractual services, a Bid received from a business that completes 
the attached DFW form certifying that it is a DFW may be given preference in the award process. 

 
26. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
 26.1 Federal, State, County and Owner laws, ordinances, rules, codes, guidelines, directives and 

regulations that in any manner affect the items covered herein apply.  Lack of knowledge by the Bidder 
shall in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility. 

 
27. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES  
 

27.1 By submitting a bid, each bidder acknowledges and agrees that a person or affiliate who has been 
placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a 
bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit 
a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the construction or repair of a public 
building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real property to a public 
entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier or sub-contractor under a contract 
with any public entity; and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold 
amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statues, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 months 
following the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.  

 
 27.2 SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 
 A. Contractor certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott 

Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, 
the City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors, are placed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the 
boycott of Israel during the term of this Agreement. 

 B.  If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the Contractor certifies that it and its 
subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or engaged in business operations 
in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the 
City may immediately terminate this Agreement at its sole option if the Contractor, or any of its 
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Contractor or any of its 
subcontractors are placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been engaged with 
business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

 C. The Contractor agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts entered into 
for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

 D. The Contractor agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and relied upon by the 
City for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

 E. The Contractor agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards to any 
certification herein, the Contractor shall immediately notify the City of the same. 

 F.   As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize the above-
stated contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
28. COMPLIANCE WITH OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH ACT 
 
 28.1  The Bidder certifies that all equipment and materials contained in this Bid shall meet all 

O.S.H.A. requirements.  Bidder further certifies that, if it is the successful Bidder and the equipment 
and/or materials delivered are subsequently found to be deficient in any O.S.H.A. requirements in effect 
on the date of delivery, all costs necessary to bring the equipment and/or materials into compliance 
with the aforementioned requirements shall be borne by the Bidder. 

 



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-9 

29. NON-APPROPRIATIONS 
 
  29.1 The obligations of the Owner to make a Bid award and sign an agreement under the terms of 

this "Invitation to Bid" are contingent upon funds lawfully appropriated for this purpose.  Should funds 
not be appropriated for this purpose, the Owner, at its sole discretion, shall have the right to reject all 
Bids. 

 
30. FLORIDA PUBLIC RECORDS ACT AND CONTRACT CONTENT OWNERSHIP 
 
 30.1 All material submitted regarding this Bid becomes the property of the Owner.  Pursuant to sec. 

119.07(1), Fla. Stat., sealed Bids received by the Owner pursuant to a competitive solicitation are 
subject to disclosure when the Owner provides notice of an intended decision or until thirty (30) after 
opening of the Bids, whichever is earlier.  If the Owner rejects all bids submitted in response to a 
competitive solicitation and the Owner concurrently provides notice of its intent to reissue the 
competitive solicitation, the rejected bids remain exempt from sec. 119.07(1), Fla. Stat., until such time 
as the Owner provides notice of an intended decision concerning the reissued competitive solicitation 
or until the Owner withdraws the reissued competitive solicitation.  A Bid is not exempt from disclosure 
for longer than 12 months after the initial notice rejecting all Bids made by the Owner.  Bidder should 
take special note of this as it relates to any proprietary information that might be included in their offer.  
Any resulting contract may be reviewed by any person after the contract has been executed by the 
Owner.  The Owner has the right to use any or all information/material submitted in response to this 
bid and/or any resulting contract from the same.  Disqualification of a Bidder does not eliminate this 
right. 

 
30.2 Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, and, if applicable, specifically agrees 

to:  
 
   a) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the 

Owner in order to perform the service.  
   b) Provide the public with access to public records on the same terms and conditions that the 

Owner would provide the records and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

   c)  Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records 
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law. 

  d) Meet all requirements for retaining public records and transfer, at no cost, to the Owner 
 all public records in possession of the Contractor upon termination of the Contract 
 Documents and destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and 
 exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically 
 must be provided to the Owner in a format that is compatible with the information 
 technology systems of the Owner. 

 
31. E-VERIFY  
 
Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, the CONTRACTOR shall: 

a) Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of all 
newly hired employees and require all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving 
funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the 
work authorization status of all the Contractors’ newly hired employees; 

b) Secure an affidavit from all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving funding 
under this Agreement) stating that the CONTRACTOR does not employ, contract with, or 
subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida 
Statutes; 

c) Maintain copies of all CONTRACTOR affidavits for the duration of this Agreement and 
provide the same to the City upon request; 

d) Comply fully, and ensure all CONTRACTORs comply fully, with Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes;  



 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
10/23/17          00100-10 

e) Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; 
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

f) Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida 
Statues, the CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the 
date on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs 
incurred by the City as a result of the termination of the Agreement. 

 
END OF SECTION 



































AGREEMENT 
00500-1 

 

00500 
AGREEMENT 

 
THIS AGREEMENT is dated and will be effective on the ______    , by 
and between the City of Lake Worth Beach (hereinafter called Owner) and M & M Asphalt 
Maintenance Inc. dba   All County Paving (hereinafter called Contractor). 
 
Owner and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, agree as 
follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1. WORK. 
 
Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents.  The 
Work is generally described as follows: City of Lake Worth Beach Harold Grimes Memorial Park 
Improvement Project Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing IFB #23-103, and all else necessary for 
a complete and functional project that meet or exceeds all requirements of the City of Lake Worth 
Beach Public Works Department. 
 
The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, shall be referred to as: 
City of Lake Worth Beach Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project, Phase 1B 
Parking Lot Resurfacing. 
 
This Agreement may be funded, in whole or in part, by the Federal funds.  Contractor therefore 
agrees that any work performed pursuant to this agreement will comply with all applicable 
Federal law, regulations, executive orders, federal policies, procedures, and directives. 
 
 
ARTICLE 2. ENGINEER 
 
The Project has been designed by the City, who is hereinafter called Engineer and who is to act as 
Owner’s representative, assume all duties and responsibilities and have the rights and authority 
assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with completion of the Work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
ARTICLE 3. CONTRACT TIME. 
 
3.1 The Work will be substantially completed within 90 days from the date when the Contract 
Time commences to run as provided in paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions and shall be 
finally complete and ready for final payment in accordance with paragraph 15.06 of the General 
Conditions within 120  days from the date when the Contract Time commences to run. 
 
3.2 All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion and completion and readiness 
for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. 

3.3 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.  Owner and Contractor recognize that time is of the essence 
of this Agreement and that Owner will suffer financial loss if the Work is not completed 
within the times specified in paragraph 3.1 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in 
accordance with the Contract Documents.  They also recognize the delays, expense and 
difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered 
by Owner if the Work is not completed on time.  Accordingly, instead of requiring any such 



AGREEMENT 
00500-2 

 

proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a 
penalty) Contractor shall pay Owner Two Hundred and 00/100  dollars ($ 200.00
 ) for each day that expires after the time specified in paragraph 3.1 for Substantial 
Completion until the Work is substantially complete.  After Substantial Completion if 
Contractor shall neglect, refuse or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract 
Time or any proper extension thereof granted by Owner, Contractor shall pay Owner Two 
Hundred and 00/100 dollars ($200.00   ) for each day that expires after the time specified in 
paragraph 3.1 for completion and readiness for final payment. 

3.4 In the Owner’s sole discretion, a requested extension of time may be denied for delays 
resulting from normal weather conditions prevailing in the area as defined by the average of the 
last five (5) years of weather recorded or otherwise established by the Owner. 

ARTICLE 4. CONTRACT PRICE. 

4.1 Owner shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion of the Work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents, subject to adjustment as provided therein, in current funds as follows:   

A. For all Work other than Unit Price Work, a lump sum of: $_______n/a__________. 

B. For all Unit Price Work, an amount equal to the sum of the extended prices 
(established for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work by multiplying the unit price 
times the actual quantity of that item): 

 
TOTAL OF ALL UNIT PRICES Fifty Four Thousand Nine Hundred Twenty-Two Dollars 
and Fifty Cents  ($54,922.50)         

which is based on the unit price(s) in the Bid Form Unit Price Schedule.  
 
ARTICLE 5. PAYMENT PROCEDURES. 
 
Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General 
Conditions.  Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General 
Conditions. 
 
5.1 PROGRESS PAYMENTS.  Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract 
Price on the basis of Contractor’s Applications for Payment as recommended by Engineer, on or 
about the 10th day of each month during construction as provided below.  All progress payments 
will be on the basis of the progress of the Work measured by the schedule of values established in 
the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of units 
completed) or, in the event there is no schedule of values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract 
Documents. 
 

5.1.1 Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an 
amount equal to the percentage indicated below, but, in each case, less 
the aggregate of payments previously made and less such amounts as 
Engineer shall determine, or Owner may withhold, in accordance with 
the General Conditions, less liquidated damages, if any. 

 
100% of Work completed. 



AGREEMENT 
00500-3 

 

100% of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work (but delivered, 
suitably stored and accompanied by documentation satisfactory to Owner as 
provided in the General Conditions). 
 
5.1.2 Upon Substantial Completion, in an amount sufficient to increase total 

payments to Contractor to 98% of the Contract Price, less such amounts 
as Engineer shall determine, or Owner may withhold, in accordance with 
the General Conditions, less liquidated damages, if any. 

 
5.2 FINAL PAYMENT.  Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with 
paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, and settlement of all claims, including liquidated 
damages, if any, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as recommended by 
Engineer as provided in said paragraph 15.06. 
 
ARTICLE 6. INTEREST. 
 
6.1 All payments due and not made within the time prescribed by section 218.735, Florida 
Statutes, shall bear interest at the rate of 1 percent per month in accordance with section 218.735, 
Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time. 
 
ARTICLE 7. CONTRACTOR’S REPRESENTATIONS. 
 
In order to induce Owner to enter into this Agreement Contractor makes the following 
representations: 
  
7.1 Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents and any data and 
reference items identified in the Contract Documents. 
 
7.2 Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and 
adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local and Site 
conditions that may affect cost, progress and performance of the Work. 
 
7.3 Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, 
progress and performance of the Work.  
 
7.4 Contractor has studied carefully all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface 
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing 
surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary 
Conditions, especially with respect to Technical data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports 
and drawings related to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site 
that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical 
data in such reports and drawings.  Contractor accepts the determination set forth in the Contract 
Documents of the extent of the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which 
Contractor is entitled to rely, if any. 
 
7.5 Contractor has obtained and carefully studied (or assumes responsibility for obtaining and 
carefully studying) all such examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports and studies, 
if any, (in addition to or to supplement those referred to in paragraph 7.4 above) which pertain to 
the subsurface or physical conditions at or adjacent to the Site or otherwise may affect the cost, 
progress, performance or furnishing of the Work as Contractor considers necessary for the 
performance or furnishing of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in 



AGREEMENT 
00500-4 

 

accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents; and no additional 
examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information or data are 
or will be required by Contractor for such purposes. 
 
7.6 Contractor has reviewed and checked all information and data shown or indicated on the 
Contract Documents, if any, with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or adjacent to the 
Site and assumes responsibility for the accurate location of said Underground Facilities.  No 
additional examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, reports, studies or similar information 
or data in respect of said Underground Facilities are or will be required by Contractor in order to 
perform and furnish the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Time and in accordance 
with the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.7 Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly 
known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations 
obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the site-related reports and 
drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, 
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress and performance of the work; (2) the 
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by 
Contractor; and (3) Contractor’s safety precautions and programs.   
 
7.8 Contractor has correlated the results of all such observations, examinations, investigations, 
explorations, tests, reports and studies with the terms and conditions of the Contract Documents 
and based on the information and observations referred to above, the Contractor agrees that no 
further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the 
performance of the work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with 
the other terms and conditions of the Contract Documents. 
 
7.9 Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors or discrepancies that 
Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents and the written resolution thereof by 
Engineer is acceptable to Contractor. 
 
7.10 Contractor acknowledges that the Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate 
and convey an adequate understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing 
of the Work. 
 
7.11 Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by 
Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing and 
furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents. 
 
7.12 Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at 
the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents. 
 
ARTICLE 8. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
The Contract Documents which comprise the entire Agreement between Owner and Contractor 
concerning the Work consist of the following: 
 
8.1 This Agreement consisting of 11 pages. 

        
8.2 Exhibits to this Agreement identified as: 
 a. The Project Manual (pages 1 to xx, inclusive); 



AGREEMENT 
00500-5 

 

 b. Contractor’s Bid (page 00300-X, inclusive); 
 c. Permits (pages ____ to ____, inclusive); 
 d. Other: ___________________________________________ 
 
8.3 Performance Bond and Payment Bond consisting of 3 pages (plus Power of Attorney Forms 
as applicable). 
 
8.4 Notice of Award and Notice to Proceed. 
 
8.5 General Conditions consisting of 72 pages. 
 
8.6 Supplementary Conditions consisting of 6 pages. 
 
8.7 Palm Beach County Department of Housing & Economic Development Requirements for 
Federally Funded Projects Documentation  consisting of 72 pages 
 
8.8 Bid documents as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual. 
 
8.9 Project Specifications consisting of __ pages. 
 
8.10 Drawings not attached hereto but are listed in Specifications. 
 
8.11 Addenda numbers    to   , inclusive. 
 
8.12 Contractor’s Bid consisting of _ page. 
 
8.13 Documentation submitted by Contractor prior to Notice of Award. 
 
8.14 The following which may be delivered or issued after the Effective Date of the Agreement 
and are not attached hereto: All Written Amendments and other documents amending, modifying, 
or supplementing the Contract Documents pursuant to the General Conditions. 
 
8.15 The documents listed under Article 8 above are attached to this Agreement (except as 
expressly noted otherwise above). 
 
8.16 Any other document attached hereto or incorporated herein by the Owner. 
 
There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 8.  The Contract 
Documents may only be amended, modified or supplemented as provided in the General 
Conditions. 
 
Governing Order of Contract Documents - The Contract Documents include various divisions, 
sections and conditions which are essential parts for the work to be provided by the Contractor. A 
requirement occurring in one is as binding as though occurring in all. They are intended to be 
complementary and to describe and provide for a complete work. In case of discrepancy, the 
following precedence will govern the interpretation of the Contract Documents prior to award of 
the contract. 
 

1. Agreement 
2. Addenda 
3. Instructions to Bidders 
4. Special Conditions 



AGREEMENT 
00500-6 

 

5. Supplementary Conditions 
6. General Conditions 
7. Technical Specifications 
8. Details 
9. City Standard Details 
10. Drawings/Plans 
11. Bid Form 

 
After award, Work Change Directives, Change Orders, amendments and revisions to plans and 
specifications will take precedence over any of the above. In case of discrepancy among technical 
specifications, drawings and plans, the most restrictive shall govern. Detailed plans shall have 
precedence over general plans. In the event that any conflicts cannot be resolved by reference to 
this Governing Order of Contract Documents provision, then City shall resolve the conflict in any 
manner which is acceptable to City and which comports with the overall intent of the Contract 
Documents. 
 
 
ARTICLE 9. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 
9.1 Terms. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings indicated in the General 
Conditions. 
 
9.2 Assignment. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract documents, no assignment 
by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract Documents will be binding on 
another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and specifically 
but without limitation moneys that may become due and moneys that are due may not be assigned 
without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by 
law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no 
assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the 
Contract Documents. 
 
9.3 Successors and assigns. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, 
assigns and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns and 
legal representatives in respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations contained in the 
Contract Documents. 
 
9.4 Severability. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or 
unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be stricken, and all remaining provisions shall 
continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract 
Documents shall be reformed to replaced such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and 
enforceable provisions that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken 
provision. 
 
9.5 Public entity crimes. A person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list 
following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a Bid on a Contract to provide 
any goods or services to a public entity, may not submit a Bid on a Contract with a public entity 
for the construction or repair of a public building or public work, may not be awarded or perform 
Work as a Contractor, Supplier, Subcontractor, or Consultant under a Contract with any public 
entity, and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount 
provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 36 months from 
the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. 



AGREEMENT 
00500-7 

 

 
9.6 Inspector General.  In accordance with Palm Beach County ordinance number 2011-009, the 
Contract Documents may be subject to investigation and/or audit by the Palm Beach County 
Inspector General.  Contractor should review such ordinance in order to be aware of its rights 
and/or obligations under such ordinance and as applicable. 
 
9.7 Waiver. Failure of either party to enforce or exercise any right(s) under the Contract 
Documents shall not be deemed a waiver of either party’s right to enforce said right(s) at any time 
thereafter. 
 
9.8 Waiver of jury trial. TO ENCOURAGE PROMPT AND EQUITABLE RESOLUTION OF 
ANY LITIGATION, EACH PARTY HEREBY WAIVES ITS RIGHTS TO A TRIAL BY JURY 
IN ANY LITIGATION RELATED TO THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. 
 
9.9 Independent Contractor.  The Contractor is, and shall be, in the performance of all Work 
under the Contract Documents, an Independent Contractor, and not an employee, agent, or 
servant of the Owner.  All persons engaged in any of the Work performed pursuant to the 
Contract Documents shall at all times and in all places be subject to the Contractor’s sole 
direction, supervision and control.   
 
9.10 Access and audits. The Contractor shall maintain adequate records to justify all charges, 
expenses, and costs incurred in estimating and performing the Work for at least five (5) years 
after final payment is made.  The Owner shall have access to such books, records, and documents 
as required for the purpose of inspection or audit during normal business hours at the Contractor’s 
place of business.  Under no circumstances will Contractor be required to disclose any 
confidential or proprietary information regarding its products and service costs. 
 
9.11 Preparation. The Contract Documents shall not be construed more strongly against either 
party regardless of who was more responsible for its preparation. 
 
9.12 Public Records Law. Contractor shall comply with Florida’s Public Records Laws, and 
specifically agrees to:  
 

a) Keep and maintain public records required by the Owner to perform the service.  
b) Upon request from the Owner’s custodian of public records, provide the Owner 

with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or 
copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided 
in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes or as otherwise provided by law.   

c)  Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from 
public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by 
law for the duration of the contract term and following completion of the contract 
if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Owner. 

d)     Upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the Owner all public 
records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records 
required by the Owner to perform the service.  If the Contractor transfers all 
public records to the Owner upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall 
destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements.  If the Contractor keeps and 
maintains public records upon completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall 



AGREEMENT 
00500-8 

 

meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records.  All records stored 
electronically must be provided to the Owner, upon request from the Owner’s 
custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information 
technology systems of the Owner. 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 
CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 
RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN 
OF PUBLIC RECORDS OR DESIGNEE AT: ATTENTION CITY 
CLERK, (561) 586-1660 OR 
CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV OR 7 NORTH DIXIE 
HIGHWAY, LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL  33460. 

9.13 Enforcement costs. If any legal action or other proceeding is brought for the enforcement of 
the Contract Documents, or because of an alleged dispute, breach, default or misrepresentation in 
connection with any provisions of the Contract Documents, the parties agree that each party shall 
be responsible for its own attorney’s fees.   
9.14 Binding authority. Contractor’s representative below has full power, authority and legal right 
to execute and deliver these Contract Documents and perform all of its obligations under the 
Contract Documents. By signing the Contract Documents, the representative hereby represents to 
the Owner that he/she has the authority and full legal power to execute the Contract Documents 
and any and all documents necessary to effectuate and implement the terms of the Contract 
Documents on behalf of the party for whom he or she is signing and to bind and obligate such 
party with respect to all provisions contained in the Contract Documents. 
9.15 Assignment of warranties. Contractor shall assign to Owner all warranties extended to 
Contractor by material suppliers.  If an assignment of warranty requires the material supplier to 
consent to same, then Contractor shall secure the material supplier’s consent to assign said 
warranties to Owner. 
9.16 Contractor’s certifications.  Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, 
fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract 
Documents.  For the purposes of this paragraph: 

1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of 
value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the 
Contract execution; 
2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to 
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract Documents to the 
detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive 
levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;  
3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, 
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at 
artificial, non-competitive levels; and 
4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, 
persons or their property  to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect 
the execution of the Contract Documents. 

mailto:CITYCLERK@LAKEWORTHBEACHFL.GOV


AGREEMENT 
00500-9 

 

9.17 Construction defects. PURSUANT TO SECTION 558.005, FLORIDA STATUTES, ANY 
CLAIMS FOR CONSTRUCTION DEFECTS ARE NOT SUBJECT TO THE NOTICE AND 
CURE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 558, FLORIDA STATUTES.  
9.18 Delays; Contractor’s remedies. NOTHWITHSTANDING ANY PROVISION 
ELSEWHERE IN THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, NO CLAIM FOR DAMAGES OR ANY 
CLAIM OTHER THAN FOR AN EXTENSION OF TIME SHALL BE MADE OR ASSERTED 
AGAINST OWNER BY REASON OF ANY DELAYS.  Contractor shall not be entitled to an 
increase in the Contract Price or payment or compensation of any kind from Owner for direct, 
indirect, consequential, impact or other costs, expenses or damages, including, but not limited to, 
costs of acceleration or inefficiency, arising because of delay, disruption, interference, or 
hindrance, be it reasonable or unreasonable, foreseeable or avoidable or unavoidable.  Contractor 
shall be entitled only to extensions of the Contract Time as the sole and exclusive remedy for 
such resulting delays, in accordance with and the extent specifically provided herein. 
9.19 Termination for failure to provide Public Construction Bond.  If a Public Construction 
Bond is required under the Construction Documents and the Contractor fails to provide the fully 
executed Public Construction Bond, including a certified copy of the Public Construction Bond as 
recorded in the Official Records for Palm Beach County, within fifteen (15) calendar days after 
the Contractor’s and Owner’s execution of this Agreement, the Owner may immediately 
terminate this Agreement upon written notice to the Contractor and the Owner shall have no 
further obligation to the Contractor under the Contract. In the event of such termination, the 
Contractor shall also forfeit its bid security to the Owner. 
 
9.20  E-Verify. Pursuant to Section 448.095(2), Florida Statutes, beginning on January 1, 2021, 
the CONTRACTOR shall: 

a. Register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work authorization status of 
all newly hired employees and require all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving 
funding under this Agreement) to register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all the Contractors’ newly hired employees; 

b. Secure an affidavit from all CONTRACTORs (providing services or receiving 
funding under this Agreement) stating that the CONTRACTOR does not employ, contract with, or 
subcontract with an “unauthorized alien” as defined in Section 448.095(1)(k), Florida Statutes; 

c. Maintain copies of all CONTRACTOR affidavits for the duration of this 
Agreement and provide the same to the City upon request; 

d. Comply fully, and ensure all CONTRACTORs comply fully, with Section 448.095, 
Florida Statutes;  

e. Be aware that a violation of Section 448.09, Florida Statutes (Unauthorized aliens; 
employment prohibited) shall be grounds for termination of this Agreement; and, 

f.  Be aware that if the City terminates this Agreement under Section 448.095(2)(c), 
Florida Statues, the CONTRACTOR may not be awarded a contract for at least 1 year after the date 
on which the Agreement is terminated and will be liable for any additional costs incurred by the 
City as a result of the termination of the Agreement. 
 
9.21  Scrutinized Companies. CONTRACTOR certifies that it and its subcontractors are not on 
the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List and are not engaged in the boycott of Israel.  
Pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement 
at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are found to have submitted a 
false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors, are placed on the 
Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List or is engaged in the boycott of Israel during the term 
of this Agreement. 
 



AGREEMENT 
00500-10 

 

a) If this Agreement is for one million dollars or more, the CONTRACTOR certifies that it 
and its subcontractors are also not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan 
List, Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or 
engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria as identified in Section 287.135, Florida 
Statutes.  Pursuant to Section 287.135, the City may immediately terminate this Agreement 
at its sole option if the CONTRACTOR, or any of its subcontractors are found to have 
submitted a false certification; or if the CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors are 
placed on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, or Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or are or have been 
engaged with business operations in Cuba or Syria during the term of this Agreement. 

b) The CONTRACTOR agrees to observe the above requirements for applicable subcontracts 
entered into for the performance of work under this Agreement. 

c) The CONTRACTOR agrees that the certifications in this section shall be effective and 
relied upon by the CITY for the term of this Agreement, including any and all renewals. 

d) The CONTRACTOR agrees that if it or any of its subcontractors’ status changes in regards 
to any certification herein, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the CITY of the 
same. 

e) As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), Florida Statutes, if federal law ceases to authorize 
the above-stated Contracting prohibitions then they shall become inoperative. 

 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS 





 
 

OPINION OF ATTORNEY 
November 2018        00501-1 

             
City of Lake Worth Beach  

Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project 
Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 

IFB #23-103 
 

 
                
 
 
 
 
 
 

00501 
OPINION OF ATTORNEY 

 
 
 
 This is to certify that I have examined the attached Contract Documents, that after such examination I 
am of the opinion that the execution of the Agreement, the Performance Bond and Payment Bond are in 
due and proper form. 
 
 
 
 
 
                         
            Attorney for Owner 
 
 
 
 
 
 This the __________ day of ___________________________, 20_____. 
 
 



CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BOND 

(Pursuant to secs. 255.05 and 337.18, Fla. Stat.) 
 

Surety Bond No. __________  
   

Any singular reference to Contractor, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable. 
 
CONTRACTOR:     SURETY: 
Name:       Name: 
Principal Business Address:    Principal Business Address 
 
Telephone Number:     Telephone Number: 
 
OWNER: 
City of Lake Worth Beach 
7 North Dixie Highway 
Lake Worth Beach, FL  33460 
(561) 586-1600 
 
CONTRACT: 
Date: 
Amount: 
Description (Name and Location):  
 
BOND 
Date (Not earlier than Contract Date): 
Amount: 
Modifications to this Bond Form: 
 
This Bond is issued in favor of the City of Lake Worth Beach/Owner conditioned on the full and faithful 

performance of the Contract. 

1. Contractor has entered into Project No. ___________________ with the City for the project titled 

“_____________________________” (the “Contract”), with conditions and provisions as are further 

described in the aforementioned Contract, which Contract, including all of its attachments, exhibits and 

incorporated documents (hereinafter, collectively, the “Contract Documents”) is by reference made a part 

hereof for the purposes of explaining this bond. 

2. Principal and Surety are bound to the Owner in the sum of the Contract Amount set forth above for 

payment of which we bind ourselves, our heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns, jointly 

and severally. 

3. THE CONDITION OF THIS BOND is that if Principal: 



 a. Performs the Work required of and in accordance with the Contract Documents at the 

times and in the manner prescribed in the Contract Documents, which are made a part of this bond by 

reference; and 

 b. In accordance with sec. 255.05 and sec. 337.18, Florida Statutes, promptly makes payment 

s to all persons, defined in sec. 713.01, Florida Statutes, who furnish labor, services or materials for 

prosecution of the work set forth in the Contract Documents described above; and 

 c. Pays Owner all losses, damages (including liquidated damages), expenses, costs, an d  

p ro f e s s io na l  f ee s ,  i n c l ud i n g  b u t  no t  l imi t ed  t o  a ttorneys’ fees, including appellate 

proceedings, that Owner sustains because of a default by Principal under the Contract Documents; and 

 d. Performs the war ran ty  and  guarantee of all work and materials furnished under the 

Contract D o c u m e n t s  for the time specified in the Contract Documents, then this bond is void; otherwise it 

remains in full force. 

4.      Section 255.05, Fla. Stat., as amended, together with all notice and time provisions contained therein, 

is incorporated herein by reference. 

5. Any action instituted by a claimant under this bond for payment must be in accordance with the 

notice and time limitation provisions in secs. 255.05(2) and (10), Fla. Stat., and those of sec. 337.18, Fla. Stat. 

6.        Any changes in or under the Contract D ocuments and compliance or noncompliance with any 

formalities connected with the Contract Documents or the changes does not affect Surety's obligation under 

this bond, and Surety waives notice of such changes. 

7. Principal and Surety expressly acknowledge that any and all provisions relating to consequential, delay 

and liquidated damages contained in the contract are expressly covered by and made a part of this Performance, 

Labor and Material Payment Bond.  Principal and Surety acknowledge that any such provisions lie within their 

obligations and within the policy coverages and limitations of this instrument. 

8. Any action brought under this instrument shall be brought in the state court of competent jurisdiction in 

Palm Beach County, Florida, and not elsewhere. 



Surety and Contractor, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms included herein and as 
required under Florida Statutes, do each cause this Performance and Payment Bond to be duly executed on 
its behalf by its authorized officer, agent, or representative. 
 
Signed and sealed this _______ day of ______________________________, 2022. 
 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Principal 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Title 
 

(Corporate Seal) 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
Witness      Surety 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Attorney-in-Fact 
       (Attach Power of Attorney) 

 
__________________________________ 

       Print Name 
 
       (Corporate Seal) 
 
 





 
 

CONTRACTOR’S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER 
November 2018         00670-1 

00670 
CONTRACTOR'S AFFIDAVIT TO OWNER 

 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF         
 
 
   Before me, the undersigned authority, authorized to administer oaths and take acknowledgements, personally 
appeared               , who, being by me first duly sworn, on oath 
depose(s) and say(s): 
 
 (1) He/she is/They are a (Corporation, Partnership or Individual) of      (State), doing 
business as            (Company Name), hereinafter called "Contractor". 
 
 (2) Contractor heretofore entered into a Contract with           hereinafter called 
"Owner" to do Work (furnish material, labor and services) for the construction of 
         , located at       County, Florida.  
 

(3) Contractor has fully completed construction in accordance with the terms of the Contract, and all lienors have 
been paid in full, except: 

 
 
 NAME OF LIENOR                                     AMOUNT DUE AND UNPAID 
 
                                                          $ 
 
 (4) All Workmen's Compensation claims have been settled and no liability claims are pending, in connection 
with, arising out of or resulting from the Contract. 
 
 (5) Receipt by the Contractor of the final payment, under the aforementioned Contract, shall constitute a full 
release and discharge by the Contractor to the Owner of any and all claims of the Contractor against the Owner, arising 
out of, connected with, or resulting from performance of the obligations of the Contractor pursuant to the Contract 
Documents. 
 
 (6) The term "lienor" as used in this affidavit means any person having a lien or a prospective lien, under the 
Mechanics Lien Law of Florida, on the land and property of the Owner referred to in paragraph (2) of this affidavit. 
 
  (7) This affidavit is given pursuant to the provisions of Florida Statutes Section 713.06 or Section 255.05, 
whichever is applicable.  
Signed and sealed in the presence of: 
 
                            
(ENTITY) 
      By: __________________________________ 
 
[Corporate Seal]     Print Name: ___________________________ 
 
      Title: _________________________________ 
STATE OF _________________)  
COUNTY OF __________________)  
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical presence or 
�online notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of __________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or who has 
produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly 
authorized to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal:       



 
 

APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT 
November 2018     00680-1 

00680 
APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT NO. _____________ 

 
Project:  IFB#23-103 City of Lake Worth Beach Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement 
Project  Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 
                        
 
Application is made for payment, as hereinafter shown, in connection with this Agreement: 
  
 Total Work to Date - see attached schedule $   
 Work performed from                                                                 _______________(date) to _____________(date) 
 Total Material Suitably Stored - see attached schedule $   
 Gross Amount Due  $   
 Less ________ % Retainage  $   
 Amount Due to Date  $   
 Less Previous Applications  $   
 Amount Due This Application  $   
     
 Original Contract Price  $   
 Net Change Orders  $   
 Current Contract Price  $   
 Value of Work Remaining to be Done  $   
     
Contractor's Certification: 
The undersigned Contractor certifies that (1) all previous progress payments received from Owner on account of Work 
done under the Agreement referred to above have been applied to discharge in full all obligations of Contractor 
incurred in connection with Work covered by prior Applications for Payment numbered 1 through _______, inclusive; 
and (2) title to all materials and equipment incorporated in said Work or otherwise listed in or covered by this 
Application for Payment will pass to Owner at time of payment free and clear of all liens, claims, security interests 
and encumbrances (except such as covered by Bond acceptable to Owner). 
 
Dated                             , 20                 
        Contractor and Mailing Address 
 
        By         
         (Name and Title) 
STATE OF _________________)  
COUNTY OF __________________)  
 

THE FOREGOING instrument was acknowledged before me by means of �physical presence or �online 
notarization on this ____ day of ______________ 2023, by ________________________, as the 
________________________ [title] of __________________________________ [vendor’s name], a 
______________________________ [corporate description], who is personally known to me or who has 
produced_________________________ as identification, and who did take an oath that he or she is duly authorized 
to execute the foregoing instrument and bind the CONTRACTOR to the same.   
 

____________________________________ 
Notary Public Signature 

Notary Seal: 
 
               
Payment of the above AMOUNT DUE THIS APPLICATION is recommended. 
 
         
 
Date:        By:         
       (Name)    (Title) 
 
      CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
Date:       By       
       (Name)    (Title) 
 



 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED 
November 2018 00681 

00681 
 

SCHEDULE OF VALUES AND WORK COMPLETED 
 

PROJECT TITLE:  City of Lake Worth Beach  
Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project  

      Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing  
      IFB #23-103 
                                                                                   
 
CONTRACTOR                                                                                                                                        
 
FOR PERIOD BEGINNING _________________________ENDING                                                                                                             
 
TO ACCOMPANY APPLICATION NO.                                                                                              
 

ITEM CONTRACTOR’S Schedule of Values Work Completed 

 Unit Price Quantity Amount  Quantity Amount 

 $  $  $ 
      

 NOTE: CONTRACTOR SHALL PREPARE APPROPRIATE SCHEDULE WITH ALL CONTRACT ITEMS 

      

SHOWN FOR ATTACHMENT TO EACH APPLICATION FOR PAYMENT. 

      

    Total 
 (Original Contract) $    

C.O. No. 1 
      

C.O. No. 1   NOTE: CHANGE ORDER(S) SHALL BE ITEMIZED AS APPLICABLE.  
      

 
 TOTAL WORK TO DATE $____________ 
 
 

MATERIALS SUITABLY STORED 
 
 

NOTE: CONTRACTOR TO ITEMIZE AND ATTACH APPROPRIATE INVOICES 
 
 TOTAL MATERIAL SUITABLY STORED $____________ 
 
 
Accompanying Documentation (Contractor to itemize): 
 



















































































































































 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-1 

00800 
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 

 
 
These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the Standard General Conditions of the 
Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2013 Edition) and other provisions of the Contract Documents as 
indicated below.  All provisions which are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect.  
The General Conditions may also be supplemented elsewhere in the Contract Documents.  
 
The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions which are defined in the Standard General Conditions 
of the Construction Contract, EJCDC C-700 (2013 Edition) have the meanings assigned to them in the 
General Conditions. 
 
PART 1 - MODIFICATIONS AND SUPPLEMENTS TO GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
 
SC-2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance 
 

Delete paragraph 2.01 C. of the General Conditions in its entirety and insert the following in its 
place: 

 
C. This subsection is not needed. 

 
 
SC-3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies 
 
 Delete the paragraph 3.03 A.3 in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
 3. Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, 

ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof 
or unless Contractor reasonably should have known of such conflict, error, ambiguity or discrepancy. 

 
SC-4.01 Commencement of Contract Time; Notice to Proceed 

 
Delete the last sentence of paragraph 4.01 A. of the General Conditions and insert the following 
in its place: 

 
In no event will the Contract Time commence to run later than the  120th  day after the day of the 
Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Agreement, whichever date is earlier, 
unless agreed otherwise by Owner and Contractor in writing. 

 
SC-5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 
 

Delete paragraphs 5.03 A. and 5.03 B. in of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert 
the following in their place: 

 
5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions 
 
A. Reports and Drawings: Division 1: General Requirements of the Specifications shall identify those 
reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the site and 
drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures 
at the site that have been utilized by Engineer in preparation of the Contract Documents.  Contractor 
may rely upon the accuracy of any Technical Data contained in such reports that is specifically 
referenced in Division 1: General Requirements as Technical Data that can be relied on by Contractor.  
Except as indicated above, Contractor shall have full responsibility with respect to subsurface and 
physical conditions at the site. 

 
B. Contractor may rely on the technical data as set forth in subsection A above, but such reports and 
drawings are not Contract Documents.  Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-2 

not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, 
partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, with respect to:  
 

1. The completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor’s purposes, including, but not 
limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of 
construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident 
thereto; or 

2. Other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or 
indicated in such drawings; or 

3. Any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical data or any such 
other data, interpretations, opinions, or information. 

 
 
SC-5.06 Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site 
 

Delete paragraphs 5.06 A., 5.06 B. and 5.06 I. in of the General Conditions in their entirety and 
insert the following in their place: 
 
A. No reports or drawings related to Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site are known to 

Owner. 
B. This subsection is not needed. 
I. This subsection is not needed. 
 

 
SC-6.01 Performance, Payment and Other Bonds 
 
 Add the following language at the end of Paragraph 6.01 A.: 
 

In accordance with section 255.05(1), Fla. Stat., as amended from time to time, before commencing the 
Work or before recommencing the Work after a default or abandonment, the Contractor shall execute 
and record in the public records of Palm Beach County a payment and performance bond with a surety 
insurer authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and the Contractor shall be required to provide 
to the Owner a certified copy of the recorded bond.  The Owner may not make a payment to the 
Contractor until the Contractor has complied with section 255.05(1)(b), Fla. Stat.   

 
 
SC-6.02 Insurance – General Provisions 
 
 Add the following language at the end of Paragraph 6.02 C.: 
 
Contractor shall deliver the required certificates of insurance prior to the commencement of any Work at 
the site.  All of the policies of insurance (or the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be 
purchased and maintained by Contractor shall be “claims made” and contain the name of the Project.  
 
SC-6.03 Contractor’s Insurance 
 

Delete the following language in Paragraph 6.03 G.: 
 
G. Additional insureds: The Contractor’s commercial general liability, automobile liability, umbrella 
or excess, and pollution liability policies shall include and list as additional insureds Owner and 
Engineer, and any individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions; include coverage 
for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and 
subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds; and the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby (including as 
applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations) on a non-contributory basis. 
Contractor shall obtain all necessary endorsements to support these requirements. 
 
Replace with: 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-3 

G. Additional insured: The Commercial General Liability policy shall be endorsed to include “Palm 
Beach County Board of County Commissioners, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida, its 
Officers, Employees, and Agents” as an Additional Insured. A copy of the endorsement shall be 
provided to County upon request. 
 
 
Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 6.03 J.: 
 
K. The limits of liability for the insurance required by Paragraph 6.03 of the General Conditions shall 
provide coverage for not less than the following amounts or greater where required by Laws and 
Regulations: 

 
1. Worker's Compensation, and related coverages under Paragraphs 6.03 A.1. and 6.03 A.2. of 

the General Conditions: 
 

  State: Statutory 
 
  Applicable Federal (e.g. Longshoreman's and Harbor 

         Workers' Compensation, Maritime, Jones Act, etc.): Statutory 
    

 
  Employer’s liability: 
 
   Bodily injury, each accident $1,000,000 
 
   Bodily injury by disease, each employee $1,000,000 
 
   Bodily injury/disease aggregate $1,000,000 
 
        

2. Contractor’s Commercial General Liability under paragraphs 6.03 B. and 6.03 C. of the 
General Conditions: 

 
General Aggregate $3,000,000 
 
Products and Completed Operations Aggregate $3,000,000 
 
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 
 
Each Occurrence (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) $1,000,000 

 
3. Automobile Liability under paragraph 6.03 D. of the General Conditions: 

 
Combined Single Limit of $1,000,000 

 
4. Excess or Umbrella Liability under paragraph 6.03 E. of the General Conditions: 

 
Per Occurrence $If applicable 
 
General Aggregate $If applicable 

 
 
SC-6.04 Owner’s Liability Insurance 
 

Delete paragraphs 6.04 A. and 6.04 B. of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert the 
following in their place: 
 
A. This Subsection is not needed. 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-4 

B. This subsection is not needed. 
 
SC-6.05 Property Insurance 

 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 6.05 C.: 
 
The maximum deductible amount for any insurance required under paragraph 6.05 shall be $5,000.00. 

 
SC-6.06 Waiver of Rights 

 
Delete paragraphs 6.06 B. and 6.06 C. of the General Conditions in their entirety and insert the 
following in their place: 
 
B. This Subsection is not needed. 
C. This subsection is not needed. 

 
SC-7.01 Supervision and Superintendence 

 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 7.01 B.:  
 

 The superintendent will be Contractor’s representative at the site and shall have authority to act on 
behalf of Contractor.  All communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to 
Contractor. 
 
SC-7.07 Patent Fees and Royalties 

 
Delete paragraph 7.07 B. and insert the following in its place: 
 

 B. This subsection is not needed.  
 

SC-7.08 Permits 
 
Add the following language at the end of paragraph 7.08 A.:  
 
Contractor shall obtain and pay for the following permits: 
 
1. City of Lake Worth Building Permit.  Include in the bid amount a 3-percent of appropriate items 

permit fee based on the bid cost.  This permit fee amount will be adjusted based on the actual fee 
charged and the difference credited, as applicable. 

2. Any other applicable permits. 
 
SC-7.18 Indemnification 

 
Delete paragraph 7.18 A. and insert the following in its place: 
 
A. Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer and their respective officers 

and employees from liabilities, damages, losses, and costs, including, but not limited to, reasonable 
attorney’s fees, to the extent caused by the negligence, recklessness, or intentional wrongful 
misconduct of the Contractor and persons employed or utilized by the Contractor in the 
performance of the Contract Documents. Compliance with any insurance requirements required 
elsewhere in the Contract Documents shall not relieve Contractor of its liability and obligation to 
hold harmless and indemnify the City as set forth in this section.  It is the specific intent of the 
parties hereto that the foregoing indemnification complies with section 725.06, Florida Statutes.  It 
is further the specific intent and agreement of the parties that all of the Contract Documents on this 
Project are hereby amended to include the foregoing indemnification and the required “Specific 
Consideration” therefore. Nothing contained in the Contract Documents shall be construed or 
interpreted as consent by the City to be sued, nor shall the Contract Documents be construed as a 
waiver of sovereign immunity beyond the waiver provided in section 768.28, Fla. Stat., as amended 
from time to time. 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-5 

 
SC-10.03 Project Representative 
 
 Add the following new paragraph immediately after paragraph 10.03 A.: 
 

B. On this Project, by agreement with the Owner, Engineer will not furnish a Resident Project 
Representative to represent Engineer at the Site or assist Engineer in observing the progress and 
quality of the Work.  However, if the Engineer does furnish a Resident Project Representative per 
paragraph 10.03 of the General Conditions, the duties, etc. of the representative shall be as provided 
in the Listing of the Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of the Resident Project 
Representative as included in the Project Manual.  If Owner designates another representative or 
agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer’s consultant, agent, or employee, the 
responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity shall be 
presented at the Preconstruction Conference or as otherwise set forth in the Project Manual. 

 
SC-10.04 Rejecting Defective Work 
 
 Add the following language at the end of paragraph 10.04 A.: 
 
 A. Engineer also has the authority to disapprove or reject Work which Engineer believes will not 

produce a completed Project that conforms to the Contract documents or that will prejudice the 
integrity of the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the 
Contract Documents. 

 
SC-11.04 Change of Contract Price 
 
 Delete paragraphs 11.04 C.2.c. and 11.04 C.2.e. in their entirety and insert the following in their 
place: 
 

c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed 
fee is agreed upon, the maximum allowable to Contractor on account of overhead and profit of all 
Subcontractors shall be fifteen percent;  

 
e.    the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which results in a net  

decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in cost plus a deduction in Contractor’s 
fee by an amount equal to ten percent of such net decrease; and 
 

SC-13.03 Unit Price Work 
 
 Delete paragraph 13.03 E. in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 
 
 E. Contractor may not make a claim for additional expenses incurred as a result of a difference 

between final quantity of any item(s) of Unit Price Work and the estimated quantity of such item(s) 
in the Contract Documents, unless specifically allowed in the Bid Form.  Any adjustments 
specifically allowed shall be made in accordance with directions in the Bid Form. 

 
SC-16.03 Owner May Terminate for Convenience 
 
 Add the following new paragraph immediately after paragraph 16.03 B.: 
 

C. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds that the Owner wrongfully terminated this Contract, then 
in such event, this Contract shall be deemed terminated for convenience as provided for in this 
paragraph, and the Contractor shall not be entitled to loss of anticipated overhead, profits, or 
revenue, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination but may be entitled 
to all items as authorized herein. 

 
SC-18.07 Controlling Law 
 

Delete paragraph 18.07 A. in its entirety and insert the following in its place: 



 
 

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
07/01/2016      00800-6 

 
A. This Contract is to be governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The venue for any and all legal 

action necessary to enforce the Contract Documents will be in Palm Beach County, Florida.   
 
  
 
PART 2 - ADDITIONAL SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 
 
1. ATTACHMENTS: 
 
The following forms included in the Project Manual shall be used by Contractor for submittals required by 
the Contract Documents (unless Owner accepts other form): 
 
 a. Construction Payment And Performance Bond (00620). 

 
b. Notice of Compliance with Chapter 556, Florida Statutes (00630). 

 
d. Contractor's Affidavit to Owner (00670). 

 
 e. Form of Application for Payment (00680). 
 

 
END OF SECTION 



 
 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

00820-1  
   

00820 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH PROCUREMENT DIVISION REQUIREMENTS 

 
SPC-1  APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTING SYSTEM 
 

 Except with respect to firm fixed-price contracts, no contract type shall be used unless the 
Purchasing Manager has determined in writing that: 
 
 1) The proposed contractor’s accounting system will permit timely development of 

all necessary cost data in the form required by the specific contract type 
contemplated; and 

 
 2) The proposed contractor’s accounting system is adequate to allocate costs in 

accordance with generally accepted cost accounting principles. 
 
SPC-2  RIGHT TO INSPECT PLANT 
 
The City may, at reasonable times, inspect any part of the plant, place of business, or work site of 
a contractor or subcontractor which is pertinent to the performance of any contact awarded or to 
be awarded by the City. 
 
SPC-3  RIGHT TO AUDIT RECORDS 
 
 1) Audit of Cost or Pricing Data: The City may, at reasonable times and places audit 

the books, documents, papers and records of any contractor who has submitted 
cost or pricing data to the extent that such books, documents, papers and records 
are pertinent to such cost or pricing data. Any person who receives a contract, 
change order or contract modifications for which cost or pricing data is required, 
shall maintain such books, documents, papers and records that pertinent to such 
costs or pricing data for five (5) years from the data of the final payment under 
the contract. 

 
2) Contract Audit: The City shall be entitled to audit the books, documents, papers 

and records of a contractor or a subcontractor at any tier under any negotiated 
contract or subcontract other than a firm fixed-price contract to the extent that 
such books, documents, papers and records are pertinent to the performance of 
such contract or subcontract. Such books, documents, papers and records shall be 
maintained by the contractor for a period of five (5) years from the date of final 
payment under the prime contract and by the subcontractor for a period of five 
(5) years from the date of final payment under the subcontract. 

 
3) Contractor Records: If a contract is being funded in whole or in part by assistance 

from a federal agency, then the contract shall include provisions: 
 

A) Requiring the contractor and subcontractor at any tier to maintain for five 
(5) years from the date of final payment under the contract all books, 
documents, papers and records pertinent to the contract; and 



 
 

 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

00820-2  
   

 
B) Requiring the contractor and subcontractor at any tier to provide to the 

City, the federal grantor agency, the Comptroller General of the United 
States, or any of their duly authorized representatives access to such 
books, documents, papers and records for the purposes of examining. 
Auditing and copying them. 

 
SPC-4  CONTRACTOR’S START OF WORK & CHANGE OF SCOPE 
 
 1) The Contractor shall not perform work without a Purchase Order. 
 
 2) The Contractor shall not work out of scope without a signed, issued change order 

to the purchase order, authorizing the additional work and any change to the 
period of performance (Construction Contract Time). 

 
SPC-5  APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS 
 
 This project is subject to approval and appropriation of funds by the City of Lake Worth 

Beach City Commission.   
 
SPC-6  BUILDING PERMIT FEE  
 
 A building permit fee equal to 3-percent of the accepted bid shall be included in the 

project costs.  See Supplemental Conditions paragraph SC-7.08 for further details.   
 
SPC-7  CONE OF SILENCE 
 
 All communications shall be in accordance with the City of Lake Worth Beach Code of 

Ordinances, Section 2-112(k), Cone of Silence. 
 
SPC-8  ADDITIONAL AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 Any applicant coming before the City of Lake Worth Beach City Commission for an 

award of a contract with the City and who has made an election campaign contribution in 
an amount that is more than one hundred dollars ($100.00) to any elected official of the 
City Commission, who is a current sitting member of the Commission, must disclose 
such election campaign contribution, verbally and in writing, during the application or 
bidding process and before the award of the contract in accordance with the City of Lake 
Worth Beach Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Article XII Code of Ethics, Section 2-
101(2).  All applicants shall complete the City’s Campaign Contribution Statement. 

 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-1 

 
00840 

LISTING OF THE DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES AND 
LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF THE 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
 
 
ENGINEER may furnish a Resident Project Representative (RPR), assistants and other field staff to assist 
ENGINEER in observing performance of the Work of the Contractor.  RPR may only be part time on site, 
and CONTRACTOR shall coordinate with RPR as required in the Contract Documents. 
 
Through on-site observations of the Work in progress and field checks of materials and equipment by the 
RPR and assistants, ENGINEER shall endeavor to provide further protection for OWNER against defects 
and deficiencies in the Work; but, the furnishing of such services will not make ENGINEER responsible 
for or give ENGINEER control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures 
or for safety precautions or programs, or responsibility for CONTRACTOR's failure to perform the Work 
in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
 
The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are limited to those of ENGINEER in ENGINEER's agreement 
with the OWNER and in the construction Contract Documents, and are further limited and described as 
follows: 
 
 
A.  GENERAL 
 
RPR is ENGINEER's agent at the site, will act as directed by and under the supervision of ENGINEER, 
and will confer with ENGINEER regarding RPR's actions.  RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the 
on-site work shall in general be with ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR keeping OWNER advised as 
necessary.  RPR's dealings with subcontractors shall only be through or with the full knowledge and 
approval of CONTRACTOR.  RPR shall generally communicate with OWNER with the knowledge of 
and under the direction of ENGINEER. 
 
 
B.  DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF RPR 
 

1. SCHEDULES:  Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submittals and 
schedule of values prepared by CONTRACTOR and consult with ENGINEER concerning 
acceptability. 

 
2. CONFERENCES AND MEETINGS: Attend meetings with CONTRACTOR, such as precon-
struction conferences, progress meetings, job conferences and other project-related meetings, and 
prepare and circulate copies of minutes thereof. 

 
3. LIAISON: 

 
a.  Serve as ENGINEER's liaison with CONTRACTOR, working principally through 
CONTRACTOR's superintendent and assist in understanding the intent of the Contract 
Documents; and assist ENGINEER in serving as OWNER's liaison with CONTRACTOR when 
CONTRACTOR's operations affect OWNER's on-site operations. 

 
b.  Assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details or information, when required for proper 
execution of the Work. 

 
4. SHOP DRAWINGS AND SAMPLES: 

 
a.  Record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples. 

 
b.  Receive samples which are furnished at the site by CONTRACTOR, and notify ENGINEER 
of availability of samples for examination. 

 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-2 

c.  Advise ENGINEER and CONTRACTOR of the commencement of any Work requiring a 
Shop Drawing or sample if the submittal has not been approved by ENGINEER. 

 
5. REVIEW OF WORK, REJECTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK, INSPECTIONS AND TESTS: 

 
a.  Conduct on-site observations of the Work in progress to assist ENGINEER in determining if 
the Work is in general proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
b.  Report to ENGINEER whenever RPR believes that any Work is unsatisfactory, faulty or 
defective or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or has been damaged, or does not meet 
the requirements of any inspection, test or approval required to be made; and advise ENGINEER 
of Work that RPR believes should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for 
observation, or requires special testing, inspection or approval. 

 
c.  Verify that tests, equipment and systems startups and operating and maintenance training are 
conducted in the presence of appropriate personnel, and that CONTRACTOR maintains adequate 
records thereof; and observe, record and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the 
test procedures and startups. 

 
d.  Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having jurisdiction over 
the Project, record the results of these inspections and report to ENGINEER. 

 
6. INTERPRETATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS:  Report to ENGINEER when clari-
fications and interpretations of the Contract Documents are needed and transmit to CONTRACTOR 
clarifications and interpretations as issued by ENGINEER. 

 
7. MODIFICATIONS:  Consider and evaluate CONTRACTOR's suggestions for modifications in 
Drawings or Specifications and report with RPR's recommendations to ENGINEER.  Transmit to 
CONTRACTOR decisions as issued by ENGINEER. 

 
8. RECORDS: 

 
a.  Maintain at the job site or ENGINEER's office files for correspondence, reports of job 
conferences, Shop Drawings and samples, reproductions of original Contract Documents 
including all Work Directive Changes, Addenda, Change Orders, Field Orders, additional 
Drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, ENGINEER's clarifications and 
interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, and other Project related documents. 

 
b.  Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all CONTRACTORS, subcontractors and 
major suppliers of materials and equipment. 

 
9. REPORTS: 

 
a.  Furnish ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of 
CONTRACTOR's compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and 
sample submittals. 

 
  b.  Consult with ENGINEER in advance of scheduled major tests, inspections or start of 

important phases of the Work. 
 
  c.  Draft proposed Change Orders and Work Directive Changes, obtaining backup material from 

CONTRACTOR and recommend to ENGINEER Change Orders, Work Directive Changes, and 
Field Orders. 

 
d.  Report immediately to ENGINEER and OWNER upon the occurrence of any accident 
witnessed by RPR or that was otherwise made known to RPR. 

 
10. PAYMENT REQUESTS:  Review applications for payment with CONTRACTOR for 
compliance with the established procedure for their submission and forward with recommendations to 



 
 

RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
08/30/91          00840-3 

ENGINEER, noting particularly the relationship of the payment requested to the schedule of values, 
Work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not incorporated in the Work. 

 
11. CERTIFICATES, MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION MANUALS:  During the course of the 
Work, verify that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be 
assembled and furnished by CONTRACTOR are applicable to the items actually installed and in 
accordance with the Contract Documents, and have this material delivered to ENGINEER for review 
and forwarding to OWNER prior to final payment for the Work. 

 
 12. COMPLETION: 
 
  a.  Before ENGINEER issues a Certificate of Substantial Completion, submit to CONTRACTOR 

a list of observed items requiring completion or correction. 
 
  b.  Conduct final inspection in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER and CONTRACTOR and 

prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected. 
 
  c.  Observe that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make 

recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance. 
 
 
C. LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY 
 
Resident Project Representative: 
 

1. Shall not authorize any deviation from the Contract Documents or substitution of materials or 
equipment, unless authorized by ENGINEER. 

 
2. Shall not exceed limitations of ENGINEER's authority as set forth in the Contract Documents. 

 
3. Shall not undertake any of the responsibilities of CONTRACTOR, subcontractors or 
CONTRACTOR's superintendent. 

 
4. Shall not advise on, issue directions relative to or assume control over any aspect of the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction unless such advice or directions are 
specifically required by the Contract Documents. 

 
5. Shall not advise on, issue directions regarding or assume control over safety precautions and 
programs in connection with the Work. 

 
6. Shall not accept Shop Drawing or sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor. 

 
7. Shall not authorize OWNER to occupy the Project in whole or in part. 

 
8. Shall not participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted by others 
except as specifically authorized by ENGINEER. 

 
 

END OF SECTION 
 
 









1 
 

 

                                
                                           INVITATION FOR BID 

                                                              IFB 23-103 
                                                 Addendum No. 1 

                   
 

Harold Grimes Memorial Park Improvement Project Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 
 

This addendum shall modify, clarify, change, or add information and clarification and become 
part of the above referenced IFB.  
 
 
Questions & Answers: 
 
Question 1: Does the project require any lighting? 
 
Answer 1:  No 
 
Question 2: What's the Estimated Budget? 
 
Answer 2:  $60,000 
 
Question 3: Bid item 5 & 6- 6” Concrete: The quantity appears to only cover replacing the aprons 
to the nearest joint in the existing sidewalk. The four ramps at the entrance to the parking lot, on 
either side of the apron, are not currently ADA. 1 Ramp specifically is only about 1 foot long. Do 
you want to add an f curb bid item so the curb can be removed and replaced 6’ long at each 
ramp? 
 
Answer 3: No, this will be part of an internal sidewalk repair 
 
Question 4: There is no bid item for 4” concrete. Some of the sidewalk in front of the park is 
cracked pretty bad. Do you want to add a contingency item for 4” concrete? 
 
Answer 4: No, this will be part of an internal sidewalk repair 
 
Question 5: Bid item 18. There is currently only one 24” stop bar. 
 
Answer 5: Yes, there is only one 24” stop bar at the exit of the parking lot. 
 
Question 6: Bid item 22 One Way Signs: You have a quantity of 4. There are currently 7 out there 
(one appears to be missing so there should be 8). Please clarify if you would like 4 only, or are 
we to match existing? 
 
Answer 6: Yes, only 4 signs need replacing 3 of them are in good condition  



2 
 

 
Question 7: Will asbuilts be required as there are not actual plans / elevations? 
 
Answer 7: No, asbuilts will not be required for this project.  
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
7 NORTH DIXIE HIGHWAY 

LAKE WORTH BEACH, FL 33460 

 

 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD 
         
  
 
TO:  All Interested Parties 
 
FROM: Anthony Hernandez, Purchasing Agent II 
 
DATE:  February 7, 2023 
 
REF:    IFB#23-103 Harold Grimes Memorial Park Phase 1B Parking Lot Resurfacing 
 
SUBJECT: Notice of Intent to Award 
 
 
Based on the results and the thorough review of the proposals submitted in response to the above-
referenced solicitation, the City of Lake Worth Beach has determined that M&M Asphalt 
Maintenance Inc., D/B/A All County Paving is of the best value to the City and is being 
recommended for award of this solicitation. The effective date of this posting is February 7, 2023. 
 
The City will be advising you of the required documents needed so that contract documents can be 
completed and prepared for the Commission approval.  
 
If you have any additional questions, feel free to contact me via email, at 
ahernandez@lakeworthbeachfl.gov. If you are unable to contact me via email, please call at (561) 
586-1770.   
 
 
 
 
 
Attachment: IFB#23-103 Harold Grimes Memorial Park Phase 1B Parking Lot 
Resurfacing- Bid Tab 

mailto:ahernandez@lakeworthbeachfl.gov






























CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH 
IFB #23-103 

 
Harold Grimes Memorial Park  

Improvement Project  
Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing  

 
 

Scope of Work  
 
 

Asphalt Work 
• Mobilize necessary equipment to the jobsite. 
• Mill 2,400 square yards of existing asphalt to an average depth of 1.5 inches. 
• Dispose of milled asphalt in a manner consistent will all City, County, and State 

regulations and environmental requirements. 
• Repave parking lot with 2,400 square yards of 1” of type 3-S Asphaltic Concrete. 

Concrete Work 
• Mobilize necessary equipment to the jobsite. 
• Demolish 228 square feet of 6” concrete and 41 linear feet of concrete curb. 
• Dispose of demolished concrete in a manner consistent will all City, County, and 

State regulations and environmental requirements. 
• Construct 2 new driveway aprons utilizing 228 square feet of 3,000 PSI pressure 

rated concrete. 
• Construct 41 linear feet of type D curbing utilizing 3,000 PSI pressure rated 

concrete. 
• Install 21 new car stops. 

Striping Work 
• Mobilize necessary equipment to the jobsite. 
• Install 1,056 linear feet of parking stall lines. 
• Install 2 new ADA parking stalls.  
• Install 1 new Veteran parking stall. 
• Install 2 new stop bars. 
• Install 135 linear feet of yellow hash lines. 
• Paint 25 linear feet of curb yellow. 

Sign Work 
• Install 4 new “One Way” signs. 
• Install 2 new “Stop” signs. 
• Install 2 new “Do Not Enter” signs. 

 
  

  



sgarcia
Callout
Apron Repair

sgarcia
Callout
Apron Repair

sgarcia
Callout
One Way (2)Stop Sign/Do Not EnterViolation Sign

sgarcia
Callout
One way Signs

sgarcia
Callout
ADA Parking

sgarcia
Callout
ADA Parking

sgarcia
Callout
Veteran Parking

sgarcia
Callout
One Way (1)Stop Sign/Do Not EnterPark HoursNo Dogs Allowed

sgarcia
Callout
Park HoursSunrise to Sunet

sgarcia
Callout
Curb Repair

sgarcia
Callout
Curb Repair

sgarcia
Callout
Curb Repair

sgarcia
Callout
Curb Repair

sgarcia
Callout
Curb Repair



   

    

 



     

    

 



    

    

 



     

 

 



    

     

 



    

 

    

 

 



 

 

 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IFB#23-103 
 

Harold Grimes Memorial Park  
Improvement Project  

Phase 1B – Parking Lot Resurfacing 
  

 
01000 

 
Palm Beach County Department of Housing & Economic Development  

Requirements for Federally Funded Projects Documentation   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 1 of 27 
 

 REQUIREMENTS FOR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS 
 

PROJECT NAME:  
 
This project is funded in part, or in whole, with Federal funds and is subject to the requirements listed 
below.  The requirements contained in this document are intended to cooperate with, to supplement, 
and to modify the general conditions and other specifications for this project.  In case of 
disagreement with any other section of this bid document/ contract, the requirements contained 
herein shall govern.  Note:  This document shall be included in the bid documents and 
contracts/ subcontracts for the project. 
 
1. General Requirements: 

The following requirements are attached: 
- Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment Opportunity 

(Executive Order 11246) 
- Equal Employment Opportunity Clause for Contracts Subject to Executive Order 11246 
- Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications 

(Executive Order 11246) 
- Bonding Requirements for Construction Contracts 
- Public Entity Crimes - Section 287.133, Florida Statute 
- Section 109 Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
- Nondiscrimination under the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, As Amended  
- Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 
- Section 3 Clause  
- Work on Nights, Weekends and Holidays 
- Lead-based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act 
- Compliance with Clean Air and Water Acts 
- Other Requirements:  E-Verify Employment Eligibility 

 

2. Forms to be completed and submitted by all bidders with their bids: 
The following forms are attached: 
- Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder 
- Anti-kickback Affidavit 
- Certification of Eligibility of General Contractor 
- Certification of Non-segregated Facilities 
- Workforce Projection 

3. Forms for the successful bidder, to be submitted after contract award: 
- Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion - 

Lower Tier Participant 
- Contractor/ Subcontractor Statement and Acknowledgement 

4. Reports to be submitted to DHED by Subrecipient/ Contractor after contract award: 
- Contract Award Report (HUD Form 2516) to be submitted as follows: 

 with the first payment request, but no later than September 30 of the year during which 
the construction contract was awarded, and 

 with the final payment request 
- Section 3 Report and Letter of Efforts – to be submitted with the final payment request 

5. Davis-Bacon Act: 
Federal labor standards provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act apply to construction projects 
valued over $2,000.  The following requirements are attached:   
- Required Use of the Labor Compliance Reporting System (LCRS) 
- Display of Posters and Wage Decision 
- Federal Labor Standards Provisions - Form HUD-4010 
- Guidance to Contractor for Compliance with Labor Standards Provisions 
- The applicable wage decision(s) shown below is attached: 

 

Wage Decision(s) No.:  

eokeefe
Typewriter
FL20220180 Highway Mod 1 02252022

eokeefe
Typewriter
City of Lake Worth Beach - Harold Grimes Memorial Park



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 2 of 27 
 

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 
TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

(EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246) 
 
1. The Bidder’s attention is called to the “Equal Opportunity Clause” and the “Standard Federal 

Equal Employment Specification” set forth herein. 
 
2. The goals and timetables for minority and female participation, expressed in percentage 

terms for the Contractor’s aggregate workforce in each trade on all construction work in the 
covered area, are as follows: 

 
Timetables  Goals for minority participation  Goals for female participation  
                                             for each trade                                            in each trade_____________                                    
 
    22.4%      6.9% 
 
Area covered:              Palm Beach County All trades for the life of the project 
 
These goals are applicable to all the Contractor’s construction work (whether or not it is Federal or 
federally assisted) performed in the covered area.  If the contractor performs construction work in a 
geographical area located outside of the covered area, it shall apply the goals established for such 
geographical area where the work is actually performed.  With regard to this second area, the 
contractor also is subject to the goals for both its federally involved and non-federally involved 
construction. 
 
The Contractor’s compliance with the Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4 shall 
be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, specific affirmative action 
obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 CFR-60-4.3(a), and its efforts to meet the 
goals.  The hours of minority and female employment and training must be substantially uniform 
throughout the length of the contract, and in each trade, and the contractor shall make a good faith 
effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects.  The transfer of minority or 
female employees or trainees from Contractor to Contractor or from project to project for the sole 
purpose of meeting the Contractor’s goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order 
and the regulations in 41 CFR Part 60-4.  Compliance with the goals will be measured against the 
total work hours performed. 
 
3. The Contractor shall provide written notifications to the Director of the Office of Federal 

Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any construction 
subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier for construction work under the contract resulting 
from this solicitation. The notification shall list the name, address and telephone number of 
the subcontractor; employer identification number of the subcontractor; estimated dollar 
amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and completion dates of the subcontract is to 
be performed. 

 
4. As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from this solicitation, the “covered area” 

is Palm Beach County, Florida. 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 3 of 27 
 

 
EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE 

FOR CONTRACTS SUBJECT TO EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246 
 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
 
1. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 

because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The contractor will take affirmative 
action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 
employment, without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action 
shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or 
transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensating; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The contractor 
agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, 
notices to be provided by the contracting officer setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause. 

 
2. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf 

of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment 
without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

 
3. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has 

a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided 
by the agency contracting officer, advising the labor union or workers’ representative of the 
contractor’s commitments under section 202 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 
1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and 
applicants for employment. 

 
4. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 

1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. 
 
5. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of 

September 24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or 
pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the 
contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain 
compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

 
6. In the event of the contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this 

contract or with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, 
terminated or suspended I whole or in pat and the contractor may be declared ineligible for 
further Government contracts I accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 
of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as 
otherwise provided by law. 

 
7. The contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every subcontract 

or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or order of the Secretary of Labor 
pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1985, so that such 
provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The contractor will take such 
action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary 
of Labor as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: 
Provided, however, that in the event the contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened 
with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction, the contractor may 
request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United 
States.  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 4 of 27 
 

 
STANDARD FEDERAL EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT SPECIFICATIONS  
(EXECUTIVE ORDER 11246) 

 
1. As used in these specifications: 

 
a. “Covered area” means the geographical area described in the solicitation from which 

 this contract resulted; 
 
b. “Director” means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, United 

States Department of Labor, or any person to whom the Director delegates authority; 
 
c. “Employer identification number” means the Federal Social Security number used on 

the Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U. S. Treasury Department Form 941. 
 
d. “Minority includes: 

 
(i) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black African racial groups not 

of Hispanic origins); 
 

(ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South 
American or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless of race); 
 

(iii) Asian and Pacific Island (all persons having origins in any or the original 
people of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the Pacific 
Islands); and 
 

(iv) American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having origins in any of the 
original people of North America and maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations 
through membership and participation or community identification). 

 
2. Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a portion of the work 

involving any construction trade, it shall physically include in each subcontract in excess of 
$10,000 the provisions of these specifications and the Notice which contains the applicable 
goals for minority and female participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which 
this contract resulted. 

 
3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown Plan approved 

by the U. S. Department of Labor in the covered area either individually or through an 
association, its affirmative action obligations on all work in the Plan area (including goals and 
timetables) shall be in accordance with that Plan for those trades which have unions 
participating in the Plan.  Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and 
compliance with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan.  Each Contractor or 
Subcontractor participating in the approved Plan is individually required to comply with its 
obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort to achieve each goal under 
the Plan in each trade in which it has employees.  The overall good faith performance by 
other Contractors or Subcontractors toward a goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any 
covered Contractor’s failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and 
timetables. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 5 of 27 
 

4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards provided in 
paragraphs 7 a through p of these specifications.  The goals set forth in the solicitation from 
which this contract resulted are expressed as percentages of the total hours of employment 
and training of minority and female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to 
achieve in each construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area.  Covered 
Construction contractors performing construction work in geographical areas where they do 
not have a Federally or federally assisted construction contract shall apply the minority and 
female goals established for the geographical area where the work is being performed.  Goals 
are published periodically in the FEDERAL REGISTER in notice form, and such notices may 
be obtained from any Office of Federal Contract and Compliance Programs office or from 
Federal procurement contracting officers.  The Contractor is expected to make substantially 
uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified. 

 
5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure by a union with 

whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to refer either minorities or 
women shall excuse the Contractor’s obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 
11246, or the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto.  

 
6. In order for the non-working training hours of apprentices and trainees to be counted in 

meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed by the Contractor during 
the training period, and the Contractor must have made a commitment to employ the 
apprentices and trainees at the completion of their training, subject to the availability of 
employment opportunities.  Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved 
by the U. S. Department of Labor. 

 
7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal employment 

opportunity.  The evaluation of the Contractor’s compliance with these specifications shall be 
based upon its effort to achieve maximum results from its actions.  The Contractor shall 
document these efforts fully, and shall implement affirmative action steps at least as 
extensive as the following: 

 
a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment, intimidation, and 

coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the Contractor’s employees are 
assigned to work.  The Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to 
each construction project.  The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all foremen, 
superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out 
the Contractor’s obligation to maintain such a working environment, with specific 
attention to minority or female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities. 

 
b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female recruitment sources 

provide written notification to minority and female organizations when the Contractor 
or its unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the 
organizations’ responses. 

 
c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone numbers of each 

minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or female referral from a 
union, a recruitment source or community organization and of what action was taken 
with respect to each such individual.  If such individual was sent to the union hiring 
hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the union or, if referred, 
not employed by the Contractor, this shall be documented in the file with the reason 
therefore, along with what-ever additional actions the Contractor may have taken. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 6 of 27 
 

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the union or unions with 
which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement has not referred to the 
Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor 
has other information that the union referral process has impeded the Contractor’s 
efforts to meet its obligations. 

 
e. Develop on-the-site-job training opportunities and/or participate in training programs 

for the area which expressly include minorities and women, including upgrading 
programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant to the Contractor’s 
employment needs, especially those programs funded or approved by the 
Department of Labor.  The Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the 
sources complied under 7a above. 

 
f. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy by providing notice of the policy to unions 

and training programs and requesting their cooperation in assisting  the Contractor in 
meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective 
bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper; annual report, 
etc.; by specific review of the policy with all management personnel and with all 
minority and female employees at least once a year; and by posting the company 
EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where 
construction work is performed. 

 
g. Review, at least annually, the company’s EEO policy and affirmative action 

obligations under these specifications with all employees having any responsibility for 
hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other employment decisions including 
specific review of these items with onsite supervisory personnel such as 
Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of construction work at 
any job site.  A written record shall be made and maintained identifying the time and 
place of these meetings, persons attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition 
of the subject matter. 

 
h. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy externally by including it in any advertising 

in the news media, specifically including minority and female news media, and 
providing written notification to and discussing the Contractor’s EEO policy with other 
Contractors and Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing 
business. 

 
i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, female and community 

organizations, to schools with minority and female students and to minority and 
female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor’s recruitment 
area and employment needs.  Not later than one month prior to the date for the 
acceptance of applications for apprenticeship or other training by any recruitment 
source, the Contractor shall send written notification to organizations such as the 
above, describing the openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the 
selection process. 

 
j. Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit other minority persons 

and women and, where reasonable, provide after school, summer and vacation 
employment to minority and female youth both on the site and in other areas of a 
Contractor’s work force. 

 
k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where there is an obligation to do 

so under 41 CFR Part 60-3. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 7 of 27 
 

l. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least of all minority and 
female personnel for promotional opportunities and encourage these employees to 
seek or to prepare for, through appropriate training, etc., such opportunities. 

 
m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work assignments and other 

personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all 
personnel and employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the 
Contractor’s obligations under these specifications are being carried out. 

 
n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-segregated except that 

separate or single-user toilet, and necessary changing facilities shall be provided to 
assure privacy between the sexes. 

 
o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for subcontractors from 

minority and female construction contractors and suppliers, including circulation of 
solicitations to minority and female contractor associations and other business 
associations. 

p. Conduct a review, at least annually, f all supervisors’ adherence to and performance 
under the Contractor’s EEO policies and affirmative action obligations. 

 
8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which assist in fulfilling 

one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a through p).  The efforts of a contractor 
association, joint contractor-union, contractor-community, or other similar group of which the 
contractor is a member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its 
obligations under 7a through p or these specifications provided that the contractor actively 
participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that the group has a positive impact 
on the employment of minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete 
benefits of the program are reflected in the Contractor’s minority and female workforce 
participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can 
provide access to documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on 
behalf of the Contractor.  The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor’s and failure 
of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor’s 
noncompliance. 

 
9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have been established.  

The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal employment opportunity and to take 
affirmative action for all minority groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority 
and non-minority. 
Consequently, the Contractor may be in violating of the Executive Order if a particular group 
is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor 
has achieved its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the 
Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is underutilized). 

 
10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action standards to 

discriminate against any person because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 
 
11. The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or firm debarred from 

Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 8 of 27 
 

12. The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of these 
specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, termination and 
cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive 
Order 11246, as amended, and its implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs.  Any Contractor  who fails to carry out such sanctions and 
penalties shall be in violating of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as 
amended. 

 
13. The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, shall implement specific 

affirmative action steps, at last as extensive as those standards prescribed I paragraph 7 of 
these specifications, so as to achieve maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal 
employment opportunity.  If the Contractor fails to company with the requirements of the 
Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall 
proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8. 

 
14. The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all employment related 

activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being carried out; to submit reports relating 
to the provisions hereof as may be required by the Government and to keep records.  
Records shall at least include for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, 
construction trade, union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, 
social security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or 
laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of 
pay, and locations at which the work was performed.  Records shall be maintained in an 
easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the degree that existing records 
satisfy this requirement, contractors shall not be required to maintain separate records. 

 
15. Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the application of other laws 

which establish different standards of compliance or upon the application of requirements for 
the hiring of local or other area residents (e.g. those under the Public Works Employment Act 
of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant Program). 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 9 of 27 
 

 
BONDING REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS 

 
 

The requirements of 2 CFR Part 200 are applicable to this project as it relates to bid guarantees, 
performance bonds, and payment bonds for construction contracts exceeding the Simplified 
Acquisition Threshold as defined in 2 CFR 200.88. As of the publication of this part, the Simplified 
Acquisition Threshold is $250,000.  

2 CFR 200.325, Bonding Requirements, established minimum requirements as follows: 

 
1. BID GUARANTEE 
 

A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five percent (5%) of the bid price.  
 

Each bid shall be accompanied by a bid bond, certified check, cashiers check or other 
negotiable instrument in the amount of five percent (5%) of the total bid.  Said check or bond 
shall be made payable to the entity soliciting the bid as the owner of the project, and shall be 
given as a guarantee that the bidder, upon receipt of the notice of intent to award the contract, 
will enter into an agreement with the owner, and will furnish the necessary documents 
including, but not limited to: insurance certificates, Payment Bond and Performance Bond; 
each of the said bonds to be in the amount stated herein.  In case of refusal or failure to enter 
into said agreement, the check or bid bond, as the case may be, shall be forfeited to the 
owner.  All bonds shall be written by a surety company of recognized standing, authorized to 
conduct business in the State of Florida, and shall have a registered agent in the State of 
Florida. 

 
2. PERFORMANCE BOND 

A performance bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent (100%) of the contract price. A 
“performance bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the 
contractor's obligations under such contract.  

3. PAYMENT BOND 

A payment bond on the part of the contractor for 100 percent (100%) of the contract price. A 
“payment bond” is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment as required by 
law of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the 
contract.  

When the successful bidder delivers the executed agreement to the owner, it must be 
accompanied by a Performance Bond and a Payment Bond, each in the amount of one 
hundred percent (100%) of the contract price, executed by a corporate surety company of 
recognized standing, authorized to do business in the State of Florida.  The bidder shall state 
in the bid proposal the name, address, telephone number and full name of the authorized 
agent of the surety or sureties who will sign these bonds in the event the contract is awarded 
to the bidder.  During the bidding and construction periods the surety company shall hold a 
current certificate of authority as an acceptable surety on Federal Bonds, in accordance with 
U. S. Department of Treasury Circular 570, Current Revision. 

 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 10 of 27 
 

 
PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

 
As provided in F.S. 287.133 by entering into this contract or performing any work in furtherance 
hereof, the contractor certifies that it, its affiliates, suppliers, subcontractors and consultants who will 
perform hereunder, have not been placed on the convicted vendor list maintained by the State of 
Florida Department of Management Services within the 36 months immediately preceding the date 
hereof.  This notice is required by F.S. 287.133 (3)(a)." 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

SECTION 109 HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT OF 1974 
 
The Nondiscrimination Clause of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 applies to 
all sections of Title 1 of the Act. 
 

“No person in the United States shall on the ground of race, color, national origin or sex be 
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination 
under any program or activity funded in whole or in part with funds available under this title.” 

 
The contractor certifies that the above Section 109 statement forms part of the contract and is in 
compliance with Section 570.601 of the Community Development Block Grant Regulations. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

NONDISCRIMINATION UNDER THE AGE DISCRIMINATION ACT OF 1975, AS AMENDED 
 
To the extent required by law, the Contractor shall comply with the requirements of the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 (P.L. 94-135), as amended, which provides that no person in the United 
States shall, on the basis of age, be excluded from the participation in, be denied the benefits of, or 
be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * 
 

TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964 
 
To the extent applicable to this agreement, the contractor will comply with, and agrees to include 
this provision in every subcontract: 
 
 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P. L. 88-352), and the regulations issued pursuant 
thereto (24 CFR Part 1), which provides that no person in the United States shall on the grounds of 
race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be 
otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the applicant receives 
Federal financial assistance and will immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate This 
assurance/ If any real property or structure thereon is provided or improved with the aid of Federal 
financial assistance extended to the applicant, this assurance shall obligate the applicant, or in the 
case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, for the period during which the real property 
or structure is used for a purpose for which the Federal financial assistance is extended, or for 
another purpose involving the provision of similar services or benefits. 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 11 of 27 
 

 
SECTION 3 CLAUSE 

 
1. The work to be performed under this contract is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of 

the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U. S.C. 170 lu (Section 
3).  The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities 
generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3 shall, to the 
greatest extent feasible, be directed to low-and very low-income persons, particularly 
persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing. 

 
2. The parties to this contract agree to comply with HUD’s requirements in 24 CFR Part 75, 

which implement Section 3.  As evidenced by their execution of this contract, the parties to 
this contract certify that they are under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent 
them from complying with the Part 75 regulations. 
 

3. The contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with 
which the contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any, a 
notice advising the labor organization or workers representative of the contractor’s 
commitment under this Section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous 
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment 
positions can see the notice.  The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set 
forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and training 
positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s) taking 
applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin. 
 

4. The contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to 
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 75, and agrees to take appropriate action, as 
provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 clause, upon a 
finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 75.  The 
contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the contractor has notice or 
knowledge that the subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR 
Part 75. 
 

5. The contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training positions, 
that are filled (1) after the contractor is selected but before the contract is executed, and (2) 
with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR Part 75 require employment 
opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the contractor’s obligations under 
24 CFR Part 75. 
  

6. Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 75 may result in sanctions, 
termination of this contract for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD 
assisted contracts. 

 
* * * * * * * * * * * * * 

 
WORK ON NIGHTS, WEEKENDS, AND HOLIDAYS 

 
Neither the prime contractor nor any subcontractor shall be allowed to perform one hundred percent 
(100%) of their work on this project on nights, weekends, or Palm Beach County recognized holidays.  
The prime contractor and all subcontractors shall, at a minimum, perform work on this project for the 
duration of one regular working day.  The prime contractor may request a waiver to the above 
requirement should the nature of the project so necessitate. 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 12 of 27 
 

 
LEAD-BASED PAINT POISONING PREVENTION ACT 

 
References: - 24 CFR Part 570 

- 24 CFR Part 35 
  - Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, as amended 
  - Residential Lead-Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 
  - 40 CFR Part 745 
 
The aforementioned Acts and the referenced regulations prohibit the use of lead-based paint in 
housing receiving Federal assistance, and in child occupied facilities. 
In addition, these regulations require elimination of lead-based paint hazards in housing constructed 
prior to 1978 which receives Federal assistance. 
 

* * * * * * * * * * *  
 

COMPLIANCE WITH CLEAN AIR AND WATER ACTS 
 
In compliance with the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 1857(R) et. Seq., Section 508 pf Clean 
Water Pollution Control Act, as amended 33 U.S.C. 1368 and Executive Order 11738. 
 
1251 et. Seq., and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency with respect thereto, the 
appropriate parts of 40 CFR as amended from time to time.  Contractor agrees that: 
 

(1) No facility to be utilized in the performance of this Contract or any subcontract shall 
not be a facility listed on the EPA list of Violating Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20. 

(2) He will comply with all requirements of Section 114 of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 
(42 USC 1857 c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as 
amended, (33 USC 1368 relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and 
information, as well as all other requirements specified in said Section 114 and 
Section 308. And all regulations and guidelines issued there under. 

(3) He will promptly notify the Owner of any notification received from the Director, Office 
of Federal Activities, EPA, indicating that a facility utilized or to be utilized for the 
contract is under consideration to be listed on the EPA List of Violating Facilities. 

(4) He will comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency 
which are contained in the State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with 
the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (P.L. 49-163). 

(5) He will include or cause to be included the provisions of paragraph (1) through (5) of 
this section in every nonexempt subcontract and that he will take such action as the 
Government may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions. 

 
* * * * * * * * * * *  

 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 13 of 27 
 

OTHER REQUIREMENTS 
 

 
E-VERIFY EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY  

 
 
Pursuant to section 448.095, Florida Statutes, Beginning January 1, 2021, every public employer, 
contractor, and subcontractor shall register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all newly hired employees. A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor 
may not enter into a contract unless each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify 
system. 
 
Contractor must provide evidence of compliance with section 448.095, Florida Statutes.  Evidence 
shall consist of a copy of their proof of registration in the E-Verify system. 
 
If a contractor enters into a contract with a subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the 
contractor with an affidavit stating that the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or 
subcontract with an unauthorized alien, as defined in section 448.095, Florida Statutes.   
 
The contractor shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the contract. 
 
A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor who has a good faith belief that a person or entity 
with which it is contracting has knowingly violated s. 448.09(1) shall terminate the contract with the 
person or entity. 
 
A public employer that has a good faith belief that a subcontractor knowingly violated this subsection, 
but the contractor otherwise complied with this subsection, shall promptly notify the contractor and 
order the contractor to immediately terminate the contract with the subcontractor. 
 
A contract terminated under subparagraph 1. or subparagraph 2. is not a breach of contract and may 
not be considered as such. 
 
 
  

https://www.flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2020/448.09


















PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 19 of 27 
 

 
CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, 

SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY, AND VOLUNTARY  
EXCLUSION-LOWER TIER PARTICIPANT 

 
(SUBCONTRACTORS) 

 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower-Tier 
Covered Transactions pursuant to 24 CFR, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 24.510(b) and HUD 
Handbook 1300.13 REV.1: 
 
By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower-tier participant, certifies that neither 
it, nor its principals, is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency. 
  
Further, I, we, provide the certification set out below: 
 
1. I, and any principals of my firm, understand that the certification in this clause is a material 

representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered 
into.  If it is later determined that I, we, knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in 
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the Department or agency 
with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies. 
 

2. Further, I, and any principal of my firm, shall provide immediate written notice to the person 
to which this proposal is submitted if at any time I, we, learn that my/our certification was 
erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. 

 
3 By submitting this proposal, I, and any principals of my firm, agree that should the proposed 

covered transaction be entered into, I, we, will not knowingly enter into any lower-tier covered 
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily 
excluded from participation.  In this covered transaction unless authorized by the agency with 
which this transaction originated. 

 
4. I, and any principals of my firm, further agree by submitting this proposal that I/we, will include 

this Certification, without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all 
solicitations for lower-tier covered transacting. 

 
Project Name:       __________ ____________________________________________________                                                                                                                         
 
Subcontractor Name:  ______________________________________________________ _____                                                                      
 
Address: ______________________________________________________________________                                                             
 
State of FL Contractor License or Palm Beach County Contractors Certificate of Competency 
 
License/ Certification No:                                                          Expiration Date:    ________       ____        
 
By: 
                                                                                                                           
________________________ ________________________ _____________ 
Name and Title Signature Date 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms      Page 20 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY                   DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms              Page 21 of 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PH

IH

CPD

Housing

Grant/Project Number or HUD 

Case Number or other 

identification of property, 

subdivision, dwelling unit, etc.             

7a.

Amount of 

Contract or 

Subcontact                   

7b.

Type of Trade 

Code             

(See below)     

7c.

Contractor or 

Subcontractor 

Business 

Racial/Ethnic 

(See below)      

7d.

Woman Owned Business 

(Yes or No)                                

7e.

Prime Contractor Identification (ID) 

Number                                                       

7f.

Sec.  3    

7g.

Subcontractor 

Identification (ID) 

Number                     

7h

Sec. 3                

7i.

State Zip

CPD:

1 = New Construction 6 = Professional

2 = Education/Training 7 = Tenant Services

3 = Other 8 = Education/Training

0 = Other

7d:  Racial/Ethnic Codes:

1 = White Americans

3 = Native Americans

4 = Hispanic Americans

5: Program Codes (Complete for Housing and Public and Indian Housing programs only):

2= Flexible Subsidy

1 = All Insured, including Section8 5 = Section 202

6 = HUD-Held (Management)

Housing/Public Housing:

7c: Type of Trade Codes:

2 = Black Americans1 = New Construction

9 = Arch./Engrg. Appraisal 5 = Asian/Pacific Americans

8 = Section 8114 = Insured (Management)

3 = Section 8 Noninsured, Non-HFDA 7 = Public/India Housing

OMB Approval No.: 2577-0088                                               

OMB Approval No.: 2502-0355 

Executive Orders dated July 14, 1983, directs the Minority Business Development Plans shall be developed by each Federal Agency and the these annual plans shall establish minority business development objectives.  The information is used by HUD to monitor and evaluate MBE activities against the total program 

activity and the designated minority business enterprise (MBE) goals.  The Department requires the information to provide guidance and oversight for programs for the development of minority business enterprise concerning Minority Business Development.  If the information is not collected HUD would not be able to 

establish meaningful MBE goals nor evaluate MBE performance against these goals.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  The Information is voluntary.  

HUD may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

                                      Oct. 1 - Sept. 30 (Annual -FY)

Check if:

                                                    

Contract and Subcontract Activity

Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address                                                                                                                                    

7j.

Name Street City

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                                                                                                                                             

Privacy Act Notice = The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Housing Administration, is authorized to solicit the Information requested in this form by virtue of   Title 12, United States Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulation.  It will not be disclosed or relesed outside the 

United States Department of Housing and Urban Development without your consetn, except as required or permitted by Law.

Previous editions are obsolete. form HUD-2516 (8/98)

2 = Substantial Rehab.

3 = Repair

5 = Project Mangt.

4 = Service

6 = Hasidic Jews

1. Grantee/Project Owner/Developer/Sponsor/Builder/Agency

3a. Name of Contact Person 3b. Phone Number (Including Area Code) 4. Reporting Period 5. Program Code (Not applicable for CPD programs.)  

See explanation of Codes at bottom of Page Use a 

separate sheet for each program code.

6.  Date Submitted to Field Office

2.  Location (City, State Zip  Code)

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 22 of 27 

 

Section 3 - Acknowledgment and Intent to Comply 
(HUD Regulation, 24 CFR Part 75) 

Name of Subrecipient  

Business Address, City, State, & Zip  

Business Phone Number  Contact Email  

Primary Contact Name  

Primary Contact Phone Number  Title  

 

Name of Contractor or Subcontractor  

Business Address, City, State, & Zip  

Business Phone Number  Contact Email  

Primary Contact Name  

Primary Contact Phone Number  Title  

 
If awarded a HUD funded agreement and/or contract: 

A. Insert the required Section 3 Clause language into all contracts and subcontracts associated with 

the federal funded projects; 

B. Is under no contractual or other impediment that would prevent it from complying with the 

requirements of Section3 as set forth in 24 CFR Part 75; and 

C. Comply with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 75; and 

D. Submit all required and/or requested Section 3 documentation to include, but not limited to, 

total labors hours performed by Section 3 and Targeted Section 3 workers, total labor hours for 

the project, certifications of Section 3 and Targeted section 3 workers, and certifications for 

Section 3 business concerns; and 

E. Will not contract/subcontract with ant contractor/subcontractor where the Recipient/Contractor 

has notice or knowledge that the contractor/subcontractor has been found in violation of any 

provision of 24 CFR Part 75; and 

F. Maintain documentation for the time period required for record retention or in the absence of 
applicable program regulations in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. 

 
We are (I am) committed to comply with the HUD Section 3 regulation and DHED Section 3 
requirements.  It is our (my) desire to ensure compliance, to the greatest extent feasible, through the 
awarding of contracts for work and services to Section 3 business concerns and to provide employment 
and training  to Section 3 workers and Targeted Section 3 workers. 

 
 
 
 

Subrecipient: 

Print Name: ______________________________ 

Signature: _______________________________ 

Title: _____________________________ 

Date: _____________________ 

Contractor/Subcontractor: 

Print Name: _______________________________ 

Signature: ________________________________ 

Title: ____________________________________ 

Date: _____________________ 



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 23 of 27 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 24 of 27 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms    Page 25 of 27 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PALM BEACH COUNTY                  DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms        Page 26 of 27 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY             DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part One General Requirements and Forms   Page 27 of 27 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SUBMIT THIS FORM IN ELECTRONIC FORMAT  
USING THE FILE PROVIDED 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 1 of 12 

 

 
REQUIRED USE OF THE LABOR COMPLIANCE  

REPORTING SYSTEM (LCRS) 
 
As part of the County’s commitment to assist the Subrecipient and its contractors/ subcontractors 
to conveniently comply with legal and contractual requirements including Davis Bacon and 
Related Acts (DBRA), the Department of Housing & Economic Sustainability has established a 
Labor Compliance Reporting System (LCRS) for this project.  The Subrecipient’s contractors/ 
subcontractors will no longer be required to submit paper copies of fringe benefits statements, 
weekly-certified payroll reports and/ or work performance reports, and shall instead use the LCRS 
for all DBRA reporting and tracking.  The LCRS is available for use 24-hours a day, 7 days a 
week, at no cost for reporting weekly certified payrolls and labor compliance related documents. 
Utilization of this system should also prove helpful in expediting the process of reviewing payrolls, 
approving progress payments to contractors and reimbursement payments to subrecipients/ 
developers.  
 
USER RESPONSIBILITIES 
1. Subrecipients, and its contractors/subs shall NOT create internet links to the Service or 

Frame or mirror any content on any other server or wireless or internet-based device.  
2. Subrecipient and its contractors/subs are responsible for all activity occurring under User 

account and shall abide by all applicable local, state, national laws, treaties and 
regulations in connection with the use of the service, including those related to data 
privacy, international communications and the transmission of technical data. The LCRS 
Web Address for contractors/subs use will be provided by DHED, along with Federal 
Requirements and Wage Decision(s). 

3. Subrecipient shall require its contractor and subs to register through the Labor Compliance 
Reporting System. This language shall be contained in the subrecipient’s Bid and 
Construction documents. 

4. Subrecipient shall require All fringe benefits statements, weekly-certified payroll reports to 
be submitted through the LCRS and this language shall be contained in the Subrecipient’s 
Bid and Construction documents. 

 
DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES FOR LCRS 
LCRS and its licensors make no representation, warranty, or guaranty as to the reliability, 
timeliness, quality, suitability, truth, availability, accuracy or completeness of the service or any 
content. LCRS and its licensors do not represent or warrant that:  
1. The use of the service will be secure, timely, uninterrupted or error-free or operate in 

combination with any other hardware, software, system or data. 
2. The service will meet PBC/DHED’s Requirements or expectations. 
3. Any stored data will be accurate or reliable. 
4. The quality of any products, services, information or other material purchased or obtained 

by PBC/DHED through the service will meet PBC/DHED’s requirements or expectations. 
5. Errors or defects will be corrected. 
6. The service or the servers that make the service available are free of viruses or other 

harmful components. 
All content is provided to PBC/DHED strictly on an “AS IS” basis. All conditions, representations 
and warranties, whether expressed or implied, statutory or otherwise, including, without limitation, 
any implied warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose are hereby disclaimed 
to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law by LCRS and its licensors. 

  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 2 of 12 

 

 
DISPLAY OF POSTERS AND WAGE DECISION 

 
 
 
The contractor shall, for each federally funded project, supply and install a minimum (1) 4 ft x 4 ft 
display surface with clear acrylic cover sheet for all-weather protection and easy visibility on the 
job site. 
 
Said panel shall be mounted on a substantial post of steel, aluminum, or wood, with the bottom 
edge of the panel at 48" from ground level.  Exceptions to this mounting system may be approved 
by Palm Beach County Department of Housing and Economic Sustainability. 
 
The contractor shall supply a standard display of posters at the job site, including but not limited 
to: 

 Employee Rights Under the Davis- Bacon Act (English) 

 Employee Rights Under the Davis-Bacon Act (Spanish) 

 applicable Wage Decision(s)  

 Palm Beach County seal 
 
The above posters, wage decision and Palm Beach County seal for display will be provided by 
Palm Beach County Department of Housing and Economic Sustainability at the pre-construction 
conference and shall be in a prominent location for the ease of exposure to all employees. 
 
The contractor shall be responsible for all other Federal, State and/ or local poster requirements.  
 
The cost of poster mounting boards and posts are to be paid for by the contractor. 
 
Display board must be maintained in a legible condition throughout the entire project duration.  
Failure to provide the above could result in suspension of contract payments until violation(s) are 
corrected as directed by Palm Beach County Department of Housing and Economic 
Sustainability. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 3 of 12 

 

FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS            
U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

 
The Project or Program to which the construction work covered by this contract pertains is being 
assisted by the United States of America and the following Federal Labor Standards Provisions 
are included in this Contract pursuant to the provisions applicable to such Federal assistance. 
 
 

A. 1: (i) Minimum Wages.  All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of 
the work will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent 
deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by 
regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3), the full 
amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of 
payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the 
Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual 
relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and 
mechanics.  Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits 
under Section l(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered 
wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv); also, 
regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often 
than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs, which cover the particular weekly period, are 
deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. 
 
Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the 
wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except 
as provided in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one 
classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually 
worked therein: Provided, that the employer’s payroll records accurately set forth the time spent 
in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any 
additional classification and wage rates conformed under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(ii) and the Davis-
Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at 
the site of the work in a prominent and accessible, place where it can be easily seen by the 
workers. 

 

             (ii) (a) Any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination 
and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage 
determination. HUD shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits 
therefor only when the following criteria have been met: 
 

(1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a        
classification in the wage determination; and 
 
(2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 
 
(3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a 
reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination. 

 
               (b) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the 
classification (if known), or their representatives, and HUD or its designee agree on the 
classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where 
appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by HUD or its designee to the Administrator 
of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U. S. Department of 
Labor, Washington, D. C. 20210.   



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 4 of 12 

 

The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every 
additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will 
notify HUD or its designee within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary. (Approved 
by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB control number 1215-0140.) 
 

      (c) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the 
classification or their representatives, and HUD or its designee do not agree on the proposed 
classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where 
appropriate), HUD or its designee shall refer the questions, including the view of all interested 
parties and the recommendation of HUD or its designee, to the Administrator for determination.  
The Administrator, or an authorized representative will issue a determination within 30 days of 
receipt and so advise HUD or its designee or will notify HUD or its designee within the 30 day 
period that additional time is necessary.  (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget 
under OMB Control Number 1215-0140.) 
 
                  (d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to 
subparagraphs (1)(ii)(b) or (c) of this paragraph, shall be paid to all workers performing work in 
the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the 
classification. 
 

    (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers 
or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor 
shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide 
fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 
 
    (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the 
contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 
reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program.  Provided,   
That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the 
applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require 
the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the 
plan or program.  (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control 
Number 1215-0140.) 
 

A.2: Withholding.  HUD or its designee shall upon its own action or upon written request of an 
authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the 
contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or 
any other Federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, 
which is held by the same prime contractor so much of the accrued payments or advances as 
may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees and 
helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by 
the contract.  In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic including any apprentice, 
trainee or helper, employed or working on the site of the work, all or part of the wages required 
by the contract, HUD or its designee may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant 
or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, 
advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.  HUD or its designee may, after 
written notice to the contractor, disburse such amounts withheld for and on account of the 
contractor or subcontractor to the respective employee to whom they are due.  The Comptroller 
General shall make such disbursements in the case of direct Davis-Bacon Act contracts. 
 

A.3:     (i) Payrolls and basic records.  Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be 
maintained by the contractor during the course of the work preserved for a period of three years 
thereafter for all laborers and mechanic working at the site of the work.  Such records shall contain 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 5 of 12 

 

the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct 
classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for 
bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section I(b)(2)(B) 
of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual 
wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5 (a)(1)(iv) that the 
wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in 
providing benefits under a plan or program described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon 
Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such 
benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or 
program has been communicated In writing to the laborer of mechanics affected, and records 
which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits.   
Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved  programs shall maintain written 
evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs,  the 
registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage raises prescribed in the 
applicable programs. (Approved by the Office of Management of Budget under OMB Control 
Number 1215-0140 and 1215-0017.) 
 

 (ii)(a) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is 

performed a copy of all payrolls to HUD or its designee if the agency is  a party to the contract, 

but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls to the applicant , 

sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee.  The payrolls 

submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained 

under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(I) except that full social security numbers and home addresses shall 

not be included on weekly transmittals. Instead the payrolls shall only need to include and 

individually identifying number for each employee (e.g., the last four digits of the employee’s social 

security number).  The required weekly payroll information may be submitted in any form desired.  

Optional form WH-347 is available for this purpose from the Wage and Hour Division Web Site at 

https://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm or its successor site. The prime contractor is 

responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors. Contractors and 

subcontractors shall maintain the full social security number and current address of each of each 

covered worker, and shall provide them upon request to HUD or its designee if the agency is a 

party to the contract, but if the agency is not such a party, the contractor will submit the payrolls 

to the applicant sponsor, or owner, as the case may be, for transmission to HUD or its designee, 

the contractor, or the Wage and Hour Division of the Department of Labor for purposes of an 

investigation or audit of compliance with prevailing wage requirements.  It is not a violation of this 

subparagraph for a prime contractor to require a subcontractor to provide addresses and social 

security numbers to the prime contractor for its own records, without weekly submissions to HUD 

or its designee. (Approved by the Office of Management and Budget under OMB Control Number 

1215-0149.) 

               (b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance.” signed 
by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the 
persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following: 
 

(1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be 
maintained under 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(3)(ii), the appropriate information is being 
maintained under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(3)(I), and that such information is correct and 
complete; 

 
(2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) 
employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages 

https://www.dol.gov/whd/forms/wh347instr.htm


PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 6 of 12 

 

earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been 
made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible 
deductions as set forth in 29 CFR Part 3; 

 
(3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage 
rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, 
as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.  

 
             (c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side 
of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the “Statement of 
Compliance” required by paragraph A.3(ii)(b) of this section. 
 
 (d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or 
subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under Section 1001 of Title 18 and Section 231 of 
Title 31 of the United States Code. 
 
 (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph  
A.3(i) of this section available for inspection, copying or transcription by authorized 
representatives of HUD or its designee or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such 
representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or 
subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, HUD or its designee 
may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant or owner, take such action as may 
be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance,  or guarantee of funds.  
Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records 
available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR Part 5.12. 
 
A.4: Apprentices and Trainees. 
 (i) Apprentices. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate 
for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a 
bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U. S. Department of Labor, Employment 
and Training Administration, Office of Apprenticeship and Training, Employer and Labor Services 
or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Office, or if a person is employed in his 
or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship 
program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Office 
of Apprenticeship and Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency 
(where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.  The allowable 
ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater 
than the ratio permitted to contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program.  
Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not register or otherwise 
employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 
determination for the classification of work actually performed.  In addition, any apprentice, 
performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall 
be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually 
performed.  Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that 
in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the 
journeyman’s hourly rate) specified in the contractor’s or subcontractor’s registered program shall 
be observed.  Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered 
program for the apprentice’s level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen 
hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.  Apprentices shall be paid fringe 
benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program.  If the apprenticeship 
program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe 
benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification.  If the Administrator 
determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 7 of 12 

 

shall be paid in accordance with that determination.  In the event the Office of Apprenticeship and 
Training, Employer and Labor Services or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the 
Office, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be 
permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work 
performed until an acceptable program is approved. 
 

 (ii) Trainees.  Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work 
at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to 
and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal 
certification by the U. S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.  The 
ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan 
approved by the Employment and Training Administration.  Every trainee must be paid at not less 
than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee’s level of progress, expressed as 
a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.  
Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. 
 
If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of 

fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour 

Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding 

journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits 

for apprentices.  Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and 

participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be 

paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually 

performed.  In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted 

under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage 

determination for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training 

Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted 

to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work perform until an 

acceptable program is approved. 

            (iii) Equal employment opportunity.  The utilization of apprentices, trainees and 
journeymen under 29CFR Part 5 shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity 
requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR Part 30. 
 
A.5: Compliance with Copeland Act requirements.  The contractor shall comply with the 
requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 
 
A.6:  Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor will insert in any subcontracts the clauses 
contained in Subparagraphs 1 through 11 in this Paragraph A, and such other clauses as HUD 
or its designee may by appropriate instructions require and a copy of the applicable prevailing 
wage decision, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any 
lower tier subcontracts.  The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any 
subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contractor with all the contract clauses in this 
paragraph. 
 
A.7: Contracts  termination; debarment.  A breech of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 
may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a 
subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12. 
 
A.8: Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act Requirements.  All rulings and 
interpretations of the Davis-Bacon Acts contained in 29 CFR Part 1, 3, and 5 are herein 
incorporated by reference in this contract. 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 8 of 12 

 

 

A.9: Disputes concerning labor standards.  Disputes arising out of the labor standards 
provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract.  
Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor 
set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5,6, and 7.  Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes 
between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and HUD or its designee, the U.S. 
Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives. 
 
A.10: (i) Certification of Eligibility.  By entering into this contract the contractor certifies that 
neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor’s firm is a 
person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of Section 3(a) of the 
Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD 
programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24. 
 
 (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award 
of a Government contract by virtue of Section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1) 
or to be awarded HUD contracts or participate in HUD programs pursuant to 24 CFR Part 24. 
 
 (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U. S. Criminal Code, 18 
U.S.C. 1001.  Additionally, U.S.C., Section 1010, Title 18, U.S.C.,  “Federal Housing 
Administration transactions, provides in part “Whoever, for the purpose of ... influencing in any 
way the action of such Administration...makes, utters or publishes any statement, knowing the 
same to be false...shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than two years or 
both.” 
 
A.11: Complaints, Proceedings, or Testimony by Employees.  No laborer or mechanic to 
whom the wage, salary, or other labor standards provisions of this Contract are applicable shall 
be discharged or in any other manner discriminated against by the Contractor or any 
subcontractor because such employee has filed any complaint or instituted or caused to be 
instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating 
to the labor standards applicable under this Contract to his employer. 
 

 
B.  Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
The provisions of this Paragraph B are applicable where the amount of prime contract exceeds 
$100,000.  As used in this paragraph, the term “laborers” and “mechanics” include watchmen and 
guards. 
 

(1) Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontracting contracting for any part of 
the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or 
mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in 
which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such 
workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less 
than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 
forty hours in such workweek. 

 
(2) Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages.  In the event of any 

violation of the clause set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, the contractor 

and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages.  In 

addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in case 

of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District 

or such territory), for liquidated damages.  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 9 of 12 

 

 

Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or 

mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set 

forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph, in the sum of $10 for each calendar day 

on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard 

workweek of 40 hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause 

set forth in subparagraph (1) of this paragraph. 

 

(3) Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages.  HUD or its designee shall 

upon its own action or upon written request of authorized representative of the 

Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on 

account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such 

contractor or any other Federal contract with the same prime contract, or any other 

Federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 

Act, which is held by the same prime contractor such sums as may be determined to 

be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid 

wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set truth in subparagraph (2) 

of this paragraph. 

 
(4) Subcontracts.  The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the 

clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) through (4) of this paragraph and also a clause 

requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  

The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or 

lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in subparagraphs (1) though (4) of 

this paragraph. 

 

C.  Health and Safety 
The provisions of this Paragraph C are applicable only where the amount of the prime contract 
exceeds $100,000. 
 

(1) No laborer or mechanic shall be required to work in surroundings or under working 

conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his health and safety as 

determined under construction safety and health standards promulgated by the 

Secretary of Labor by regulation. 

 
(2) The Contractor shall comply with all regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor 

pursuant to Title 29 Part 1926 and failure to comply may result in imposition of 

sanctions pursuant to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (Public Law 

91-54, 83 Stat 96). 40 USC 3701 et seq. 

 
(3) The Contractor shall include the provisions of this paragraph in every subcontract so 

that such provisions will be binding on each subcontractor.  The Contractor shall take 

such action with respect to any subcontractor as the Secretary of Housing and Urban 

Development or the Secretary of Labor shall direct as a means of enforcing such 

provisions 

  



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 10 of 12 

 

GUIDANCE TO CONTRACTOR FOR COMPLIANCE WITH LABOR STANDARDS 
PROVISIONS 
 
A. Contracts with Two Wage Decisions 
If the contract includes two wage decisions, the contractor, and each subcontractor who works on 
the site, must submit either two separate payrolls (one for each wage decision) or one payroll 
which identifies each worker twice and the hours worked under each wage decision. One single 
payroll, reflecting each worker once, may be submitted provided the Contractor uses the higher 
rate in the wage decisions for each identical job classification. However, where a job classification 
is not listed in a wage decision and is needed for that portion of the work, the classification must 
be added to the wage decision. A worker may not be paid at the rate for a classification using the 
hourly rate for that same classification in another wage decision.  After the additional classification 
is approved, the contractor may pay the higher of the two rates and submit one payroll, if desired. 
 
 

B. Complying with Minimum Hourly Amounts 
 (1) The minimum hourly amount due to a worker in each classification is the total of the 
amounts in the “Rates” and “Fringe Benefits” (if any) columns of the applicable wage decision. 
 
 (2) The contractor may satisfy this minimum hourly amount by any combination of cash 
and bona fide fringe benefits, regardless of the individual amounts reflected in the “Rates” and 
“Fringe Benefits” columns. 
 
 (3) A contractor payment for a worker which is required by law is not a fringe benefit in 
meeting the minimum hourly amount due under the applicable wage decision. For example, 
contractor payments for FICA or unemployment insurance are not a fringe benefit; however, 
contractor payments for health insurance or retirement are a fringe benefit. Generally, a fringe 
benefit is bona fide if (a) it is available to most workers and (b) involves payments to a third party. 
 
 (4) The hourly value of the fringe benefit is calculated by dividing the contractor’s annual 

cost (excluding any amount contributed by the worker) for the fringe benefit by 2080. Therefore, 

for workers with overtime, an additional payment may be required to meet the minimum hourly 

wages since generally fringe benefits have no value for any time worked over 40 hours weekly. 

(If a worker is paid more than the minimum rates required by the wage decision, this should not 

be a problem. As long as the total wages received by a worker for straight time equals the hours 

worked times the minimum hourly rate in the wage decision, the requirement of the Davis-Bacon 

and Related Acts has been satisfied.) 

C. Overtime 
For any project work over 40 hours weekly, a worker generally must be paid 150% of the actual 
hourly cash rate received, not the minimum required by the wage decision. (The Davis-Bacon and 
Related Acts only establishes minimum rates and does not address overtime; the Contract Work 
Hours Act contains the overtime requirement and uses “basic rate of pay” as the base for 
calculation, not the minimum rates established by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts.) 
 

D. Deductions 
Workers who have deductions, not required by law, from their pay must authorize these 
deductions in writing. The authorization must identify the purpose of each deduction and the 
amount, which may be a specific dollar amount or a percentage. A copy of the authorization must 
be submitted with the first payroll containing the deduction. If deducted amounts increase, another 
authorization must be submitted. If deducted amounts decrease, no revision to the original 
authorization is needed. Court-ordered deductions, such as child support, may be identified by 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 11 of 12 

 

the responsible payroll person in a separate document. This document should identify the worker, 
the amount deducted and the purpose. A copy of the court order should be submitted. 
 
E. Classifications Not Included in the Wage Decision 
If a classification not in the wage decision is required, please advise the owner’s representative 
in writing and identify the job classification(s) required. In some instances, the State agency may 
allow the use of a similar classification in the wage decision. 
 
Otherwise, the contractor and affected workers must agree on a minimum rate, which cannot be 
lower than the lowest rate for any trade in the wage decision. Laborers (including any subcategory 
of the laborer classification) and truck drivers are not considered a trade for this purpose. If the 
classification involves a power equipment operator, the minimum cannot be lower than the lowest 
rate for any power equipment operator in the wage decision. The owner will provide forms to 
document agreement on the minimum rate by the affected workers and contractor. 
 
The U.S. Department of Labor (USDOL) must approve the proposed classification and rate. The 
contractor may pay the proposed rate until the USDOL makes a determination. Should the 
USDOL require a higher rate, the contractor must make wage restitution to the affected worker(s) 
for all hours worked under the proposed rate. 
 
F. Supervisory Personnel 
Foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend at least 80% of their time supervising 
workers are not covered by the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts. Therefore, a wage decision will 
not include such supervisory classifications and their wages are not subject to any minimums 
under the Davis-Bacon and Related Act or overtime payments under the Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act. However, foremen and other supervisory personnel who spend less 
than 80% of their time engaged in supervisory activities are considered workers/mechanics for 
the time spent engaged in manual labor and must be paid at least the minimum in the wage 
decision for the appropriate classification(s) based on the work performed. 
 
G. Sole Proprietorships/ Independent Contractors/ Leased Workers 
The nature of the relationship between a prime contractor and a worker does not affect the 
requirement to comply with the labor standards provisions of this contract. The applicability of the 
labor standards provisions is based on the nature of the work performed. 
 
If the work performed is primarily manual in nature, the worker is subject to the labor standards 
provisions in this contract. For example, if John Smith is the owner of ABC Plumbing and performs 
all plumbing work himself, then Mr. Smith is subject to the labor standards provisions, including 
minimum wages and overtime. His status as “owner” is irrelevant for labor standards purposes. 
 
If a worker meets the IRS standards for being an independent contractor, and is employed as 
such, this means that the worker must submit a separate payroll as a subcontractor rather than 
be included on some other payroll. The worker is still subject to the labor standards provisions in 
this contract, including minimum wages and overtime. 
 

If a contractor or subcontractor leases its workers, they are subject to the labor standards 
provisions in this contract, including minimum wages and overtime. The leasing firm must submit 
payrolls and these payrolls must reflect information required to determine compliance with the 
labor standards provisions of this contract, including a classification for each worker based on the 
nature of the work performed, number of regular hours worked, and number of overtime hours 
worked. 
 
H. Apprentices / Helpers 



PALM BEACH COUNTY              DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

 

2021-1014 Federal Requirements Construction - Part Two DBRA   Page 12 of 12 

 

A worker may be classified as an apprentice only if participating in a federal or state program.  
Documentation of participation must be submitted. Generally, the apprentice program specifies 
that the apprentice will be compensated at a percentage of journeyman rate. For Davis-Bacon 
Act purposes, the hourly rate cannot be lower than the percentage of the hourly rate for the 
classification in the applicable wage decision. 
 
If the worker does not participate in a federal or state apprentice program, then the worker must 
be classified according to duties performed. This procedure may require classification in the 
“trade” depending on tools used, or as a laborer if specialized tools of the trade are not used. The 
contractor may want to consult with the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor 
located in most large cities regarding the appropriate classification. 
 
Presently, no worker may be classified as a “helper”. As with apprentices not participating in a 
formal apprentice program, the worker must be classified according to duties performed and tools 
used.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 









3/30/23, 4:17 PM SAM.gov

https://sam.gov/wage-determination/FL20230182/0 1/6

          "General Decision Number: FL20230182 01/06/2023

Superseded General Decision Number: FL20220182

State: Florida

Construction Type: Highway

County: Palm Beach County in Florida.

HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS

Note: Contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act are generally
required to pay at least the applicable minimum wage rate
required under Executive Order 14026 or Executive Order 13658.
Please note that these Executive Orders apply to covered
contracts entered into by the federal government that are
subject to the Davis-Bacon Act itself, but do not apply to
contracts subject only to the Davis-Bacon Related Acts,
including those set forth at 29 CFR 5.1(a)(2)-(60).

______________________________________________________________
|If the contract is entered    |. Executive Order 14026      |
|into on or after January 30,  |  generally applies to the   |
|2022, or the contract is      |  contract.                  |
|renewed or extended (e.g., an |. The contractor must pay    |
|option is exercised) on or    |  all covered workers at     |
|after January 30, 2022:       |  least $16.20 per hour (or  |
|                              |  the applicable wage rate   |
|                              |  listed on this wage        |
|                              |  determination, if it is    |
|                              |  higher) for all hours      |
|                              |  spent performing on the    |
|                              |  contract in 2023.          |
|______________________________|_____________________________|
|If the contract was awarded on|. Executive Order 13658      |
|or between January 1, 2015 and|  generally applies to the   |
|January 29, 2022, and the     |  contract.                  |
|contract is not renewed or    |. The contractor must pay all|
|extended on or after January  |  covered workers at least   |
|30, 2022:                     |  $12.15 per hour (or the    |
|                              |  applicable wage rate listed|
|                              |  on this wage determination,|
|                              |  if it is higher) for all   |
|                              |  hours spent performing on  |
|                              |  that contract in 2023.     |
|______________________________|_____________________________|

The applicable Executive Order minimum wage rate will be
adjusted annually. If this contract is covered by one of the
Executive Orders and a classification considered necessary for
performance of work on the contract does not appear on this
wage determination, the contractor must still submit a
conformance request.

Additional information on contractor requirements and worker
protections under the Executive Orders is available at
http://www.dol.gov/whd/govcontracts.

Modification Number     Publication Date
          0              01/06/2023

  SUFL2013-043 08/19/2013



3/30/23, 4:17 PM SAM.gov

https://sam.gov/wage-determination/FL20230182/0 2/6

                                  Rates          Fringes

CARPENTER, Includes Form Work....$ 15.38 **          0.00
  
CEMENT MASON/CONCRETE FINISHER...$ 15.69 **          0.00
  
ELECTRICIAN......................$ 18.20             0.00
  
FENCE ERECTOR....................$ 12.82 **          0.00
  
HIGHWAY/PARKING LOT STRIPING:   
 Operator (Striping Machine).....$ 15.09 **          0.00
  
HIGHWAY/PARKING LOT STRIPING:   
 Painter.........................$ 12.13 **          0.00
  
HIGHWAY/PARKING LOT STRIPING:   
Operator (Spray Nozzleman).......$ 11.81 **          0.00
  
INSTALLER - GUARDRAIL............$ 13.96 **          0.00
  
IRONWORKER, ORNAMENTAL...........$ 13.48 **          0.00
  
IRONWORKER, REINFORCING..........$ 16.58             0.00
  
IRONWORKER, STRUCTURAL...........$ 16.42             0.00
  
LABORER (Traffic Control   
Specialist incl. placing of   
cones/barricades/barrels -   
Setter, Mover, Sweeper)..........$ 12.97 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Asphalt, Includes   
Raker, Shoveler, Spreader and   
Distributor......................$ 12.99 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Common or General......$ 10.66 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Flagger................$ 12.53 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Grade Checker..........$ 12.41 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Landscape &   
Irrigation.......................$  9.02 **          0.00
  
LABORER:  Mason Tender -   
Cement/Concrete..................$ 13.91 **          3.50
  
LABORER:  Pipelayer..............$ 14.82 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:    
Backhoe/Excavator/Trackhoe.......$ 15.66 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Bobcat/Skid   
Steer/Skid Loader................$ 12.88 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Boom..................$ 18.95             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Boring Machine........$ 16.23             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Broom/Sweeper.........$ 12.70 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Bulldozer.............$ 16.00 **          0.00
  



3/30/23, 4:17 PM SAM.gov

https://sam.gov/wage-determination/FL20230182/0 3/6

OPERATOR:  Concrete Finishing   
Machine..........................$ 15.44 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Concrete Saw..........$ 16.22             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Crane.................$ 21.66             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Curb Machine..........$ 20.76             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Distributor...........$ 14.76 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Drill.................$ 14.78 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Forklift..............$ 16.32             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Gradall...............$ 15.75 **          0.91
  
OPERATOR:  Grader/Blade..........$ 20.25             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Grinding/Grooving   
Machine..........................$ 13.87 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Loader................$ 14.19 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Mechanic..............$ 18.03             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Milling Machine.......$ 15.60 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Oiler.................$ 16.32             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Paver  (Asphalt,   
Aggregate, and Concrete).........$ 14.73 **          2.36
  
OPERATOR:  Piledriver............$ 17.23             0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Post Driver   
(Guardrail/Fences)...............$ 14.45 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Roller................$ 13.03 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Scraper...............$ 12.01 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Screed................$ 15.51 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Tractor...............$ 10.79 **          0.00
  
OPERATOR:  Trencher..............$ 14.74 **          0.00
  
PAINTER:  Spray..................$ 16.52             0.00
  
SIGN ERECTOR.....................$ 14.02 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Distributor   
Truck............................$ 14.96 **          2.17
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Dump Truck........$ 11.84 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Flatbed Truck.....$ 14.28 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Lowboy Truck......$ 13.98 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Slurry Truck......$ 11.96 **          0.00
  
TRUCK DRIVER:  Vactor Truck......$ 14.21 **          0.00
  



3/30/23, 4:17 PM SAM.gov

https://sam.gov/wage-determination/FL20230182/0 4/6

TRUCK DRIVER:  Water Truck.......$ 13.25 **          0.00
----------------------------------------------------------------

WELDERS - Receive rate prescribed for craft performing
operation to which welding is incidental.

================================================================

** Workers in this classification may be entitled to a higher
minimum wage under Executive Order 14026 ($16.20) or 13658
($12.15).  Please see the Note at the top of the wage
determination for more information.

Note: Executive Order (EO) 13706, Establishing Paid Sick Leave
for Federal Contractors applies to all contracts subject to the
Davis-Bacon Act for which the contract is awarded (and any
solicitation was issued) on or after January 1, 2017.  If this
contract is covered by the EO, the contractor must provide
employees with 1 hour of paid sick leave for every 30 hours
they work, up to 56 hours of paid sick leave each year.
Employees must be permitted to use paid sick leave for their
own illness, injury or other health-related needs, including
preventive care; to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is ill, injured, or has other
health-related needs, including preventive care; or for reasons
resulting from, or to assist a family member (or person who is
like family to the employee) who is a victim of, domestic
violence, sexual assault, or stalking.  Additional information
on contractor requirements and worker protections under the EO
is available at
https://www.dol.gov/agencies/whd/government-contracts.

Unlisted classifications needed for work not included within
the scope of the classifications listed may be added after
award only as provided in the labor standards contract clauses
(29CFR 5.5 (a) (1) (ii)).

----------------------------------------------------------------

The body of each wage determination lists the classification
and wage rates that have been found to be prevailing for the
cited type(s) of construction in the area covered by the wage
determination. The classifications are listed in alphabetical
order of ""identifiers"" that indicate whether the particular
rate is a union rate (current union negotiated rate for local),
a survey rate (weighted average rate) or a union average rate
(weighted union average rate).

Union Rate Identifiers

A four letter classification abbreviation identifier enclosed
in dotted lines beginning with characters other than ""SU"" or
""UAVG"" denotes that the union classification and rate were
prevailing for that classification in the survey. Example:
PLUM0198-005 07/01/2014. PLUM is an abbreviation identifier of
the union which prevailed in the survey for this
classification, which in this example would be Plumbers. 0198
indicates the local union number or district council number
where applicable, i.e., Plumbers Local 0198. The next number,
005 in the example, is an internal number used in processing
the wage determination. 07/01/2014 is the effective date of the
most current negotiated rate, which in this example is July 1,
2014.



3/30/23, 4:17 PM SAM.gov

https://sam.gov/wage-determination/FL20230182/0 5/6

Union prevailing wage rates are updated to reflect all rate
changes in the collective bargaining agreement (CBA) governing
this classification and rate.

Survey Rate Identifiers

Classifications listed under the ""SU"" identifier indicate that
no one rate prevailed for this classification in the survey and
the published rate is derived by computing a weighted average
rate based on all the rates reported in the survey for that
classification.  As this weighted average rate includes all
rates reported in the survey, it may include both union and
non-union rates. Example: SULA2012-007 5/13/2014. SU indicates
the rates are survey rates based on a weighted average
calculation of rates and are not majority rates. LA indicates
the State of Louisiana. 2012 is the year of survey on which
these classifications and rates are based. The next number, 007
in the example, is an internal number used in producing the
wage determination. 5/13/2014 indicates the survey completion
date for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

Survey wage rates are not updated and remain in effect until a
new survey is conducted.

Union Average Rate Identifiers

Classification(s) listed under the UAVG identifier indicate
that no single majority rate prevailed for those
classifications; however, 100% of the data reported for the
classifications was union data. EXAMPLE: UAVG-OH-0010
08/29/2014. UAVG indicates that the rate is a weighted union
average rate. OH indicates the state. The next number, 0010 in
the example, is an internal number used in producing the wage
determination. 08/29/2014 indicates the survey completion date
for the classifications and rates under that identifier.

A UAVG rate will be updated once a year, usually in January of
each year, to reflect a weighted average of the current
negotiated/CBA rate of the union locals from which the rate is
based.

----------------------------------------------------------------

                   WAGE DETERMINATION APPEALS PROCESS

1.) Has there been an initial decision in the matter? This can
be:

*  an existing published wage determination
*  a survey underlying a wage determination
*  a Wage and Hour Division letter setting forth a position on
   a wage determination matter
*  a conformance (additional classification and rate) ruling

On survey related matters, initial contact, including requests
for summaries of surveys, should be with the Wage and Hour
National Office because National Office has responsibility for
the Davis-Bacon survey program. If the response from this
initial contact is not satisfactory, then the process described
in 2.) and 3.) should be followed.

With regard to any other matter not yet ripe for the formal



3/30/23, 4:17 PM SAM.gov

https://sam.gov/wage-determination/FL20230182/0 6/6

process described here, initial contact should be with the
Branch of Construction Wage Determinations.  Write to:

            Branch of Construction Wage Determinations
            Wage and Hour Division
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

2.) If the answer to the question in 1.) is yes, then an
interested party (those affected by the action) can request
review and reconsideration from the Wage and Hour Administrator
(See 29 CFR Part 1.8 and 29 CFR Part 7). Write to:

            Wage and Hour Administrator
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

The request should be accompanied by a full statement of the
interested party's position and by any information (wage
payment data, project description, area practice material,
etc.) that the requestor considers relevant to the issue.

3.) If the decision of the Administrator is not favorable, an
interested party may appeal directly to the Administrative
Review Board (formerly the Wage Appeals Board).  Write to:

            Administrative Review Board
            U.S. Department of Labor
            200 Constitution Avenue, N.W.
            Washington, DC 20210

4.) All decisions by the Administrative Review Board are final.

================================================================

          END OF GENERAL DECISIO"

        



PH
IH
CPD X
Housing

Grant/Project Number or HUD 
Case Number or other 

identification of property, 
subdivision, dwelling unit, etc.             

7a.

Amount of 
Contract or 
Subcontact                   

7b.

Type of Trade 
Code             

(See below)     
7c.

Contractor or 
Subcontractor 

Business 
Racial/Ethnic 
(See below)      

7d.

Woman Owned Business 
(Yes or No)                                

7e.

Prime Contractor Identification (ID) 
Number                                                       

7f. Sec.  3    7g.

Subcontractor 
Identification (ID) 

Number                     
7h

Sec. 3                
7i.

CDBG State Zip
Lake Worth Beach

Memorial Park

Memorial Park

Memorial Park

Memorial Park

 

CPD:
1 = New Construction 6 = Professional
2 = Education/Training 7 = Tenant Services
3 = Other 8 = Education/Training

0 = Other

8 = Section 8113 = Repair

2 = Black Americans1 = New Construction

9 = Arch./Engrg. Appraisal 5 = Asian/Pacific Americans

7d:  Racial/Ethnic Codes:

1 = White Americans

2 = Substantial Rehab. 3 = Native Americans
4 = Hispanic Americans 4 = Insured (Management)

3 = Section 8 Noninsured, Non-HFDA
6 = HUD-Held (Management)
7 = Public/India Housing

Previous editions are obsolete. form HUD-2516 (8/98)

West Palm Beach, FL 33406

5 = Project Mangt.
4 = Service

6 = Hasidic Jews

SUBCONTRACTORS 1

SUBCONTRACTORS 2

PRIME CONTRACTOR

Contract and Subcontract Activity

Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address                                                                                                                                    7j.

Name Street City

Palm Beach County

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development                                                                                                                                                             

Elena O'Keefe

Check if:
100 Australian Ave, Suite 500

                                                    

Privacy Act Notice = The United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Housing Administration, is authorized to solicit the Information requested in this form by virtue of   Title 12, United States Code, Section 1701 et seq., and regulation.  It will not be disclosed or 
relesed outside the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development without your consetn, except as required or permitted by Law.

OMB Approval No.: 2577-0088                                               
OMB Approval No.: 2502-0355 

Executive Orders dated July 14, 1983, directs the Minority Business Development Plans shall be developed by each Federal Agency and the these annual plans shall establish minority business development objectives.  The information is used by HUD to monitor and evaluate MBE activities 
against the total program activity and the designated minority business enterprise (MBE) goals.  The Department requires the information to provide guidance and oversight for programs for the development of minority business enterprise concerning Minority Business Development.  If the 
information is not collected HUD would not be able to establish meaningful MBE goals nor evaluate MBE performance against these goals.

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average .5 hours per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information.  The 
Information is voluntary.  HUD may not collect this information, and you are not required to complete this form, unless it displays a currently valid OMB Control Number.

(561) 233-3616 Oct. 1, 2021 - Sept. 30, 2022

2= Flexible Subsidy
1 = All Insured, including Section8 5 = Section 202Housing/Public Housing:

7c: Type of Trade Codes: 5: Program Codes (Complete for Housing and Public and Indian Housing programs only):

1. Grantee/Project Owner/Developer/Sponsor/Builder/Agency

3a. Name of Contact Person 3b. Phone Number (Including Area Code) 4. Reporting Period 5. Program Code (Not applicable for CPD programs.)  
See explanation of Codes at bottom of Page Use a 
separate sheet for each program code.

6.  Date Submitted to Field Office

2.  Location (City, State Zip  Code)

X



This report is to be completed by grantees, developers, sponsors, builders, agencies, and/or 
project owners for reporting contract and subcontract activities of $10,000 or more under the 
following programs: Community Development Block Grants (entitlement and small cities); 
Urban Development Action Grants; Housing Development Grants; Multifamily Insured and 
Noninsured; Public and Indian Housing Authorities; and contracts entered into by recipients of 
CDBG rehabilitation assistance.     

completed for public and Indian housing and most community development programs. Form HUD-
60002 is to be completed by all other HUD programs including State administered community 
development programs covered under Section3.  A Section 3 Contractor/subcontractor is a 
business concern that provides economic opportunities to low and very Low-income residents of 
the metropolitan area (or nonmetropolitan county), including a business concern that is 51 person 
or more owned by low-income residents;

costs or unusually high or low-income families.  Very low-income families (including single 
persons) whose incomes do not exceed 50 per centum of the median family income for the area, 
as determined by the Secretary with adjustments for smaller and larger families, except that the 
secretary may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 50 per centum of the median for the 
area on the basis of the Secretary's findings that such variations are necessary because of 
unusually high or low family incomes.

Contracts/subcontracts of less than $10,000 need be reported only if such contracts represent a 
significant portion of your total contracting activity. Include only contracts executed during 
this reporting period. 

or provides subcontracting or business development opportunities to businesses owned by low or 
low-income residents.  Low and very low-income residents; include participants in Youthbuild 
programs established under Subtitle D of Title IV of the Cranston-Gonzalez National Affordable 
Housing Act.

Submit two (2) copies of this report to your local HUD Office within ten (10) days after the end 
of the reporting period you checked in item 4 on the front.  Complete item 7h. Only once for each 
contractor/subcontractor on each semi-annual report.

This form has been modified to capture Section 3 contract data in columns 7g and 7i.  Section 
3 requires that the employment and other economic opportunities generated by HUD financial 
assistance for housing and community development programs shall, to the greatest extent 
feasible, be directed toward low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who are 
recipients of government assistance for housing. Recipients using this form to report Section 3 
contract data must also use Part I of form HUD-60002 to report employment and training 
opportunities data. Form HUD-2516 is to be

The terms “low-income persons” and “very low-income persons” have the same meanings given 
the terms in section3(b)(2) of the United States Housing Act of 1937.  Low-income persons mean 
families (including single persons) whose incomes do not exceed 80 per centum of the median 
income for the area, as determined by the Secretary, with adjustments for smaller an larger 
families, except that the Secretary may establish income ceilings higher or lower than 80 per 
centum of the median for the area on the basis of the Secretary's findings that such variations are 
necessary because of prevailing levels of construction 

Enter the prime contractor's ID in item 7f. for all contracts and subcontracts. Include only 
contracts expected during this reporting period.  PHAs/IHAs are to report all 
contracts/subcontracts.

Community Development Programs Multifamily Housing Programs Public Housing and Indian Housing Programs

1. Grantee: Enter the name of the unit of government submitting this report. 1. Grantee/Project Owner: Enter the name of the unit of government, agency or mortgagor 
entity submitting this report.

PHAs/IHAs are to report all contracts/subcontracts. Include only contracts executed during this 
reporting period.

3. Contact Person: Enter name and phone of person responsible for maintaining and 
submitting contract/subcontract data. 3. Contact Person: Same as item 3 under CPD Programs. 1. Project Owner: Enter the name of the unit of government, agency or mortgagor entity 

submitting this report. Check box as appropriate.

7a. Grant Number: Enter the HUD Community Development Block Grant Identification 
Number (with dashes). For example: B-32-MC-25-0034. For Entitlement Programs and Small 
City multi-year comprehensive programs, enter the latest approved grant number.

4. Reporting Period: Check only one period. 3. Contact Person:  Same as item 3 under CPD Programs.

7b. Amount of Contract/Subcontract: Enter the dollar amount rounded to the nearest dollar. 
If subcontractor ID number is provided in 7f, the dollar figure would be for the subcontract 
only and not for the prime contract.

5. Program Code: Enter the appropriate program code. 4. Reporting Period:  Check only one period.

7c. Type of Trade: Enter the numeric codes which best indicates the 
contractor's/subcontractor's service. If subcontractor ID number is provided in 7f., the type of 
trade code would be for the subcontractor only and not for the prime contractor. 

7a. Grant/Project Number: Enter the HUD Project Number or Housing Development Grant or 
number assigned. 5. Program Code:  Enter the appropriate program code.

The "other" category includes supply, professional services and all other activities except 
construction and education/training activities. 7b. Amount of Contract/Subcontract: Same as item 7b. under CPD Programs. 7a. Grant/Project Number:  Enter the HUD Project Number or Housing Development Grant or 

number assigned.
7d. Business Racial/Ethnic/Gender Code: Enter the numeric code which indicates the 
racial/ethnic/gender character of the owner(s) and controller(s) of 51% of the business. 7c. Type of Trade: Same as item 7c. under CPD Programs. 7b. Amount of Contract/Subcontract:  Same as item 7b. under CPD Programs.

When 51% or more is not owned and controlled by any single racial/ethnic/gender category, 
enter the code which seems most appropriate. If the subcontractor ID number is provided, the 
code would apply to the subcontractor and not to the prime contractor.

7d. Business Racial/Ethnic/Gender Code: Same as item 7d. under CPD Programs. 7c. Type of Trade:  Same as item 7c. under CPD Programs.

7e. Woman Owned Business: Enter Yes or No. 7e. Woman Owned Business: Enter Yes or No. 7d. Business Racial/Ethnic/Gender Code:  Same as item 7d. under CPD Programs.

7f. Contractor Identification (ID) Number: Enter the Employer (IRS) Number of the Prime 
Contractor as the unique identifier for prime recipient of HUD funds. Note that the Employer 
(IRS) Number must be provided for each contract/subcontract awarded.

7f. Contractor Identification (ID) Number: Same as item 7f. under CPD Programs. 7e. Woman Owned Business:  Enter Yes or No.

7g. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7g. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7f. Contractor Identification (ID) Number:  Same as item 7f. under CPD Programs.

7h. Subcontractor Identification (ID) Number: Enter the Employer (IRS) Number of the 
subcontractor as the unique identifier for each subcontract awarded from HUD funds. When 
the subcontractor ID Number is provided, the respective Prime Contractor ID Number must 
also be provided.

7h. Subcontractor Identification (ID) Number: Same as item 7h. under CPD Programs. 7g. Section 3 Contractor:  Enter Yes or No.

7i. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7i. Section 3 Contractor: Enter Yes or No. 7h. Subcontractor Identification (ID) Number:  Same as item 7h. under CPD Programs.

7j. Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address: Enter this information for each firm 
receiving contract/subcontract activity only one time on each report for each firm. 7j. Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address: Same as item 7j. under CPD Programs. 7i. Section 3 Contractor:  Enter Yes or No.

7j. Contractor/Subcontractor Name and Address:  Same as item 7j. under CPD Programs.



STATEMENT AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT OMB Control Number:  9000-0066 
Expiration Date:  4/30/2022

PART I - STATEMENT OF PRIME CONTRACTOR
1. PRIME CONTRACT NUMBER 2. DATE SUBCONTRACT 

AWARDED
3. SUBCONTRACT NUMBER

15b. TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

AUTHORIZED FOR LOCAL REPRODUCTION  
PREVIOUS EDITION IS NOT USABLE

STANDARD FORM 1413 (REV. 4/2013)
Prescribed by GSA/FAR (48 CFR) 53.222(e)

4. PRIME CONTRACTOR 5. SUBCONTRACTOR
a. NAME a. NAME

b. STREET ADDRESS b. STREET ADDRESS

c. CITY d. STATE e. ZIP CODE c. CITY d. STATE e. ZIP CODE

6. The prime contract         does,          does not contain the clause entitled "Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act -- 
Overtime Compensation."

7. The prime contractor states that under the contract shown in Item 1, a subcontract was awarded on the date shown in Item 2 to the 
subcontractor identified in item 5 by the following firm:

a. NAME OF AWARDING FIRM

b. DESCRIPTION OF WORK BY SUBCONTRACTOR

8. PROJECT 9. LOCATION

10a. NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 11. BY (Signature) 12. DATE SIGNED

10b. TITLE OF PERSON SIGNING

PART II - ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SUBCONTRACTOR
13. The subcontractor acknowledges that the following clauses of the contract shown in Item 1 are included in this subcontract:

Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act - Overtime Compensation  
     (If included in prime contract see Block 6)  
Payrolls and Basic Records 
Withholding of Funds 
Disputes Concerning Labor Standards 
Compliance with Construction Wage Rate Requirements 
     and Related Regulations

Construction Wage Rate Requirements  
Apprentices and Trainees  
Compliance with Copeland Act Requirements 
Subcontracts (Labor Standards)  
Contract Termination - Debarment  
Certification of Eligibility

14. NAME(S) OF ANY INTERMEDIATE SUBCONTRACTORS, IF ANY

A C

B D

15a. NAME OF PERSON SIGNING 16. BY (Signature) 17. DATE SIGNED

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement - This information collection meets the requirements of 44 U.S.C. § 3507, as amended by section 2 of the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995.  You do not need to answer these questions unless we display a valid Office of Management and Budget (OMB) control number.  
The OMB control number for this collection is 9000-0066.  We estimate that it will take .05 hours to read the instructions, gather the facts, and answer the 
questions.  Send only comments relating to our time estimate, including suggestions for reducing this burden, or any other aspects of this collection of 
information to:  U.S. General Services Administration, Regulatory Secretariat Division (M1V1CB), 1800 F Street, NW, Washington, DC  20405.  



Bid Item Description Qty. Unit Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount Unit Price Amount

1 MOBILIZAATION (OVER 100SY) 1 LS $7,500.00 $7,500.00 $750.00 $750.00 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $13,000.00 $13,000.00 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $9,589.20 $9,589.20

2 1" TYPE S-3 ASPHALIC CONCRETE 2,400 SY $11.50 $27,600.00 $15.40 $36,960.00 $9.50 $22,800.00 $11.00 $26,400.00 $18.00 $43,200.00 $13.15 $31,560.00 $13.15 $31,560.00

3 MILL EXIST. ASPHALT 1.5" AVG DEPTH 2,400 SY $3.75 $9,000.00 $5.00 $12,000.00 $3.50 $8,400.00 $6.35 $15,240.00 $3.50 $8,400.00 $4.35 $10,440.00 $6.00 $14,400.00

4 MOBILIZATION (OVER 100 LF) 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $750.00 $750.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,991.13 $2,991.13

5 REMOVE EX. 6” CONCRETE 228 SF $15.50 $3,534.00 $4.00 $912.00 $8.20 $1,869.60 $15.00 $3,420.00 $8.00 $1,824.00 $13.40 $3,055.20 $4.72 $1,076.16

6 6” CONCRETE SIDEWALK / DRIVEWAY (3,000 PSI) 228 SF $27.50 $6,270.00 $16.00 $3,648.00 $8.20 $1,869.60 $25.00 $5,700.00 $13.00 $2,964.00 $18.25 $4,161.00 $16.83 $3,837.24

7 REMOVE EX. CONCRETE CURBING (ALL TYPES) 41 LF $30.50 $1,250.50 $33.00 $1,353.00 $19.00 $779.00 $20.00 $820.00 $8.00 $328.00 $56.40 $2,312.40 $26.22 $1,075.02

8 TYPE D CURBING 41 LF $54.00 $2,214.00 $67.00 $2,747.00 $19.00 $779.00 $87.00 $3,567.00 $18.00 $738.00 $55.00 $2,255.00 $84.61 $3,469.01

9 MOBILIZATION (OVER 50 LF) 1 LS $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $450.00 $450.00 $750.00 $750.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,800.00 $1,800.00

10 HANDICAP PARKING STALL COMPLETE W/ SIGN (PAINT) 2 EA $500.00 $1,000.00 $600.00 $1,200.00 $450.00 $900.00 $460.00 $920.00 $1,300.00 $2,600.00 $440.00 $880.00 $486.00 $972.00

11 Stall line striping (White) 4" Single Stall Line 1,056 LF $2.75 $2,904.00 $0.50 $528.00 $0.65 $686.40 $1.50 $1,584.00 $1.35 $1,425.60 $0.70 $739.20 $0.78 $823.68

12 Stop Bars 2 EA $100.00 $200.00 $40.00 $80.00 $27.00 $54.00 $29.00 $58.00 $450.00 $900.00 $39.00 $78.00 $60.00 $120.00

13 Hash Line (Yellow) 135 LF $1.75 $236.25 $0.70 $94.50 $0.65 $87.75 $2.00 $270.00 $1.50 $202.50 $0.40 $54.00 $1.14 $153.90

14 Yellow curb 25 LF $10.00 $250.00 $0.60 $15.00 $0.91 $22.75 $2.50 $62.50 $1.35 $33.75 $0.40 $10.00 $3.60 $90.00

15 Car Stop 51 EA $44.00 $2,244.00 $70.00 $3,570.00 $62.40 $3,182.40 $115.00 $5,865.00 $30.00 $1,530.00 $50.00 $2,550.00 $39.60 $2,019.60

16 One Way Signs 4 EA $450.00 $1,800.00 $200.00 $800.00 $416.00 $1,664.00 $350.00 $1,400.00 $400.00 $1,600.00 $225.50 $902.00 $102.00 $408.00

17 Stop Signs 2 EA $450.00 $900.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $416.00 $832.00 $350.00 $700.00 $450.00 $900.00 $380.00 $760.00 $102.00 $204.00

18 Do Not Enter Signs 2 EA $450.00 $900.00 $250.00 $500.00 $416.00 $832.00 $350.00 $700.00 $450.00 $900.00 $314.00 $628.00 $102.00 $204.00

19 Custom Signs (Vet Parking, No Dogs Allowed, Park Hours (2ea)) 4 EA $450.00 $1,800.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $416.00 $1,664.00 $300.00 $1,200.00 $525.00 $2,100.00 $220.00 $880.00 $114.00 $456.00
$2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

$75,102.75 $71,357.50 $54,922.50 $88,406.50 $86,145.85 $75,764.80 $77,748.94

Total amount corrected as per submitted bid

SubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmitted

SubmittedSubmitted

Submitted

Submitted

CompliantCompliantBid Compliance CompliantCompliantCompliantCompliantCompliant

SubmittedSubmittedCertification of Non-segregated Facilities

SubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedWorkforce Projection
SubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmitted

Submitted

Submitted

Submitted

Submitted

Bid Bond

Anti-kickback Affidavit

SubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedCertification of Eligibility of General Contractor
SubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Bid Form 00300-1 - 00300-4 Submitted Submitted Submitted Submitted

Submitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Bidders Qualification Questionaire 00310-1 -00310-5 SubmittedSubmitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

SubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmittedSubmitted

Submitted Submitted

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Property Services Warranty, Inc. R&D Paving, LLC Rosso Site Development, Inc.

Submitted Submitted Submitted

Submitted Submitted

Submitted

Scrutinized Companies Certification Form 00851

Non-collusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder

Trench Safety Affidavit Bid Form 00300-6

Drug Free Certification  00300-11

SubmittedCampaign Contribution Statement  00850 

Comments

Submitted

SubmittedSubmitted

Submitted

Submitted

Submitted

SubmittedSubmitted Submitted

Submitted Submitted

Submitted

SubmittedSworn Statement Under Section 287.133(3)(a), FS, On Public Entity Crimes 00300-09 - 00300-10 Submitted Submitted

Submitted

Submitted Submitted

Submitted

City of Lake Worth Beach

IFB#23-103 Harold Grimes Memorial Park Phase 1B Parking Lot Resurfacing

Bid Tab
B&B Underground Construction, Inc. Florida Blacktop, Inc. M&M Asphalt Maintenance, Inc. Municipal Contractors, Inc.

Submitted

Submitted

Schedule of Major Subcontractors 00300-7 Submitted Submitted

SubmittedSchedule of Major Equipment & Materials 00300-8 Submitted Submitted

Contigency:

Total:

Unit Price Schedule Bid Form 00300-5 Submitted Submitted



STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

  

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: City Attorney  

TITLE: 

Ordinance No. 05-2023 – First Reading – Adopting a Single-Member Election Redistricting Map; 
Repealing Article II “Territorial Boundaries; Election Precincts,” Section 2 “Election Districts” of 
the Charter and Adopting a new Article II “Territorial Boundaries; Election Precincts,” Section 2 
“Single-Member Election Districts” to reflect the Redistricting Map and its Boundaries 

 
SUMMARY: 

An ordinance adopting Alternative Districts: Option 5 redistricting map proposed by FAU and 
amending the City’s election districts to reflect the redistricting map boundaries.   

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

On March 8, 2022, the qualified voters of the City approved, by referendum, an amendment to 
the City’s Charter changing the at-large voting system to a single-member district voting system 
(Ordinance No. 2021-22).  To implement the single-member districts and to comply with the 
Voting Rights Act of 1965 and the Equal Protection Clause of the United States Constitution 
(14th Amendment), the City Commission began the process of evaluating the City’s four (4) at-
large election districts based on apportionment data from the US Census Bureau. The City 
contracted with Florida Atlantic University (FAU) to conduct an analysis of the current at-large 
election districts to determine if the City needed to amend the district boundaries due to changes 
in population.  According to FAU’s “Final Consultant Report: Redistricting Alternatives for the 
City of Lake Worth Beach” dated December 19, 2022, “Based on 2020 data, the election districts 
have a total deviation of 133.31% and a spread between the largest and smallest districts of 
72.10%.  Based on the 2020 Census Block data, the current districts are well above the 10% 
deviation (spread) threshold used to evaluate election districts for population equity.” 

Alternative maps were presented by FAU and considered by the City Commission at the City 
Commission meetings on October 6, 2022, November 1, 2022, January 3, 2023, and February 
7, 2023; and the maps were also presented at separate public meetings held on October 13, 
2022, October 15, 2022, and February 4, 2023.  To increase public access to the redistricting 
process, the City also created a webpage to disseminate the redistricting map alternatives, 
reports, and public comments.   The City Commission voted to adopt “City of Lake Worth Beach 
Alternative Districts: Option 5” (“Map 5”) at its February 7, 2023, meeting.  The adoption of the 
ordinance and the establishment of single-member districts is made necessary based upon (1) 
the City’s electors’ approval of single-member district voting in Ordinance No. 2021-22 
(referendum) and (2) FAU’s findings that the current at-large election districts are well above the 
10% deviation allowed under the Voting Rights Act (and the Equal Protection Clause of the 
Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution). The single-member districts set forth 
in Map 5, if adopted by the Commission, will be in effect for the next City Municipal Election 
scheduled in March 2024 and will continue in effect until redistricting occurs. 



 
 

 
MOTION: 

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance No. 05-2023 on first reading and set the second reading 
and public hearing for April 18, 2023. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
Ordinance 05-2023 
Alternative Districts – Option 5 (Redistricting Map) 



2023-05 1 

 2 
ORDINANCE 2023-05 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE 3 

WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A SINGLE-MEMBER  4 
ELECTION REDISTRICTING MAP; REPEALING ARTICLE II 5 
“TERRITORIAL BOUNDARIES; ELECTION PRECINCTS,” SECTION 2 6 
“ELECTION DISTRICTS” OF THE CHARTER AND ADOPTING A NEW 7 
ARTICLE II “TERRITORIAL BOUNDARIES; ELECTION PRECINCTS,” 8 

SECTION 2 “SINGLE-MEMBER ELECTION DISTRICTS” TO REFLECT 9 
THE REDISTRICTING MAP AND ITS BOUNDARIES AND FOR OTHER 10 
PURPOSES; AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 11 
CODIFICATION AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”), is a duly constituted 14 
municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution 15 

and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and 16 
 17 
WHEREAS, on March 8, 2022, the qualified voters of the City approved, by 18 

referendum, an amendment to the City’s Charter changing the at-large voting system to 19 

a single-member district voting system (Ordinance No. 2021-22); and 20 
 21 

WHEREAS, to implement the single-member districts and to comply with the 22 
Voting Rights Act of 1965 and the Equal Protection Clause of the United States 23 
Constitution (14th Amendment), the City Commission began the process of evaluating the 24 

City’s four (4) at-large election districts based on apportionment data from the US Census 25 
Bureau; and 26 

 27 

WHEREAS, the City contracted with Florida Atlantic University (FAU) to conduct 28 

an analysis of the current at-large election districts to determine if the City needed to 29 
amend the district boundaries due to changes in population; and  30 

 31 

WHEREAS, the Equal Protection Clause requires “an honest and good faith effort 32 
to construct districts…as nearly of equal population as is practicable” See Reynolds v. 33 

Sims, 377 U.S. 533 (1964); and 34 

 35 
WHEREAS, based on data from the 2020 US Census, FAU conducted a 36 

population analysis and presented a total of five (5) map alternatives for the purposes of 37 
redistricting to the City Commission; and 38 

 39 

WHEREAS, according to FAU’s “Final Consultant Report: Redistricting 40 

Alternatives for the City of Lake Worth Beach” dated December 19, 2022 (“Final 41 
Consultant Report”), “Based on 2020 data, the election districts have a total deviation of 42 
133.31% and a spread between the largest and smallest districts of 72.10%.  Based on 43 
the 2020 Census Block data, the current districts are well above the 10% deviation 44 
(spread) threshold used to evaluate election districts for population equity”; and  45 

 46 
WHEREAS, the City Commission considered and discussed FAU’s initial “District 47 

Analysis” that was presented at the September 12, 2022, work session; and 48 
 49 



Pg. 2, Ord. 2023-05 

 

WHEREAS, alternative maps were considered by the City Commission at the City 50 

Commission meetings on October 6, 2022, November 1, 2022, January 3, 2023, and 51 
February 7, 2023; and the maps were also presented at separate public meetings held 52 
on October 13, 2022, October 15, 2022, and February 4, 2023; and  53 

 54 

WHEREAS, to increase public access to the redistricting process, the City also 55 
created a webpage to disseminate the redistricting map alternatives, reports, and public 56 
comments; and 57 

 58 
WHEREAS, the City Commission voted to adopt “City of Lake Worth Beach 59 

Alternative Districts: Option 5” at its February 7, 2023, meeting; and  60 
 61 
WHEREAS, the City Commission finds and declares that the adoption of this 62 

ordinance is appropriate; the establishment of single-member districts is made necessary 63 
based upon (1) the City’s electors’ approval of single-member district voting in Ordinance 64 
No. 2021-22 (referendum) and (2) FAU’s findings that the current at-large election districts 65 

are well above the 10% deviation allowed under the Voting Rights Act (and the Equal 66 
Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution); the 67 

adoption serves a public purpose and is in the best interest of the health, safety and 68 
welfare of the City, its residents and visitors. 69 

 70 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 71 
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that: 72 

 73 

Section 1: The foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as 74 

being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein. 75 
 76 
Section 2: The City Commission hereby adopts the findings, conclusions, and 77 

recommendations prepared by FAU in its Final Consultant Report, and the same is 78 
incorporated herein by this reference and made a part hereof.  The City Commission 79 

hereby adopts FAU’s “City of Lake Worth Beach Alternative Districts: Option 5” (“Map 5”), 80 
as recommended, for the establishment of its single-member election districts.  Map 5 is 81 
attached hereto as Exhibit A and is incorporated herein, and such map is hereby 82 
established as the current single-member election district boundaries within the limits of 83 

the City and shall continue until redistricting occurs.  All candidates for the March 2024 84 
municipal election are hereby required to comply with Map 5’s single-member districts.  85 

 86 

Section 3: Article II “Territorial Boundaries; Election Precincts,” Section 2 87 
“Election districts” of the City of Lake Worth Beach Charter is hereby repealed in full. 88 

 89 
Section 4:  Article II “Territorial Boundaries; Election Precincts,” Section 2 90 

“Single-member election districts” of the City of Lake Worth Beach Charter is hereby 91 
adopted to read as follows: 92 

 93 
Sec. 2. – Single-member election districts. 94 
To implement single-member district voting set forth in Article III, Section 1 of the 95 

Charter, the boundaries for each of the four (4) single-member election districts of the 96 
City of Lake Worth Beach are hereby established as follows: 97 



Pg.3, Ord. 2023-05 
 

(1) District No. 1.  COMMENCING at the centerline intersection of Lake Worth 98 

Road and the centerline of I-95; thence run westerly along the centerline of 99 
Lake Worth Road to the city's western corporate limits and the POINT OF 100 
BEGINNING; thence run easterly along the centerline of Lake Worth Road to 101 
the centerline intersection of South A Street; thence run southerly along the 102 
centerline of South A Street to the centerline intersection of 4 th Avenue South; 103 

thence run easterly along the centerline of said 4th Avenue South to centerline 104 
intersection of the FEC Railway; thence run southerly and easterly along the 105 
centerline of said FEC Railway to the city's southern corporate limits; thence 106 
run westerly and northerly along the city's southern and western corporate 107 

limits to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 108 

(2) District No. 2.  COMMENCING at the centerline intersection of Lake Worth 109 

Road and the centerline of I-95; thence run westerly along the centerline of 110 

Lake Worth Road to the city's western corporate limits and the POINT OF 111 
BEGINNING; thence run easterly along the centerline of Lake Worth Road to 112 

the centerline intersection of North A Street; thence run northerly along the 113 
centerline of North A Street to the centerline intersection of 10 th Avenue North; 114 

thence run easterly along the centerline of 10th Avenue North to the centerline 115 
intersection of Dixie Highway; thence run northerly along the centerline of 116 
Dixie Highway to the city's northern corporate limits; thence run westerly, 117 

southerly and easterly along the city's northern and western corporate limits 118 

to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 119 

(3) District No. 3.  BEGINNING at the centerline intersection of Lake Worth Road 120 

and North A Street; thence run northerly along the centerline of North A Street 121 

to the centerline intersection of 10th Avenue North; thence run easterly along 122 
the centerline of 10th Avenue North to the centerline intersection of Dixie 123 

Highway; thence run northerly along the centerline of Dixie Highway to the 124 
city's northern corporate limits; thence run easterly and southerly along the 125 
city's northern and eastern corporate limits to the centerline intersection of the 126 

city’s eastern corporate limits and the easterly extension of 7th Avenue North; 127 
thence run westerly along the centerline of 7th Avenue North to the centerline 128 

intersection of North Federal Highway; thence run southerly along the 129 
centerline of North Federal Highway to the centerline intersection of Lucerne 130 
Avenue; thence run westerly along the centerline of Lucerne Avenue to the 131 

POINT OF BEGINNING. 132 

(4) District No. 4. BEGINNING at the centerline intersection of Lake Worth Road 133 

and South A Street; thence run southerly along the centerline of South A 134 
Street to the centerline intersection of 4th Avenue South; thence run easterly 135 
along the centerline of said 4th Avenue South to centerline intersection of the 136 
FEC Railway; thence run southerly and easterly along the centerline of said 137 
FEC Railway to the city's southern corporate limits; thence run easterly and 138 

northerly along the city's southern and eastern corporate limits to the 139 
centerline intersection of the city’s eastern corporate limits and the easterly 140 
extension of 7th Avenue North; thence run westerly along the centerline of 7 th 141 
Avenue North to the centerline intersection of North Federal Highway; thence 142 
run southerly along the centerline of North Federal Highway to the centerline 143 



Pg. 4, Ord. 2023-05 

 

intersection of Lucerne Avenue; thence run westerly along the centerline of 144 

Lucerne Avenue to the POINT OF BEGINNING.  145 

The City of Lake Worth Beach’s single-member election districts, as described 146 
above, are depicted in the Alternative Districts Option 5 map adopted in Ordinance No. 147 
2023-05.  Said ordinance shall remain on file in the Office of the City Clerk and shall be 148 
available for inspection by the public upon request. 149 

 150 

Section 5: The City Manager or designee, with the assistance of the City Clerk, 151 
is hereby authorized and directed to transmit the following to the Palm Beach County 152 
Supervisor of Elections (the “Supervisor”) upon adoption: (1) a certified copy of this 153 
Ordinance along with Exhibit A; (2) a paper copy and shapefile of the redistricting map; 154 
and (3) and any other document required by the Supervisor. 155 

 156 
Section 6: Severability.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or 157 

portion of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 158 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and 159 

independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining 160 
portions thereof.  161 

 162 
Section 7:  Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 163 

conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 164 

 165 
Section 8: Codification.  The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of 166 

the City Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to 167 
accomplish such, and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or 168 

any other appropriate word. 169 
 170 

Section 9: Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after 171 
passage. 172 
 173 

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by _____, seconded by 174 
______, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows: 175 

 176 
Mayor Betty Resch   177 
Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  178 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  179 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  180 

Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  181 
 182 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the 183 
____ day of ______, 2023. 184 

 185 
 186 

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by 187 

_________________, seconded by ________________, and upon being put to a vote, 188 
the vote was as follows: 189 

 190 

 191 



Pg.5, Ord. 2023-05 
 

Mayor Betty Resch  192 

Vice Mayor Christopher McVoy  193 
Commissioner Sarah Malega  194 
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes  195 
Commissioner Reinaldo Diaz  196 
 197 

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the _______ day of 198 
_____________________, 2023. 199 

 200 
LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION 201 
 202 

 203 
By: __________________________ 204 

Betty Resch, Mayor 205 
ATTEST: 206 
 207 
 208 
______________________________ 209 

Melissa Ann Coyne, CMC, City Clerk 210 





STAFF REPORT 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

 

AGENDA DATE: April 4, 2023 DEPARTMENT: City Commission 

TITLE: 

Discussion of City Manager’s Annual Evaluation 

 
SUMMARY: 

A process needs to be established for conducting an annual evaluation of the City Manager. 

 
BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION: 

According to the provisions set forth in the City Charter, Lake Worth Beach operates a Commission-
Manager form of government.  Authority is vested in an elected City Commission, which, in turn appoints 
a City Manager. 
 
It is important to conduct an annual evaluation of the City Manager’s performance to maintain a 
productive relationship between the City Commission and the City Manager. This process can lead to 
more effective decision-making throughout the City’s organization.  Additionally, the Commission has a 
responsibility to provide clear guidance on their expectations for the City Manager’s performance and to 
establish a shared understanding of roles and responsibilities.  
 
Presently no set system is in place for evaluating the performance of the City Manager. The goal of this 
discussion is to agree upon a schedule and procedure for establishing such a system. 

 
MOTION: 

Direction is sought to establish a procedure and schedule for conducting annual evaluations of the City 
Manager.. 

 
ATTACHMENT(S): 

Fiscal Impact Analysis – N/A 
 


	Top
	A.	Micro-Communal Housing Unit Presentation
	MCHU Presentation

	A.	Designate Vice Mayor and Vice Mayor Pro Tem
	Vice Mayor & Pro Tem Staff Report

	B.	Appointment of City Commissioners to various organizations and boards
	Organizational Appointments Staff Report

	A.	03/21 RM minutes
	DRAFT 032123 RM minutes

	B.	03/22 AWS minutes
	DRAFT 032223 AWS minutes

	A.	Ordinance No. 2022-17 - Second Reading - Residences at Lake Worth Beach
	Residences of Lake Worth Staff Report
	Ordinance 2022-17
	Attachment 1 - Applicant's Project Narrative rev 3-13-23
	Attachment 2 - Site Plan & Impermeable Exhibit rev 3-13-23
	Attachment 3 - Architectural Plans
	Attachment 4 - Survey & Conceptual Civil Plans
	Attachment 5 - Landscape & Photometric Plans rev 3-13-23
	Attachment 6 - Traffic Statement
	Attachment 7 - Applicant's Supporting Documents
	PZB Staff Report

	B.	Ordinance No. 2023-02 - Second Reading - Affordable/Workforce Housing LDR Amendments
	Affordable Housing Buy Down Staff Report
	Ordinance 2023-02
	PZHP Staff Report

	C.	Ordinance Nos. 2023-03 & 2023-04 - Second Reading - For the Children - FLUM & Rezoning
	FLUM & Rezoning Staff Report
	Ordinance 2023-03 FLUM
	Ordinance 2023-04 Rezoning
	PZB FLUM & Rezoning Staff Report

	A.	CCNA Agreements - Geotechnical
	CCNA Geotechnical Staff Report
	RFQ 23-300 Shortlist Evaluation with Matrix-Geotechnical
	RFQ 23-300 Final Evaluation Results-Geotechnical
	Tierra South Florida Inc. CCNA Agreement-Geothecnical
	RADISE International, LLC CCNA Agreement-Geotechnical
	GFA International, Inc UES CCNA Agreement-Geothecnical
	Terracon Consultants Inc. CCNA Agreement-Geothecnical
	Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. Professional Services Agreement-Finance

	B.	Agreement for FY2024 Comprehensive Integrated Financial Sustainability Analysis
	Stantec Staff Report
	Agreement

	C.	Resolution No. 08-2023 - FDOT Local Agency Program Agreement - ADA Improvements
	FDOT LAP Agreement Staff Report
	Resolution 08-2023
	Draft LAP Agreement 2
	Initial Phase Plans

	D.	Memorial Park CDBG Phase 1B - M&M Asphalt Maintenance
	Memorial Park Phase 1B Project Staff Report
	Memorial Park Phase 1B Contract
	Bid Tab

	E.	Ordinance No. 2023-05 - First Reading - adopting a single member redistricting map
	Redistricting Map Ordinance Staff Report
	Ordinance 2023-05
	Exhibit A - Alternative Districts Option 5

	F.	Discussion of City Manager's Annual Evaluation
	City Manager Evaluation Staff Report

	Bottom

